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THE CONSUMER PROTECTION ACT OF 1977 

TUESDAY, APRIL 19, 1977 

U.S. SENATE, 
COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL AFFAIRS, 

, Washington, D.C. 
The committee met, pursuant to notice, at 10:30 a.m., in room 

3302, Dirksen Senate Office Building, Hon. Abraham Ribicoff 
(chairman) presiding. 

Present: Senators RibiGoff, Percy, and Sasser. 
Staff members present: Richard A. Wegman, ch~ef counsel and staff 

director; Paul Hoff, counsel; Ellen S. Miller, professional staff member; 
Claude Barfield, professional staff member; John B. Childers, chief 
counse~ to the minority; Marilyn A. Harris, chief clerk, and Elizabeth 
A. Preast, assistant chief clerk. 

Chairman RIBICOFF. The committee will be in order. 
I welcome you here today, Mrs. Peterson to testify on S. 1262.1 

r. will forego any formal statement; We have be'en up the hill, down 
the hill, and around the hill on this legislation for the past 7 years. 

I do not think there is a single new thing to be added, either 
by witnesses or by Senators. :, 

The one ingredient that is new and has been added is t.\at the 
President of the United States is with us this time, and that<;c;, the. 
additional ingredient that will bring success to this legislation thro;'lgh 
the Congress, to the President's desk, and to the people of the United 
States. . 

I do want to pay . spe"cial tribute to Senator Percy and Senator 
Javits, who have worked. so closely and ardently for this legislation 
during these 7 years. 

We have taken the brunt of filibuster after filibuster. We have 
been frustrated, but it looks like a new day has really dawned, so 
without further ado, am}.; after some remarks frOm Senator Percy" 
we would welcome your testimony. 

Without objection, the opening statement of Senator Javits will be 
inserted in the record at this point. 

OPENING STATEMENT OF JACOB K" JAVITS 

Mr. JAVITS., Mr. Chairman, we have now been considering the 
establishment of a statutory mechanism for consumer representation 
in the Federal Government for almost 14 years. The. Senate has passed 
bills embodying many of the principles contained in S. 1262 twice 
and the House has passed similar legislation 3 times. We have .wit
nessed the defeat -of the bill in a Senate filibuster twice, despite 

. lSee appendix for copy of S. 12~2 as intfOt:.h!-:~.,\ 
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the fact that a large majority in both house have supported the bill 
over the years. 

A coalition of more than 130 groups, organizations of all types 
and businesses support it. Organized labor has been a major source 
of strength in our long fight for the bill. Consumer organization and 
public interest groups have provided extraordinary assistance each 
year when the bill has been considered in the past. And now, with 
the support of President Carter and his extremely able consumer 
affairs advisor, Ester Peterson, I believe that finally we will be success
ful. 

In a democracy, citizen access to Government decision making is 
absolutely critical. Too often, Federal regulatory agencies result in 
barriers of bureaucracy which cannot be breached by citizens who 
are not organized to have their voices heard as effectively as so 
many special interest groups in our society. 

I recognize that this proposal has had a turbulent history. It has 
evoked and continues to generate substantial opposition from those 
who are concerned about the interference and disruption which they 
allege would spread in the wake of the activities of such an agency. 

But, the Agency for Consumer Advocacy proposed in the bill which 
we take up today is sensible, carefully measured legislation which 
will give the consumer a voice in Government policymaking, without 
upsetting delicate balances which now exist in the Federal decision
making process. 

It focuses in one agency an ability to marshal the facts concerning 
the economic, health, and safety interests of consumers, and to present 
these facts on behalf of consumers. That agency is not conceived 
as, nor can it become, a regulatory agency in any sense of the word. 
It cannot harass. it cannot frustrate and delay Government action. 

In the exercise of its role before other Government agencies, it 
will only have procedural rights, and will not grant or deny rates, 
routes, applications, or other substantive rights and remedies. I believe 
that the agency would not be antibusiness-and it is certainly not 
antibusiness in its conceptualization. 

The ACA would be bound by the same procedural rules and time 
limits which apply to business and other parties to agency proceedings. 
Virtually all decision making in the public as well as the private sector 
is, In the broader sense, adversary. At the heart of the regulatory 
system is a requirement that all formal decisions and findings be 
supported by evidence developed in an adversary process. The fact 
that agencies and departments of the Federal Government have 
frequently failed to take into account the interests of the consumer 
in the regulatoI1" process in contrast to the interests of private sector 
organizations, is a serioll,s institutional flaw which many students of 
the regulatory system have noted. 

Mr. Chairman, I again look forward to working with you and Sena
tor Percy, as well as the other members of our committee in moving 
this bill as quickly as possible to enactment. 

Chairman RIBICQFF. Senator Percy? 

OPENING STATEMENT OF SENATOR PERCY 

Senator PERCY. I share the sentiments of our chairman. No one 
knows better than Esther Peterson about the work we have done 
through the years to bring this legislation, to fruition. 
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We have had testimony from corporate executives. We have heard 
every conceivable argument of why this legislation is not needed. 

We have exaggerated claims both for it and against it, more J 
think, than 1 have ever heard for any single piece of legislation. 

It will not fulfill all of the hopes and dreams of those who believe 
the consumer is king in this economy. There will always be a way 
to get around even an agency for consumer advocacy. But it is also 
not going to fulfill the fears. 

We need to centralize and focus attention on the fact that this 
is a consumer economy. 

It was not set up for the convenience of producers. I was a 
producer, and I never thought that the whole pmpose of this society 
was to favor the producer. 

it is to favor the consumer, and a good producer should never 
fear that. 

One point I think we should bring out is that, with the cooperation 
of the chairman, we have included a provision in this bill which 
will require regulatory agencies to be cost effective when they issue 
a regulation, to tell the consumer how much it wiII cost him, and 
what the expected benefit will be. 

That provision alone should answer many of the complaints made 
by the business community that they are being harassed, that we 
are adding on regulations without any regard of what they cost the 
consumer. I think it wiII prove very effective and through the years 
helping to eliminate unnecessary regulation. 

We do not want to look for more regulation. We want to look 
for less. But we want to make certain that we emphasize again and 
again that we do believe in serving the interests of the consumer 
and that it is in the best interests of any good business and the 
free enterprise system itself. 

I do not know of a single State in which there is a movement 
to abolish the State agency for consumer advocacy, although the 
agencies exist in 38 States. 

I welcome, Mr. Chairman, the opening of these hearings. I welcome 
the fact that we have a fine chance now to move forward and enact 
this legislation in this Congress. 

I ask unanimous consent that the full text of my comments be 
incorporated into the record. 

Chairman RlBICOFF. Without objection, so ordered. 
[The prepared statement of Senator Percy follows:] 

PREPARED STATEMENT OF SENATOR CHARLES H. PERCY 

American consumers continue to this day to claim their right to a just and sound 
economy-an economy that provides goods and servkes at fair and reasonable prices. 
They claim the right to goods and services that are at least satisfactory if not superior. 
They claim the right to goods .and services that assure their wellbeing and which 
do not expose them to unwarranted health and safety risks. They claim the right 
to get what they bargained for and bargain for what they get. 

Consumers throughout" th~~ .. ation are demanding that their rights be. fully and fairly 
protected in the markeJ!place, that their concerns be expressed in the proceedings 
of Washington officialdom, and that their interests be represented in the courts of 
American justice. It should be obvious to all assembled here today that these are 
important and reasonable demands. These are demands which we are-in all good 
conscience-obligated to honor with no further delay. 

These hearings take on a certain historical significance, for they represent what 
I fully expect to be the last stage in a long process we began here sOme seven 

',\ 
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years a$o. They will continue to focus the concerns of millions of American consumers 
on their need for representation in the courts and within government. The hearings 
will help put into better perspective the proper balance between consumer and business 
representation in the articulation of government standards and safeguards. And from 
these hearings there should come into being an agency with a mandate and a commit
ment to preserve and protect the rights of consumers to safe and effective products, 
honest merchandising and fairness in the marketplace. 

Today, there are high expectations of success. We are all resolved to reform the 
ways of government regulation and make it better serve the interests of American 
consumers. 

Many of the basic provisions of this bill have been hammered out with craftsmanlike 
sensitivity to the subtleties of legislatvie compromise, and .l do not expect us to expend 
much attention to those areas. I do, however, want to state at the beginning of these 
hearings that there are area~ of concern to which I do expect to address my questions. 

Specifically, I want to assure myself t.hat duplicative or ineffective representation 
of consumer interests presently housed in various agencies throughout government 
is eliminated. This should be done by folding essential functions into the new Agency 
for Consumer Advocacy and doing away with non-essential functions. 

Secondly, more attention needs to be given to the issue of mandatory cost/benefit 
assessments of the impact which government regulation has on the economy as a 
whole. This is in the interest of consumers and businessmen alike. I am concerned, 
as are many of my colleagues in both Houses, that government agencies once and 
for all take stock of themselves and begin to weigh the full range of consequences 
of their actions. 

It is time we began to assure ourselves that government will look objectively at 
all facets of it$ actions, that agencies calculate not only the benefits of their proposed 
action but the costs as well, that government officials be more sensitive to the unin
tended effects of their actions as well as the intended ones, and that they articulate 
these effects and SUbject them to public scrutiny. I am aware that the Administration 
has stated its good intentions in this area, but I believe there may be no better 
manner to assure the realization of these intentions than through the adoption of 
the cost-benefit provision in this bill. 

Finally, I am hopeful that the witnesses today and tomorrow can help us to identify 
the means by which this Committee and this Congress can articulate criteria by which 
this new agency can be held accountable-so that, years hence, we can look back 
on the performance of the ACA and demonstrate conclusively that the time and 
effort and monies that went into it were well spent in behalf of American consumers. 

Chairman RIBICOFF. ·We will proceed with Mrs. Esther Peterson, 
Special Assistant to the President for Consumer Affairs. 

TESTIMONY OF ESTHER PETERSON, SPECIAL ASSISTANT TO THE 
PRESIDENT 

Mrs. PETERSON. Thank you, Senator Percy, for your remarks, and 
Senator Ribicoff. 

I want to say r do bring the personal thanks of the President 
to you, all of you who have worked on this for these years, and 
I think in the interest of time, I will go through my statement rather 
rapidly. 

I do want to say though that the legislation before us has a long 
history, way back from Mr. Kefauver, and through President Kennedy 
and President Johnson, as I think you pointed out, Senator Ribicoff, 
the big difference between this year and those in the recent past 
is that this bill has the support of the President. 

There is no question that if this bill gets to the White House, 
it will be signed. I think that in itself does make it possible for 
us to look forward to victory for your long years of work. 

I would like to move in my testimony now to the prepared state
ment. 
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I want to thank the Committee on Governmental Affairs for this 
opportunity to testify on behalf of the President on the need for 
an Agency for Consumer Advocacy. On behalf of President Carter, 
I congratulate the sponsors on both sides of the aisle for their long 
standing efforts to give new meaning to the phrase "in the interest 
of consumers" found throughout the United States Code and the 
Code of Federal Regulations. 

President Carter has said that this important legislation "will 
enhance the consumer's influence within the Government without 
creating another unwieldy bureaucracy" and "will increase confidence 
in the Government by demonstrating that Government is considering 
the people's needs in a sensitive and responsive way." 

The idea of a separare entity to represent the interests of consumers 
has been around for some time. It has persisted because the need 
for consumer representation in Government has persisted. 

Some of you may remember that in 1959 Senator Estes Kefauver 
introduced legislation for the creation of a Department of Consumer 
Affairs. When introducing his bill, Senator Kefauver stated that the: 

. • . Government abounds with departments, agencies and bureaus set up by the 
Congress to represent producer interests of virtually every conceivable type. There 
is no such representation of the consumer interest. Such consumer representation as 
does exist is limited, fragmented and relatively ineffectual. 

The Senator's words are even more appropriate today. 
In 1962, President Kenpedy recognized that consumers needed to 

be repnlsented in the Government process. In his consumer message 
to Congress, he articulated the now famous consumer bill of rights: 
The right to safety, the right to be heard, the right to choose, and 
the right to be informed. He established the Consumer Advisory Coun
cil under the Council of Economic Advisers to promote these goals. 
That was a great start. 

President Johnson also recognized the need for representation by 
consumers. He set up the Presid~nt's Committee on Consumer In-' 
terests and appointed a special assistant for consumer affairs. 

These efforts were steps toward answering the need for consumer 
representation in Government processes. 1 was privileged to be in 
Government service when many of these steps were taken. 

In 1966 the House held hearings on a Cabinet-level Department 
of C('./)sumer Affairs. In 1969 both Houses held hearings on a variety 
of proposals for improving consumer representation. For the next 
6 years the debate revolved around the structure of such an agen<;:y. 
In 1975, both Houses of Congress passed legislation to establish an 
independent agency to represent consumers before Federal agencies 
and courts where consumers' interests are substantially affecteO. This 
year, let us work together and pass this legislation again. There will 
be no need for doubt about the reception it will receive in the White 
House this time. It will be signed. President Carter strongly supports 
enactment of this bill. 

Why do consumers need representations? The rationale for S. 1262 
is as follows. Federal agencies often make decisions affecting both 
business and consumer interests. Business has the resources to make 
its views known, but consumers are. typically underfinanced ano in
adequately organized; they cannot partiCipate on an equal basis with 
industry. This inequality has often resulted in it;~adequate recognition 
by Government agencies of the problems of consumers. 
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Although there are programs within some agencies to provide con
sumer input in the decision making process, the success of the in
house advocate depends upon the freedom and the authority he or 
she is given by agency heads to express consumer views. Even if 
the consumer advocate is relatively unrestricted in presenting these 
views, his or her effectiveness still depends upon the availability of 
resources and information. Hence agency consumer advisers have 
found it difficult to represent consumers effectively in agency deci
sions. 

What we need to do is to consolidate some of the consumer advoca
cy functions, so that a focused and independent assessment can be 
made of the consumers' need for representation in Federal decision
making, and so that the resources will be available to make the 
consumer's case effectively heard. S. 1262-section 22-provides that 
the President shall within 120 days following passage of the bill submit 
to Congress a reorganization plan transferring appropriate existing 
consumer-related functions to the ACA. We support this provision 
but recommend that it be modified to assure that completion of this 
particular reorganization plan does not interfere with consideration 
by Congress and the President of the broad task of reorganization 
of the executive branch which we have set for ourselves. The Office 
of Management and Budget wishes to confer with the committee 
to design language to accomplish this goal. 

Individual consumers and groups of consumers have been able on 
occasion to apply needed stimulus to wasteful, unresponsive, and 
reluctant administration of consumer protection laws and regulations. 
Realistically, however, consumers cannot provide even a modest 
amount of coverage of agency activities or monitor the progress of 
th~ multitude of consumer programs in Government. To monitor even 
the most important of the hundreds of rules, orders, and decisions 
that issue or fail to issue from the hands of thousands of regulatory 
technicians each month, an agency/advocate for the consumer is 
needed. While congressional oversight is important, it is not the whole 
answer. I believe day-to-day urging of the consumer point of view 
complements congressional scrutiny. One thing is certain: "Out of 
sight, out of mind" can too often apply to the relaftjonship between 
the consumer and the regulatory technician. 

S. 1262 furthers the consumer's "right to be heard" by providing 
for representation of consumer interests before Federal agencies and 
courts. In formal hearings, the ACA is authorized to intervene as 
a party if the Federal agency is engaged in activity which may substan
tially affect an interest of consumers. As a party, the new Agency 
would be bound by the same procedural rules and time limits as 
representatives of industry. This legislation would also permit ACA 
to take part in informal rulemaking and other agency activities, as 
many decisions which affect consumers are made in this less formal 
context. 

The next Agency would also have the power to request-but not 
require-a Federal agency to initiate a proceeding or other necessary 
action authorizc:d by law to protect a consumer interest. Perhaps 
a petition by a consumer protection agencY'\ could have shortened 
the 2~year delay in FTC's promulgation of essential warranty standards 
that will improve competition between warrantors. Perhaps a consumer 
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protection agency could have speeded up the tire quality grade label
ing which already has taken 10 years to develop and stm is not 
available to consumers. And perhaps a consumer prottlction agency 
could encourage more effective implementation of the Fair Packaging 
and Labeling Act. 

I think of many examples of labeling from my own experience, 
where an advocacy agency could have helped. 

The ACA would also i"bWe the authority to represent consumers 
in Federal civil proceedings involving review or enforcement of 
Federal agency actions which substantially affect a consumer i.nterest. 
Besides participating in suits brought by oth~rs, the new Agency would 
be able to initiate lawsuits to review agency decisions if a substantial 
consumer interest is involved. 

The Agency's ability to effectively represent consumer interests will 
be furthered by its authority to obtain information. This information 
will enable the ACA to identify problem areas and to encourage 
appropriate remedial measures by industry, by consumers, and, where 
necessary, by Governml?·!lt, 

ACA will be great.iy aided in determining its priorities by consumer 
complaint letters. S. 12e2 provides for a complaint clearinghouse 
which will notify industry and Federal agencies of complaints which 
involve them. After a reasonable opportunity for response, the com
plaints will be placed in a document room open to Pliblic inspection. 

Under appropriate restrictions, the Agencj may obtain information 
from other Federal agencies. However, the ACA properly does not 
have access to important categories of material in the possession of 
other agencies. Moreover, before the ACA secures trade secrets or 
confidential commercial information from another agency, affected 
persons must be notified and given an opportunity to comment or 
seek injunctive relief. 

Finally, the ACA may submit written interrogatories to business 
when necessary to protect consumer health and safety, or to discover 
CO"1sumer fraud or substantial economic injury to consUmers. 

However, interrogatories-I would say questionnaires which must 
be answered-may not be used to obtain information which is a matter 
of public record, information which ACA can obtain from another 
Federal source, or information which ACA wishes to use in an agency 
proceeding which is already underway. Further, the recipients of these 
written questions can object if they view them as irrelevant or unduly 
burdensome; the burden is then placed on the ACA to persuade 
a Federal judge that the interrogatories ::tre appropriate. 

In addition to these limitations, the President believes that the 
legislation should provide that the Office of Management and Budget 
review proposed interrogatories before they are issued by th~ .. ACA. 
To assure that this ieview process does not unnecessarily comp1icate 
ACA's work, the administration would not oppose reasonable 
safeguards, such as a time limit. 

It is important to note that once ACAhas obtained information, 
there are detailed safeguards to assure that the confidentiality of such 
information is protected. Where release of information is likely to 
cause injury to a person's reputation, ACA is required to give notice 
and an opportunity to comment or seek an injunction. The only excep
tion to this rule is where immediate release is necessary for health 
or safety reasons. 
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The President believes that it is important for the Agency to have 
this independent information-gathering authority, as the bill provides. 
He also believes that the use of this authority should be subject 
to adequate check. 

The cost of the representation and protection provided by this bill 
is modest-only about 25 cents per year for the average family. Costs 
will be kept to a minimum by consolidating many existing consumer 
functions into one agency. The Agency's authorization is limited to 
3 years and subject to review by the Comptroller General. 

We believe the Agency should be headed by an Administrator who 
would be especially qualified to represent the interests of consumers. 
We believe the Administrator should be appointed by the President, 
should serve at his pleasure, and should be confirmed by the Senate. 
President Carter in his April 6 consumer message stressed the need 
for accountability within the executive branch to insure a vigorous 
and effective Consumer Protection Agency. 

The President is also concerned about the possibility that the lan
guage in section 4(d)(5) requiring the Agency to provide in its annual 
report a "general estimate of the resource requirements of the Agency 
for each of the next 3 years" may be used as a backdoor for bypassing 
the usual executive budgetary processes. I therefore ask that this lan
guage be deleted from the bi!1. 

r want to turn for a moment to the cost-benefit analysis sec
tion-section 24 of this legislation-which you have stressed, Mr. 
Chairman. The President is in full agreement with the objectives of 
this section; he strongly believes that the mass of regulations pouring 
out of Federal regulatory agencies these days must be stringently 
analyzed to assure that they impose minimal costs on industry and 
the public, and that they achieve statutory goals in the most efficient 
and convenient way possible. At this moment, the economic policy 
group within the Cabinet is developing a new system for subjecting 
major regulations to economic analysis and review before they are 
published in the Federal Register. But we strongly believe that these 
hearings and this legislation are not the proper context in which 
to develop sensible governmentwide regulation review standards and 
procedures. This is a very complex problem which should be con·· 
sidered on its own. 

I emphasize the President's agreement is that this is a factor that 
has to be worked at. 

I believe that to be fearful-as some are-of this legislation is to 
misunderstand it. The Agency will have no authority to make laws, 
set standards, issue licenses, or otherwise regulate business. Its purpose 
it to improve the way in which other agencies make rules, regulations, 
and decisions by providing an advocate for consumer interests in 
the decision making process. Moreover, ACA can aid in the fight 
against inflation, monitoring agency activities and, where appropriate, 
discouraging regulation which, in the viewpoint of consumers, is un
necessary or excessively costly. 

I must say this is one of the areas I personally feel very strongly 
about. I serve on the Paperwork Commission, and in going over these 
regulatory paperwork requirements, I see the burdens we place on 
consumers and on industry. I am hoping that if the consumer's recom
mendations are accepted, we can streamline. I think this is another 

• 
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place-there are so many places-where the interests of business and 
consumers can be together in really helping to streamline these efforts. 

We have many examples where business and consumer interests 
coincide, examples which I will be able to supply for that. 

My experience in the last 15 years, especially since 1970, has con
vinced me that there is nothing in"this legislation that business should 
fear. In fact, promotion of consumer interests is entirely consistent 
with our economic system. As Adam Smith stated 200 years ago 
in "The Wealth of Nations": 

Consumption is the sole end and purpose of all production; and the intere8ts of 
the producer ought to be attended to, only insofar as it may be necessary for promoting 
the interest of the consumer. 

To promote the interest of the consumer requir;~s that the consumer 
be a party to the decision making process in Government. 

As an aside, I read that quote to students in a school of marketing 
recently, and I asked, "Who do you think said that?" Their answer 
was Ralph Nader. The only person who knew it was Adam Smith 
was the professor. 

To me, it seems so clear that we really should be hearq in this 
area. A regulator in making a decision must view the labor interest, 
the industrial interest, all of these interests. If he does not also have 
the consumer interests there, as a regulator he cannot make a real 
decision in the public interest, which is a composite of all of these 
interests. 

This legislation presents an opportunity to rebuild faith in the institu
tions of business and Government. As Mr. Peter E. Haas, president 
of Levi Strauss & Co., stated in his recent letter to President Carter 
concerning the ACA legislation: 

We . . , believe that having a separate consumer agency with the authority to 
represent consumer iI1terests in proceedings of other agencies will improve the prospects 
of such interests being consistently and fully considered. This will give consumers 
additional grounds for confidence in the fairness and soundness of our Government's 
procedures and decisions which affect the pocketbook, health, and safety of all of 
us. . 

My personal experience really underlines that. 
The President's message recognized the long evolution as weU .as 

; the careful, bipartisan honing 9f this bill by the Congress. We now 
look forward to speedy enactment of this important legislation. 

Chairman RIBICOFF. Thank· you. Because of the large number of 
witnesses, we will confine each Senator to a limit of 10 minutes 
for each panel. 

I have no questions. 
,Senator Percy? 
Senator PERCY. r would like to ask just three question very briefly. 
I would be interested in the administration's official reaction, if 

there is one, to section 24 of the bill. That provision requires that, 
for the promulgation of Federal rules or regulations having substantial 
impact on the economy, the authorizing agency must weigh the costs 
likely to result from its actions. 

Mrs. PETERSON. That is the cost benefit section? 
Senator PERCY. Yes, section 24. 
Mrs. PETE'RSON. And your question is what? 
Senator PERCY. The question is what is the administration's attitude 

toward that section? 
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Does it support that section? 
Mrs. PETERSON. I hope I made it clear on page 10 of my testimony, 

that the President supported fully the concept of the cost benefit 
section, but is asking that the administration have time, through the 
Economic Policy Committee, to decide specifically how we are going 
todeal with this recognition that analysis is important. 

Senator PERCY. The reason I ask this question specificall~ is that 
in the reorganization bill, we had quite a difference of opinion with 
OMB Director Lance. He finally did concur when we laid down in 
the legislative history that what we are looking for is the best estimate 
to be provided. That is what we are looking for here. Before a regula
tion is promulgated, there ought to be an estimate as to what the 
impact is going to be on the economy, how much it will cost, and 
what the benefits are likely to be. Agencies should not rush into 
issuing regulations until they know that, and all we would like to 
be assured is that the admiflistration is in accord with that. 

Mrs. PETERSON. I think the administration is in accord with the 
principle. The technique of how it is accomplished, we will not be 
able to discuss at this time. 

Senator PERCY. We will be happy to discuss it at any time, but 
we look upon it as an integral part of this. . 

If it is agreed in principle, then I think we ought to know how 
it will be implemented. 

Mrs. PETF.RSON. We look forward to working with your staff on 
that question. 

Senator PERCY. I would like to ask a specific question. 
Even before I really became enthusiastic about this legislation, I 

was quite a consumer advocate. We went after what I considered 
to be certain violations of what good producer-consumer relationships 
should be. We took on the baby crib industry, the hearing aid industry, 
the eyeglass industry, and the carpeting industry, and tried to figure 
out ways to end the misunderstanding that existed between consumers 
and producers. I think we have had very solid results. 

I would like to ask whether or not an agency for consumer advoca
cy, if one had existed at the time of the Brazilian coffee freeze, 
and during the time when the United States entered into the interna
tional coffee agreement, could have looked at this problem and tried 
to determine what would happen, and hopefully, ward off the tremen
dously high increase in prices, or at least warn the consumers ahead 
of time so they could adjust to it? 

Mrs. PETERSON. Certainly I think the consumer voice should have 
been heard and would have helped in that area. 

Exactly how the consumer voice would be measured, with all of 
the other factors that had to be considered at that time I think 
is important. 

I think the important thing is that there would have been a con
sumer impact there. Probably we could have told people many t,lmes, 
"drink less coffee," it is very complicated, but certainly it would 
have helped if the consumer's representatives had been in all of those 
proceedings. 

Senator PERCY. I would like to ask a question relating to your 
testimony. Under present law, all independent regulatory agencies are 
required to submit identical industrywide questionnaires to the GAO 
for clearance. . 
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Why should the ACA be required to; submit its questionnaires to 
OMB, as you suggest? 

Mnl. PETERSON. I think that there is some legal question there, 
and I think I would like to turn to my attorney on this question. 

Mr. McClaughlen is our acting director of the HEW Office of 
Consumer Affairs, and Nancy Chasen is special counsel in my White 
House office. 

Mr. MCCLAUGHLEN. This is a constitutional issue there, as you 
quite correctly pointed out. 

Whether the Office of Management <!nd Budget is the correct agen
cy to be reviewing these interrogatories is ob:viously a very key 
question. 

When it comes to the decision as to whether it should be the 
Justice Department, or whether it should be OMB, about all we can 
say is that that particular constitutional issue is being addressed right 
now, as we sit here. '. 

Senator PERCY. The last question pertains to how we appraise 
whether this Agency is performing its functions after enacted. 

Weare all working now toward zero-based budgeting, sunset legisla
tion, and self-destruct buttons. We do not want to retain an agency 
that does not prove it has lived up to its expectations. 

Does the administration have an idea as to how we can evaluate 
the efK_:'tivent~ss of this Agency? 

Let us say 'it is aUthorized for 3 years. At the end of 3 years, 
by what test can we determine whether it has proven cost effective, 
whether it is really worth the effort we put in, what the consumers 
are really getting out of it, or whether it is just again some sort 
of illusion "'oNe set up? 

Can you help ,us on that? We would really like to build into this 
legislation something along that line. We ought to do it on every 
piece of legislation in every Department and Agency we set up. 

Mrs. PETERSON. I agree with you, we must do that. 
I am convinced sometimes we have so much deadwood around, 

but part of the President's whole reorganization platl. is to do that 
very thing. . 

I am not yet conversant with all of the standards that are being 
selected, but we must do that. I agree with you on the prin~iple 
of it. I would like a little time to see what standards are to be 
set. 

Mr. MCCLAUGHLEN. Yes, Senator, I think itis an excellent question. 
Obviously we could do simple things like counting the number 

of informal or formal proceedings that the Agency was involved in. 
Certainly we could look at dollar savings that perhaps the Agency 

has been able to win for the consumer, not only for the consumer, 
but for business too. Your example about coffee prices, certainly 
the coffee companies that are telling. us that they are not getting 
back their costs, and not passing along all these costs to the consumer, 
they !lave the same interest as the consumer has in seeing that the 
consumer point of view is::,dequately addressed within these interna
tional agreements. But ultimately, in the final analysis, the real test 
of whether the Agency will be effective, and it is in the public attitude 
toward the regulatory agencies and the executive agencies. 

The consumer Sees countless cases of where the executive branch 
agencies and the regulatory agencies are not enforcing the law. 

90-131 0 - 77 -- 2 
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Years go by, they hear things that should not be heard. The public 
h3;s real doubts about whether the consumer's point of view is being 
considered by these agencies. 

The real test, the acid test of the Agency for business, for con
sumers, and so on, will be whether there is a corresponding rise 
of public faith and confidence in those agencies. 

Senator PERCY. Thank you very much indeed. I ask unanimous 
consent that a couple of questions from Senator Danforth, who ex
presses regret at his inability to be here, be incorporated. 

Chairman RIBICOFF. Without objection, so ordered. 
[The material follows:] 

QUESTIONS TO EsTHER PETERSON ON BEHALF OF SENATOR DANFORTH 

Question 1. Given that consumers have an interest in the decisions of the National 
Labor Relations Board, do you see any valid basis for exempting certain NLRB 
proceedings from the jurisdiction of the ACA? 

Do you believe that it would be wC'~thwhile for the Senate to re-examine the propriety 
of this exemption. 

Answer. There has traditionally been general agreement among both labor and indus
try representatives that there should be no outside participants in the collective bargain
ing process. This view is evidenced in the National Labor Relations Act and the 
Administration believes it is consistent with this general policy that the Agency for 
Consumer Advocacy not playa part in this process. 

Question 2. With particular regard to the issue of import quotas, what role do 
you foresee for the ACA in proceedings before the International Tariff Commission? 

Do you foresee that the Agency would consistently press for lower tariffs-even 
at the expense of American jobs? What do you perceive to be the opinion of American 
consumers on this question? 

Answer. In general, the International Trade Commission's investigations and recom
mendations are not subject to the provisions of the Administrative Procedure Act. 
It is therefore likely that the consumer agency would do no more than communicate 
its views to the Commission. 

The provisions of 19 U.S.C. \337(a) relating to unfair metIJods of competition are, 
however, subject to the APA. The section provides that the following activities are 
unlawful: Unfair methods of competition and unfair acts in the importation of articles 
into the United States ... the effect or tendency of which is to destroy or substantially 
injure an industry, efficiently and economically operated, in the United States, or 
to prevent the establishment of such an industry, or to restrain or monopolize trade 
and commerce in the United States. 

This section has traditionally been invoked for practices such as patent violations, 
palming off of merchandise of one person for that of another or antitrust violations. 
As such, the ACA would be authorized to intervene in these proceedings and such 
intervention would, most likely, be in behalf of domestic industry and labor in opposition 
to the unfair act or practice. 

We do not foresee that the Agency "would consistenctly press for lower tariffs." 
However, the precise position which the agency would take in a particular case depends, 
of course, upon the circumstances of the case. 

Chairman RIBICOFF. Thank you very much. We. would appreciate 
responses to the questions as soon as possible. 

Mrs. PETERSON. Thank you, Senator. 
Chairman RIBICOFF. The next panel will consist of Attorney General 

Julius G. Michaelson of Rhode Island, Michael R. Szolosi, first 
assistant attorney general, State of Ohio, testifying on behalf of Attor
ney General William J. Brown, and he is accompanied by Mr. Robert 
S. Tongren, chief of the consumer fraud and crime section of the 
State of Ohio. 

We do appreciate you gentlemen coming here, and we value your 
input, because you gentlemen have been dealing with similar problems 
on the State level, and it is very obvious many of these problems 

.. 
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are national. Without the Federal Government involved, your work 
is so much more difficult. 

Your entire statements will go in the record as if read, and we 
would appreciate, because of the time problem a summary of your 
position. 

Mr. Michaelson, you are to be the first. 

TESTIMONY OF JULIUS G. MICHAELSON, ATTORNEY GENERAL OF 
THE STATE OF RHODE ISLAND 

Mr. MICHAELSON. Mr. Chairman, and members of the committee, 
if I may, I would like to submit a written statement with more detailed 
remarks at some subsequent time. 

Chairman RIBICOFF. Without objection, any written statements or 
comments or exhibits, upon submission to the committee will be in
cluded and made a part of the record. 

Mr. MICHAELSON. Mr. Chairman, Senator Percy, I appear befote 
you as the vice chairman of the Consumer Protection Committee 
of the National Association of Attorneys General. ., 

The association consists of all of the Attorneys Generai in the 
United States. The association supports the proposed legislation for 
an independent consumer 'advocate. 

I also appear as the attorney general of the State of Rhode Island. 
The State attorney general is involved in consumer protectioh law 
enforcement in most States. The attorneys general throughout the 
United States have different jurisdictions, but all attorneys genera! 
have some consumer jurisdiction. 

In Rhode Island, for example, the attorney general has jurisdiction 
over all of the criminal laws of the State, as well as the consumer 
affairs, since we have no district attorneys. 

In my State, we receive more mail, more calls, and more visits 
from citizens on matters involving consumer problems than any other 
matter. Notwithstanding the serious problems of street crime, or
ganized crime, and problems of political corruption, all of these things 
combined, they do not arouse the people like high utility prices. 

A State as small as Rhode Island, We can receive as many a,s 
3,000 telephone calls a week, with reference to consumer complaintS, 
as well as hundreds of individual visits from citizens. , 

In less than 18 months, we have returned to the people of our 
State more than $1 million in cash and services and warranties, and 
other kinds of benefits. ' 

Yet we cannot really de the job,because the problem virtually 
always involves the Federal I~vel. 

In Rhode Island, since about 1970, we have had almost as many 
protests and meetings about utility rates, as there were protests and 
meetings about the war in Vietnam. 

Weare a State in which the last 2 years have seen unemployment 
rise up to 20 percent. We are a State that has perhaps the second 
largest percentage of senior citizens in the Nation ,living on fixed 
incomes. Utility company costs and oil costs have swelled the budgets 
of our educational institutions, our welfare recipients, and our facto
ries. 

OUr people feel powerless and frustrated.' When I was first elected 
in 1975,1 went to the Federal Power Commission, Jooking for some 
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help on the problem of utility rates. The U.S. Supreme Court has 
consistently stated that ratemaking involves a balance of interests, 
between the ratepayer and the stockholder. 

Shortly after I was elected attorney general in 1975, I inquired 
of two men that I met at the Federal Power Commission, whether 
I could talk with someone in the Agency who had a consumer perspec
tive. 

They were unable to refer me to anyone. I was seeking help on 
problems dealing with the automaatic fuel adjustment laws, and I 
was concerned with problems of contlict of interest among the regu
lated utility companies. 

The price of food, the cost of electricity, gas, telephone, the cost 
of shelter, all of these matters are determined federally. 

For example, it was determined to sell wheat to Russia, and the 
ultimate result of that was a significant increase in the price of many 
food products to American consumers. 

The State Department had input, the Agriculture Department had 
input. I do not think there was any input from the point of view 
of the consumer, as to whether or not that Federal program should 
have been undertaken in the manner that is was. 

I believe the consumer should be involved at the highest levels 
of government. Business has its representatives in the Commerce De
partment. Agriculture is represented, and consumers make up the 
largest group in the Nation, yet nowhere are they represented on 
a high level of government. 

In my view the consumer advocate ought to be an unofficial member 
of the Cabinet. I think a consumer advocate agency can particiapte 
greatly and contribute significantly in the war against inflation. 

We need such a law. 
Let me give you an example, Mr. Chairman, of the problems that 

we have with Federal regulatory agencies, and how they impact on 
the cost of living of our whole country and on our local citizens. 

When I was elected attorney general, and even today, there is 
a considerable controversy in the State of Rhode Island, as to whether 
a nuclear plant should be located in that State. 

I take no position on the desirability of whether such a plant should 
be located in Rhode Island or elsewhere; ,however, hundreds of citizens 
communicated with me, and were concerned about whether as a part 
of their electric bill, the cost of the propaganda, the cost of the 
advertising, the cost of the program promoting the nuclear plant was 
indirectly being added to their electric bill. 

I have not yet in 2 years been able to receive an answer of that 
from the Federal Power Commission, Mr. Chairman, and only recently 
on such a relatively uncomplicated problem, it was necessary for 
the State of Rhode Island to file a brief with the Federal Power 
Commission. 

The thing I think we object to most of all in the Federal regulatory 
aspect is the inability of the States to be heard. 

Weare confronted with the problem of what we call pancakeing. 
If a utility which sells power to a retail company in my State comes 
before the Federal Power Commission and seeks a rate increase on 
its wholesale rates,' that rate increase will be passed on to the retail 
company, and ultimately the consumers of the State of Rhode Island 
and elsewhere. 
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They get that rate increase without a hearing. They simply file 
papers, and automatically there is an increase in wholesale rates. 

Those wholesale rates now go to the retail company. and they 
are passed on to the consumer. 

Subsequently a hearing is held. That hearing may take 2 or 3 
years before it is ultimately held. In the meantime, that same company 
has filc~. several other applications for rate increases, and also have 
those applications for rate increases rendered, so we pancake those 
one on top of the other. 

Ultimately the first case is heard. Recently the Providence Gas 
Co., the largest supplier of gas in the State of Rhode Island, was 
given a $1 million refund from its supplier, the Algonquin Transmis~ 
sion Co. 

The Federal Power Commission determined they had incorrectly 
permitted Algonquin to charge this $1 million to the Providence Gas 
Co. We just went through a very severe winter in the State of Rhode 
Island, Mr. Chairman. Approximately 400 people in our State every 
month since February have had their utility shut off because of inabili
ty to pay bills. 

That $1 million refund which the local company finally got after 
all of those years is now in litigation. The question is whether it 
has to be returned to the consumers on a cash basis, or wh~',ther 
it can be credited against future bills, which means different pebple 
will be getting the credit, than those who actually paid the additional 
money, and it is still in litigation. 

That money would have meant a great deal since it was an 
overcharge, if it had been paid directly to the consumer, so that 
perhaps he might not have had to have his power turned off during 
these winter months. 

I think it has been estimated that a minimum of 50 percent of 
the cost of the utilities on the State level come about as a result 
of Federal legislation. I think that the figure is larger than 50,percent, 
and so confining myself mostly to the problem of utility rates which 
most concerns our people, and including the problems of all kinds 
of consumer costs, we think it is indispensable that there be a Federal 
regulatory agency which articulates the consumer's point of view in 
an independent manner as an advocate for the consumers in order 
that the people from the States can be benefited. 

Thank you. 
Chairman RIBICOFF. We will now hear from Mr. Michael R Szolosi, 

the first assistant attorney general, State of Ohio. 

TESTIMONY OF MICHAEL R. SZOJ.OSI, FIRST ASSISTANT ATTOR
NEY GENERAL, STATE OF OHIO, TESTIFYING ON BEHALF OF 
ATTORNEY GENERAL WILLIAM J. BROWN 

Mr. SZOLOSI. Senator, I am the first assistant attorney general in 
the Ohio attorney general's office, and appearing with me, today is 
Robert S. Tongren, chief of our consumer frauds and crimes section 
in our office. 

I would initially express the regrets of Ohio Attorney General Wil
liam J. Brown, for his inability to appear today. 

He has a number of pressing matters in Ohio he must attend to, 
and he has asked me to appear ill his stead and to express his ,enthu-
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siastic support for Senate bill 1262, both in his capacity as the attorney 
general of Ohio, and as chairman of the Consumer Protection Commit
tee of the National Association of Attorneys General. 

I will be happy to abide by the Senate committee's request to 
have the testimony appear in the record, and to briefly make oral 
remarks summarizing that testimony. 

I hope to make two points in rAy testimony today. First, that this 
legislation is much needed from the standpoint of the State attorneys 
generals who are in a position to observe the needs of consumers 
in their respective States, and, second, to suggest that those same 
attorneys general believe that one addition is necessary in this legisla
tion, and that is to authorize a grant-in-aid program which might 
offer some hope of strengthening the efforts on the State level. 

First, with respect to the need for this legislation, it has already 
been recited before the committee this morning, that the legislative 
history is long, beginning with the 91st Congress. There are a number .-
of examples of Federal regulation which impact on the citizens of 
Ohio, which I think will be helpful if I could briefly point those 
out. 

First, with respect to the Federal Power Commission, which as 
you know regulates among other business entities, the natural gas 
industry. Ohio's problems have 1;leen very severe with respect to natu
ral gas during this past winter's heating season. 

Three instances or examples I would like to bring to the attention 
of the committee include the fact that self-help gas was unable to 
be moved through Columbia Gas transmission lines. Had Columbia 
Gas or the FPC authorized th~ use of those lines to carry self-help 
gas, it might have reduced the impact of the natural gas problem 
in Ohio. 

Second, there were a number of purchases of gas whiCh were not 
made as a result of the Columbia Gas system distribution methods, 
and, third, figures nationally show that more and more of the natural 
gas is being sold on ap- intrastate basis, and not available for interstate 
use. 

All of these matters could be the subject of action before the 
Federal Power Commission, were there a consumer advocate who 
was able to go and appear before the Federal Power Commission 
and initiate those actions. 

Second, with respect to the Fe&~hJ.I Communications Commission, 
which regulates the telephone industry, only recently did a Federal 
Communications Commission decision allow competitors of the 
telephone industry, of the Bell system particularly, to sell their ter
minal equipment without interconnection charges. 

One impact in Ohio, . as a result of that action having come so 
late, was evidenced at Kent State University. An effort had been 
made to reduce the cost of telephone equipment, where the university 
purchased telephone terminal equipment to service the college of 
business. Their purpose was to reduce costs to the students, and 
to their parents, so they might enjoy college education at a reduced 
cost. 

The net effect of their action was: to have the centrex. charges 
increased from approximately $8 per station to something nearing 
$28 per station without any evidence of increased cost to the Ohio 
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Bell Telephone Co. Had the FCC decision come sooner, the situation 
in Ohio might not.have occurred. 

Third, I would like to refer to the Securities and Exchange Commis~ 
sion jurisdiction as a result of the Utility Holding Company Act. 
That jurisdiction permits the SEC to regulate utility co.mpanies, and 
this was made especially clear to us in Ohio. in our efforts to determine 
whether or not the fuel adjustment clause of Ohio Power as utilized 
in Ohio, was actually passing through those costs that shoUld be passed. 
through to consumers, or whether Ohio Power had ever investigated 
the use of scrubbers instead of the use of exensive low-surphur coal. 

Documents in possession of the American Electric Power Co. system 
were not available in Ohio, and they would likely be available if 
the Federal consumer advocate is established, and, in "fact, he might 
well press to make those kinds of documents and that kind of informa
tion available to the States generally. 

Ohio's recent experience within the State is also perhaps evidence 
of the need to pass this legislation. 

Last year in Ohio, the general assembly did pass for the first time 
a consumer counsel bill which set up a governing board, which in 
turn appoints a cons_umer counsel to represent residential utility con
sumers before the State and Federal reglatory bodies and the utility 
regulatory .agencies. . 

The purpose was to afford residential utility consumers a voice 
to counter that of the utility and other large industrial consumers. 

The Ohio attorney general feels the same reasons apply in suppo.rt 
of this legislation for other States as well as Ohio. . 

In September, 1976, at the NAAG midterm meeting,. there was 
"passed a resolution, 1 which is attached to my testini'ony, and which 
is available for the committee. 

Chairman RIBICOFF. Without objection, that resolution will go into 
the record. 

Mr. SZOLOSI. Thank you, Senator. 
The resolution urges the adoption of this legislation. It also urges 

the. committee consider a grant-in-aiel program as an amendment to 
this legislation. the purpose of that suggestion is to assist States in 
their efforts locally to afford consumer representation. 

Only 16 States have consumer counsels for utility matters, and 
of those 16. I believe 9 have less than $300,000 in annual budgets. 

Some 48 States perform some of the consumer protection functions, 
and I think 38 of those are solely in the office of attorney general. 

In effect, the States needmore resources to establish assistance 
in this effort of protecting the consumer. 

One example of that which I would like to point olitfor the commit
tee is again, ~ound in the Ohio Bell Telephone rate increase which 
was granted iii Ohio this past year. Ohio Bell is, estimated to have 
spent over one-half million dollars in presenting their rate case. 

Our office" was privileged to represent the residential consumers 
in some of the Ohio Public Utility Commissio.n proceedings, and it 
spent only $30,000, which was a very large expenditure for our office. 

The Ohio Bell Telephone Co. received nearly $200 million il'l 
revenues over those that they had been receiving. 

'See p. 20. 
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I think if there had been more substantial representation, there 
might have been better results,. and likewise, in the other States the 
same type of resource situation exists, and for those reasons, we 
urge this committee to consider an amendment which would effect 
a grant-in-aid program for the States. 

In conclusion, I Vlould like to again thank the committee for this 
opportunity to appear today and to express enthusiastic support for 
this legislation. 

Chairman RIBICOFF. Thank you very much. 
Does Mr. Tongren have anything to add? 
Mr. TONGREN. Mr. Chairman, in the !nterest of time, I would aline 

myself with Mr. Szolosi's comments, and I would be pleased to answer 
any questions. 

Chairman RIBICOFF. Thank you very much. We have no questions, 
but we would like to reserve the privilege of submitting questions 
to you gentlemen, and we hope you would respond. 

Thank you for your courtesy, and we do appreciate your valuable 
contribution. 

[The prepared statement of Mr. Szolosi follows:] 

PREPARED STATEMENT OF MICHAEL R. SZOLOSI, FIRST ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL, 
OHIO ATTORNEY GENERAL'S OFFICE; ACCOMPANIED BY ROBERT S. TONGREN, CHIEF, 
CONSUMER FRAUDS AND CRIMES SECTION, ON BEHALF OF OHIO ATIORNEY GENIJRAL 
WILLIAM J. BROWN 

Mr. Chainnan and Members of the Committee, I would like to thank you for i~lviting 
the Ohio Attorney general's Office to make a presentation here today in supr;rt 
of the federal Agency for Consumer Advocacy. I am Michael R. Szolosi, First Assistant 
Attorney General, and with me today is Robert S. Tongren, Chief of the Consumer 
Frauds and Crimes Sectio;,;. We appear today on behalf of Attorney General William 
J. Brown, the chief legal officer of the State of Ohio and the Chainnan of the Consumer 
Protection Committee of the National Association of Attorneys General. He was unable 
to be here due to other legal matters which require his presence in Ohio, and asked 
that I come in his place to express his enthusiastic support for S. 1262. 

Legislation to establish a federal Agency for consumer Advocacy has been considered, 
discussed and debated since the 91st Congress. Unfortunately, the consumers of our 
country have not yet been provided with the representation they need in the federal 
regulatory decision making process. Although that process is often adversary in nature, 
opposing interests are seldom presented. The problem with this process is that the 
regulator, quite naturally, is exposed only to the views of those persons with a sufficient 
economic stake in the proceeding to justify the expense of hiring lawyers and expert 
witnesses to present their case. Non-economic interests, or economic interests which 
~'re too small or diffuse to justify the expense of representation are seldom, if ever, 
adequately advocated. As a result, the consumer's interest has not had a truly active 
advocate anywhere in the federal regulatory system. 

Last year, the Ohio General Assembly considered the question of consumer represen
tation in the Ohio administrative decision making process with respect to the utility 
industry. It realized that our consumers had virtually no effective representation before 
the Ohio Public Utilities Commission and, in response, enacted legislation establishing 
a "Consumer's Counsel" to represent "residential consumers" in administrative matters 
regarding utilities. Under the law, the Counsel may: (1) Appear before the Commission 
to examine and cross-examine witnesses and present evidence; (2) Take appropriate 
action on consumer complaints concerning the quality of service, service charges and 
operation of the commission; (3) Institute, intervene in, or otherwise participate in 
proceedings in both state and federal courts and administrative agencies on behalf 
of consumers concerning review of decisions rendered by, or failure to act by, the 
commission; and (4) Conduct 10ng-l1!-nge studies concerning rates charged to consumers. 

Although his application is limited to public utilities, the basis, for this recent enact
ment by the Ohio General Assembly is identical to that of the proposal to establish 
a federal Agency for Consumer Advocacy. Both will ensure effective representation 
of consumers in proceedings which affect their economic well being. 
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The Attorneys General of the country have been leaders in the field of consumer 
protection. They have led the fight in many states for legislation to protect their 
consumers from marketplace abuses and ensure effective representation of consumer 
interests. According to a recent survey by the National Association of Attorneys 
General, the Attorneys General exercise some or all consumer protection responsibilities 
in forty-eight states, Puerto Rico and Guam. In our work as a nationwide organization, 
we have realized the extreme need for an effective and cooperative state-federal rela
tionship in coordinating our consumer protection efforts. It is difficult, if not impossible, 
to obtain, sufficiently analyze and effectively respond to the multitude of regulations 
which daily appear in the Federal Register. As Attorneys General with common law 
and numerous statutory responsibilities, we cannot begin tp cope with the quantitative 
regulation of the federal regulatory agencies. We cannot possibly be expected to effec
tively represent our consumer's interests before both our state and the fedeml regulatory 
agencies. 

It is understandable then that Attorney General Brown and the National Association 
of Attorneys General have previOlJsly gone on record in support of the establishment 
of a federal Agency for Consumer Advocacy. In 1974 and 1975, Attorney General 
Brown, in urging Ohio's senators and representatives to vote for then S. 200 and 
H.R. 7575, stated: 

"We in Ohio have been vigorously fighting consumer fraud on the state level with 
all the legal tools at our disposal. But no state or its officials are in a poSition to 
effectively monitor important federal agency decisions affecting the vital interests of 
Ohio's citizens and millions of consumers nationwide. We believe the consumers of 
Ohio and this nation have the right to be represented and have access to information 
on decisions affecting their health, welfare and economic status." 

The Consumer Protection Committee of the National Association of Attorneys 
General, as well as the National Association itself, has advocated the adoption of 
this legislation. At ito 68th Annual Meeting in June, 1974, the National Association 
of Attorneys General endorsed the concept of a federal Agency for consumer Advocacy. 
At its Mid-Term Meeting in December 1976, the Association passed a second resolution, 
a copy of which is attached, reiterating its support for this legislation. 

Opponents of the Agency for Consumer Advocacy have charged that it would become 
a regulatory agency itself, that it would cost taxpayers too much money and that 
it could not determine what is the consumer interest. The 'proposed Agency for Con
sumer Advocacy will clearly not bring about more regulation; rather, it will produce 
better regulation through its participation in other agency regulatory proceedings. It 
could not impose fines, set rates or ban products. It would merely present evidence 
and arguments to the federal decision makers regarding the effect of their decisions 
on consumers. 

Even if the 15 million dollars appropriated for the Agency's first year of operation 
is spent, the resulting benefit of its advocacy could produce a savings to consumer
taxpayers far in excess of that amount. We are all familiar with the beneficial savings 
that have resulted through consumer representation on the state level in just one 
area, the utilities. Intervention by Attorneys General or other consumer advocates 
has saved consumers mmions of dollars in rate increase request cases. The monetary 
savings to consumers produced through the enforcement efforts of the Consumer Frauds 
and Crimes Section in Attorney General Brown's Office since 1972 establish that 
the Office has virutally paid for itself. We have consistently returned more money 
to Ohio consumers through our complaint handling activities and enforcement actions 
than these taxpayers have paid for our efforts. Since 1972 when our c:onsumer law 
became effective, we have recovered $1 million in excess of the cost of consumer 
protection activities. Clearly, the monetary benefit resulting from consumer representa
tion by a federal A.gency for Consumer Advocacy will more than outweight its estimated 
cost to the average American taxpaying family. 

Reasonable guidelines are available for the Agency to c;letermine what is the 
"consumer interest". Attorney General Brown and his fellow Attorneys General have 
to do this everyday. Some of the criteria we use to determine this interest are who 
is being injur~d; what is the cost of the injuries in dollars; is the interest already 
being adequately represented; would this interest be best served by consumer education, 
prosecution and so forth. The "consumer interest" is obvious in federal administrative 
proceedings· regarding economic regulation, health, safety, misleading advertising and 
other apparent aspects of consumer protection. On those occasions when several and 
perhaps competing, consumer interests may apply, the Agency will, first determine 
whether any of those particular interests are being represented. If that representation 
is provided, the Agency, rather than advocate that particular interest, would ensure 
that the decision maker is presented with other consumer viewpoints without defining 
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one at the expense of the other. the Agency's participation will ensure that the ultimate 
decision Is based upon a thorough and objective analysis of all the information and 
arguments. 

Legislation introduced in 1973 to establish a federal Consumer Protection Agency 
controned provisions for grants to state and local agencies to assist them in the establish
ment and operation of state and local consumer protection programs. Those provisions 
recognized that many states, because of budgetary reasons, do not have active consumer 
protection agencies. Attorneys General themselves, v..ith limited budgets, have been 
forced to use substantial volunteer help in order to detect violations of their consumer 
protection laws. The resolution adopted by the National Association of Attorneys 
General addresses this issue in calling for an adequate funding program through the 
Agency for Consumer Advocacy to ensm'e a coordinated effort between local, state 
and federal enforcement agellcies and to strengthen each agency's ability to respond 
to consumer needs. Attorney General Brown and the National Association of Attorneys 
General urges you to include language in S. 1262 to provide for an effective grant
in-aid program to benefit state and local consumer protection agencies. We have been 
fortunate in Ohio to have an adequate budget to respond to a lot of consmuer problems. 
However, there is much more that we could, and should, do to more effectively 
protect Ohio consumers. Unfortunately, we don't have the resources with our limited 
budget to provide the full protection our consull'!ers need and deserve. An effective 
grant-in-aid program through the Agency for Consumer Advocacy would help Ohio 
and the other states in their efforts to work with the Agency and better protect 
consumers throughout our country. The savings in consumer dollars to state and local 
consumers that could result from such a grant program would equal if not surpass 
the cost of the program. . 

Citizens have become increasingly disillusioned with the federal government. They 
have neither the expertise, finances nor perseverence to cope with the numerous federal 
agency decisions which affect their lives. Attorney General Brown shares these frustra
tions with Ohio c;:itizens, and he believes that the federal Agency for Consumer Advoca
cy will help givl: consumers a much needed voice in federal decision making and 
in tum, help federal agencies to become more responsive to the needs of the people. 

Attorney General Brown is proud of the support Senator Glenn has provided for 
previous legislation to establish an Agency for Consumer Advocacy. He is proud of 
the fact that Ohio's newest Senator, Howard Metzenbaum, is a co-sponsor of S. 1262. 
Ohio's Senators have already gone on record in their support of this very important 
and long overdue legislation. We urge this Committee and the entire Senate to quickly 
enact S. 1262. 

RESOLUTION VII-FEDERAL AGENCY FOR CONSUMER ADVOCACY, ADOPTED BY THE NA
TIONAL ASSOCIATION OF ATTORNEYS GENERAL, DECEMBER 14, 1976, HONOLULU, 
HAWAII 

Whereas, the National Association of Attorneys General, whose members have pro
vided leadership for consumer protection law enforcement in their respective States, 
endorsed the concept of an independent and effective Consumer Protection Agency 
to afford consumer advocacy at the federal level at its 68th Annual Meeting, held 
in Coeur D'Alene, Idaho on June 23-26, 1974: 

Whereas, the Association desires to reaffirm its support of this important concept 
as !lmbodied in that resolution which called for the coordinated efforts of local, state 
and federal enforcement agencies and for the insuring of adequate funding to strengthen 
each agency's ability to respond to consumer needs; therefore, be it 

Resolved That: 
1. The National Association of Attorneys General again urges the United States 

Congress to pass legislation which establishes an independent an effective Consumer 
Protection Agency for consumer advocacy on a federal level and designed to strengthen 
state and local consumer programs through federal grants-in-aid, which wouid recognize 
the necessity for maintaining effective enforcement of our consumer protection laws 
at the state and local level. 

2. The Association's Washington Counsel is authorized and directed to take all 
reasonable and appropriate steps to communicate this Association's support for an 
independent Consumer Protection Agency, and for federal grants to states for consumer 
protection programs. 

3. The special Subcommittee on Legislation of the Association'S Consumer Protection 
Committee shall monitor and coordinate efforts of the Washington Counsel and Associa
tion members in regard to this legislation. 

',. 
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Chairman RIBICOFF. We will now hear from Ms. Mary Gardiner 
Jones, president of the NatiolJal Consumers League, and Ms. Edith 
Barksdale Sloan, Director of the District of Columbia Office of Con
sumer Protection. 

You may proceed, Ms. Jones, and your entire statement will go 
in the record. 

TESTIMONY OF MARY GARDINER JONES, PRESIDENT OF THE 
NATIONAL CONSUMERS LEAGUE 

Ms. JONES. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. 
It is a real honor and privilege to present testimony of the National 

Consumers League, of which I am the president. 
I should make it clear the views I am stating are those of the 

National Consumers League and not of any other organizations I 
belong to nor of the company I work for. 

T will highlight just a few points of the league's position. As you 
know, the league is the oldest national consumers organization in 
the country and we have long experience in the consumer area. 

We regard this bill as the single most important consumer bill 
that has come down in the last 10 years. 

Why? Because it is the central building block in our democratic 
system. It gives the consumer a voice in Government decisionmaking 
on the national level, which the consumer has needed for a long 
time. 

As you well know, from your own constituents, we suffer in this 
country from a sense of consumer powerlessness, and a sense of 
being left out of the decisionmaking process. 

This bill will redress that lack of power since consumers regard 
this bill as giving them this voice on the Federal level. 

They do not regard it as an agency which will impose more regula
tions on them, and I can pledge to the Senators, that we in the 
league are doing everything in our power to make sure that consLimers 
understand the voice that is being give to them by this bill and 
the nature of the Agency which it will establish. 

The second thil1g I would like to point out, very briefly, is the 
importance of the right of intervention and appeal power which this 
bill gives the Agency. 

Senator Percy asked how can We be sure that this bill will in 
fact create an effective agency, how can we be sure that the consumer 
advocate will do his job. It is my sense based on my Federal Trade 
Commission experience that the ,mere fact th~t this Agency exists, 
and has the right to intervene, or to appeal, will by itself redress 
a great deal of the consumer's sense of being left out and a sense 
that Government decisions do not take their interests into account. 

Why? Because agencies must of cOUrse address the problems that 
the people who take them to court are concerned with. 

, Now that the consumer's voice can also be heard in Government 
proceedings and can appeal agency actions in court, agencies auto
matically and instinctively will be addressing the!::onsunter interests'c~ 
in their opinions and in their actions, and in their i,~eliberations. Even 
if the con,sumer agency does nob intervene in a' proceeding, I am 
convinced that you will see a shift in the agency's attention to the 
concerns Of all gJoups affected by their decisions, to the point that 
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they will deal equally with 'the consumer interests, as well as with 
the producer and other interests involved in their decisions. 

Also, I think that your section 3(d), where you Ileve imposed on 
the Agency Administrator the duty to make detailed reports to Con
gress on the Agency's activities will provide you with what Senator 
Percy asked in terms of the facts necessary to enable you and con
sumer groups to appraise the Agency's effectiveness. 

Those reports I think will force the Agency to provide to the public, 
to consumers, and to the Congress, the kind of information they 
will need, which will enable them to hold the Agency accountable, 
for what it has done, and for what it has not done. 

Third, we have talked a good deal in terms of how the Agency 
will operate, why it is necessary. 

I do not want to belabor the point other than to say that in most 
discussions, dialogs, and argumentation of the agencies, too often the 
consumer has been referred to in very indirect terms, in terms this 
will cost consumers too much, or consumers are not interested in 
this, or have a variety of interests. 

This bill for the first time will change that rhetoric. It will change 
that emotional argument. The consumer will not be used now as 
an argument pro and con. The consumer will have a voice, and 
that voice will give us hard data. 

Thank you. 
[The prepared statement of the National Consumers League fol

lows:] 

PREPARED STATEMENT OF MARY GARDINER JONES, PRESIDENT, NATIONAL CONSUMERS 
LEAGUE 

Mr. Chairman, members of the Committee, the National Consumers League thanks 
you for the 'Opportunity to address you regarding S.1262 (H.R. 6118) which will 
at long-last establish the Agency for Consumer Protection. I want to make clear that 
the views I am expressing here this morning are my personal views and those of 
the National Consumers League of which I am the President. I am not speaking 
either for the company for which I work or any other organization with which I 
am associated. 

The National Consumers League is the oldest consumer organization in the country. 
Founded in 1899, NCL for the past 78 years has fought for the health, safety and 
economic wen-being of the American worker and consumer. NCL's pioneering work 
has led to tht! end of abusive child labor, exploitively low wages, and senseless safety 
risks in the workplace. In recent decades NCL has defended and promoted the rights 
and well-being of the consumer-not only the purchaser of goods and services in 
the marketplace but also the recipient of services such as health care. 

NCL's leadership is as distinguished as its legacy of action. Louis Brandeis and 
Felix Frankfurter served as the League's counsel. Eleanor Roosevelt served as Vice
President. With its notable history, the National Consumers League is particularly 
pleased to comment today on legislation urgently needed to benefit the consumer. 

The National Consumers League regards S.1262 (H.R. 6119) as the single-most 
important cons\lmer bill to come before the Congress duriilg the last decade. If enacted, 
it will provide· ~he mechanism by which the views of American consumers can be 
represented and integrated into the Federal governmental decisionmaking process. 

The United States is facing n critical period. Wracked with inflation and unemploy
ment, this country is also confronted with complex problems such as pollution, soaring 
health costs, lack of population planning, deteriorating quality of goods, decreasing 
levels of productivity, and inadequate security for the poor. Above all we have the 
new problem of severe energy shortages. Superimposed on these problems are both 
a deep sense of individual powerlessness and an unfortunately increasing sense of 
mistrust on the part of citizens toward all institutions, particularly government. 

The Congress, and particularly the members of this Committee, deserve praise and 
.gratitude for your efforts over the past eight years to establish an independent agency 
to alleviate much of this distrust. Now, with bipartisan support and the full weight 
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of President Carter behind this legislation, the prospects for rassage of S. 1262 (H.R. 
6118) are much brighter. However, prompt enactment wil require all of our best 
thinking and full support. We are grateful for the leadership of Esther Peterson, Special 
Assistant to President Carter, who serves as Vice Chairperson to the League and 
who is devoting her wisdom and experience to establishing an effective Agency for 
Consumer Protection. 

The Agency for Consumer Protection is needed now. Every day hundreds of Federal 
agency decisions are made which affect consumers. The decisionmaker has ample 
opportunity to hear from business, labor, and the farm community who have been 
well represented in Washington for decades. But consumers have no institutionalized 
representative in the halls of government. Too often decisionmakers do not consider 
the impact of their actions on the consumer. They lack the incentive-since the con-
sumer voice is not a full partner in the action-and they lack the data. " 

How many unnecessarily inflationary regulations or Federal programs have been 
perpetuated which inadequately reflected the consumers' priorities, needs and trade
offs? The 1974 FEO regUlations, for example, are estimated to have cost consumers 
$40 million in higher oil charges. How can consumers be expected to support such 
regulations unless the consumers of this 'country know that their interests were for
mally-and visibly-represented in the decisionmaking process and, most important, 
were seriously taken into account. 

Similarly, the current issues with respect to clean air regulations could substantially 
benefit from consumer input. The impact of cleaner air on consumer health, on clothing 
and household cleaning bills, on the use of medical facilities and medication-all of 
this data reflecting consumer concerns and costs should be systematically presented 
and integrated into the larger picture of social impact, capital resource requirements 
and other factors which must be weighed in arriving at optimum solutions for the 
nation. Without an agency for Consumer Protection, the multifaceted consumer interests 
in any single issue will not be identified, analysed and available to the decisionmaker. 
The ultimate decision-and I truly believe the nation as a whole-will be the poorer. 

Finally, drawing on my own experience at the Federal Trade Commission, I know 
that the Commission would have benefited from consumer expertise during the period 
when we were struggling with the very real credit and warranty problems plaguing 
consumers. 

Government agencies should not have to depend on the fortuitous arrival on the 
scene of skilled citizen groups to point out weaknesses and to articulate consumer 
concerns. Our democracy demands a more fundamental structured .I'pproach to ensure 
that the consumer interest is integrated into government decisionmaking along with 
the other interest groups. Much of the current lack of confidence in governmental 
decisions and programs would disappear if, in fact, consumers knew their views were 
integrated into the policies and decisions along with those of other major interest 
groups. 

At long last the Agency for Consumer Protection viii provide consumers with a 
formal, institutionalized voice in the decisions made by their Federal Government, 
affecting their pocketbooks and the quality of their lives. The ACP legislation restores 
consumers to their rightful position of equality alongside business and labor and other:
organized interests. 

The National Consumers League is convinced that consumer viewpoints are as essen
tial as business viewpoints for the government's effective decisionmaking. Consumer 
concerns are essential because the government must receive a balanced presentation 
of the issues in order to try and" determine where the public interest truly lies. We 
do not equate the public interest with the consumer interest even though all of us 
frequently refer to consumers as the public. The public interest is made up of the 
business, the labor, the farm, the international and the consumer interests. All these 
interests overlap and inter-relate. They all have a right to call upon their government 
to hear and protect them. But if government is exposed to only one side of a problem, 
to only one set of viewpoints, to only one interpretation of the data, the resulting 
-decision may well be a discriminating and destructive' one, rather than balanced, 
thoughtful action takeil on the basis of knowledge, sensitivity and compromise where 
delicate trade-offs must be made. The bill before us will eliminate the gross imbalances 
and will provide consumers with equal representation in our democratic system. 

There are several aspects of the bill under consideration about which the National 
Consumers League feels adamant. There are certain crucial features of the bill which, 
in our judgment, are critical if we are to achieve the essential goal of providing 
the consumer with an effective voice in government.' . 

The primary function of the ACP must be to "represent the interests of consumers 
before Federal agencies and courts. ,. The bulk of the ACP's resources and time commit-

(J 
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ments should be devoted to this undeniably important function. To carry out this 
crucial function, the ACP must have the right to participate in Federal agency 
proceedings affecting the consumer, the right to intervene for the purpose of represent
ing an interest of consumers, and the right to have certain Federal a~ency decisions, 
which the Administrator finds after careful examination did not consider or did not 
reflect the consumer's interest, reviewed by the Federal courts. 

1. The right to participate and to have the Administrator's submission taken into 
full account in an agency's proceedings (as in Section 6) is essential for the orderly 
and regular representation of consumers. This right assures that as numerous policy 
and programmatic decisions are made on a daily basis, the decisionmakers are alerted 
to the consumer's concerns. 

2. The right of the ACP to intervene and to be a part in the proceedings of 
Federal agencies (Section 6) which involve the consumer interest provides needed 
legal backing to consumer representation. Without this firmly established, definite right 
the ACP will not be listened to and the consumer interest will not, in fact, be treated 
on a par with other interests. 

3. The right to initiate or participate (also Section 6) in a review or appeal of 
a decision made by another Federal agency which the ACP finds to have failed to 
treat the consumer interest properly is an essential integral part of the right to par
ticipate and to intervene. It is the consumer agency's right of appeal which will have 
the greatest positive impact on the government decisionmaking process and which 
will ensure effective consideration of the consumer interest, whether or not the agency 
actually participates in a specific proceeding. When all but one of the possible interests 
in a decision can appeal, the decisionmaker will, of necessity, pay more heed to 
the arguments and data of the party who has the power to appeal and reverse the 
decision. By granting the Agency for Consumer Protection the right to appeal, Congress 
ensures the type of equitable weighing of all issues and balanced decisionmaking which 
government must pursue. 

The ACP must be empowered to gather information "required to protect the health 
or safety of consumers or to discover consumer fraud or substantial economic injl'ry 
to consumers." The right to obtain data from existing sources, or to develop specialized 
data where needed, is crucial if the ACP's representation of the consumer interest 
is to be effective and is to make a genuine, substantive, high-quality contribution 
to the decisionmaking process. ExpertJse based on analyzed data and considered 
judgment, rather than argumentation and advocacy alone, must distinquish the ACP 
and to this end, the agency must have data gathering powers. 

Thus, what we believe Congress intends for the ACP and what we as the oldest 
consumer organization support is a small, effective, tightly organized agency which 
cuts through-not adds to-the bureacratic layers and reaches the core issues affecting 
consumers. 

The ACP is clearly not a regulatory agency; no one who reads your legislation 
can come to such a conclusion. It will not restrict the efficient working of any responsive 
organization, firm or agency in either the public or private sector. Instead, it is an 
innovation in regulatory reform, in careful and selective intervention, and the long 
overdue opening up of government. 

The ACP is small and its authorizing legislation provides only a bare minimum 
budget. In fact, this mechanism for consumer representation, this badly-needed con
sumer voice, this instrument of government reform will cost the average taxpaying 
family $.25-one quarter-per year. Surely, we can support such an investment to 
obtain essential balanced representation of the major interest group in our society. 

In addition to the features and functions of the ACP which the National Consumers 
League finds to be essential, NCL would also like to comment on the need for each 
agency to establish citizen communication or citizen participation units at a high level 
within their agencies, subject to their control and charged with implementing specialized 
citizen outreach functions &s required. During the past two years, some agencies have 
established internal consumer offices; others have created public participation offices 
which have taken on the tasks of handling communications with citizens. 

These internal citizen communication or public participation units work from the 
inside on a full time, day-to-day basis to help their departments respond to citizen 
groups concerned with particular, individual agency programs. These units can provide 
important input to staff and can sensitize their agency to individual citizen concerns. 
They also can perform important outreach functions to ensure that citizen grour;i~." 
including small businesses and farmers, are aware of the various departmental activities 
affecting them. These offices can serve the Agency. for Consumer Protection in the 
same way by identifying the programs and decisionmaking stages. of the proceedings 
within their departments in which the ACP may have an interest. Thus, these internal 
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units in no way duplicate the purpose envisaged for the Agency for Consumer Protection 
which is to ensure that the consumer viewpoint is adequately represented in departmen
tal and agency decisions on major programs. Indeed, internal citizen units will make 
it possible for the Agency for Consumer Protection to remain a small, tightly organized 
agency whose primary Job will be to mount selected interventions and appeals in 
major government departmental proceedings. 

In conclusion, we would like to stress that the bill to establish the Agency for 
Consumer Protection, S. 1262 (H.R. 6118) is, in our judgment, the capstone of the 
democratic process. It is the 1977 answer to the complexity of the technological 
society in which we find ourselves today. It provides the mechanism for ensuring 
that the views of our citizens are clearly heard, considered and acted upon in the 
Federal executive branch of the government. 

The National Consumers League urges you to pass this critical piece of legislation 
as quickly as possible. 

Chairman RIBICOFF. We will now hear from Ms. Edith Barksd~le 
Sloan, Director of the D.C. Office of Consumer Protection. 

TESTIMONY OF EDITH BARKSDALE SLOAN, DIRECTOR OF THE 
D.C. OFFICE OF CONSUMER PROTECTION 

Ms. SLOAN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
First and foremost, I would like to express the regrets of the execu

tive director of the Consumer Federation of America. Because of 
the time change, she is not able to be here, but her testimony will 
be submitted for the record. 

Chairman RIBICOFF. Without objection, that will be made a part 
of the record. 

PREPARED STATEMENT OF EDITH BARKSDALE SLOAN, DIRECTOR, D.C. OFFICE OF 
CONSUMER PROTECTION 

Thank you Mr. Chairman. I am Edith Barksdale Sloan and I am Director of the 
District of Columbia Office of Consumer protection. I appreciate the opportunity to 
be here today to testify in support of S. 1262, the bill to establish a federal agency 
for consumer protection. 2:, 

If I have 1lI single regillt about being here this morning, April 19, 1977, it is only 
that I wish we could turn back the clock. I am impelled to tell the committee that 
if this bill had become law last year, or two or five or twenty years ago the physical 
and economic health of our countrymen would have been spared countless brushes 
with catastrophe-and a lot of people who are now dead would be alive. 

This nation, in its entirely appropriate zeal to preserve and protect the doctrine 
and the spirit of free enterprise, historically has been slow to react to abuses in 
various sectors of the economy. I cannot think of a regulatory body that was not 
-established as a result of public outcry or abuse so outrageous it could not be ignored. 

It is a given fact that again and again persons appointed to the commissions and 
boards were more identified with the industries or services they were to overSee than 
with the consumer" the Ultimate user. Too many foxes have been placed in :,position 
of power over too many chicken coops for too long. 

Many commissions and boards have been ,overcautious' in their deliberations and 
timid l' in their re.~olutions. [t is, [ fear, because of the proponderance of testimony 
offered them for an increase in shipping rates, a modification of an air safety rule 
or a delay in drug or product safety regulations. 

This committee knows of the· vast resources any industry or service group can call 
upon to get across its point of view at every level of government. 

The committee is aware, as well, of the impoverished state. of the consumer advocate 
groups. A condition which holds their voices to a relativewhi:per; Not satisfi€;d with 
muting the consumer, many would silence him.. .~/ 

This committee issued a report in September last year in which Senators M'uskie 
and Metcalf made reference, in their introduction, to a study of gas' and electric 
utilities rates for 1974 which showed an increase of $9:6 billion for that year. Saying, 
"We wanted to determine whether the m~sive increase of 1974 had put ratepayers 
on a plateau or a foothill, n the report found,"the utilities customers are being hoisted 
upward from the 1974 ledge to an invisible peak. n 

According to the study the gas and electric utilities nationwide in 1975 received 
rate increases of $12.6 billion, or a two-year total of $22.2 billion. 

~\ 
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The study also noted what it called "a modest but noteworthy step toward helping 
consumers equalize the burden of increased ener,w. costs" by including in Public Law 
94-385 a $2 million grant program for "establishment and operation of offices of 
consumer services to assist consumers in their presentations· before utility regulatory 
commissions ... 

It said the "concept was strongly endorsed by consumers-and as strongly denounced 
by utilities ... 

If my arithmetic is correct that would allow th~i utilities to\\spend $11,000 of their 
revenue increase for each $1 provided for consumer testimo'iY which might have 
opposed that increase. "1 ' , 

While I know that the bill under discussion today, does not deal directly with utilities, 
the knee-jerk reaction of the utilities to a $2 million consumer representation fund 
spread among fifty states is, I think, a case in point. 

It is not my intention to draw a totally negative picture of the regulatory bodies 
as they exist. But, it is my conviction that they must have information from the 
users equal to that from the producers and suppliers if they are to include all available 
knowledge in their. deliberations .. Additionally, an appeal from their decisions by an 
independent entity such as this bill proposes would go far in assuring judicious con-
sideration. ,1 

It is my job to protect the consumer of the District of Columbia in the m\lrketplace. 
We have a good, strong law-the strongest in the country, in fact-which details 
exactly what are and are not fair trade practices'.' For those merchants, repairpersons 
or servicepeople who choose to flout the law there are significant sanctions. I am 
proud of our law and I am honored to have been chose to administer it. Even so, 
I often go home at night fru~trated at my inability to fully. protect the residents 
of the 'City. There are areas into which I cannot reach. ' 

A consumer protection agency as described in this bill would have been able to 
do much to lighten my burden in the past few months and at the same time reduce . 
fear and sometimes panic among parents all over America. 

I am sure the committee is aware that Tris, a flame retardant used in children's 
sleepwear, was banned by the Consumer Products Safety Commission on April 7. 
The chemical I!ltd been in use for four years and under stuay as a possible carcinogenic 
and mutagen for two. 

While banning further sale and manufacture of Tris-treated materials and clothing, 
the com"littee voted two-ta-three not to require retailers to accept for refund garments 
which had been washed. In a survey of Distri!!tstores two weeks before the Commis
sion's decision, my office found that most were willing to take. back for cash refund 
any Tris-treated garment, new or used, washed or unwashed. 

Thus, the Commission allowed the stores to do less than tlley had already expressed 
a willingness to do. (0 

What I found frightening in the commission's majority ruling on no refunds for 
laundred garments was that washing the sleepwear, they said, wO!Jld "reduce the risk 
to an acceptable level." 

I submit that in talking about cancer in children there is no acceptable level of 
risk. 

Two other chemicals have now fallen under suspicion and one, THPC, has been 
placed in a life cycle study by the National, Cancer Institute. No results will be known 
for two years: 

It would appear to me that under Sections five an~ ten of this bill-had it been 
law-the Administrator could have effectively acted on behalf of the consumer during 
the two year~ the .evidence against the. chemical built up, and at the time j)f the 
hearings, and' after the decision of the Commission. 

As a consumer, a consumer protectionist and as a mother, I pray that should the 
bill before you become law, the first action of the Administrator will be to get all 
the facts on these chemicals and related studies swiftly and put them just as swiftly 
before the Consumer Product Safety Commission and ask for a ban or a warning 
if' indicated. I would urge. him .not to wait two years to find that we have poisoned 

coo children .who today have yet to be born. 
Manufacturers of children's sleepwear and the fabrics that go ino them are currently 

crying havoc and "ruin because. of the commission's decision. In two years should 
THPC or Fyrol, FR2, the other flame retardant chemical causing concern to some 
scientists, be found to be indeed carcinogenic and utlimately banned, we can expect 
to hear the same anguished laments. . 
'J Why not anticipate that and deal with it now? 

If' the manufacturers and consumers alike;: were kept apprised of every stage of 
testing-not just chemicals in children's pajamas-but on all things, then consumers 

• 
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could make a choice with some knowledge, and stores and manufacturers could conttol 
their inventories to supply buyer demand. 0 

As these, hearings unfold, S. 1262 will be described by some as unnecessary; a 
further layering of bureaucracy, redundant and designea to push free enterprise. down 
. the road to oblivion. Others will tell you that it is the flawless answer to all the 
consumer's problems. 

The true import of this bill lies somewhere in between. It is neither the be-all
and-end-all of consumer protection nor does it poll lite the wells of commerce. 

In my opinion, this bill t:;lkes significant steps toward establishing peace in the ·market
place, health and safety in the home, .and confidence in the conscience of government. 
It has my full support. 

Thank you. 

STATEMENT OF KATHLEEN F." O'REILLY, EXECUTIVE DIREC:roR, CONSUMER FEDERA110N 0 

OF AMERICA 

Consumer Federation of America is a federation of 220 national, state and. local 
non-profit organizations that have joined together to espouse the consumer viewpoint. 
CFA and its member organizations represent over 30 million consumers throughout 
the United States. Among our members <Ire Consumer Union, publisher of Consumer 
Reports, 17 cooperatives arId credit union leagues; 55 state and local consumer .or
ganizations; 66 rural electric cooperatives; 27 national and regional organizations rang
ing from the National' Board of the YWCA to the National Education Association; 
and 16 national labor organizations. .. 

CF A was chartered in 1967 and began operation in 1968. It is frustrating to compre
hend that0~ we approach our 10th anniversary, the independent, consumer protection 
agency wC.fh has consistently been CPA's number one priority, is still on"drawing 
boards. Fortunately, there is every indication that this will be the year of final passage. 
We take this opportunity to thank Senators Ribicoff, lavits, and,Percy for the endless 
leadership, energy, and enthusiasms they have devoted to this measure and CFA assures 
you that once again we' join with you in redOubling our efforts to secure passage 

. of the strongest possible bill. (' 
At its most recent annual meeting in February of 1977, CFA's membership vote .. 

f
l . 

overwhelmingly in support of the following policy resolutions: ;:: " 

AOI:.':'!CY FOR CONSUMER l;'ROTECTION .' : 

1. The creation of an independent Agency for Consumer Protection (ACP)is C~A!So 
number-one priority. The ACP must be capable of representing consumers before 
government agencies and the courts. The ACP must have full access to judicial revif!w 
and maximum .independence from the executive branch. J 

2. We urge that legislation establishing the ACP direct the head of each federal 
agency to create an Office of Consumer Ombudsman at the level of Assistant Secre~ry 
or its eqUivalent to receive and monitor consumer complaints artd to ensure '~/1at 
the complaints are appropriately channeled into the decisionmaking process oC,the 
agency, " :. . '; 

3. Each such office shall further be directed to: (a) provide frequent' information 
to consumers concern.ing r.ulemaking proceedings. and programs which'have, sjgnifi~~bt 
impact on consumers; (b) assist consumers in their inquiries about how to particij?ate 
in those proceedings and programs; (c) identify stages of decisions in the agNncy 
and ,departmental procelldings al'ld programs which have a significant impact on 'con-
sumers; and (d) use its expertise to provide these programs with its impact. .' 

4. State and local agencies which now exist to protect consumers suffer uniformly 
from a critical shortage of financial resources. The shortage is made mote critical", 
by the lack of adequate federal funds available to state and local goveQlments for 
consumer protection. ' 

CFA therefore urges that the legislation establishing the ACP provide grants to 
states andlocalitles .for establishing or expanding" such consumer agencles or for, pro-
grams conducted by such agenCies.. . . 

CFA views the Agetlcy for Consumer,Advocacy in the larger context of' regulatory 
reform. In addition to the Agency, consumers' deserve public participation reimburse
ment, class action and standing reform, and the use of higher standards in the a~ency 
appointment proces~. All are addressed in CPA's policy resolutions. . . . 

1;!te fact that CFA has become increasingly.concerned with regulatory reform is • 
evidenced by the fact that in 1976 it was decided that "Regulatory Reform"was 
of sUfficient i~pOrtance to merit a separate category of policy re.solutions. 
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The anti-government, anti-Washington mood across the country in recent years has 
intensified, not lessened. Consumers in growing numbers are demanding reform. It 
is no secret, however, that the frustrations consumers experience with unresponsive 
government, cannot be solved by anyone· bill. Only a comprehensive approach will 
ultimately be effective. Yet as CFA and its 220 member organizations work toward 
that comprehensive regulatory reform approach, we will not lose sight· of our conviction 
that the most basic, sensible, and equitable first step is the creation of an Agency 
for Consumer Advocacy. 

Only that independent agency can correct the structural flow in our' regulatory 
process-a process which unreasonably expects federal agencies to be independent 
decision-makers in quasi-judicial settings while simultaneously representing one of the 
parties to the proceeding, namely the consumer. Anyone who has ever been in the 
courtroom, or ever viewed a few episodes of Perry Mason understands that the adversa
ry process in those agencies can never function effectively if that "wearing two hat~" 
procedure is allowed. Examples of the need. for an Agency for Consumer Advocacy 
'are legion. A few recent ones include: 

A. Home heating oil.-A prime reason why homes were colder and budgets tighter 
during,the winter of 1976-1977, was because the Federal Energy Administration (FEA) 
removed price and allocation controls from home heating oil. The FEA took this 
action despite strong evidence that the consequences would be great, and that their 
underlying assumptions (that there would be no natural gas shortage, and that competi
tion would lower prices) were unjustified: In fl'.ct, the Federal Power Commission 
(the agency having jurisdiction over natural gas) had estimated that there would be 
natural gas shortages even if the winter was average, and ,it has long !>een acknowledged 
that the market, for petroleum products is not competitive. The FEA estimated that 
with controls the pnce would rise two to three cents per gallon over the winter, 
and that price increases without controls would not exceed that figure. Further, the 
FEA projected that' without controls supply would be more than adequate. Finally, 
the FEA assured the public that prices would be monitored, and if excessive, controls 
would be reimposed. 

In actuality, after those price and allocation controls were removed by the FEA, 
the price of residential home heating oil went up anywhere from five to eight cents 
a gallon and oil industry profits soared. Each one cent increase translates into a 
collective consumer cost of $400 million. Th'as the impact on consumers over and 
above the estimate that prices (with controls) would increase three cents was (as 
estimated by the Library of Cone:ress) between $800 million and $2 billion. A measure 
of the burden this placed"on consumers is that Congress was compelled to appropriate 
$200 million in emergency funds to assist low income consumers in paying their bills. 
This action paralleled action taken by many states. Taxpayer money filled oil company 
coffers. " 

Of no less consequence is the fact that the removal of allocation' controls led to, 
shortages and great distribution inefficiencies. The FEA's monitoring system which 
should have protected the public simply did not. As is typical, the oil industry Ilad 
the FEA's undivided attention in the agency proceedings. Consumers and consumer 
groups simply did not have the financial resources or the technical expertise to challenge 
industry data and arguments, which inevitably and conveniently show that decontrol 
and higher prices are necessary. . 

An agency for consumer advocacy could have intervened in those proceedings with 
their resources and clout they could have argued forcefully that the FEA was underesti
mating winter demand, that' the oil industry is not competitive, and that the FEA 
should proceed with caution in decontrol of petroleum products. Further the Agency 
could have cross-examined industry's' witnesses, called its own experts, and made the 
appropriate legal and economic arguments to rebut industry'S data and position. 

B. Orai"diabetic drugs.-The Food and Drug Adm:nistration originally planned in 
1972 to isSue a warning label for oral diabetes drugs. Scientific evidence demonstrated 
that these drugs do little if anything to reduce the risk of dying from diabetes and 

. indeed,a Strong case was made that the drugs caused death from cardiovascular disease. 
The FDA's effort was blocked however,/,,,y a group of doctors who obtained an 
injunction against the proposed label. Although the original court injunction was vacated 
by an ApJreals Court in J1Jly, 1973, tile FDA has still not issued a warning label. 

The danger inherent in the drugs received renewed . public attention as on July 
10, 1975 when Morton Mintz reported in the Washington Post on the FDA's failure 
to control these dangerous drugs. The report quoted Dr. J. Richard Crout, dire(;tor 
of the FDA's BUreau of Drugs, a:l saying that. phenformin, one of the drugs, "~as 
no role in the treatment of diabetes," and is so dangerous that it should be taken' 
off the market. Dr. Crout testified to the Senate Monopoly Subcommittee that this 
o .~ 
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action however, must come from the FDA's Metabolic and Endocrine Advisory Commit
tee. That committee conducted hearings in August of 1975 and requested an audit 
of the University Group Diabetes Program which had come up with the findings. 
It is now April, 1977 and the audit is not complete. There is no indication as to 
when, if ever, the FDA will act. Indeed it is not the Advisory Committee which 
decides, for as its name suggests, it is an advisory committee. Dr. Crout ihust decide. 
Subcommittee Chairman Senator Gaylord Nelson has said that 10,000-15,000 persons 
die every year from cardiovascular disease related to these drugs and 99 percent 
of the users should never have them prescribed. c~';~,_-'~"' 

An Agency for ,Consumer Advocacy could monito(1his program, expose the delays, 
and push for expeditious action. '\, 

C. In 1973 Consumers Union sued the Federal Reserve Board becaUse of its refusal 
to release information which it already had and which was readily made available 
t6 i'ls bunking customers, information as to ranges of interest rates among different 
banks on different categorie,~ of consumer loans. In 1975 CU was finally successful 
in its sllit under the Freedom of Information Act, but Arthur Burns refusal in the 
future to release the information could d,rive consumers back into court. The Agency 
for Consumer Advocacy is expressly directed to.make reports on interest ,rates, informa
tion which helps consumers make meaningful comparisons, thus more iptelIigent market
place decisions. 

D. Natural gas withholding.-This winter Americans were subjected to the devastating 
effects of shortages of natural gas: Unemployment and .reduction in their standard 
of living. Much of that hardship could have been avoided if the Department of InteriQr 
had exercised its statutory authority to compel holders of Federal off-shore natural 
gas fields. to produce with "due diligence.'!". . ' . ' 

In abandoniIlg its responsibilities, the Departmentdf Intenor ignored evidence that 
producers were dragging their heels. In spite of studies, by among others the Fe4eral 
Power Commission, the Library of Congress Congressio!lal Research Service and the 
Subcommittee on Oversight and Investigations of House Commerce Committee Depart
ment never took any action. Significantly, a Tecent study by the Subcommittee discoverd 
that just two fields in the Gulf of Mexico % trillion cubic feet of natural gas was 
available for production. The actual winter shortage' was less than 1.5 trillion cubic 
feet. Had that gas been in production, factories could have remained open and the 
economy would not have been SO severely impacted. An agency for consumer advocacy 
could have taken action to compel the Department to fulfill its responsibilities and 
compel production. . . 

'.- These. examples, toget~er with the dozens of examples accumulated over the years, 
mak.e a persuasive case. for the creation of this agency. Consumers are increasingly 
impatient with the maneuvers which have stalled crE,!3tion of the Agency. The time 
for passage is now! " 

.Chairman RIBICOFF. Thank you very much." 
We ,do appreciate your being with us, and I do hope that members 

of this committee will have an opportunity of submitting any written 
questions to you, and that you amplify your testimony. 

Thank you very much for your thoughtful comments and support. 
We will now hear from Mr. Peter Taylor Jones, senior vice president 

and general counsel, Levi Strauss & Co. , ' 
Mr. Robert Wittenberg, presid,ent, Wrangler lIosiery. 
Mr, Wayne Naugle, president~elect, Professional Insurance Agents'Q 

And Mr. Bud Barger, division sales manager, T.D.K. Electronics 
Corp. " 

We do appreciate the presence of you four gentlemen. 
You represent the business community,and it has been our continu

ous contention that legitimate business with·.a reputation to. 'uphold 
has nothing to fear frorll this legislation. . 

As <Oct matter of fact, it will beheJpful. .It is those Ifasinesses that 
do 'not play fair with 'the marketplace that. should 0 be concerned, 
and we consider, gentlemen, your testimonym6st."importartt. ' 

YOl,lr written statementswiU go into the record as if read, and 
we would appreciate your giving us your ideas. 

o . I 
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Mr. Jones, you arc first on my witness list, so suppose we start 
with you. 

STATEMENT OF PETER TAYLOR JONES, SENIOR VICE PRESIDENT 
AND GENERAL COUNSEL, LEVI. STRAUSS & CO. 

Mr. JONES. Thank you, Senator Ribicoff. I am glad to be here. 
I would like to begin by quoting from a letter written by Peter 

E. Haas, the president of Levi Strauss, to President Carter recently, 
which summarizes our views on this bill. 

I am writing to infonn you of Levi Strauss and CO.'s strong support for the early 
enactment into law of a Consumer Protection Agency bill so long as that bill contains 
carefully balanced benefits and safeguards for consumers, business and other govern
ment agencies approximating those embodied in the two similar bills passed by the 
Senate and House last year. " 

. .. Of prime. importance, such a bill would establish a separate consumer agency 
with the power to. represent consumer interests in proceedings of other agencies but 
without the power to change the substantive laws administered by those agencies or 
to issue any regulation of its own. . 

. . . In addition, we must remember that businessmen can go to the Department 
of Commerce; farmers to Agriculture; bankers to Treasury and workers to Labor 
and find government officials with expertise and responsibilities regarding their 
problems, needs and views. We believe that consumers should also have a separate 
home within the councils of government. 

There is a basic philosophy which underlies our support of this 
bill as summa;ized by our chairman, Walter A. Haas, Jr., when he 
said: 

We believe that a corporation must become actively involved in facing and solving 
the social problems of America. Today's corporation must develop practical means 
of giving human needs the same status as profit and production. This does not mean 
that business will not continue to assume its responsibility for making a profit for 
stockholders, insuring ample income for its management and providing quality products 
for its customers, but the positive and negative social forces at work in our Nation 
today demand that the cOIporation must make a philosophical and a material response 
to the other needs of the people and the community. 

In the long run, this new task of the corporation will be in its own best interest, 
since it cannot prosper as fully or as long in a society frustrated by social ills and 
upheave!. 

It is with this attitude in mind that the company has decided to 
support the consumer bill. 

I think we know what the issues are in this particular legislation. 
We also know that for many years, since 1971, when I first appeared 
on behalf of this bill, the threat of veto by past administrations and 
the intense efforts from segments of the business community have 
caused the delay in its passage. But now it is clear, as Esther Peterson 
has said, that the threat of veto has been removed, and that a growing 
number of major corporations support the legislation, including United 
Artists, the Jewel Companies, the Dreyful Corp., Mobile Corp., Mont
gomery Ward, and so forth. Yet opposition from other buSiness in
terests continues. That opposition is understandable, but I feel it is 
misplaced. I believe that the problems in the legislation when it began 
its legislative course several years ago have by and large been met 
by amendments to it, and that the idea of a super agency, with 
fearful powers over business and other Government agencies, is a 
bugaboo and not a reality. 

If we bear in mind the reactions of constituents to too much 
Government, we have to take this into account, and remind them 

.... 
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this new agency is not just one more layer of bureaucracy. Even 
those who have opposed it recognize it will be relatively sm~ll, it 
has a buiIt~in sunset feature, it must be reauthorized af~\':lr 3 years, 
if it is to continue to exist. But they say that Parkinson's law stm 
is at work, and agencies that have begun small, may become big. 

When it was argued that the Agency would have no power to 
impose new regulations on business, they agree. But opponents .point ::.=d-;"} 

then to its ability to gather information, and cause other agencies 
to gather information. 

With all of this background, with the campaign of 1976, when 
Republicans and Democrats alike promised to reduce Government 
intervention in people's lives, President Carter has still sent this bill 
to the Hill with his own strongest possible support, and business must 
ask itself why has the President done 80. 0 

It is clear he did this first to give consumers a continuing voice 
in Government and second to improve those agencies which have 
as part of their mandate attending to the needs of consumers. 

The first purpose is democratic. The second is managerial-to in~ 
crease efficiency. 

I think both purposes make sense, and I think this is the principal 
reason more and more businessmen are supporting this legislation, 
not only because they think it is right, nor because they are being 
purely altruistic, but because business is interested in pliblic opinion 
polls that tell them that public confidence in business and Governmf("nt 

'is low. 
They are examining the reports of pilferage, vandalism, and debt 

delinquency, that indicate at best a carelessness, and at worse a con.,. 
tempt toward private property a1?-d economic responsibility. 

They are looking down the line toward a society in which ordinary 
citizens view Government and business as' their alien enemies, 
cooperating to gouge them. 

The allegation is that business and Government negotiate easy COm
.' promises and turn a blind eye. to shady practices, and so forth, all 
behind closed doors, through which the public is not allowed to enter. 

A number of businessmen, on the other hand, feel equally ren'l()te 
from the decisionmakers, equally. victimized; they assume' that 
Washington dances to the tune of the most aggressive pressure groups 
in town-the environmentalists, the civil rights and equal rigHts ac
tivists, Ralph Nader, and others-and produces whatever regulations 
and results'tQey demand. 

Yet, jf they rea,d the bilI, they will see that this bill provides the 
businessman with numerous effective safeguards as enumerated' by 
Senator '" Percy when' he introduced. the bill' recently on the Senate 
,floor. , 

To sum up. In my view, and in the view of Levi Strauss and 
Co., consumers should have the stanl;iing to assert their interests, 
systematically and as ofiight, not only on the Hill, but in the depart
ments <!nd agencies downtoWn. . 

That' strikes us as fair. And in our opinion, fairness toward Con~" 
sumers, whether in Government pr in the marketplace, is a 
prerequisite for regaining or strengthening theirconfidence~ 

Senator Percy asked what stan<;:Iardscould be used to judge the 
success of this Agency. It seems to me there ar~' three. It will ha,ve 
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to show business it is fair, it will have to show Government bureaucrats 
it is responsible, and it will have to show consumers it is effective. 

We believe the current bill provides a sound legislative basis for 
doing just that, and that the requisite number of able and dedicated 
people that can be found to administer it successfully. It is for these 
reasons, Senator, we at Levi Strauss and Co. support the Consumer 
Protection Act of 1977. 

Chairman RIBICOFF. Thank you very much for your valuable 
testimony, Mr. Jones. . 

Mr. JONES. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
[The prepared statement of Mr. Jones follows:] 

PREPARED STATEMENT OF PETER TAYLOR JONES, SENIOR VICE PRESIDENT AND 
GENERAL COUNSEL, LEVI STRAUSS & CO. 

Mr. Chairman: My name is Peter T. Jones. I am senior vice president and general 
counsel of Levi Strauss and Co., and I am here today to present Levi Strauss's views 
on the proposed Agency for Consumer Advocacy. 

Let me begin by quoting a letter written by Peter E. Haas, president of Levi Strauss, 
to President Carter: 

"I am writing to inform you of Levi Strauss and Co. 's strong support for the early 
enactment into law of a Consumer Protection Agency bill so long as that bill contains 
carefully balanced benefits and safeguards for consumers, business and other govern
ment agencies approximating those embodied in the two similar bills passed by the 
Senate and House last year. 

". . . Of prime importance, such a bill would establish a separate consumer agency 
with the power to represent consumer interests in proceedings of other agencies but 
without the power to change the substantive laws administered by those agencies or 
to issue any regulation of its own. 

". . . In addition, we must remember that businessmen can go to the Department 
of Commerce; farmers to Agriculture; bankers to Treasury and workers to Labor 
and find government officials with expertise and responsihilities regarding their 
problems, needs and views. We believe that consumers should also have a separate 
home within the councils of government. " 

I will not impose on the committee's time to record Levi's .commitment and per
formance in the area of corporate social responsibility. I would, only say that the 
company, with the active involvement of three (3) generations of the Haas family, 
has long been recognized by many observers, including Business Week, Blisiness and 
Society,and Financial World, ·as having demonstrated a special alertness to the nec:;.ds 
of the employees, customers and communities it serves, as well as the needs orits 
stockholders. This commitment to the policy .and practice that the business of business 
must be something more than just business was summarized by Levi's chairman, Walter 
A. Haas, Jr., when he wrote: '. 

"We believe that a corporation must become actively involved in facing and solving 
the social problems of America. Today's corporation must develop practical' means 
of giving human needs the same status as profit and production. This does not mean 
that business will not continue to assume its responsibility for making a profit for 
stockholders, insuring ample income for its management and providing quality products 
for its clistomers, but the positive and negative. social forces at work in our Nation 
today demaild that the corporatiOll must make a philosophical and a material response 
to the "ther needs of the people and. the community. 

"In the long run, this new task of the corporation will be in itS own best interest, 
since it cannot prosper as fully or as long in a society frustrated by sociaJ ills and 
upheavaL" 

Consistent with that attitude, the company has determined to support the establish
ment of a consumer advocate's office within government, whose purpose is to assert 
and defend the interests of the people who have made Levi's a success-the American 
consumer. 

The issues involved in this legislation are well known. Indeed it is difficult to think 
of another measure which has had majority support in both Houses, and the backing 
of so many groups of citizens for so many years, and which is still not ail enacted 
statute. The threat. of veto in past administrations, and the intense efforts of some 
segments of the business community, are responsible for this delay. 
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Now it is clear that the threat of veto has been removed and a growing number 
of major corporations support the measure including United Artists, The Jewel Compa
nies, the Dreyfus Corporation, Mobil Corporation, Montgomery Ward, etc. Yet opposi
tion' fr~m. oth~r business in~erests continue. That opposition }s l!nderstand8:ble, b~t' 
~ feel .It I~ mIsplaced. I beheve that the problems an the legIslatIon when It -pegan 
Its leglslatlon: course several yearS ago have by and large been met by amendments 
to it, and that the idea of a "super-agenf~Y", with fearful powers over business and 
other government agencies, is a bugaboo and not a reality 

Let me address myself this morning to" some of the criticisms which have been 
levelled at the proposed agency and its powers. 

Last year, while discussing the bill with a group of freshmen House members, a 
fundamel)tal concerti emerged which seemed 1:0 be shared by some liberals, moderates, 
and conservatives alike. It was that this was just another' government agency that 
will start small and grow large, imposing yet another set of burdens on the backs 
of businessmen. " 

What those Members were reflecting was their constituents' reaction againt too much 
government-against the multitude of forms, reports, compliance requirements, 
clearances, and delays, with all their atteindant costs, that are imposed on businesses, 
unions,states, cities, and non-profit organizations by various, Federal agencies. They 
were reacting against the cost of bureauc'racy, surely. But their irritation went beyond 
that. They were saying to their Congressmen, "Even granting that the ,purposes of 
these regulations and requirements are good-hiring· the disadvantaged, the han
dicapped, veterans, women, and minorities; maintaining a safe workplace; producing 
safe consumer goods; offering truthful advertising and fair credit terms to all; preserving 
t~e environment-even granting the benevolence of. these purposes, there comes a 
tIme when the over-load of government regulations becomes too heavy, depresses 
private initiative, and imposes economic cpsts on private firms and individuals far 
greater than the public benefits,which the regulations were intended to provide". 

In respOnse to, those constituent complaints, a numt?r of moderate-to-Iiberal Con
gressmen, who had good records on consumer issues, \)oted "no" on the Consumer 
Protection' Act. They saw the proposed agency as just one more layer of bureaucracy. 
In response to the argument that it would be relatively small, and that it has a built-in ,; 
"sunset" fe~ture-it must be re-authorized after three years if it is to continue to 
exist-they answered that other government 'agencies had also begun small, and had 
grown under the influence of Parkinson'S Law. The ACA would do the same. When 
it was argued that the. agency would have n6 power to impose new regulations nn 
business, they agreed. But they also -pointed to the information-gathering authority 
in Section lO, and they worried that the result of the agency's interventions would 
be to induce or require other agencies to unreasonably increase their requirements 
for information.' " , ,", t 

Now, the campaign of 1976 was marked by careful defe~IZ'll:CIl "to these 'Vi.~ws. 89th 
the Republican incumbent and the Democratic candid~tespoke often of their intention 
to cut back on goventment-to limit its inter1ienti?1i in people's. lives. Mr. Cartel" ", 
pointed to his record in Georgia, where he had reduced the number of state agencies. 
The c1eilr implication was that he wOllld do the same in Washington. 

Yet he has sent this legiSlation· to, the Hill, and backed it in the strongest· terms. 
Why shOUld he have done so? I don~t believe· he yielded to pressure from the'consumer 
interests. While we are. all consumers, the organized consumer groups do not carry 
the same political clout in Washington that othflr interest groups do. I think he recom
mended this bill to achieve two basic purposes: to give .,the consuming public a ,voice 
in governmeJ\t, and to improve the performance of these government agencies which 
have, as part of their mandate, attending to the needs of consumers. llie first purpose 
is democratic-Iittle·i~·d". The second is managerial-to increase efficiency. I think 
both purposes make serlse. " 

The question remains> Why should business support the bill? A 'corporate board 
would have to be prettytlajveto anticipate an immediate and discernible impact 
on its sales, as a result of backing this Illgislation; Few potential c~stomers are' going 
to come through the doors out'ofD gratitude for the progressive position taken by 
the management on. theConsumei's.Protection Act of 1977. Supporting it may put 
us on the "good guys" list at consumer group headquarters, but it won't ring the 
cash registers. '" , 

Businesses do, of course, take steps that are not intimately related to improving 
the balance sheet. Most bUliinessmen want to be good citizens~ So one reason why 
a. number of businesses are supporting this ICgi~latipn is that they think it's right 
for the country,. "" ", 

" 

if" 



34 

But they are not entirely altruistic. They are also reading the opinion polls that 
tell them public confidence in business and government is low. They are examining 
the reports of pilferage, vandalism, and debt delinquency, that indicate at best a care
lessness, and at worst a contempt toward private property and economic responsibility. 
They are looking down the line toward a society in which ordinary citizens view 
government and business as their alien enemies, cooperating to gouge them. To the 
el(tent that they are successful, businessmen are part of the "establishment"-and they 
sense that an important part of each succeeding generation is becoming more and 
more skeptical, not to say cynical, toward any and all "establishments". 

One response to this situation would be simply to indulge in economic class warfare. 
In the framework of government, this would mean fighting every Federal statute or 
regulation designed to impose greater social responsibility on busmess. It would mean 
hiring armies of lawyers and statisticians to delay and confound the regulatory process. 
It would mean making every effort to co-opt f.'ederal agencies, or at least to neutralize 
them. Choosing this course would mean accepting the dowl'tward slide of the public's 
attitude toward busine~s as a given, and deciding to get and hold as much as can 
be gotten before the roof falls in on the priva~e sector. 

Another course is to examine the root causes of public cynicism toward business, 
and to try t6 eliminate some of them. One cause, in my view, is the conviction 
in some circles that business and government have a cozy arrangement that permits 
business to get away with murder on some matters affecting consumer interests. They 
negotiate easy compromises, set low standards, ignore threats to safety, tum a blind 
eye to shady practices, and so on, all behind dosed doors through which the public 
is not allowed to enter. A number of businessmen simply cannot understand how 
any reasonable person-anyone not indoctrinated with a Marxist view of our econo
my-would entertain such a conviction. As I mentioned earlier, they feel burdened 
and harrassed by Federal regulatory requiI:ements. If the outpouring of forms and 
reports that now crosses their desks is the result of a conspiracy of which they are 
a part, they wonder what it would be like if there were no conspiracy-if the bu
reaucrats were operating on their own. 

I think this wide disparity in perspective offers the main reason why many businesses 
continue to oppose this bill. The consumer-citizen feels that he alone is unrepresented 
in the regulatory and administrative processes of government; only the "big guys" 
get a hearing. A numbe~ of businessmen, on the other hand, feel equally' remote 
from the decision-makers, equalJy victimized; they assume that Washington dances 
to the tune of the most aggressive pressure groups in town-the environmentalists, 
the civil rights and equal rights activist!;, Ralph Nader, and others-and produces 
whatever regulations and results they demand. 

The truth is that the consumer groups are pretty effective in making their views 
known to Congress. But they are far less likely to be able to present their case 
before the departments and agencies. Consumer representatives lack standing in most 
adjudicatory proceedings. They lack authority to elicit information from government 
and industry. They lack standing to appeal decisions which they believe run counter 
to consumer interests. They lack the right to be heard in the informal decision making 
processes, where government operates most of the time. they lack the means for 
systematically collecting consumer complaints and disseminating information about 
problems encountered by consumers. 

So while consumer groups may succeed in persuading Congress to include "consumer 
interests" among the purposes of legislation, the means are not there' to effectuate 
that purpose. . 

tn my view, and in the view of Levi Strauss and Co., consumers should have the 
standing to assert their interests, systematically and as of right, not only on the Hill, 
but in the departments. and agencies downtown. That strikes us as fair. And in our 
opinion, fairness toward consumers, whether in government or in the market plac!'\, 
is a prerequisite for regaining or strengthening their confidence. 

I should like to make tWo brief points before concluding. One is that I do not 
regard government officials as being in the pocket of industry. 'Despite the scandals 
and revelations that sometim~s fill the papers, I think we have a Federal government 
whose integrity and probity is 'matched by that of few governments in the world. 

The problem is not. as it is in many countries, that officials are bought by big 
money and power. It is that the absence of a representative of the ordinary consumer 
may mean that his interests are overlooked when decisions are made-not that they 
will be, but that they may be; certainly that they are more likely to be overlooked 
in the absence of such a representative, than in his or her presence. 

The second point is. that there is a superfluity of regulation and reporting requirements 
today. Congress is responsible for much of that. Each time you pass legislation authoriz-

.... 
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ing an agency-old or new-to establish regulations or require reporting, you set in 
motion a new wave' of paper, and you add new cost~ to business and thus to the 
consumer which do very little for productivity. Then" because your responsibilities 
are so many, you have neither time nor inclination to see what thee agencies produce 
in carrying out your legislation. When your constituents write and call you, Complaining 
about this or that regulatiort or requirement, you bum the backsides off the responsible 
agency-rarely acknowledging that it was Congress itself that started the whole enter~ 
prise. . 

I hope you do not resent my putting it this way. I do so, ru> a friend of this 
legislation, because I believe that if this new Agency for Consumer Advocacy is to 
gain the acceptance that is necessary to enable it to do its job, it must I'ot become 
"just another agency"-Ievying more and more onerous burdens on business" The 
Agency must truly exercise that discretion not to intervene unless it is necessary. 
it must be diligent and skeptical and aggressive. But it must try not to harass, and 
it must not pursue vendettas. 

It will not be enough for it to win Ralph Nader's praise, or eyen to win that 
of the companies who now support its creation. It will have to show business that 
it is fair; it will have to show government bureaucrats that it is responsible; and 
it will have to show consumers that it is effective. We believe the cUl1ent bill provides 
a sound legislative basis for its doing just that and that the requisite number of able 
and dedicated people can be found to administer it successfully. If these things are 
done, we further believe the new Agency can also hefp to create a climate in which 
more and more consumers, realizing that they have a more effective" voice in the 
coum:ils of government, will come to have greater confidence in the fairness of our 
mixed economic system. It is for these reasons that we at Levi Strauss and Co. support 
the Consumer Protection Act of 1977. Thank you. .' 

Chairman RJBICOFF. We will now hear from Mr. Robert C. Witten~ 
berg. 

TESTIMONY OF ROBERT c. WITI'ENB&G, PRESIDENT OF 
WRANGLER HO~IERf CO. 

Mr. WITTENBERG. Thank you, Mr. Chairfuan. 
My name is Robert C. Wittenberg. r am. president of Wl'arigler 

Hosiery Co. I am pleased 7J be here to offer my support for the 
creation of a small agency to represent consumer interests in other 
agency rulemaking proceedings, hearings, court cases, and so forth; 

I have tried to conduct my business affairs on the principle that 
joint business/consumer considerations must dominate aU company 
policy strategies. I believe that it is in the interest of business to 
see that consumer's views are adequately aired in Government deci~ 
sionmaking, It is not necessary to public faith in Government that 
the consumer view always dominate all other consideratioI'ls. It is 
essential to that faith however that the consumer view by adequately 
and prominently presented. I think that the consumer who votet~ in 
the last national election wanted to make a statement about \\ the 
responsivenetls of government. I think we should listen to him. ~ 

Business views are well represented here in Washington, as l\rre 
labor and other interests. The fact that this conSumer agency bill 
has been before Congress for years is eloquent testimony totlte need 
for greater consumer advocacy. 

To do its job here the consumer's agency needs to have access 
to information in Government and pr:;-:-~eindustry. I trust the good 
judgment of the committee to build iL . ..:..d'feguards against unnecessary 
requests or improper disclosures. 1 would exempt small business from. 
information requests but do not believe that any consumer interests 
should be exempted from the legislation. " " 

Tn view of the fact that the consumers' agency would be an advocate
C 

and not a' regulator, a 'promot~r of what is in the business/consumer 
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interest and a means of bringing order and coherence to consumer 
demands-I frankly wonder what all the debate has been about all 
these years. 

Thank you. , 
Chairman RII3ICOFF. We will now hear from Mr. Wayne L. N,augle, 

president-elect of Professional Insurance Agents. 

TESTIMONY OF WAYNE L. NAUGLE, "RESIDENT~ELECT OF 
PROFESSIONAL INSURANCE AGENTS 

Mr. NAUGLE. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. Chairman, my name is Wayne L. Naugle of Davidsville, Pa. 

I am president of the Naugle Insurance Agency, and president-elect 
of the. Professional Insurance Agents, a national association headquar
tered in Washington, D.C., representing 28,000 independent property 
and casualty insurance agents in the United States, Canada, Puerto 
Rico, and the Virgin Islands. ..' 

TWQ years ~go this month, at ollr midyear board of dire~tors meet
Ing, our association endorsed the establishment of an Agency for 
Consumer Advocacy. We were the first insurance industry group to 
support the Consumer Protection Act of 1975, and we joined with 
consumer groups in seeking its passage. We were disappointed that 
these efforts failed, but PIA since has reconfirmed its commitment 
to the consumer movement by undertaking the creation of the In
surance Consumer Action Panel (ICAP). This third-party complaint
handling mechanisl.1l, is the.first such project in the insurance industry. 
It is still in the pilot test stage; with two objectives in mind: 

No. 1. To determine if nonbinding mediation is ,feasible as a com
p:aint-handling mechanism for the property/casualty insurance industry 
when applied to consumer c()mplaints· which participating State in
surance. departments have decided cannot be resolved by traditional 
methods: ," 

No.2: To monitor the complaints received, for the purpose of 
detecting whether any patterns of generic or repeated conflict situa
tions exist; and to channel such information to interested parties within 
the industry ,consumer groups and regulatory agencies, with recom-
mendations for remedial action. ' 

PIA believes that Federal regulatory agencies make decisions every 
day Which have substantial impact on all citizens. The individual con-

:sumer rarely has an opportunity to involve himself in the decisionmak
ing process. A consumer protection agency would speak for the in
terests of the consumer before Federal agencies and provide the public 
with information about consumer matters. 

As small ousiness persons, we are convinced that the support we 
give to this bill will improve the business/consumer relationship. We 
do not rejoice in the fact that an agency' for consumer protection 
is necessary. It would be preferable if the business community would 

'sell and service quality products and guarantee their usefulness in 
the, stream of com.merce. Our organization is dismayed with the 
so-;called cosmetic approach to consumer problems. As small indepen
dent business perSQns, we believe in our produ~.t and are willing 

,'to debate its attributes in the public domain. 
Professional insurance agents are consumers as weUas insurance 

executives. We want the products we buy and use to be' safe and 
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sound and to accomplish the purpose for which they are offered. 
PIA believes that S. 1262 goes a long way toward accomplishing 
these goals. We believe, however, this bill should include additional 
safeguards to protect the rights of small business. " " 

Section to, information gathering, should bestrellgthenedto rr,flect 
the language in S. 200, as passed by the Senate on May 15, 1975. 
S. 200 gave the Comptroller General authority to review any request 
for information to assure that it did not impose 'an undue, burden U 

upon persons receiving such requests. We urge this '>committee, to 
include similar language in S. 1262. . 

With regard, to the small business exemption, we believe it is neces
sary to tighten up the definition of "small business." Once again, 
the language found in S. 200, as passed by the Senate in 1975, 
would be more appropriate. S. 200 excluded businesses if assets did 
not exceed $7.5 million and net worth did not exceed $2.5 million. 
Also excluded from interrogatories were businesses, with 150 full-time 
employees or fewer, compared to the 25 employees specified in S. 
1262. ' 

PIA is also concerned that there are not enough safeguards for 
the disclosure and release of information. As individuals engaged in 

, small businesses, we want to make absolutely certain that no informa
tion is released that would inadequately describe the situation in-
volved. , 

Finally, Mr. Chairman, we believe the statute should limit the 
authority of the Administrator of the Agency forConsumeroProtection 
as follows: No.1. To speak for consumerS before the Federal Govern
ment only; NO.2. To take the views of small business into account 
in setting its prioriti~s; No.3. To solicit advice from small business 
before promulgating' any rules and regulations under the; act; No. 
4. To prohibit the Agency from regulating the activities ,of bU,sinesses. 

The bill should also require the General Accounting Office (GAO) 
to review all ACP activities anQ provide a full Teport to Congress,o 
within 3 years of the date of er1Jctment, with an evaluation of ACP's 
effectiveness and recommendation fot' any modifying legislation. 

Thank you very much for giving PIA an (jpportunity to express", 
its views on this issue. I would be most happy to "answer your 
questions. 

Chairman RIBICOFF. We will now hear from Mr. Bud Barger, division 
sales manager, TOK Electronics Corp . 

STftTEMENT ,OF BUD BARGER, DIVISION SALES MANAGER, T.D.K. 
, ELECTRONICS CORP. 

Mr. BARGER. Thank. you, Mr. Ch~ihnan. 
My name is Bud Barger and I'm pleased to be 'here representing 

TOK '·Electronics Corp; speaking in, support of the bill to create; 
through consolidation by the President, a small agency to advocate 
the consumer's point of .view before other Government agencies; 

r-,1y 'l\~'port and that of my company is based on .these points: 
No . .t....:.t- ' ~encyis not a regulator, but merely a. consumer ad-:-

vocate befuf~ 5.~rnment regulators, > • ' 

No.2. The n",v, "'''rs continQe to carry stories of agency decisions 
which failed to ~ ;r 0 the consumer's views-from. decisio.ns ~n 
auto ignition interlv ~ "to clearances for unsafe food additives, . 
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No.3. If consumers have an advocate they will trust Government 
decisions more than they do now-that's good for the business climate. 

No.4. As the President's message indicates the agency will set 
consumer priorities-that will promote more predictability in the ac
tions of regulators and more order in the demands of consumers. 

No.5. My company makes quality audio tape cassettes and we 
welcome the public's and consumer agencies' interest in our products. 
In fact I would like to urge this committee to include ,in the final 
legislation an instruction to the agency td give high prioJj~ty to those 
issues representing joint business/consumer problems-pDoblems that 
hurt consumer pocketbooks and the reputation of good, companies. 
In the case of my own company we and our cllstomel1S are being 
hurt by imitations of our products which trade off our good name, 
OUI,' advertising, our packaging, our trade symbols and our good con-
sumer relations. ' 

We hope that you will give favorable consideration to our sug
gestion. 

Mr. Chairman, this particular problem has been brought before 
the Federal Trade Commission, and an organization such as this one 
being considered would serve to make sure that these Federal agencies 
do proceed, and protect the consumer and business. 

Thank you very much. 
Chairman RIBICOFF. Thank you very much. 
Senator Sasser, do you have any questions? 
Senator SASSER. No questions, Mr. Chairman. 
Chairman RIBICOFF. For the purpose of the record, I notice that 

Mr. Naugle, your association represents 28,000 agents. 
Mr. NAUGLE. That is correct. 
Chairman RIBICOFF. IPit is public property, and it is not confidential, 

could you, Mr. Jones, Mr .. Wittenberg, and Mr. Barger, ,tell us how 
many people you employ and the gross business you do a year? 

Mr. JONES. We employ a total of 35,,000, and we operate worldwide 
$1.2 billion in sales, about one-third of that overseas and on every 
continent of the globe. 

Chairman RIBICOFF. Thank you. 
Mr. WITTENBERG. We are a small company compared with Levi 

Strauss. We employ 1,500 people, and we do in excess of $40 million. 
Mr. BARGER. Worldwide we employ approximately 5,000 people, 

and the corporate sales volume is approximately $310 million a year. 
Chairman RIBIC0FF. That is very significant, because ,you have a 

cross-section representation here of large business, medhw business, 
small business,' the independent operator with the insurarl::~~~.Reople, 
and yet you have no difficulties supporting this measure. ~-,-:; 

You have been constructive in some of your suggestions, which 
we will take into account, because they are valuable, and on behalf 
of the entire committee and the President, I want to thank you very 
much, because it has been our contention continuously that business 
does not have anything to fear from this legislation, especially busi
nesses whose success is built on quality and reputation. 

Your testimony has been of great value, and I want to thank you 
four gentlemen for being with us today. 

The committee will stand adjourned until 9:15 tomorroW morning. 
[Whereupon, the committee was recessed at 11 :50 a.m.} 
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THE CONSUMER PROTECTION ACT OF 1977 

WEDNESDAY, APRIL 20, 1977 

U.S. SENATE, . 
COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL AFFAIRS, 

. Washington, D.C. 
~'The committee met, pursuant to notice, at 9: 15 a.m., in rooot' 

3302 Dirksen Senate Office Building, Hon. Abraham Ribicoff 
( chairman) presiding. 

Senators present: Senators Ribicoff, Percy, Jayits, Sasser, and Heinz. 
Staff members present: Richard A. Wegman, chief counse) and staff 

director; Paul Hoff, counsel; Ellen S. Miller, professional staff member; 
Claude Barfield, professional staff member; John B. Childers, chief 
counsel to the minority; Marilyn A. Harris, chief clerk, and Elizabeth 
A. Preast, assistant chief clerk. 

Chairman RIBICOF.F. The committee will come to order. 
Our first panel of witnesses will be Mr. John Riehm, Mr. Forrest 

Rettgers, Mr. James McKevitt and Mr. Robert Schaus. 
As you know, gentlemen, we have many witnesses. Your written 

statements will go in the record as if read and each on~ of you 
should confine yourSelf to ~ot more than a.l0 minute presentation 
orally. . 

So the first witness is Mr. John Riehm. 
Mr. Riehm is not here. 
Mr. Forrest ~ettgers? 

TESTIMONY OF FORREST RETTGERS,EXECUTIVE VICE 
PRESIDENT, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF MANUFACTURERS 

Mr. RETTGERS. GOQd motni,ng, Mr. Chairman. 
My name is Forrest Rettg~rs, and I am the executive ..,ice president 

of tht:; National Association of Manufacturers~ With me is JohnLucas, 
\:\ the assista~t genera~ counsel of NAM .. 

Mr. Chairman, since you have entered our complete statement in 
the hearing record~ 1 will highlight very, very briefly tn<:: objections 
which my association has with this' proposal before thegommittee 
today. '0 

NAM .. is not here to oppose the effective remedying of consumer. 
complaints, or product improvement, ot .any necessary protection of 
purchases from unfair treatment in the marketplace. .' " 

Rather, we are here to oppose the intervention ofa new agency 
into all aspects of govemment and its relationship with the people. 

The NAM has long endorsed proposals which provide pro-t~ction 
from .redres~ for wrongdoings to consumers. For example, in the recent 
past we have endorsed the establishment of the Consumer Product 
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Saf~ty Commission. Recognizing the cost burden to consumers of 
governmental regulations, we have supported various regulatory reform 
proposals such as zero-based budgeting, sunset legislation and Govern-
ment reorganizatign. . 

Last year we supported a proposal which would have reformed 
the Civil Aeronautics Board to the benefit of the consumer. The 
NAM has been in the forefront in developing within American industry 
a greater and more responsive consumer awareness. 

When we have seen a need, Mr. Chairman, we have not hesitated 
to ask the Congress to enact specific legislation to meet a specific 
need. That is why we are here today, Mr. Chairman, because we 
do not,see a need for the Agency for Consumer Advocacy. 

Not only is there no need for the agency with such broad, sweeping 
powers, powers which cut across the whole fabric of the Government; 
but if it is established we believe that both Government and business 
will substantially 'be harmed to the great detriment of the consumer 
and to the American people. 

We cannot help but believe that all the departments and agencies 
within the Government were established to serve the people who' 
are the ultimate consumer. Now we 'are establishing an agency to 
watch the agencies to be sure that they serve the people. 

The President in his various meSsages on Government reorganization 
has said that the goal of this process will be to make our Government 
more 'responsive to the needs of its citizens. The creation of this 
ftgency is an apparent portion of the reorganization plan proposed 
by the President, but we find in the proposal which We are considering 
now many exemptions from this bill for special interest groups or 
situations. Does this mean that these groups' are to be exempt from 
need to make them more responsive to the public or is it recognition 
by the Congress that the problems that will arise in the implementation 
of this bill will bring about delays in the solving of controversies 
in this area. 

The mostserjous drawback to the proposal and the one area that 
previous amendments over the years have not resolved is the indis-" 

_ criminate power of the Administrator to intervene as a matter of 
" right in Federal proceedings where he decides there is an Interest 

of consumers. This right will lead to d~lay in resolving controversies 
between agencies and the regulated sector of our economy. Such 
delays will benefit no one-be it manufacturer or consumer. 

I am also concerned that the ACA will have rulemaking p,owers 
under this bilL We fully agree with the President's recommendation 
t9at the Administratqr serve at the discretion of the President and 
not be completely independent as called for in this hill. 

The Administrator will have enormous authority to wield and the 
Presidential' oversight is a valuable safeguard. 

In closing, Mr. Chairman, let me reiterate our support for all 
reasonable legislation to make .Government more responsive to, the 
public and aU reasonable laws fo insure protection for consumers. 
We do not doubt the fact that the sponsors to this bill believe sincerely 
that there was,. 11 need, for this legislation, and at the same time I 
would like to underscore our continued belief that the Agency for 
Consumer Advocacy is the wrong bill, at the wrong time ,and for 
the wrong reasons. ' 

Chairman RIBICOFF. Thank you for your remarks, Mr. Rettgers. 
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[The prepared statement of Mr. Rettgers follows:] 

PREPARED STATEMENT OF THE NATIONAL ASSQGIATION OFMANUF;\CTURERS BY 
FORREST RETTGERS, EXECU3VE VicE PRESIDENT 

My name is .. Forrest Rettgers, and I am Executive Vice President of the. National 
Association of Manufacturers (NAM). With me today is John Lucas, NAM's Assistant 
General Counsel. . 

The NAM .is a voluntary membership organization of over 13,000 companies "and 
is affiliated with an additional 125,000 businesses through the National Industrial Colm. 
cU, covering every state!~and oLeverv size arid industrial classification. Together; the 
companies which the NAM representS produce. approximately 8Q percent of the goods 
manufactured in the United States.' II 

Our views are reflective of the majority of our 'members throu~ll. their p'~jcipation 
in the. establishment of NAM policies and their s~cific guidaitCe with "respect to 
legislation that concerns them. . 

Our testimony with res~ct to establishing an Agency for Consumer Advocacy~ .... a 
new type of government agency with a variety of authorities over the' administrative 
decisions and actions of other federal agencies and departments-will touch upon fGUr 
main areas: (1) The fundamental errors and fallacies in the concept· <;>f a speciraJ 
interest agency having' the powers proposed here; (2) The development within both 
government and the private sector'; of a host of consumer protection 'laws and 
mechlU)isms which render an Agency for ·Consumer Advocacy-if such an ag~l'cy 
were ever needed-less necessary today than ever before; (3) The incalculable costs, 
in terms of disruption of both the government process and the private economy, which 
must offset the supposed benefits of the agency; and (4) Recommendations as to 
an appropriate role of the federal government in the remedy of iderttified problems 
arising between business and consumers .• 

Our Association first· appeared before the Congress with respect to this legislation 
in 197 I, and our position has been and is supported broadly throughOli~e business 
community. The NAM is here not to oppose effective. remedying of consumer com
plaints! or product improvements, or. any necessary protection of buyers from unfair 
treatment in the marketplace. We are here, essentially, to oppose intervention by 
a new agency into nearly all the econoll1ic and commercial lIffairs of the nation, 
. and into political decision-making, which eventually wi.1I detfll,ct from the ability of 

" our members 'to manage their enterprises so as to increase their productivity in the 
supply of goods and services. We believe that however popular the proposal for a 
new agency of the tYPe described·, may be, its. enactn'l~nt by Congress will be a very 
bad management decision-harmful to both the operation of. government and to the 
operation of the com~titive enterprise system; 

During hearings in November of 1974, before the United States Senate concerning' 
proposals to establish a National Commission on RegUlatory Reform, chainnen of major 
agencies, and a former Commissioner of a major ~gency, que~tioned the need for 
an intervention agency ~uch as the ACA. This was significlillt, becaUse the bedrock 
reasons advanced for a new agency~that the existing agencies do not adequately· 
protect consumers-have been presum~, but never demonstrated. We submit, as At. 
tachment. ~'A" to this testimony; excerpts of these statements commenting uPOn the -
extent of consume.r protection fu.nctions already exercised by them. We invite your 
attention. in particular to an. array of court decisions' holding. that the Federal Power 
Commission, for example, has continuing . legal responsibility to represent .consumer '/ 
interests within its area of expertise. . 

It is the "intervention concept," lying behind the catchwords "consumer protection" 
and "consumer jnterest;~ which is the root fallacy of the legislation. We submit"ti)at 
the ACA·· is not designed as a friendly ombudsman helping shop~rs in their· day
to-day problemsohr the marketplace, or obtaining justice' from unscrupulous sellers. 
If it were, you wO.uld not find. the business community so alarmed C)ver its powers, 
JUSt as the business community was not unduly alarmed by, but endorsed . creation 
of a Copsumer Product Safety Commission with the power to impose perhaps. the' 
most rigorous industrial regulations ever granted to .a· government agency •• Rather, 
the cause for alarm is the fact that the ACA's intervention powePl will range unchecked 
across. practically every government-business rela~ionship, and could do irreparable 
damage to the process of'government, to the law and to the private ecOnomy. 

We submitted four years ago; and we submit again, that the ACA is, on its face: 
A needless agency, with the principal objective of involving itself in tbe. great 

econtlmic issue!; afiecting the country,even tbough th.ese ate already the responsibility 
of the. Executive. pepanments and the regulatorya~encies specifically: created by the 

"Congress to protect the interests of the pUbliC, includtng consumers. 
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A disruptive and unworkable agency, because it will be mandated as an adversary, 
deliberately equipped with legal authority to oppose, dispute and litigate the decisions 
of other government agencies. Such power, without responsibility for solutions, cannot 
fail to produce chaos as Federal officers lose accountability for their decisions and 
actions. . 

A special interest agency, employing federal funds to advocate administrative deci
sions and regulations in behalf of a "consumer interest" which should be part of~but 
may prevail over-the whole public interest. In practice, the ACA would face the· 
impossible task of choosing fairly between competing consumer interests, and of protect-
ing some consumers at the expense of others. ", 

A costly.agency, not merely by the placing of an additional burden on the federal 
budget, but by imposing new costs upon every agency subject to its authority, and 
ultimately upon each company and industry subject to its proceedings. 

The basis of all our objections is our unshaken belief that the "public interest" 
contains all of the elements from which all public policy should be derived. The 
public interest is a dynamic balance of competing forces~the most good for the 
most poeple is its guiding principal-but it is a delicate balance that is responsive 
to the evolutionary changes that occur within society. 

Much has been said in the extended debate on this issue which has filled· the 
record over the years. We suggest that the debate has b(len helpful as more questions 
have be.en raised and more potential problems have been exposed for the Congress' 
understanding. Nearly six years ago, our Association testified: 

, "Some say it is too late to ask Congress to consider the overall validity and wisdom 
of the consumer agency concept. They imply that the minds of our respresentatives 
are fixed and that there remains only the question of how a new agency shall be 
structured. We prefer to think it is never too late to turn away from an unwise 
or unneeded action, particularly when it is a permanent law which will set in motion 
new forces in our total trade and commerce .... " 

At that time, we reviewed the many changes taking place in marketplace matters 
within government at fed~ral, state and local levels, within the business community, 
and within the consumer movement itself. 

This evolution continues to this time. It can be fairly said that if the kind of consumer 
advocacy and intervention proposed for the ACA was not needed in the structure 
of government then, it is needed even less now. The Congress itself has brought 
about two remedies of landmark proportions. One was the creation of the Consumer 
Product Safety Commission, which this association supported. The CPSC is now 
beginning to make its impact on tht' narlret economy, with unparalleled jurisdiction 
over the' production and sale of practically every, product, component, and service 
bought or used by consumers. ';"', ' 

Of equal impact, as least in the context of consumer protection, was the enactment 
and signing into law of new powers for the Federal Trade Commission. This Commis
sion, long intended as the major consumer protection agency in day-to-day marketplace 

, transactions, today is equipped with ,authority to make detailed rules over se!ling and 
other commercial trade practices; to impose penalties for violation of those rules and 
of , its own orders; and to sue on behalf of consumers or classes of consumers to 
bring about redress of their complaints, including compensation to the marketplace 
for damages. Moreover, it is supplied with. a $1 million fund for private legal representa
tion of consu;;ners and their organizations who are otherwise unable to finance them
selves. In an interView with the Bureau of,,National Affairs, J. Thomas Rosch, former 
Director of the FTC Bureau of Consumer Protection, stated with certainty: "There 
can be simply no question at al\ about the fact that the Commission is now a vehicle 
for consumer redress. " 

At the state and local level, the years have produced new departments and agencies 
with specific responsibility to monitor the marketplace, and to assist and educate both 
consumers and business in their commerical relationships. 

Within the. business community, there has been developing a wide range of new 
mechanisms, responsive to public criticism by both governmental and private groups. 
Individual companies, industry associations and such national groups as the Better 
Business Bureau have set in motion a variety of techniques to handle consumer com
plaints which it is doubtful the government itself could match. 

There is little question but that the evolution of most of these complaint-handling 
pro'cedures can be credited to the force which has become known as the "consumer 
movement." At this point, it is n,ecessary to make a distinction between advocacy 
by this :voluntarymovement and compulsory consumerism with a }:lreadth of powers 
over any other agency within the government. We believe today's clrcurstances, there
fore, merit a re-examination of the original p.emises on which this bill was 
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predicated-that the individual consumer is unrepresented, or voiceless, or helpless, 
both in the marketplace and before the government, 

Whether 'or not all· of us are p1eased with the details of the new political force 
known as the "cons!lmer.mover,1Jnt," it is functioning both .viSibly"and·,.vigo .. rousIY. 
TodaJ(s co~s.umers are no~ unrepresented. We hav!'l seen. the rise. of e.ffective, wc::l1-
orgamzed citizen groups wiSh articulate an!,! aggressive natlonal!eadershlp. The major 
federated consumer structure consists of nearly 200 autonomous units. It .has a network 
of volunteer groups in urban centers and smaller cities. It has a substantial and articulate 
press of its own. It has a. variety of monetary sources, including fees from highly 
paid speakers,. public sub~;::iptions and grants from private,fbundations. It has many 
legal arms and has even" developed a professional sector of newsletters, consumer 
research bureaus ana consultants. 

The consumer movement is now so widespread that consumerism is taught in colleges 
and universities. Many of them have initiated functioning consumer action. centers. 
Finally, the consumer movement enjoys a highly sympathetic pref,s, li,nd the public 
criticisms and allegations concerning consumer products cand service~ are daily fare 
on radio and television., JJ. "', 

We in the business community may disagree with many of the excesses of. this" 
phenomenon, but we must concede that the conSUmer establishment is within its rights 
as a voluntary' public critic, in the sense that it attracts its own adherents and raises 
its own funds. The consumer movement has proven itself capable of creating and 
maintaining a very effective representation of the consumer interest. (thas certainly 
shaped the public interest. " '. . ' 

A consumer movement within the governmen,t is another matter. The ACA, as 
proposed, is a fe<;terally-financed advocate which"\vill funcUon as critic and adversary 
In the same manner that militant consumer organizations already are doing outside 
of government, but withinstitutionalfzed powers that will inevitably be disruptive and 
insulated. . , 

There is the historic presolnption that the interests of consumers are inadequately 
represented and protected within the federal government agencies and courts. The 
record of goxernment, of course, is replete with evidence of scores of commissions, 
bureaus and depar.tments, operating more than ! ,000 programs on behalf of consumers. 
Our Association is not convinced that the public interest will be .. better seI'\led by 
the creation of yet another institution and program. Conversely, we .believe tbat the 
effective representation of the public interest will pe unnecessarily disrupted by the 
proposed agency. ",. 

Time does not permit more than <i brief alltJsion to SOme of the specifics, but 
if the Congress should eSfublish an ACA, it may look fpr results like these: " 

In the field of law 
A new criterion may ·be establisl\ed for both ,statutes and administrative policy, 

under which an undefined "interest of consumers" will be equal to, or prevail over, 
th~ whole public interest to which all government is accountable. 

The complex field of administrative procedures will be challenged and iqtpeded ,;. 
by injection of yet another party with a single special, interest, having disproportionate 
legal standing to oppose· the iriterests of both affected private parties and the govern-
ment itself.' . 

Federal courts 'will be. ,further burdened and clogged with the task of adjudicating 
intra-governmental,. disputes, assuming serious constitutional issues are settled in favor 
of.the ACA. ~., 

-Private persons and companies involved in Federal agency proceedings (even those 
involving fines and penalties) may be confronted with two adversaries and' dragged 
by two, conflicting agencies with conflicting positions through the federal court system. 

In the Government 
The decision-making responsibilities of federal officers' will be blurred by the spectre 

of one government administrator' disputing with others theiro respective' powers, niles, 
procedures, personnel budget, programs and priority decisions of all kinds. <:, 

An evergrowing bureaucracy will be required as the. ACA seeks to cope with a 
multitude of complex matters ranging over the national economy and requiring an 
el!:pe(t knowledge of virtually every facet of government and business. 

In the Congress . " 
The Congress will transfer its historic responsibility to exercise oversightofregulatory 

agencies and, the Executive Branch to a single federal administrator appointed by 
the President, . 
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In the private sector 
The cost of operating the ACA will be dwarfed by the additionru expense incurred 

by enterprises and whole industries ACA chooses to intervene in and thereby cause 
delay. This delay will inevitably be translated into higher prices of goods to the con
sumer, inflation and unemployment. 

Attendant publicity agamst companies, products, and services may be costly in terms 
of someone's sales, someone's job and soineone's savings (and the. jobs"and incomes 
of thoSe in the community dependent upon the enterprise affected). 

Competitive damage will result through inevitable release of private financial data, 
trade secrets and other prc;prietary information the examination of which is permitted 
to the ACA Administrator. 

We might add to these foreseeable results the intangible costs of impeding the 
administrative process. The disruption will likely extend into local communities, despite 
any prohibitions against direct intervention by ACA into official state and local 
proceedings. You may be reminded that most federal actions, such as energy regulation, 
wage-price controls; land and mineral leasing, aj~line routes, agricultural orders and 
proceedings involving enterprises of all kinds ultimately affect the welfare of people 
in the cities, towns and rural areas of the nation, as well as the decisions of government 
bodies in H10se jurisdictions. You will find it impossible to exclude the ACA from 
intervention, in practice, into state and local affairs. 

It is also hypocritical to say that labor costs can be excluded from the scope of 
this legislation while effectively advocating consumers' interests. Labor costs represent 
often, the large~~ single component of consumer prices for goods and services. If 
one of the funCtions of the ACA is to protect consumers from unwarranted price 
increases it is· inconsistent that the ACA not be authorized to intervene in labor 
disputes. .. 

We are aware of a search for "alternatives" to the ACA idea, among both Congress
men and business groups. We have stated our Association~s alternatives in the past, 
and we believe' they have been validated by the pi'issage of time as effective methods 
of dealing with the issue known as consumer protection. 

First, if there is found to be a failure in any regulatory agency or the Executive 
branch in dealing with problems of consumers, the Congress should proceed to identify 
the particular problem and, as it has ·done many times before, enact specific legislation 
to remedy the situation. This does not preclude new powers, new programs, or even 
new ag~!lcies, where the problem is substantial, and where special expertise is justified. 

SecoHl'I, if any existing agency is found lacking during Congressional oversight in 
resourcGS to adequately protect any segment of the consuming public, we recommend 
use of the appropriation process by the Congress to provide funds and the competency 
to deal properly with fraud, deception, unfairness, or other inequity affecting the con
sumer's health, safety, or economic welfare. 

Third, because lhe exec.vtion of our laws is vested, constitutionaUy, in the Executive 
branch, we believe the responsibility for protecting all the public interest would best 
reside there. A prototype for consumer protection already exists in the Office of 
Consumer Affairs of' the Department of Health, Education and Welfare, and it is 

\1 now performing some of the functions which wO<L~d be assigned to the ACA. 
Fourth, the dynamics of the free market placel'f>l"ovide the best gurantee of consumer 

protection and it cannot be ignored or underestimated. They are continuously function
ing with an effectiveness unmatched by new laws or new agencies; and we believe 

.. they have not failed the American consumer. The broadest of these forces is the 
competitive system, and we reaffirm bur support of the full and fair enforcement 
of traditional laws against monoply and restraint of trade. The ll1echanisms for consumer 
protection also exist in every step of the production-distribution process. The producer's 
technical competence seeks out the best materials for his processes and components. 
The distributor or a chain of('distributQrs interpose their relentless judgment to select 
the products which perform best for the consuming markets which they serve. At 
the end of the lin'e the retailer, in daily contact with his customers, is a .final screening 
of the products he offers for the ultimate judgment of consumers. 

The process I have described is the practical application of what we mean by con
sumer sovereignty in the free market. We are aware of many voices seeking to deprecate 
this market mechanism, but we caution against cynicism leading to political substitl-!tes. 
Make no mistake, consumet needs and -desires' are recognized by every seller, and 
he ignores them at his peril. 

Tht;se proposals constitute, in our view, the "better alternatives" being sought for 
any teamining marketplace problems ~d which, at the same time, would avoid the 
admini~trative confusion which will flow from the bill before you. 
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In conclusion, we state that .the Congress itself, in a representative fonn of govern
ment, is the ultimate advocate for protection of over 200 million citizens in their 
~any div¢rse interests-as workers, farmers, merchants, manufacturers, savers, investors, 
taxpayers and consumers. We believe the Congress has acquitted itself' very well in 
this respect. It should continue alon~ the roac:f it has taken in the past of enacting 
specific statutes to remedy specifically Identified problems. 

My . Assocmtion thanks :vqu for the opportunity to present our views. before this 
committee. ' 

Chairman RIBICOFF. Mr. McKevitt, plellse? 

TESTIMONY OF JAMES D. McKEVITT, WASHINGTON COUNSEL, 
NATIONAL FEDERATION OF INDEPENDENT BUSINESS 

Mr. McKEVITT.' Mr. Chairman,' I would like to point out that I 
am the Washington counsel for the National Federation of Indt'lpen
dent Business which now has 500,000 member firms as of last week. 

I would like to ask that' my statement be incorporated into the 
record. '1 

Chairman RIBICOFF. Without objection, alI your statements will go 
into the record as if read. 

Mr. McKEVITT. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I will make my remarks 
brief in the interest of time and also the panel appearing here. today. 

I would like to state that the National Federation's members. oppose 
the ACA for several reasons. First; being their solid distrust of big 
Government. It just means there will be one more large agency. They 
do not ,Feel it will 15'e different than any other agency that has been 
created. It will just create a great deal more paperwork and many 
more problems for small business across the country. ';:J . 

No humane employe'r is against industrial health and safety, but 
we believe that the majority of our members strive" to maintain a' 
safe working place for their employ~es without the Government telling 
them to do so. . 

Statistics bear us out in our oI;>inion since small business is adjudged 
by experts to have the best record for safety within the business 
sector. 

W.e are also concerned that the formation of the ACA will result 
in an abdication of the responsibHity on the part of other public 
officials to consider the interests of. the consumer before any action 
is taken. ' .. 

We feel the answer to this probleI1} lies in a thorough review of 
existing consumer services within tile Government. If there are defi
ciences, then steps should be taken to correct them. 

Finally, Mr .. Chairman, we feel that NFIB's membership is not op
posing the safeguarding of consumers interests. After alt, conSumers 

,'areCl,stomers and satisfied customers patronize those stores that give 
tHem quality goods at a competitive price. Good business practice 
means satisfied customersand0'rofitab~e businesses,and fora bu~illess
man, profits are measured {lot oQly In terms of dollars, but, In the 
building of a reputation as an ethical, dep~ndable apd fair busin~ss-
man." ' .. 

Of equal importance is the fact that 'Some proponents of the ACA 
bill seem to have forgotten: Bvery businessman is also a consumer. 
He has a vested interest in assuring that both G6vernmentand business 
take care of the consumer. The creation of an ACA, however, would 
form an imaginary dividing line separating consumers fro~ producers. 

,1/ 
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The ACA will encourage an adversary relationship between consumers 
and businessmen that does not, in reality, exist. The small businessman 
will encounter an agency that is eager to listen to his complaints 
about other businessmen, but which is distrustful of his own business 
practices. 13Y ~I! means, let us join forces to insure the well-being 
of the consumer. But the creation of the ACA will ultimately lead 
to divisiveness, distrust, arid disillusion among the American people. 
Thank you. 

Chairman RIBICOFF. Thank you very much, Mr. McKevitt. 
[The prepared statement of Mr. McKevitt follows:] 

PREPARED STATEMENT OF JAMES D. "MIKE" McKEVITI, WASHINGTON COUNSEL, 
NATIONAL FEDERATION OF INDEPENDENT BUSINESS 

Mr. Chairman, the more than 500,000 member firms of the National Federation 
of Independent Business (NFIB) are unalterably opposed to the creation of an Agency 
for Consumer Advocacy. 

In t 962, President Kennedy told Congress that consumers were the only important 
group in the economy who did not have their views heard by government. Since 
then we have listened to repeated claims that consumers are the only group who 
must stand by helplessly while the federal government increasingly regulates their 
everyday lives. 

Mr. Chairman, our membership can attest to the fact that consumers are not alone 
in feeling left out of the political pp::>cess. As small and independent businessmen, 
they have seen time and again thai the small business sector of our economy is 
ignored and overburdened by the regulatory agencies. In fact, every argument that 
has been made in favor of a consumer agency also applies to the plight of the small 
businessman. But small business is not looking for this kind of help and would rather 
not have an expansion of federal authority in areas traditionally left to free enterprise. 

However, jf the ACA is created, the balance of power between consumer and busi
nessman will be disrupted so severely it may be necessary to strengthen the Small 
Business Administration simply to restore some balance. The same would be true 
of agriculture and other parties as well. Where does it end? 
:i NFIB's members oppose the ACA for several reasons, ~he first being their solid 
~\istrust of big government. Small businessmen are painfully aware that big government 
ri)eans overregulation of their daily activities, mountains of paperwork, and litigation 

. delays. All of these add up to increased costs and large periods of time spent away 
fi'om the conduct of business, neither~~lJich small business can afford. 

Let me> make it clear that<.!!rilaiI busih.~s often reflects the same concerns that 
prompt the government tcdlon. For example, no humane employer is against industri
al health and safety, and we believe that the majority of our members strive to maintain 
a safe working place' for their employees-without the government telling them to 
do so, Statistics bear us out in our ,opinion since small business is adjudged by experts 
to have the best record for safety within the business sector. Yet none checked,.the 
facts before ,the bill creating OSHA was passed in 1970. As a result, OSHA has 
become one of the major headaches a small businessman must face today. Because 
of OSHA. CPSC, and other regulatory agencies, the small businessman is justifiably 
fearful of our government, since more often than not, government actions lead to 
increased burdens upon small business. 

The creation of yet another agency, however laudatory in theory, will only add 
another layer of bureaucracy, thereby, removing the American public one step furthe~ 
from th~ir government .. Passage of the ACA would contradict the avowed wishes of 
Americans for the reorganization and simplification of our government. The people 
want their government to be more accessible to them; easier access cannot ensue 
from expansion of the existing bureaucratic muddle. . 

There are at present numerous consumer advocates scattered throughout the Execu-
, tive Branch. The claim has been made that these public officials are simply not doing 

a good enough job in protecting consumer interests. For this reason, the proponel)ts 
of the ACA justify its -creation by arguing that the new agency will consolidate consurnel' 
expertise within one agency, and that these advocates will not be diverted by any 
one special interest group seeking favors from the government at the 'tlxpense of the 
rest of the American people. We do not consider this argument a valid justification 
,of the ACA. 
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We are also concerned that the formation of the ACA will result in an abdication 
of the responsibility 011 the part of other public officials to COI1sider the interests 
Of, the consumer before any action is taken. Each agency is mandated to act in the 
best interests of the American people, i.e., thl; consumers of the nation. If we give 
this responsibility to one ~gency alone, we may well be offering public officials the 
opportunity to ignore their responsibilities and pass the buck to the ACA Administra
tor-who can only voice consumer concerns but has no voice in the final decisions 
of the other agencies. , 

NFIB feels that the answer to this problem lies in a thorough review of existing 
consumer services within the government. If there are deficiencies, then steps should 
be taken to correct them. If the various existing agencies cannot be made more respon
sive to consumec demands, how logical is it to assume that another federal agency 
will be more successful? ' 

As the bill is presently drafted, the ACA is given' no regulatory powers. NFIB 
be!ieves that, i~ all probabil!ty, the ACA will e~olve naturally into a regulatory .role. 
With the ACA 111 eXistence, It would become lOgIcal for Congressmen and profeSSional 
consumer groups: to seek out tna ACA '5 advice and opinions concerning new consumer 
legislation. Soon every consumer-oriented bill that passes Congress will be sertt to 
the ACA for review. The next step is implementation, and who better to implement 
a consumer bill than the experts in consumer affairs? The agency's powers will have 
to be expanded' in order to meet the demands for new services. With regulatory' 
powers, the ACA will be able to imptemtlnt legislation; it will also have more influence 
in the proceedings of other agencies. In short, the ACA will have the necessary "clout" 0 

to push consumer causes in the government. In no time at all, the Agency for Consumer 
Advocacy will become a costly, ftdl-blown regulatory agency, doing exactly what it 
was intended to prevent other agencies from doing-providing unwarranted interference 
and arbitrary regulation of people's lives. 

Some of you may be wondering why the small business is concerned about t~e 
ACA since thf,\re is included in the bill an exemption for small business from enforce
ment of interrogatiories (paperwork). NFIB is gratified that special attention was given 
to small business in the drafting of this bilI.Even so, our members have serious 
reservations about the exemption. 

The criteria. used in this bill to define small business is unacceptable to .us. If, 
as stated in section 18, the SBA is to work closely with the ACA in protecting 
the interests of small business, it would be advisable for both agencies to share the 
same point of reference. Since SBA is universally recognized as the official representa, 
tive of small business concerns, we feel that the definition in the bill in Sec. lO(a)(4) 
should conform to SBA standards. It would be much easier to amend the bill than 
to expect the SBA to function with two ,different perspectives-one for their own 
programs, and ,Inother for those of th!l ACA. 

One way to conform to SBA standards would be to define snpll business by its 
annual gross receipts instead of by its assets or net worth. AS~I~ts"and net worth 
ar!l not accurate indicators of the size of the, business,. since the~:l can be as closely 
related to holdings that are not related to the business as to actual business activity. 
Annual gross receipts are a much more accurate indicator 'of small business activity. 

Section 18 also requires that (:he ACA and all other federal agencies give "due 
consideration ... to the unique problems of small business" when implementing 
the Act. The language is too vague and insubstantial for the small business secfut 
to feel assured of adequate consideration. The intent ot' this section needs to be 
clarified, so we know whether "due consideration " will mean that potentially harmful 
actions to' smaJl business will not be undertaken, or simply that small business will 
get a specific mention each time agencies discuss implementation. 

By far, the most important concern regarding. the exemption for small business is 
whether it is permanent or temporary in nature. We belive our members are justified 
in being skeptical ab()ut the exemption. They can see that concessions have been 
made to them in the short run, but with 110 guarantee that they will remain perpetual!'y 
exempt from the Paperwork requiremen~1; of the bill. This is a. deep concern becau!k 
small business alrea'dy spends too many hours and too many dollars in filling out 
government forms. Unlike large companies, these businesses rarely employ a full-time 
accountant. Either they employ the s~rvices of an independcmt:;tccounting. firm, or 
the businessman and his family'spend tlleir limited free tillle in complying with govern
ment regulations and resultant paperwork. If the exemption is ,temporary, small business 
will be faced witti an additional burden, taking more time away from running their 
businesses and increasing the costs of accounting services. 

The c1aimohas";been made that without enforcement of interrogatories, the ACA 
will have no n;lleans to i~vestigate,consumer complaints against small businesses and 
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will be powerless to preven£ abuses. Since the vast majority (97%) of all businesses 
in this country are small, NFIB members are convinced that they will be a primary 
target for consumer groups seeking expansion of the ACA's powers. Congress will 
be pressured to remove the small business exemption. If this happens, complying with 
!he requir~ments of the ACA will become yet another headache for whIch there 
IS no cure. 

The fear of reduction. or removal of the small business exemption is not ungrounded. 
Smnall businessmen have seen their exemption under the minimum wage laws flatly 
reduced by an Act of Congress, then a further reduction as a result. of erosion caused 
by inflation. Very likely the pattern will be repeated in the case of ACA. 

In closing, let me assure you that NFIB's membership ns not opposing the safeguarding 
of consumer interests. After. all, consumer~ are customers, and satisfied customers 
patronize those stores that give them quality goods at a competitive price. Good business 
practices mean satisfied customers and profitable businesses. And for a businessman, 
profit is measured not only in terms of dollars, but in the building of a reputation 
as an ethical, dependable, fair businessman. 

Of equal importance is a fact which some proponents of the ACA bill seemed 
to have forgotten: every businessman is also a consumer. He has a vested interest 
in assuring that both government and business take care of the consumer. The creation 
of an ACA, however, would form an imaginary dividing line separating consumers 
from producers. The ACA will encourage an adversary relationship between consumers 
and businessmen that does not, in reality, exist. The small businessman will encounter 
an agency that is eager to listen to his complaints about other businessmen, but which 
is distrustful of his own business practices. By all means, let's join forces to ensure 
the well-being of the consumer. But the creation of the ACA will ultimately lead 
to divisiveness, distrust, and disillusion among the American people. 

Thank you. 

Chairman RIBICOFF. Mr. Schaus, please? 

TESTIMONY OF ROBERT L. SCHAUS, PRESIDENT, QUALITY BAKERS 
OF AMERICA, TESTIFYING ON BEHALF OF INDEPENDENT 
BAKERS ASSOCIATION AND THE NATIONAL SMALL BUSINESS AS
SOCIATION 

<> 

Mr. SCHAUS. Mr. Chairman, my name is Robert L. Schaus. I am 
senior president of the Quality Bakers Cooperative of America, chief 
operating executive officer of the Nation's largest cooperative of 
wholesale bakers. QBA is an active member of both the National 
Small Business Association, an organization represeting 1,000 of 1,200 
SIC classifications, and the Independent Bakers Association, a trade 
group of small- and medium-sized wholesale bakers representing all 
areas of the United States and an estimated 4·5 percent of the Nation's 
wholesale bakery production and the three bakery cooperatives iIi 
the United States. 

I also am the national chairman of the ABA's National Affairs 
Committee which represents the entire baking industry. 

In short, Mr. Chairman, I represent a collection of small business 
views on S. 1262, which would create a new agency for consumer 
advocacy. But they all agree on one main point-opposition to this 
uqneeded legislation. 

Small busi!;;ess is approximately 98 percent of all firms in the United 
States. It employs between two-thirds and three-fourths of the work 
force. When you add the self-employed to the small business category, 
small business has a work fore of about 50 million people. 

Unfortunately, Government poliqies have been directed toward solv
ing problems of concern to!arger companies and the large unions. 
There should be recognition fn Government that small businesses are 
first to feel the impact of Federal regulation and control. Many do 
not have the financial ability to rapidly adjust their trade policies 
made necessary by congressional legislation. 
.' 0 
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Much of the publicity" and emotion generated for legislation to 
establish an Agency for Consumer Advocacy deals with advertising 
and promotion practices by the larger companies. . 

The small business' community is caught in a squeeze. In the area 
of consumer proposals in particular, small business becomes a shut
tlecock between proponents of conSumer legislation and the big busi;.. 
ness community. When charges are made in the press about automo~ 
biles, home appliances and many other products, it is the large~ firms 
that are mentioned. Very little attention is given to the role 01 the 
small manufacturer and distributor and to whether or not he will 
be able to survive if the mandatory standards that are being proposed 
in various bills before Congress become law. Actually, many of the 
major companies are assemblers of products; the parts are supplied 
by small business firms. 

Although a small firm supplies a part meeting the standards of 
a larger firm, it is the small supplier who really bear:~ the brunt 
of consumer discontent if the public does not accept the assembler's 
final product. It is the small supplier who mu.st bear ultimate responsi
bility through litigation, ever-increasing insurance, premiums for 
product liability, cancellation of contracts, and other mounting bur
dens. 

Mr. Chairman, as presently written this bill only asks for small 
business advice and counsel with no rights of intervention in behalf 
of small business interests. 

Most small business firms are not financially able to appear before 
all Government agencies on the many complex issues affecting their 
interests. Therefore NSB recommends: 

The small business community must have an advocate with the 
same rights to intervene as -are provided for an agency for consumer 
advd&acy. 

Small business must have the right to appear in any proceeding 
before any agency that has ~ concern for Consumers. And believe 
me, if you come down here. to Washington as a small businessman 
and start looking at the 33 regulatory agencies, it is almost impossible 
to adequately cover your interests. . 

Small business must be placed in a position to give governmental 
agencies the facts- ancl. implications of possible rulings and regulations 
on the small business community. 

Therefore,. we ask that the Small Business Administration be givetl 
by legislation the same rights and authority given to the proposed 
Federal Agency for Consumer Advocacy. Q 

Other witnesses before this c~mmittee will analyze the actions of 
the Federal Government in protecting the consumer interest. There 
is no question as to the. need for study of the possible overlaps) 
in jurisdiction and duplication of efforts of the many agen~jes. These 
and other problems nee.~ considerable objectivG stuelY, and the inde-
pendent bakers support these efforts. , 

Mr. Chairman, the fact that small business has been exempted from 
the interrogatory power of ACA may not ,be good because the agency 
will have unprecedeqted power to make ioves'tigations into the records 
to the largest corporations, and will be drawing its conclusions from 
these records. Thus, small business may? find itself hel(l accountable 
to standards appropriate for large companies only. While)he bill 

__________ ~ ______________ ~jlL_ 



,;:., 

o 

50 

as currently written does not prDvide independent stand~_~rd-setting 
policy to the ACA, it is quite possible this will be added at a later 
date. If it. is, small business could find itself the losing bystander 
in the battle between big business and big Government. As you are 
aware--

Chairman RIBICOFF. Pardon me, Mr. Schausc-the' point you are 
l11~king is that the Small Business Administration should have the 
same rights to intervene in agency proceedings as the ACA. Is that 
the basic point? 

Mr. SCHAUS. That is basically the idea to be worked out through 
the proper legislation. 

As it has been admitted by the regulators themselves, small busi
nesses are sought out in actions by the Government because small 
businesses are least likely to fight back. The justice of having a 
Government agency pick on the small guy ill already questionable. 
Authorizing another big guy, ACA, to help the first in pounding 
the little guy into the ground seems unconscionable. 

Certainly, there are arguments for protection of the consumer, who 
cannot by himself remedy all the defects of the marketplace, or the 
problems of human or corporate greed. However, in view of the 
ris~ng public outcry against big Government, redtape, and overregula
tidn, it would seem that the solution to probkms that exist lies not 
in the creation of another superagency-another layer of bureaucra
cy-but in examining closely why the existing bureaucracies are not 
workil:\g. There are plenty to be looked at. 

Establishment of an Agency for Consumer Advocacy may answer 
the demands of self-appointed guardians of public interest, but it 
does not solve the problems of the consumer, of the regulators, Qr 
of small business. Indeed, by increasing litigation and fostering more 
paperwork and delay, it may hurt consumer interests by increasing 
prices, adding to inflation, and fueling unemployment. 

The Consumer Protection Act of 1977 does not address the real 
problem, it only adds to it. 

I only say-in not repeating some of the things that have been 
said here before in previous testimony-in 1975 some 63,000 people 
were employed by regulatory agencies in Washington at close to $2 
billion a year. the ACA could secoQd-guess any agency decision or 
anyone of these regulatory agencies and businesses would not know 
where they stand. One of the greatest things in business is not knowing 
what to do and how to plan. 

In 1975 the estimate of the ACA was $60 million a year fO(,3 
years. Now the cost is down to someplace near $15 million and 
I do not know what it would finally be. But I would predict it would 
be far greater than anyone here in this room imagines it would be 
in a few short years. 

We are definitely against any exemption. We think this country 
has 220 million Americans, every one of us is a consumer, and there 
should be ,: no exemptions when We h1;lve any kind of legislation that 
affects consumer interests. 

The last point I will make. I have been dealing probably with 
a product that no one else here deals with, but we have contact 
with the American consumer more, all on a daily basis by selling 
bread and cakes and sweet rolls. If we ever make any that she does 
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not like, we find out about it the next day. 'Most of om: people 
that I know in business lay awake nights-not to take things away 
from the consumer~b'ut they lay awake nights trying to figure out 
how to give them more'of the so-called baker's dozen. The consumer 
turns us off just like that if we produce a poor product-maybe 
the fir.st time we can\' get by with it, but the second time never. 
loday's consumer is a smart,'educated housewife and she does not 
need help in making marketplace decisions. 

Again, I would say that the consumer interests with their many 
organizations have far better clout with the regulatory agencies than 
the small business community. 

Thank you. 
Chairman RIBICOFF. Thank you. 
Mr. Joseph, please? " 
You do not have testimony. I notice you are listed here. 
Mr. JOSgPH. Our witness, Mr. Riehm, is not here yet. 
Chairman RIBICOFF. Is there anybody else in this group that has 

not testified? 
Senator Sasser, do you have any questions? 
Senator SASSER. No questions. 
Chairman RIBICOFF. Senator Heinz, do you have any questions? 
Senator HEINZ. No, Mr. Chairman. 
Chairman RIBICOFF. I want to thank y.qu gentlemen. 
You know, this has been before us for 7 years. We have had 

hearing after hearing. The fact that there are no que§gons does not 
mean that we are not concerned and interested in all points of view. 
The record is voluminous. There are very few new thoughts or ideas. 
The only one that I have heard so far was from Mr. Schaus who 
talks about the right of small business to have some say, which is 
an interesting point. 

But all this will go into our consideration. 
r thank you very much for coming here and presenting your point 

Of (j-iew. AJI of your statements will be included in the record as 
if read. . 

,Mr. SCHAUS. Senator, may I add one point? 
Chairman RIBICOFF. Yes, sir. 
Mr. SCHAUS. I did not make the report, but ABA would like to 

have its position paper included in the record. 
Chairman RIBICOFF. Without objection, so ordered. 
[The position paper of the American Bakerl1 Association follows:] 

PREPARED STATEMENT OF AMERICAN BAKERS ASSQCIATION 

My name is Robert Schaus. I "al11 President of Quality Bakers of America, and 
today am representing the American BakerS Association and speaking on behalf of 
the baking industry. The American Bakers Association includeS in its membership 
bakers who produce about 80% of the commercially baked bakery products distributed 
to grocery stores, restaurants and institutions. 

I want to express our opposition to the concept ofan agency for consumer advocacy, 
as is P(Oposed in the legislation, S. 1262, before this Committee. 

A new federal agency to intervene in department and agency proceedings on behalf 
of con~umers is not needed. Since this legislation was first proposed many years ago, 
existing federal agencies have taken steps. to see that consumer interests are fully 
heard. We now have a Govemment in SunShine Act that opens, practically all govern
ment sessions to public participation. We now have a Consumer Product Safety Commis
sion, the FIe has risen as .a potent guardian of consumer interests under the .FTC 
Improvement Act, the Justice Department has an Office of Public Counsel, and the 
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Department of Health, Education and Welfare has a Consumer Office, to name a 
few. 

We believe that adding a new bureaucracy to watch over the existing bureaucracy! 
is unnecessary, wasteful and inefficient. The agency, if established, in our opinion, 
would generate conflict with other government agencies, delay decision making, increase 
litigation costs, and thus add to inflationary pressures. We honestly believe that the 
consumer, and that is everybody at one time or another, needs protection from 
over-regulation rather than more regulation. 

There is enough delay today in getting decisions from federal agencies on matt~rs 
of importance to us, and we fear that art agency with a formal right to delay actions, 
for whatever reason they might feel is legitimate, would further tie up the decision 
making process, add to our paperwork burden, and waste tax dollars. For example, 
we have been waiting for three years for an FDA decision on adding more iron 
to bread to fill a recognized dietary need for a large part of our popUlation. This 
has been held up because of the testimony of a doctor, who fears that a very few 
people for whom added iron in the diet, might be injurious, might eat some of our 
produCt. Every possible aspect of this issue is being or has been researched without 
any master agency checking on FDA. We think that is enough. 

There is obviously a lot more that will be said and can be said about this subject, 
but I will leave that to my colleagues. 

A copy of our position paper is attached to my comments, for the record. Thank 
you for your attention. 

AMERICAN BAKERS ASSOCIATION POSITION PAPER ON SENATE AND HOUSE BILLS 
EsTABLISHING AN AGENCY FOR CONSUMER PROTECTION 

1. A new federal agency to intervene in department and agency proceedings on 
behalf of consumers is not needed. This legislation originated in 1969, in the belief 
that the consumer interest was not adequately represented in the administrative process. 
Since then the Consumer Product Safety Agency has been created, the Federal Trade 
Commission has been revived as a potent guardian of the consumer interest and the 
Justice Department has established an Office of Public Counsel to represent consumers. 
Adding another new bureaucracy, which will co~t $60 million over the next three 
years, would be wasteful and inefficient. 

2. The bill is discriminatory. The laoor exemption makes it clear this is one-sided 
legislation. The proposed ACP cannot effectively represent consumers if it is prohibited 
from inter<.ening in cases involving wages and labor practices which can add millions 
of dollars to the cost of consumer goods. 

3. The Agency would generate conflict with other governmental units and thereby 
cause greater delay in an already long and burdensome federal decision making process. 
Under the bill, after the ACP presents its views 'and the department or agency reaches 
its decisions, the ACP could then appeal that decision to the courts. This is unnecessary 
overkill, which cannot benefit the consumer and will only increase tht: cost of litigation, 
thereby adding to inflation. 

Chairman RIBlcOFF. Mr. John Miller? 
Mr. Richard Simpson? 

TESTIMONY OF RICHARD O. SIMPSON, FORMER CHAIRMAN OF 
THE U.S. CONSUMER PRODUCT SAFETY COMMISSION 

Mr. SIMPSON. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
My name is Richard O. Simpson and I appreciate the opportunity 

to appear today to express my personal views on S. 1262, the Con
sumer Protection Act of 1977. This legislation would create a new 
Federal agency to represent the American consumer before the other 
Federal regulatory agencies. 

Mr. Chairman, let me also state that my appearance here today 
is on my own behalf. No one is paying me to be here and my 
testimony is entirely my own. I say that because in answer to an 
inquiry in the House, I was asked the question of whether or not 
r was being paid to appear here. 

.,. 
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During my tenure as the first Chairman of the U.S. Consumer 
Product Safety Commission, CPSC, I gained firsthand knowledge of 
the problems facing the regulator and I also became very well aWare 
of the feelings and the frustrations experienced by citizens in their 
dealings with the Federal bureaucracy. Let me briefly share with you 
some of those experiences. 

In about midyear of 1973, during the first few months of the ex
istence of this /Jew regulatory agency, we established a toll-free con
sumer hotline so that consumers could "co~nmunicate directly with 
their Government· and teU us what they thought about what we were 
doing. When I left the Commission last June, we were receiving ap
proximately 50,000 phone calls per year. 

We also asked for citizen volunteers to help the Commission with 
retail store surveillance for compliance with toy regulations, child
proof packaging requirements for aspirin, et cetera. During the time 
I was with the Commission, a little over 3 years, over 4,000 citizens 
had. actively participated by volunteering their time to this program. 
I might add this volunteer participation Was without any compensation 
whatsoever for the volunteers. 

Also, during my term as Chairman, we asked for consumer volun. 
teers to actively participate with us and help us write mandatory' 
safety standards-participate with us on committees. In nationwide 
solicitations, over 5,000 citizens from all walks of life and all skill 
levels volunteered to offer their time and expertise to that effort. 

I. personally chaired a meeting in Washington where we asked '{80 
consumers who had actually participated in the first four mandatory 
standards-writing panels to come to Washington and share. with us 
their views about the. experience~. tell us how to improve it, tell us 
whether it was meaningful, et cetera. .. 

They said the experience was meaningful and they were very pleased 
to have been asked by their Government to help. The· message was 
also very loud and clear from this group assembled that they wanted 
to speak for themselves before Government agencies-not have 
someone else speak for them. 

The statement which accompanies the fntroductionof S. 1262 says !(iI 

that this bill will give "consumers a voice. in Government." Mr. Chair-" 
man, the consumers I have talked to would not necessarily agree 
with that assessment. In fact, this bill would give another group. of 
"bureaucrats a voice in government"-unelected bureaucrats who 
would be the officially designated consumer spokesmen. 

I am for consumer protection but I am . personally opposed to the 
passage of this bill. Lest t be misunderstood, let me also hasten to 
add that I agree that the principa~ public ai'guments used in support 
of the CPA have merit. r think it is an accurate statement that there 
has been inadequate opportunity for public involvement, public 
knowledge of, and public scrutiny and participation in, the regulatory 
process, 
. However, agreement that there is a serious problem does not cqn

stitu,te an agreement on my part that this legislation would present 
either a best or even an adequate solution to that problem. ," 

It is my view that sincere, .and well-intentioned, legislators too often 
seek instant cures for such problems by the creation of yet ~nother 
Federal agency. The CPA legislation would appear to me to be ,an 

~. 
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attempt at such a legislative panacea. Unfortunately, as we are all 
too aware, the cure is often worse than the illness. Just because 
the title of the legislation says "Consumer Protection," does not mean 
that in practice the consumer will be well served. I believe that the 
rhetoric, Mr. Chairman, surrounding the 7 years of discussion on 
this legislation has unfortunately focused the national debate on the 
wrong subject. There have been knee..jerk reactions on both sides 
starting when the bilI was first introduced about 7 years ago. I think 
we have spent too much time choosing up sides on whether or not 
we shOuld have a Consumer Protection Agency and too little time 
exploring the alternatives and deciding whether this is a good solution 
to curing the problems we had originally identified. In my view, the 
CPA would be inadequate; and in fact would be counterproductive. 
I would say it will be anticonsumer, if you will, for several reasons. 

No. 1. As mentioned before, I certainly am skeptical of the basic 
concept of the CPA. As others have told you, if we accept the 
premise that existing Federal agencies are not responsive to the in
terests of consumers, it escapes me by what logical reason we could 
create another Federal agency and thereby correct the deficiency. 

No.2. A CPA, as the designated official spokesman for consumer 
interests in regulatory activities, will provide just another Federal layer, 
further isolating regulatory agencies from the citizen's voice. This 
is exactly what consumers I have talked to do not want to happen. 

No.3. The level of public expectation for the CPA that has been 
created over the past 7 years is far in excess of the Agency's ability 
to deliver on those expectations. I would predict that within 2 years 
or less of the establishment of thjs Agency, supporters of the legisla
tion would be expressing critical disappointment in the Agency for 
not delivering on those expectations. In truth, I believe this Agency 
is an inadequate organizational mechanism with which tei cure or 
even reasonably attack the problems which have resulted frt.lm many, 
many years-probably over 75 years-of ineffective attention to regu
latory review and regulatory reform. The net result can only be 
another adverse credibility reaction of our citizens to the governmental 
process. It would be certainly ironic if at this time we would create 
an agnecy to ostensibly help consumers that had the actual effect 
of working against the efforts of President Carter and others to restore 
citi?en confidence in their Government. Efforts which I applaud and 
support. 

No.4. For years, we have heard that the regulatory agencies have 
not only been nonresponsive to consumer interests, but we have also 
heard ~hat they have become captives of the industries they regulate. 
It" this is so, it is a deplorable commentary on the state of our Federal 
Government. But, Mr. Chairman, I wish to remind you that the agen
cies concerned, particularly the independent agencies, are now and 
have always been accountable to the· U.S. Congress through the over
sight function, the budget process and the authority of the U.S. Senate 
to either confirm or reject the heads of those agencies. If the agencies 
have not been performing according to their congressional mandate, 
then it is also true that the Congress must share part of the blame. 

If they have the wrong mandate, I would commend to you that 
Congress should change it. 

J 
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Creation of the CPA could be viewed, if you are cynically inclined, 
as an admission at best of congressional inability or at \Vorst congres;.. 
siona! unwillingness to hold the regulatory agencies accountable for 
their actions. Or for that matter, to hold them accountable for their 
inactions. . 

No.5. Last and most important, Mr. Chairman, establishment of 
this Agency would provide an escape mechanism for those elected 
officials and appointed commissioners who already have been given 
mandate by the Congress of insuring that the public's views are 
honestly solicited and reasonably considered in the regulatory process. 
Every official in a regulatory agency already has the assigned responsi
bility to consider all societal views, including consumer views, when 
he makes decisions on behalf of our citizens~ The most difficult and 
the most elusive part of that process is to identify the consumer's 
point of view. The creation of the CPA would have the effect in 
practice of lifting this burden from the individhal commissioner and 
placing the responsibility for articulating the consumer's. viewpoint 
on the CPA officials. Mr. Chairman, can you imagine what would 
happen-the effect of a CPA when a bureaucrat who has the regulato
ry authority is told by another bureaucrat how to do his job. You 
will have removed the difficult task from the regulator, but the votes 
remain as before-with the regulatory official. The net effect can 
only be a cop-out for the regulatory commissioner and a reduction 
in the consumer's voice and influence in our Federal activities. 

While at the Commission, I received a request from Consumer's 
Union, an organiz~tion which I highly respect, to establish a conSumer 
counsel office, or a mini-CPA if you . will, within the Commission. 
I refused to do so because the creation of such arl office would 
have provided a convenient excuse mechanism fg17myself and my 
fellow commissionets'.' 1 told CU that: we we1:~\-'charged by Congress 
to be responsible to consumer views and I would be, negligent. if 

'1 did not take means to make the entire Commission responsible 
to those views. Further, I would not engage in a token effort that 
would be. ineffective. 

A far better solution, in my view, would be to tackle the, very 
tough job of forcing the existing agencies and those appointed offi
cials-and if they are the wrong ones remove them-to meet their 
responsibilities to the public in a ma~lUer intended by their enal?ling 
statutes. It would be far less glamorous than creating a new agency; 

, it would' be tougher to accomplish; the task would take commitment 
') and leadership by the reg4)atory agencies, the President and the Con
\gress. However, in my view it is the only way you are, really going 
'~o get the job done. 
\ Further, Mr. Chairman, the consumers I have talked to already 
f~\~el they have in place what could be deS,?ribed as a Consume~ Protec~ 
tl~, n Agency to represent them. One wh~~h they elected. It IS called 
thl!, U.S. Congress. I urge you to acc;ept that responsibility and not 
ab~Jicate this re~ponsibiiity to a new agency. 

i~pank you arid t would be pleased to respond to questions. 
C~ail'1.l'lan RIBICOFF. Thank you very much, Mr. Simpson. 
Sepator Sasser? 
Sei~ator SASSER. No questions, Mr. Chairman. 

\ 
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Chairman RIBICOFF., Thank you very much for your testimony. It 
was, interesting and provocative and we do appreciate your coming 
here, Mr. Simpson. 

. Mr. SIMPSON. Thank you for the opportunity to be here. 
Chairman RIBICOFF. Margaret Cox Sullivan? 
John Riehm? 
Ralph Nader? 
Have aU the witnesses been notified that the committee was going 

to start at 9:15? 
None of these witnesses have been forced to come nere. All have 

wanted to come to testify: We adjust our schedule to be here on 
time. To my knowledge, while I have been chairman, every committee 
meeting has started exactly at the time set. It was set for 9: 15 so 
we could hear all the witnesses. The committee is here. 

I will make an exception at this time, but hereafter if a witness 
is not here before the testimony is concluded, then the committee 
will adjourn. 

I will take a recess until 10:30 and the testimony of those witnesses 
who are not here to answer to their names will be received as if 
read. 

We will stand in recess until 10:30. 
[At which time there was a short recess.] 

AFIER RECESS 

Chairman RIBICOFF. Margaret Cox Sullivan? 

TESTIMONY OF MARGARET COX SULLIVAN, PRESIDENT, 
,STOCKHOLDERS OF AMERICA, INC. 

Ms. SULLIVA'N. I apologize. I was told that I would not go on 
until about 11:30. I am sorry I inconvenienced you. 

Chairman RIBICOFF. Well, we started at 9:15 and I try to start 
these hearings on time. We all have busy schedules and we try to 
accommodate those people who are to testify. From now on when 
someone is supposed to testify and they are not here, we will adjourn 
the meeting and the privilege to testify will not be afforded. 

So you may proceed, Ms. Sullivan, 
Ms. SULLIVAN Thank you. 
! do appreciate this opportunity to appear before this distinguished 

committee on behalf of the ,over 25 million stockholders in this 
cou~tryc-the real owners of American business. My name is Margaret 
Cox Sullivan. I am president of Stockholders of America, Inc., a 
nonprofit, nonpartisan organization of stockholders, headquartered in 
Washington, D.C. 

The membership is a very diversified group comprised of people 
frpm every State across our, great country' and from every walk of 
life. They have only one thing in common: They are investors in 
the equity capital market. They are capitalists. Collectively they own 
a large portnon of American business. They are the schoolteachers 
and telephof\~ operators, linemen, barbers, shopkeepers, salesmen, of
fice worker~, construction workers. pilots, truckddvers, doctors, 
lawyers, m~litary personnel, retired peoRle,. and, the many factory work
ers who have bought stock through thelf employee stock purchase 
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plans. They are the backbone of our free enterprise system-a system 
often called people's capitalism. A system that has made us a nation 
of owners. 

Since Stockholders of America is committed to public issues which 
affect stockholders and our free enterprise system, we strongly oppose 
the Consumer Protection Act of 1977. We feel that this legislation 
is fraught with many dangers. It is a wrong concept. It is against 
the verypremise~of free enterprise defined in our American Heritage 
Dictionary as: "The freedom of private businesses to operate and 
compclte for profit with minimal Government regulation ... 

The existing Government regulations could hardly be called minimal 
and we certainly do not need a superregulator to regulate the regulato
ry agencies. There are now consumer affairs sections in most Federal 
departments and agencies working with the Office of Consumer Affairs 
which advises the executive branch on consumer~related policies and 
programs. 

There is now a Special Assistant to the President for Consumer 
" Affairs whose duties include analyzing and coordinating all consumer 

protection activities. 
The Federal Trade Commission established in 1914 and recognized 

as a major consumer protection agency now has authority to make 
detailed rules over selling I and other trade practices and the ''authority 
to impose penalties for violation of those rules. This Commission 
may sue on behalf of consumers or classes of consumers to bring 
about redress· of their complaints including the awarding of damages. 
Further, the Commission now has a fund for private legal representa
tives of consumers and consumer organizations who are otherwise 
unable to finance themselves. . 

I understand that other departments-such as Transportation and 
HEW-are also studying plans for the establishment of such funds. 

Further, the creation of the Consumer Protection Safety Commission 
in 1972 established unprecedented jurisdiction over the production 
and sale of practically every component, product, and service bought 
arid used by consumers. 

The Food and Drug Administration was established to protect the 
consumer against impure and unsafe foods, and drugs and cosmetics. 

We could add that we have the President's Council On Wage and 
Price Stability which is responsible for appraising the programs 'and 
policies of the Government to determine their inflationary im~Act 
whic~J)would be of dire.ct concern to the.consume~./ 

It IS my understandlOg that there at'e more than 1,000 consumer
related programs handled by 33 Federal departments and agencies. 
If these agencies are not doing their work effectively, then they should 
be abolished. If there is duplication of effort and overlapping of man~ 
dates, the· programs should be reevaluated and the unnecessai~ ,or 
overlapping ones terminated. And not add another layer of regulation 
which the Consumer Protection Act of 1977 will do by creating a 
Federal agency for consumer advocacy-an agency" with the power 
of subpena; the right to demand information; and the legal authority 
to have confidential data from corporations. If it cannot make its 
case in the regulatory agency when it .has intervened, it has authority 
to appeal the decision to the courts, and challenge another arm of 
the Government and the business respondent. The consumer will pay 
for this. 

i,i 
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The consumer is paying to be consumed. And reme~ber: Stockhol- . 
ders are consumers too. 

So as stockholders, consumers, and taxpayers, we are paying for 
more government than we want, more than we need, and as a nation 
more than we can afford. The Federal" Government is trying to do 
more than. its resources will permit; it is trying to do many things 
that it cannot do very well; and endeavoring to do some things that 
it should not do at all. Legislation emanating from Congress, in our 
judgment, should be directed away from more Government controls. 
In our continuing surveys to the question: Do you favor more or 
less Government regulation of business: 97 percent to 98 percent 
of those polled .answered less. There certainly is a trend in our country 
against Government regulations, redtape, and bureaucracy. This was 
evidenced in the last national election-a Washington outsider was 
chosen President. Other examples: The uproar over the ban of 
saccharin; and then, of course, not accepting the ignition interlock 
system. 

At the suggestion of Stodkholders (Jf America, many companies 
are informing their stockholders about the number of records to be 
kept, reports which the company is required by law to file, and the 
number of regulatory agencies that they must report to. We have 
even suggested that companies include the number of man-hours ex
pended for these purposes and put a price tag on it so that their 
stockholders will know exactly what Government reporting and record
keeping is costing them. 

The stockholders' pocketbooks are affected; their investments 
eroded; and equity investment becomes less attractive. This is occur
ring ;.t a time when the need for equity investment in our country 
is crucial, and the nu~ber of stockholders is declining. According 
to the latest statistics released by the New York Stock Exchange, 
the number of individual stockholders declined by 18 percent from 
1970 to 1975. This figure is particularly jolting on two counts: At 
the same period in our national history when the number of stockhold~ 
ers was growing, we as a country were enjoying rapid, prosperous 
economic expansion; and it has been estimated that ~~~~~1ct have 
50 million stockholders by 1980 to meet the expan,!~tig capital)i~cts 
for a growing work force, to keep our industrial/leadership in tJ:ili. 
world, to keep our country strong, and to keep o}!1'stap.dard of living, ",,~ 

It has been estimated that over the next 1 0 /~ars American industry ''''', '" 
will need $4.5 trillion. We have allowed ou1'great American business '" ~ 
machine to get rusty, our equipment is beioming obsolete,. and many 
industries operate short of capacity. We hive to realize that 67 percent ~ 
of all metalworking machinery in this c0untry is more than 12 years \ 
old. Whereas in Japan the figure is 0iy 30 percent and in Germany 
37 percent. That is typical of all 9,ar plants and equipment; and 
it shows why our long-term produ~n advantages are fading-as in 
Great Britain. I' 

Given the equity investmen~eeded, we can rebuild our great 
economic engine and expa~6ur economy. Jobs can be created in 
the private sector and :J?~~ country ca!1 return to a position of a 
lower unemployment ~e. We then can work toward creating V'ObS 
for the 10 million m~re who will be coming into the work force 
by 1.980 .. To a .large ,,~gree, this equity investment will have to come ii 
from the American peo~e. /cP 

~=, / 
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Historicaily, it has been the people: The individuai investors,the 
stockholders, the little guys, who have been the source of equity 
capitaL They have been called the strongest ingredient, the backbone 
of our capital markets. Their role is vital. They are the capital force 
of our country. Just as the millions of workers, in the labor force 
supply labor services, so capital services are supplied by the capital 
force-the millions who invest in the American business system. 

Our capital raising process, the equity capital markets, has been. 
successful because we have provided a mechanism-the auction mar
ket-where individuals with diversified interests and judgments can 
invest in companies of their choice and share in the ownership of 
these companies. The success and strength of our free enterprise 
system-the American business system-come from this large, diver
sified ownership base. We should be considering how we are going 
to protect this system from the elements that are trying to strangle 
it-perhaps not intentionally,but the end results will be the, same. 
Untempered zeal is dangerous. For we must be continually aware 
that it is our free enterprise system that has allowed its people to 
build out of a wilderness the greatest industrialized Nation in the 
world with its people" having the ( highest' stand1ird of living, while 
keeping their freedoms. 

We must get back to the basic principles upon which this country 
was founded. Liberty, freedom, independence, and justice are en
graved in the thinking of Americans. Americans want to control their 
own Jives and make their own choices. However, this Government 
has become so inflated and has grown to such monstrous dimensions 
that~it has become a sprawling giant with more fingers in our economic 
pie and picking the pockets of the people. 
, We have a wonderful country with good people. There is a spirit 
of American. And the last thing we need or want is a ,fJonsumer c 

czar. Therefore we vehemently oppose this legislation with the final 
plea: Let's keep the "free" in free enterprise. 

Chairman RIBICOFF. Thank you very much. 
Senator Percy? 
Senator PERCY. Yes, I first of all would like to say that I share 

your goals and objectives, Ms. Sullivan. 
Ms. SULLIVAN. Thank you. 
Senator PERCY., I think one of my proudest accomplishments is 

that when I left a corporation With over 10,000 employees'; everyone 
of them was a stockholder. 

Ms. SULLlVAN. Isn't ,that great. 
Senator PERCY. Tha:, is the "people's capitalism" and that IS what,., 

we want to promote. ' . 
Having shared that, t must say that I come to a diametrically op

posed point of view th~n you. First of all I find your statement 
somewhat factually confu,lling. On page 1 you state that we do not 
need a "superregulator to i'~gulate the regulatory agencies." 

Could you cite in the BVI before you that, section which creates 
this? "-

Ms. SULLIVAN. I do not have the bill. 
Senator PERCY. Well, I will give you a copy. 
Ms. SULLIVAN. It is my understanding that there was an administra

tor to be appoipted,and ,the administrator would regulate the regUlato
ry agencies now operating. 
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Sel,'lato(', PBR{;V. That is not in the bill. Find that s!:lQtiQn in the 
bHI,- please, -Ms. Sullivan. 

Ms. SULLIVAN. I could not. I really could not. 
Senator PERCY. It is not there, but you have said it is, in your 

testimony before us. You call this a superregulator to regulate the 
regulatory agencies. 

Ms. SULLIVAN. Is that not the intention though, Senator Percy? 
Senator PERCY. It is not. 
Ms. SULLIVAN. Why would you want another administliator with 

the subpena power? 
Senator PERCY. Have you read the bill yourself? 
Ms. SULLIVAN. Yes, she just gave it to me. 
Senator PERCY. The reason I bring this out is that we have had 

so many witnesses who have said they will create a superregulator. 
Not one of them can find it in the bill. But ,they keep mouthing 
these cliches which are absolutely inaccurate. 

Ms. SULLIVAN. How would it work then-this administrator? 
Senator PERCY. As a matter of fact, we put in this bill a sec

tion-listen to this--
It says, "the authority of the Agency"-this is at the bottom of 

page 2 of the bill-"to carry out this purpose shall not be construed 
to supersede, supplant, or replace the jurisdiction, functions, or powers 
of any other agency to discharge its own statutory responsibilities 
according to law." 

So there cannot be any possibility that this Agency could "regulate 
the regulatory agencies." In fact there' is specific'language prohibiting 
it. Now how could you possibly have read the bill and then testify 
before us that c this is a "superregulator to regulate the regulatory 
agencies. " 

Ms. SULLIVAN. Well then why would the administrator have the 
right to go to court if it is not over, something? 

Senator PERCY. He is an advocate. 
Ms. SULLIVAN. Well, I know. 
Senator PERCY. He is protecting. He has a right to take a consumer 

interest to court, but he cannot direct. In other words, he cannot 
regulate. He cannot order any regulatory agency. He cannot take 
any power away from them that they had. He cannot supersede their 
powers. All he can do is appeal decisions or actions through the 
process of court. What is wrong with that? Is not that the same 
recourse a stockholder has if a corporation does something that they 
do not like? 

Ms. SULLIVAN. He can sell his stock. 
Senator PERCY. He can go to court, can't he? 

U Ms. SULLIVAN. Yes, I think so. We advise him to sell his stock. 
,,0 Senator PERCY. I would hope that when you find malfeasance on 
the part of a corporation that you will take the corporation to task 
and go to court. Would you want to deprive consumer advocates 
of the right to use the courts if they feel that the regulatory agency 
is not servin& the consumer interest? This is a consumer economy, 
isn't it? Would you agree with that? 

Ms. SUL(iIVAN. Yes, I think so. 
Senator PERCY. You think sq. Well, you must know 'so. It was 

not set up for the purpose of the prodUcer, much as I would have 

I 
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.Iikt:ld . to hav~ thought that nll my Hie when I was a prQducer. I 
always had to. get straight in my thinking that the interest Qf the 

., corporation is to. serve the consumer . The consumer is the king. 
Ms. SULLIVAN. That is right. 
Senator PERCY. Not necessarily the stockhQlder. 
NQw, I would just want to. ask yQU Qne Qther questiQn. YQU say 

on the last page, "We sho.uld be cQnsidering hQW we ate gQing to 
prQtect this system from the elements that are trying 10 strangle 
it-perhaps nQt intentiQnally, but the end result will be the same." 

I really urge that yQU carefully read section 24 Qf this bill. 
It was carefully cQnstructed to. eliminate the kind Qf prQblem that 

you see and many of us have seen with regulatory ~gencies issuing 
regulatiQns without regard to. the CQst Qf thQse regulations, <l\l1d withQut 
regard to' CQst effectiveness, That alQne should caUse yQU as a 
representative Qf stockhQlders to. come forward and say,. "Pass that 
bill so. we can get a handl~ on these regulatiQns." It is the only 
place in any piece of legislation we now have before us that that 
appears, and I urge that yQU study that and see whether it will prQtect ' ' 
the stQckhQlder/cQnsumer interests in this cQuntry mDre than anything 
else. . 

1 have no furthenquestions, Mr. Chairman. 
While we disagri;:e on sOme things, I am delighted to have had 

yQU here. Ms. Sullivan. 
Ms. SULUVAN. Thank you. 
Senator PERCY. For yQur bedside reading I hope YQU go back and 

read the bill Qnce again with a constructive thQught in mind. 
Thank YDuvery much. 
Ms. ~ULLlVAN. Thank YQU, Senator. 
Chairm~n R,BICOFF. Thank yQu. Ms. Sullivan. 
Ms. SULLIVAN. Thank yQU. 
Chairman RIBICOFF. Mr. Nader? 
SenatD[ PERCY. Mr. Nader, a friend Df YQUrs, Mr. Henry Ford 

has just arrived in. my office to. talk abQut, I hope, his supPQrt fDr 
the CQnsumer PrDtectiQn Agency. I' will be back just as SQDn as 
we have finished and I am sDrry I have to. leave nDW. [Laughter.) 

Mr. NADER. If you can accQmplish that, Senator Percy, it will be 
a wQrthy use Qf yQur time this mQrning. [Laughter.] 

TESTIMONY OF RALPH NADER, CONSUMER ADVOCATE 

Mr. NADER. Thank yo.u, Mr. Chairman, Senator Percy. 
I have a feeling that we have all been here befQre. 
Chairman RIBICOFF. Seven years. G 

Mr. NADER. Many times. This I believe is the eighth year, starting 
in 1970, that this bill has received consideration by the U.S, Senate, 
and reflects the need and desirability Qf legislative stamina to. Qver
CQme the vigQrous QPpositiQn which industry and' commerce, with 
few exceptiDns, have visited upon this bill. t, ,. ' 

I think also the effectiv~concept of the bill, namely that Qf being 
an advQcacy agency rather than a regulatory agency, has been. vin
dicated by virtue Qf this vigQrousQPpositiDn. 

The CQnsumer protectiQn bill, I, understand, has been subjected to. 
mQre filibuster VQtes than the Treaty of Versailles, and the QPposition 
by industry and CQmmerce has been wi!hout parallel, al~hQugh partly 
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based as a way to ingratiate trade associations with their\-members 
back home. 

It is also a recognition that this is a concept that can work. This 
is a concept that can break the close fraternity between the regulators 
and the regulatees which have characterized Washington and which 
have been described so intensively in many congressional hearings. 

It is a bill which will provide advocacy functions for an agency 
to both participate in existing proceedings, petition for the initiation 
pf proceedings, and take agencies to court for judicial review of 
itgency decisions, all of which are designed to further the interest 
M consumers. In that sense, it is a Very crisp and clear-cut piece 
of legislation with a great deal of the ambiguities ironed out year 
after year through negotiations, clarification, and redrafting . 

.J would like to avoid repeating the elaborate case for the Consumer 
Prlotection Agency in its quest for advancing the health, safety, and 
ec(momic interests of millions of consumers in this country. 

I would like to avoid this, in the interest of time, by submitting 
for the record some concise materials illustrating the derelictions of 
existing agencies too indentured to their corporate clientele and how 
these derelictions have harmed the health, safety, and economic in
terests of consumers, and how these derelictions could have ,Qeen 
anticipated and thwarted by the existence of a lean consumer advoca
cyagency. 

Chairman RIBICOFF. Without objection the material will go into 
the record. 

Mr. NADER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
In elaborating the arguments against this Agency, industry and com

merce and some of their supporters in the Congress have raised a 
number of philosophical issues. In tne attempt to raise the "Why 
not?" approach to this consumer Agency, I put together a list of 
brief questions which I thought those Members of Congress who have 
voted against the consumer agency in the past might wish to answer 
in order to clarify their thinking. 

These brief questions are as follows, namely, to keep in mind that 
these questions are directed at Members of Congress who have voted 
against the Agency such as Senator Allen who has led the filibuster 
against this bill for so many years. 

Question No. I-What has Congress done for consumers in the 
period racked by rising prices, bus.:ness-dominated Government and 
widespread disclosures of corporate and Government violations? 

Question No.2-How can a Member of Congress vote against a 
modest consumer agency and yet support or condone billions of dol
lars of taxpayer funds to promote and subsidize many business in
terests. 

Examples here are the Maritime Administration, the Department 
of Commerce, the Department of Agriculture, and other agencies 
and departments who spend a total 9f many billions of dollars annually 
promoting and advancing the interests of specific business and industri
al companies. 

Question No. 3-Why is it fair to approve large subsidy and advoca
cy activities on behalf of corporate interests by such departments 
as Commerce, the Maritime Administration, Interior, while denying 
millions of consumers in this, country, young and old, just the right 
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to advocacy at less than 10 cents per consumer per year in Washing
ton. 

Question No.4-Does not Congress need a Consumer Advocacy 
Agency to balance the adversary process before Federal regulatory 
agencies who make quasi-judicial deCisions affecting the health, safety, 
and economic well-being of millions of Americans. This is inescapably 
an adversary system that we have in the Federal executive branch. 
Not only do corporations have their trade associations and law firms 
to represent themselves under ded.lOr,.tible expenses, but inside Govern
ment these' corporations have ~t" > own agencies and departments 
with billions of dollars and amp\.,...-oudgets and ample resources and c 

staff to advocate their interests, .!. 
I would like to just bring to your attention a recent illustration 

of that where the Commerce Department intervened on behalf of 
the Borden Co. in a Federal Tr~tle Commission case which would 
require Borden to license other companies to make and sell Borden's 
ReaLemon under the ReaLemon name. The Commerce Department . 
intervened cross-laterally to another agency to represent what it be
lieves to be the propei' course of action. 

Chairman RIBICOFF. What year was that? 
Mr. NADER. This year. The cite on that, Senator, is the Wall Street 

Journal, March 21, 1977. :!:" 
And by doing this the Commerce Department in fact reflected 

a widespread policy in the executive branch to assure that the business 
interest was developed and considered by the Federal Trade Cpmmis
sion. Of course, most of the Government ag20cies and departments 
who Subsidize oradvbcate business interests, do so directly. That 
is their mission like the Department of Commerce. 

Question No.5-Is there not needed a nonregulatory consumer 
agency to advise' Congress about what really is going on in these 
regulatory institutions and to work for deregulation where it benefits 
consumers? 

I might add here that President Carter has added another reason 
foil' the Consumer Protection Agency when he stated on several occa
sions that he wants such an agency as an advisor to him. 

Chairman RIBICOFF. Let me ask you-how do you answer the critics 
of Congress who ask-is not it the' job of Congress to oversee the 
regUlatory agency so thaHhere will not be these abuses. 
, Mr. NADER. There certainly is a general oversight obligation upon 

Congress, but Congress cannot ~ngage in the day-to-day review and 
challenge of procedures and substantive decisions that the Consumer 
Protection Agency can engage in, all the way to judicial review. 

Furthermore, in advancing the congressional oversight the COnsumer 
agency would be an important factor in inforlT!ing Congress of wbat 
is going on. For example, an abuse will gevelop in the Interstate 
Commerce Commission, illustratively, where the holders of certificates 
for truck routes are trading i~ these certificates and SeIling them 
to other companies who buy them from the hol~er of Jhe' certificate. 
Now that has been going on for years. If you had a consuiiler agency, 
the Congress might have been more cohetently informed of this prac
tice than having to wait until some 'reportet for a newspaper dug 
it up o~ until some other sort of indeterminate process revealed these 
conditions'. .~ 
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Also, the President does not have anyone to teU him in detail 
what is going on in these 'regulatory agencies~ These agencies;' do 
not ,like to reveal their weaknesses, anq again ,President C,arter iihas 
recognized this in saying that he wants this agency to be his eyes 
and :ears as to what is going on il'1 regulatory government jn Washing-
ten. ,,'" " " 

Question No. 6-=Is:"not there a need for a consumer agency to 
push for fairer proce9ures that would permit participation before these" 
departments and agencies by citizens and, ,civic groups aU around 
the country who are now shut oat of this part of their Government 
because of the ex:penseand other unjust procedural obstacle!!? 

, I think it is very underemphasized in the, supportive testimony to 
,"- this legislation, Senator, Ribicoff, that this llgency would also be' trying 

~o~jmprove, the procedures, to impreve the streamIiningof these agen
ciel) and depal'tments and to make sure that complexity per se is 

"not tolerated. The kind of complexity that only provides .,a larger 
market for corporate law firms here in Washington-~pot the kind 
of complexity that is designed to reflect equity,and the Agency would 
!'e ~:mover for. I?rocedural fairness' and openness and accessibi~ity 
by-citizens,·and CiVIC groupsal~oyer the ccUtiti'y:~'c ~'~- - -,- - , ----

Question No.7-Are you not interested in the ways in which the 
Gonsum~,r agency is equipped to help small businesses and farmers 
as, consumers of products and services in the course of doing business? 

Past hearings on this legislation have shown repeatedly how small 
businesses are harmed by deceptive practices on the part of large '" 
businesses--, 

ChaiJ;man RIBICOFF. Let me ask you-our witness this morning fro,PI 
the National Federation of Indepet;tdent, Business made, a ,point that 
he ,thought that the Small Business Administration should have "the 
same rights of the consumer advocate to intervene in regulatory agen
cieson b~half of smallbu!?inesg.; Would you want to comment on 
that? 

Mr. NADER.. Yes.' 
The Small Busine§s Ad91intstration has the right now? to extend 

commentary to other agencies and departments considering matters 
that affect smaUl;lusinesses. 
'Chairman RIBICOFF .. But they have failed to do 5,97,1) , 

Mr. NADER. They h~we failec;l to do SQ. They r~a'lIy/~re very ineffec-' 
tive advocates of,small business; and they ,"eec;l to"h~ve even as!ronger 
congre&sionakmandate,to do what you just describec;l. I would certainly; .. 
favor that. ,,' " " ,,', ' , '," , ", i, , " ~_, 

~,~==."c;hartitia1f~RIBICOFF.D'o you-see-anytllinginconslStenTiri-'highllgfiting~~~-~~-
jB something in thiS, bilt calHng attention~p the fact that' tl:\j:~ Small 
'Jl , Busin,es$ Ad~inistrati9n does have' the right to ',come ,in. arto. make 

its position knownbefQre regulatory agejicieson ,behalf of small busi~ 
ness? Do you See anything ,illconsistellt in that? "'.:: " ' 

'Mr. NADER. No" Idonot., Obviously, ,)He _can all think of examples" 
wbere, small .busine~'S ,deceptive practices wguld have to be subject 
to the Jdnd of intervention by a consumer agency, but in_m~ny cases 
the name of the game, is big businesl), predatory activities on small, 

o business_ in _ the antitrust cQntext, in the de~eptive practice context; 
et cetera, which, would invite the challenge of the Ct;msumerAdvoc:f1cy 
Agency. 
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For instance,. Senator, the Treasury Department:' issues 'tax' rulings 
at times that benefit big businesses at the expense of small businesses, 
and the SBA 'has not been very active in even rcviewingthose kinds 
of proposals. So anything that can reflect and enhance support for 
a small business' interest as they compete for justice in Washington 
with their larger busin~ss brethren would be advis~ble. 
, As I waS mentioning-are you not interested in ways in whic"l;1 
the consumer agency is equipped to help small businessmen and farin· 
erS as consumers of productS anti services in the course ofdofug 
bUsiness? ,/~ , -

An earlier draft of tbis legislation, largely through the efforts: of 
Senator Dole. {lut a larger emphasis on farmers as consumers, and 
members of the committee went along with it. 1 think that ought 
to be emphasized because there has been a tendency to try to {lit 
the farmer against the consumer in this kind of legislati,on when ,for 
the most pint this is. simply not the' case, The' farmers consume fertil-

, izer, farm equipment, iriterest ratl'rs, insurance, pesticides~ all bfWhich 
relate to some form of Government _ regUlatory activity whic~ tlte 
consumer advocate would be involved in,-and of course anything . 
that. he!ps_~lw,. gQnSJ~m~b=p't'l'c~se~in,;.J:hese~areas.=is~~lik~-lY"'''tp= l1elp~thec'~='~"='; 

=farmer'peise'asconsumers ot'the same products. '. ..' . 
Question,:J'l6. 8'-00 you'intend lavote" against all future special 

interest business subsidies and promotional activities renewed or in
itjated that build up the Government at the taxpayer expense if you 
vote ~g~insty ~the conSumer bill? ,. """. .. ~i 

ThIS IS deSIgned to reveal thelOconslstency between. fol' example, 
some Members of Congress who. vote for tobacco subsidy, or who" 
vote for the' cotton promotional organization, or who vote. fot other 
promotional actJyities' for· special 'in!lerests, . and' then. turn aTo\l~~ and 
su~denly become very economy minded and:\')$ay we tarin.ot I'afford 
this 10 "cents .per COnSUJIierper year consumer advocacy bill. -" 

I might add that the Department of' Health,%ducation, and Welfare 
now spends. aboutS13-$14 million an hO\lt"'on the average' of 24 
hours a day, theP¢ntagon is not fat' behind, and I thblk that places 
in clear relief just what a remarkable innovation thisbiIl 'is!' Because 
whileits honzonslire extraordinarily significant,' its budget isextraor'-
dinarily small.' 

C5:haitman RiBlCOFF, L~t me ask'youe-in this proposal. the Presid9P-t 
has iii' certain amount of tbnetocome'· with sJ,lgges\,iorlfl to fold-hi' 

.. 11 other consumer related activities into this. particular agency. 
ff ,; Do youvhave any'thoughts where elsefn the Govef:nm~nt you .can 

.. _ 'u' .. ,. ~=_.iiJlJ:l&.Qns:um~r~"tivities~that-.()ught~t0*he=par~oAAe:M---:- .• ~", 
-,~,-- ~ -Mr; NADER;.1 wouldseparateoul the advocacy aotivities of ,theSe 

.... , consumer offices and 'meld them into ACA. However, I":'think tha't 

o 

l" 

" " eyery department\vould benefit from' aSlJuill coosu;"er office, to ,han~ 
dlecoosumef complaints and to advise on nona:d\TQcac~i consumer 
activities, such .as citizen· participation' rules.ih· the' department. ' 

Chairman RnucoFF; 'Would you". eliminat~. compl~tel~ ·President 
Ford's arrangement in which, every department had;!a $o .. c-alleu', coh;' 
sumeradvocate?""·· ,- 0'" 

Mr. NADER. WeU; in terms 'of. advocacy, ye~. I thipk the advocacy 
functions are best handled by th~ 'Cotlsumer ~dvocacy Agehcy: :r.q~t 
only .in terms, .ot orgahi,:r,ational theor:y. but also because it islt"0t" 
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likely that an advocacy unit inside a department is going to have 
the elbow room as well as the authority to challenge a departamental 
policy. However, there~oes~,seem to be SOlne interesting, useful ex
perience building up in some of these consumer offices, such.as ~UD, 
dealing with consumer complaints and citizen participatiqn factors 
that is meritorious. I think the total budget, Senator Ribicoff, of all 
of these inhouse consumer offices is less than $5 million. So that 
the recommendation is more. of one en how to further' the interests 
of consumers rather than any possible saving in the budget. 
,Chairman RIBICOFF. I think the staff ought to request from all the 

dbp,~rtments that have a consumer function within the department. 
their exi/erienceand a report of what their accomplishments' have 
been during the past year. I think it would be very interesting to 
see what the results of their activities have been, whether it il; justified. 
I think V;'e have an interesting point that Mr. Nader makes here, 
and I am,curious as to what they have achieved and accomplished. 

Mr. NADER; That is an excellent idea. 'there has not been much 
review of what is going on there, except whatl' we in the course 
of our daily activities come across. t, 

. Chairman RIBICOFF. And yOU say from your experience, HUD has 
done a good job? 

Mr. NADER. Well, I can see a u!!eful role and I can see some 
activity that, given its'tiny staff, is helpful. 

I would, just like to go through a number of points relating to 
the bill itself, S. 1262.. \~, 

First I would hope that you retain the interrogatqfy section without 
requiring interrogatories to be cleared by the Office of Management 
and Budget. I do not know how that White House position emerged 
suddenly, but I do not think the OMB is the kind of review agency 
that would enhance the consumer protection envisioned in this legisla
tion. The history of OMB in approving questionnaires by other 
Government agencies has not been detached and objective.' It has 
been heavily delegated in the past to advisory committees made up 
of the very business and industry people who are going to receive "' 
the qUestionnaires in the first place. This in one reason why Congress 
recently has been\~rnore prone to turn to the GAO for such clearance 
as is the case in ~he Federal Trade Commission amendments. I would 
hope that the Consumer ~~\dvocapy Agency be given the' freedom 

, from that kind of OMB constraint. ' 
Next, the question .on State and local proceedings. I understand 

that the bill permits a response to inquiries for information by State 
"and local agencies but prohibits the Consumer Protection Agency 
from participating in Stat~and local proceedinga. I think that should 
bee:lo()sened, a bit. I thin" that if a State insurance commission or 
if a' State consumer agency would request the formal participation 
of the Consumer Protection Agency in Washington, that the Agency 
here should be permitted to participate. . , 

Chairman. RlBlcOFP. Do You not think that would sort of innundate 
,;the ACA because,ftwould find a tendency of State. ,government to 
,pass the buck to the Federal Government in some of its rroblems. 
So you would have 50 States covering up by saying we hMe asked 
the Federal Government to come in and do it. They are too busy, 
they cannot, ~o nothing happens ort the State level. 
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--- -==-EventualjY'~YOlr -are=goiolr'to-h=av(f'-to' have" some~arrangcw.ents=m:-: -... ~ 
the ~tates with Federal support-I am concerned from my own State's" 

.. experienc~, !~t ~his would in the long run hurt "the ACA 'at this 
stage-of its: developfuenC~;' - .. =,.,.~.<. c·':---· .," •...•. """" .•• -;,.'.. ".,.,;"."' ...•. o---.• --~ . 

Mr. NADER. Of course, th~,( ACA still cari say no, that.well)we'· 
would radier submit a statement rather than put this-,-

Chairman RIBICOFF. Well, you know, once you, do that it gives 
a State official an opportunity to pass the buck, rather than undertaJse 
its own responsibility on the State level. That concerns me. . 

Mr. NADER •. Well, we;!tlertainly do not" want them to be able to 
pass the buck. . 

The next point I would like to make is that I would hope the 
broadcast license renewal proceedings would not· be 'exempted as . they 
are in section 16A from the purview of the consumer advocate agency. 
That exemption has been in prior Senate bills. It usuaUyhas beeh 
initiated by members of ,the Senate Commerce Committee, but· it. 

·hasnotbeen.itl.Hollse~bill.s~ .Lp.~.I1ot sce any re§1son whatsoever, 
why broadcast renewal Ijcensing slioUI(rbtf~xertipte(}=Gther.than.tlte 
sneer power of'the television huiustry. 

''l'herewas a.n __ ql:Jj~ction by.E!lthe,,-Peterson yesterday aboUt putting 
in=the . annuaCreport -·ofdle '. ~gency to Congress a general estimate 
,of resource requirements. There was a feeling that this would bypass 
the .c. qpventional budgetary proce.sses; and I would disagree with that .. 
I think Congress has the right to ask an agency any questions it 
wants to have answered in its animal report, and I cannot see "that 
ibis is going to bypass the normal budgetary? processes. . 

The judicial reveiw part of the legislation is well:.treated by the 
nex.t witne.ss from the American Bar Association, particUlarly in tbe 
area where it would be considered cumbersome if th~ Agency jnter,:.,. 
vened in the court proceedings without having prior intervened in 
the administrative proceedings to have the judge determine that this 
was in the interest of advancing consumer justice. I believe his remarks 
are w(!U taken. ' 

"On the authorization, Senator Ribicoff, I have always thought it 
was a, good idea to specifically authorize funds rather than leave 
that up to the Appropriations Comnlittee. and it probably is good 
to have. the Agency start with a" $15. mill;Qn<budget going up "in 
a3~year period to $25 million, just to prove how 'much can' be 
done with that amount. of money~ I ·think the Governnientis starving 
for proof that you can get ni<?,rG' froni less. And while it is tempting 
to Say how nice it would be 'for the Agency to have a $50 million 

(2 budget given aU the past work it has. to make up for ilb these. exe.cutive 
branch agencies, I think it would be a real salutory experiment to 
See how the Agency works in the first 2 or 3 .years on that level. 
o.fbudget. 

However~ the budget may produce a lot· in terms· of advocacy' but 
it is not going to be able to "support much surveying and te~~ing 
and other information colJection. activities that are in this bilt I thin'k. 
the committee should keep that in mind. That those functions tend 
Go be fairly expensive and they are not goin'g to be . performed 0 to 
any great degree under the strictures' of.the $1.5-$20-$25 miUion 

"", budget escalation over the next~3 years.''''"'''' . 
c' 
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We could use one of industry's arguments and say that inflation 
and pay increases have reduced that $15 million to about $11 million 
since that figure was first proposed by this committee about 5 years' 
or § years ago. But we will let that one pass. 

On the question ,of removal for cause, I approve the way it is 
drafted in this legislation as it has been in the past, but it is still 
a difficult questiol} nevertheless. 1f you have a good consumer-oriented 
President you might say well, why not have the administrator of this 
Agency removeable at will. It makes him more accountable to the 
P(esident and it puts the· President more closely in touch with what 
the Agency is doing. But if you do not have a 'consumer-oriented 
President, it is quite necessary to have this level of insulation, similar 
in part to that which 'characterizes the Federal Trade Commission 
and other independent agencies. While the signs look pretty good 
for President Carter's proconsumer perfonnance, do you write a bill 
for the President who happens to be in office now,' or do you write 
it for the Agency in terms of safeguarding it against the kind of 
intrusion that might have been all too frequent under the ". Nixon
Ford years. Anyway, it is an interesting question with points that 
can be made ort both sides.' -

I would like to point out that this Agency will further the goal 
of regulatory reform which this committee has been studying for some 
time now. It will further the goal of abolishing some of the regulatory 
agencies or agency functions that are useless, other than to preserve 
monopolistic Or quasi-monopolistic rites for the regulated industry. 
It will advance the procedural justice characterizing these Government 
agencies and departments as well as the overriding substantive goals 
of safety,health, and economic justice for over 200 million American 
consumers. In so doing this legislation is part of an emerging and 
quite dramatic reevaluation of executive branch performance by the 
Congress~ I think in future years, political scientists and historians 
will be 'ible to recount a quite impressive pattern that was formed 
in the last few years of opening up government to citizens, reducing 
the economic barriers to participation, and .developing an internal 
counterveiling force on behalf of consumer justice in the form of 
this Ag~hcy for Consumer Advocacy: .. . 

r have noticed that there are different phrases to describe this 
Agency. I still prefer the old phrase which is in the official pream
ble~the Consumer Protection Agency that will come from that act. 

Over in the other body, Senator Ribicoff, there are provisions in 
the House bm which I would hope that the Senate would stand firm 
against, namely some of the agricultural' exemptions that are listed, 
and I object to the termination date for this Agency of 1985. If 
people are going to go by the way of sunset legislation, there is 
a certain equity involved in doing it across the board rather than 
picking on the most vulnerable agency to be subjected to a sunset 
tJ::eatment, because it does not have an organized, well financed con
stituency the way the maritime interests have for the Maritime Ad
ministration to stand up against the struggle that would inevitably 
be forthcoming in 1985. 

I will submit the remainder of my materials for the record with 
your permission." 1'_ 

Chairman RIBICOFF. The remaining material will be submitted and 
. become part of the record. 

fI' 
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S~nator JAVITS. Mr. Chairman, I have already submitted my opening 
statement for the record. I hewe to run away to. the Labor Committee 
which is marking up a bill. 

I want to thank Mr. Nader for his testimony. We do not always 
agr~e but he is always very stimulating, and I like to have him on 
my side. ., \' ' 

Chairman RIBICOFF. All I can' say is that the one pti,vilege that 
the chairman never has is to run away. [Laughter.] 

lam stuck. 
SenatorJAvlTs. Well I will save you. 
Chairman 'RIBIC;:OFF. Well, if you had joined the Democratic cause, 

you would have been the chairman a long time ago. [Laughter.) 
Senator JAVITS. That happens to be too true. (Laughter.) 
Chairman RIBICOFF. Well, Mr. Nader, you: have taken a (Ql of time. ' 

We welcome you and we have orie more witness. I wilC haVe to 
break ·off at 5 minutes to 12 0 'clock; so I hope between' yeu and 
the next witness you will keep that in mind. 

1vtr~ NADER. I weuld,like to leave just one suggestion for ind~stry 
and commerce who are opposing ,the bin-:-j;b~t tlli!! y~ar the,i.r opPo.si
tion is wasted time. They are better off allocating their resources 
to other legislation that is now before the Congress. 

Chairman RlBICOFF. Well, I am not talking for industry, but th~re 
is 'no such thing as wasted time. I do be1i~ve in the democratic 
process that everyone should have the right to make their point of 
view known. You have b~en with, this for 8 years now and it has 
not been wasted time. Industry has been successful for 8 years. 

Mr. NADER. Of course, nobody IS suggesting that they should not 
pres~nt their viewpoints, but we foresee another massive round of 
telegrams out' to the field and a lot of energy which could be better 
spent for these. trade associations in other areas of government. When 
I say wasted time, I say wasted time from their own standards of 
improving eft}Ciency and justice in gov:ernment. They could for exam
pIe spend some more or their time on what the $250 "billio.ll' of 
loan guarantee authority that is now outsta,nding in the Treasury De
partmeJ)t,o.fwhat,that loan guarantee a\1thority is doing to efficiency 
and innovation in industry.o 

I always think that consumer advocates have the iightto give 
gratuitous advice to industry and cQmmerce. [Laughter.] .' 

Chairman RIB.COFt': The trouble is Mr. Nader, a lot of America 
feels that you are too free with gratuitous advice. 

Mr. NADER. I will let that one pass. 
Senator JAVITS. Now you are getting to. be areal smart politician. 

[Laughter.) , 
Mr. NADER. This is like a reunion, Senator Javits. This is the eighth 

year on this. We .are all entitled to a few liberties. 
Chairman RIBlcoFF,We do thank you, Mr; Nader. , 
I do believe that this"is the year wh~re this legislation will become 

law. The. added ingredient is the fact that we do have it President 
of the United States" who is.t'or it and the fact that the' legi~lation 
does ·not face veto would indicate that that would be a substantial~ 

chttnge . " . 
Thank you very much, Mr. Nader. 
Mr. NADER. Thank you, Mr.Chairman. 

I 
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[Additional informa~ion submitted by Mr. Nader follows:] 

NATIONAL COMMISSION ON REGULATORY REFORM 

John N. Nassikas, Chairman, Federal Power Commission 
"Among Congress' chief concerns was ~he provision of meaningful protection of 

the interests of the ultimate consumer. The predominant concern of~the Federal Power 
ICommission, therefore, is the protection of the consumer interest in reliable electric 
and gas service at a reasonable price. 

"In accordance with the mandate of Congress, the Supreme Court has repeatedly 
stated that the Commission is, under a legal obligation to protect consumers, Federal 
Power Commission v. Hope Natural Gas Co., 320 U.S. 591, at 610 (1944); Federal 
Pqwer Commis$ion v. Tenne$~ee G(!$ CQ" 371 1l.S. 145, at 154 (1962); and see Louisville 
Gas & Electric Co. v. Federal Power Commission, 129 F. 2d 126, at 133 (6th Cir. 
1,942), cert. denied, 318 U.S. 761. Thus, in Pennsylvania Water & Power Co. v. Federal 
Power Commission, 343 U.S. 414, at 418 (1952), the Court said: 

A major purpose of the whole Act is to protect power consumers against exces
sive prices. . .. 

"In Federal Power Commission v. Louisiana Power & Light Co., 406 U.S. 621, 631, 
640-641 (1972) the Court observed: 

The Natural Gis Act of 1938 granted FPC broad powers 'to protect consumers 
against,exploitation at the hands of natural gas companies.' Federal Power Commis
sion v. Hope Natural Gas Co., 320 U.S. 591, 610 (1944). * * * CongreSs created 

,'~~ ~Q!J)Brehensive . and, ~ffectiye ~ I;egulatoryscheme,' Panharidle Eastern. Pipeline Co. 
v. Public Service Commission, 332 U 332 U.S. 50:7, 520 (1947), to 'afford con
sumers a complete, permanent and effective bond of protection . . .' Atlantic Refin
ing Co. v. Public Service Commission, 360 U.S. 378,388 (1959). 

and again in Federal POWer Commission v. Transcontinental Gas Pipe Line Corp., 365 
U,S. I, at 19 (1961); 

'When Congress ena,cted the Natural Gas Act, it was motivated by a desire 
"to pr<;ltect consumers against the ,exploitation at the hands of natural gas companies." , 
Sunray Mid-Contjpent Oil Co. v. Federal Power Commission, 364 U.S. 137, 147 
(1960). 

In Gainsville Utilities Dept. v. Florida Power Corp., 402 U.S. 515, at 529 (1971) 
the Court recognized that the Commission is /charged I:>oth with assuring industry 
a fair return and with"assuring the public reliable and efficient service, at a, reasonable 
price," ' 

" ... Over the years, the staff of the 'Federal Power Commission has \lccepted 
.its legal obligation to provide forthright presentation and advocacy of the cbnsumer 
viewpoint before the Commission and the Courts. In addition to 'staff reprelrentation 
and consu:ner participation directly or through consumer associations, the consumer 
interest is also effectively represented by gas distributors t, state commissions 2, environ-' 
mental organizations in manYdnstances, and others who participate regularly as parties 
or intervenors in Commission proceedings. In performing its quasi-judicial function 
of determining and protecting the public interest, the Commission has been aided 
by vigorous and effective advocacy ,of various facets of the consumer interest. . 

"Since the Commission is diligently protecting the consUmer interest, we do, not 
recognize the need of consumers for an organization at the Federal level with primary 
responsibility for protection of consumer interests insofar as our responsibilities are 
concerned. 

Richard -Wiiey, "-Chairman, -Federai Commun;cal;ons"=COmmlfsili,fo..--o..---=--=-=-=-"-=-- ,--

"As the members of this Committee may be aware, in the past several years the 
FCC has attempted to introduce the stimulus of competition into certain traditionally 

lin Southern Louisiana Area Rate Cases (Austral Oil Co: v. Federal POWer Commission) 428 F. 2d 
407 (5th Cir. 1970) the Court affirmatively r~cognized the representation of consumer interests by 
natural gas distributors. (p. 434 n. 86). In its opinion (p. 435) the Court stated: "The FPC must eval
uate each rate set against policies as broad as the Natura\' Gas Act itself. Colorado Interstate Gas Co. 
v. F~der(J1 Power Commission, 324 U.S. 581, 605, 65 S.Ct. 829, 840, 89 L. Ed· 1206. The purposes of 
the Act encompass not only reasonably low rates but maintenance of adequate service for the con
sumer, and the latter objective is the reason for the Hope requirement that rates must be 'sufficient to 
llssure confidence in the financial integrity of the enterprise, so as to maintain its credit and to attra.;t 
capital.' • • . Indeed. the Hope case interprets the policy of the Act as involving both consumer in
terests and the autonomous interests of the industry. The Commission must 'balance . . . the in
vestor and consumer interests.' 320 U.S. at 603, 64 S.Ct. at 288." 

'</d. at414 n.3." (Nassikas testimony pp. 15-18). 
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monopolistic or oli.sopoIistic ~lecommunicatiQns services. We have done so not for 
the sake of competition per se, but in recognition of out statutory mandate to regulate 
in the public interest. Obviously, there are situations in which. competition is not 
always appropriate or advisable (for example, we long ago: rejected the notion of 
having two telep'hone poles in every backyard). However, we belteve that where com
petition is feasible-that is, where no undue technical or economic harm to basic 
services would be caused by its introduction-the public is likely to benefit from 
lower rates, improved service and more rapid innovation, as well as greater. i:1iversity 
of choice. (p. 7) 

"One further administrativbe step which we have taken to improve our ultimate 
regulatory product is the holding of regional meetings througbout the country between 
the Commissioners and key staff, tbe members of industries we regulate, and,tlif;'. 
public at large. We believe that these meetings lU'1l cQnducive to the m\ltual exch3nge 
of ideas, comments, and criticism which is essential to ensure regulation respon~ive 
to the changing needs and perceptions of the public interest. (p. II) 1. 

"As the FCC "celebrates its 40th anniversary, we believe that the Purposes, 'and 
objectives of the Communications Act of 1934 remain valid and necessary and that" 
its general mandate to the Commission continues to serve as a viable melll)s of ensuring 
that the public interest will be effectuated by the communications media." (p. 12) 

Ray parrett, Jr., Clroirm<ln, .S'I'cHrities and Exchange Commission 
"This agency is necessarily quite proud of the fine reputation it has earned over 

fue y~at:!!. (R, 7) 

* * * * 
"We are not aware, generally; of any significant deficiencieil within our regulatory 

processes which tend to lessen competition, adversely affect the public and regulated 
companies, or contribute to inflation. (p. 8) 

* * * * * * * i\ 

"Of course, this Commission's specific'mandate is to uphold, the interests of investors, 
To that end, private interests cannot be exalted over the public interest. And the 
pOlicies of . any Administration cannot be given full effeCt if inconsistent \~th Otl"';"~ 
statutory mandate. (p. t4") . <.r '-'-' 

* * * * * 
. "Questio~ five, pose~ ~li:, t~e Committee, su~~sts' that increased public intervention 
111 agency proceedmgs \S lieslrable. The Commission (SEC) does not cpmpletely agree 
with this proposition. While, as a general matter, 'we encourage public or consumer 
representatives to express theJr '.?ews in proceedings before the Commission, absolute 
rights. of intervention may be used, .in adeleteriou~ manner, merely to delay the 
timely completion of the pfuCeeaing. In oroer to avoid such undesirable reSUlts, ·this 
Commission generally limits intervention by private . parties in its adjudicatory 
proceedings to persons who are able to demonstrate that their. participation ,as parties. 
with all the rights attendant thereto, \\IiIU~. ~n~ t!!e P-I!!!!!~.i~teres!dl.~d=tltat .!imjt!'ld, 

= 1Jarticipation~througn=ieave-to'blnlearQ; woUld' no["oo adequate to~ protect their in-
tetests.. . . ., 

''In'this connection, [should like to refer, for a moment, to S. 770 (in 1974). 
"S. 770 would E:stablish a separate independent agency, the Office of Consumers' 

Counsel for Regulated Services (the "Counsel"), which, inter alia, would be authorized 
to represen~ the interests of conSUmers of regulated COmpanies before state. artd federal 
agencies, and in the courts. In addition, the bill would provide for improved methods 
of obtaining and disseminating inform~tiQn.·,with respect· to the operations ·of certain 
regu1att8\companies to consumers, through the. Counsel. Withre$pect t<l companies 
under the jurisdiction of the Securities and Exchange Commission, however, the bill 
would apply only to those regulated under the Public Utility Holding Company Act 
of 1935. (p. 20) 

o 
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'" '" '" 
"But, while we would welcome participation by the Counsel in Holding Company 

proceedings in most instances, we are troubled by .the provisions of S. 770. which 
apparently would give the, C-Ounsel an absoJute nght to intervene or to appear as 
a party in all such proceedings, and to initiate proceec;lings. , 

"In certain types of proceedings under the Holding Company Act, particularly those 
involving financing applications by regislered holding companies, the delays likely to 
result from intervention as a matter of right by a third party could caUse the subject 
matter of the proceedings to become moot. In such proceedings, time is of the essence. 
(p.22) 

* * * * '" * 

"Also troublesome 'is that portion of the bill which would give the Counsel the 
power to initiate proceedings generally under the Holding Company Act and to initiate 
appeals from such procel,ldings. We strongly object to vesting such broad'and undefined 
authority in any person Or entity. Under the Holding Company Act, such poWer may 
enable the Counsel, for example, to initiate a proceeding designed to require a regulated 
company to divest itself of certain holdings; to deny or revoke an exemptiolJ, previously 
granted; or to require a regulated company to restructure its capitalization. ' 

"Whether to initiate such proceedings, we believe, should be exclusively within the 
discretion of the Commission. We believe that it is unnecessarily duplicative and an 
inefficient employment of government resources to empower another agency to dQ 
precisely what our mandate under the Holding Company Act caUs on us to do~protect 
investors and consumers. In this context, we would not object to empowering the 
Counsel to petition the Commission to institute proceedings subject, of course, to 
OUr discretion whether such a proceeding would be necess~ or appropriate. (p. 23) 

'" * '" * '" '" 
"Aside from the specific objections noted above concerning the Counsel's right to 

intervene in or to initiate any Holding Company Act proceeding or appeal relating 
thereto, I should Jike also to express my doubts as to the feasibility of expecting 
one man or one entity to represent effectively all consumers' interests. As a general 
matter, consumers are not a unified group of which all members have the same in
terest. .. (p. 24) 

Richard O. Simpson, Chairman, Consumer Product Safety Commission 
I'May I at the outset state that I believe that such a regulatory review ,is not only 

warranted, but also highly desirable, for I believe that the people of this country 
are well served· by the process of continuous examination of and awareness of Federal 
services and Federal activities. ' " , 

"I am pleased because, in addition to the 'independent regulatory commissions' which 
have been clearly established and defined as such, 'there also exist within the broad 
framework of our· Executive Branch, other 'regulator'-agencies, councils, boards, ad
ministrations, commissions, etc., that are found in cabinet level departinents, All such 
governmental regulators should be reviewed so that their actions can be assessed; 

J, their independence established if necel!s1l.ryj~ !!!1d .~~ importantly, .. the chain_ .. ofac~_ . 
.. ~=~ .. 'C'tfunta6miYBe 'c[eliriytfif(\erst&JdanClY6I1bwea:~~' .. --,~.. , .. 

"A review' of the economics of regulatory actions is, I believe, a valid~and 
needed-onei 1 suggest that such a study should, however, encompass the cost and 
benefits of regulatory actions, that ,is, the rneasllrementof the positive effects of regula-
tion, as well as the assessment of the negative impact. ' 

"The Consumer PrOduct Safety CommiSsion is, as ~you-"know, the newest of the 
regUlatory commissions in Washington; oneo in which the Chainnan has been given 
a mandate which one member of Congress has 'described as 'more power than a 
good man should want or a bad hlan should have.' I agree. And because I agree, 
and I see that there are possibilities fot abuse, for circumvention of the public interest, 
and for self-aggrandizement; I doubly welcome this opportunity to come before you 
tQday. ,."\ 

"The Con~umer Product Safety Commission has jurisdiction, as you know, \l?ver 
more than 10,000 individual consumer products, and new products are entering 'i\1e 
marketplacl,l continuously. The Commission is required by statute to develop lind 
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promulgate, when warranted. either from its own initiative or in response to citizen 
petition, safety standards to guard against unreasonable risk of injury to the consumer. 

"In addition, the Consumer PrOduct Safefy Act mandates a 'blanket,' if you will, 
safety standard, contained in ~ection 15 of the statute. :To parap'hrase, Section .15 
says'~at no manufacturer shall manufacture a prOduct. whIch .contains a defect whIch 
creates a substantial prOduct hazard, Manufacturers (and distributol's and retailers and 
importers) are under legal.requirement to report to this CommiSsion,. under.p~nalty 0 

of law, when they have reaSon to believe that such a pt&iu-ct has beejjoeJifered into 
commerce that could create such a haZard. The Commission, further, has the authQrity, 
after following certain procedures, to order public notice and either repair, repurchase, 
or replacement of the offending prOduct, at no cost to the consumer. 

"At this point, the scope and authority of this Commission may appear to some 
to be overwhelming. It is.' And yet this is but a portion of the mandate and the 
authority vested in this Commission. Vigorous CcfiJgressionaloversight is necessary 
to ensure that such broad aUthority is properly used and not abused. ' 

"I believe the Conuuittee is aware of the 'openness' policy adopted-and, we believe, 
effectively implemented by"':':the Consumer Product Safety Commission. I am proud 
of the Commission for adopting such a direction, and lam especially pleased t~') 
report that we feel it is working. We know we are doing the public's business, .and 
the public has a right to know what we are doing, how we are conducting our affairs, 
and where we arl}, allocating our priorities. Openness can be an effective check against 
the extraordinary powers vested in regulatory agencies, for the continuous scrutiny 
of every facet of activity, b~ the public, by the Press, by the affected industries, 
by the Congress, and by other Federal agencies, leaves few if any areas unexplored 
and O~!1S to discussion. even the most minor activities.- .~," -. -," .-" .. ~ - ~o· 0 . --".--= .. '-.. ,-

"Clearly, in every agency, certain policies can-and in fact, must-be enunciated.o 
These are visible decisions, accompanied by public annOUncements .. Basic policy deci
sions, which are made by the Consumer Product Safety Commis$~on are generally 
proposed for public comment prior to final adoption, I am attaching copies of such 
published policies of the CPSC, e.g., the Public _ Meetings Policy; the Rreedomof 
Information Policy; Proposed Sampling Plan Use in Standards Policy; Staff Participation 
in Standards Development Policy; and various regulations implementing the authorities 
of the Act. 

Richard Simpson, CPSC chairman; BNA, Daily Report for Execi4tivesj November 22, 
1974; 

"Under questioning by Senator Lee Metcalf (D-Mont), CPSC Chairman Simpson 
went beyond support for a reform commission to recommend steps for insuring that 
the regulatory agencies operate as Congress intended~· 

"Simpson said that cQnducting all agency meetings and proceedings in public would 
guarantee that the regulators continually se,rved. the public interest. 'If secrecy is 
abolished, it will be difficult for private interests to twist the alms' of the regulatory 
commissions~ h'\l contended. Opening all of an agency's affairs to' I!ublic scrutin~ might 
preclude the need for a 'consumer counsel' or a consumer protection agency, SImpson 
added. 'Creating a consumer council or agency is an adm~~ion that the (regulatory) 
agencies are not doing their jobs,' he contended .. 

Simpson agreed with Metcalf's suggestion, that a portion of each agency's appropria
tions be allocated to pay the costs for public intetest representation at agency 
proceedings. He said CPSC' has paid travel and other expenses for lawyers representing 
public interest groups at Commission hearings," (p. A-4) 0 

==~= 

"Recently the Congress has seriOUsly .considered surrendering a latgeomeasure of 
its oversight of independent regulatory agencies to an administrator to be appointed 
by the Chief Executive: This was provided for in recent proposals for the establishment 
of a department;. office or ageny, oste,nsibly to ride herd on,. independent regulatory 
agencies in the interest of complaints from the public and particula.~Y from con$uipe'rs. 

"Quite frankly I feel r should sUt!:&est to you that in my ~ew, such l!fojX?sals, 
however well-intentioned, would resUlt in bad administration of the public's-business 
and operate against the public. intereSt. I say th~t not only because Congresl> would 
thereby be legislating for others to exercise a measure of oversight it Should exercise, 
but also because, on the basis of my . experience of approximately 40 years in this 
field of antitrust' and trade regulations activity, .1 am· convinced that. thus building 
a large federal bUreaucracy to oversee the operations of other federal agencies would 
b,ring the present slow operations of the. c~alled independe!:lt· regulatory agencies 
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to a virtual halt. For these reasons, ( urge that. the Congress dire.ct the National 
Commission on Regulatory Reform to study carefully, this aspect of the problem and 
to report with its recommendations to the Congress. Such report should detail how 
the provisions of ,So 707 (in 1974}-The Consumer Protection Agency Bill, as well 
as the provisions of S. 782 (in 1974}-The Antitrust Revision Bill would affect the 
opemtions of the· independent regulatory agencies and what impact they would have 
upolJ=the implementation of our national policy to promote free and fair r.:ompetition 
~nd to· enhance all aspects ".of the public interest. ( suggest that because both of 
ti\teac bills provide for private persons to illj~ct themselves as third parties in U.S. 
Government proceedings before regulatory agencies and the courts in cases arising 
under trade regulations and antitrust laws . 

. "The public interest encompasses the interest of consumers, but includes more. A 
melmber of the public is a consumer at the dinner table but he is a producer os 
a ,larmer, worker or businessman during the other hours of the day before dinner. 

~'The national policy for free and fair competition involves ·the concept of protecting 
a "member of the public in all aspects of his interests, including his interest as a 
cCinsumer. The independent regulatory agencies are obligated to serve that concept 
of our national policy. Hence, the National Commission on Regulatory Reform should 
c(msider the. entire problem relating to the independent regulatory agencies in all 
0,,' the aspec'ts involved. They should be considered and ar.;ted on as a whole, not 

, f~iagmented by fragment." (p. 8-9). 
il From A. Everette MacIntyre, former Federal Tmde Commission commissioner. 

Lewis A. Engman, Ch.airman, Federal Trade Commission 
"As you know, several bills and resolutions have already been introduced. We suspect 

that, we shall see a number of other bills proposed. When the rhetoric is stripped 
away, it seems to us that all these legislative proposals will really be aimed: at the 
same thing, namely,' a greater voice in the governmental process for those who are 
ultimately affected by its decisions and who are stuck with having to foot the bill. 

"There is a risk, however, that in attempting to reform the regulatory process With 
an eye toward providing a greater voice and lower costs for the consumer, we may 
end up knee-deep in new agencies and commissions, all more or less pointing in 
the same direction, all pouring over the same subject matter, all dedicated to the 
twin propositions that governmental fat can and ought to be trimmed and that the 
marketplace must be insulated against those who would abuse it for private gain." 
(p. 10) 

EXAMPLES OF THE NEED FOR A {::ONSUltlER PROTECTION AGENCY 

One area of agencies' decisionmaking where the consumer voice could be most <~ 
effective is that of health and safety. The foIlowing examples are cases where ACP 
intervention will mean greater agency and industry accountability for consumer health 
and safety. ' 

NURSING HOME FIRE HAZARDS 

About 7,000 skilled nursing homes receive federal. funds through Medicare and 
Medicaid, programs administered by the Department of Health, Educatioll and Welfare. 
HEW requires that nursing homes receiving such benefits "00· inspt\~ted to determine 
that they comply with federal requirements, including fire safety regulations. As part 

"of an., audit, the GAO accompanied HEW inspectors. to 32 nursing home.s that were 
exempted from water sprinkler requirements on the basis of their construction, in 
order to determine whether these homes were violating fire provisions or if they were 
properly classified as not requiring automatic sprinklers. Twenty-thre~ of the hom~s 
(72 percent) had one or more deficiencies, and nine (28 percent) should have been 
requIred to have sprinklers. Upon visiting 26 other homes granted special waivers 
from the sprinkler requirements, the GAO found that 22 of these homes did not 
satisfy all four factors established by HEW indicating that an equivalent level of safety 
has been achieved as would be provided by sprinklers. Finally, in late 1 ~73 HEW 
regional offices submitted data on 7,318 skilled nursing homes certified for participation 
in Medicare and/or Medicaid. Over 4,300 of these homes had deficiencies. " 

This data indicates that HEW has been lax in administering and enforcing Federal" 
fire safety requirements and monitoring state inspection and certification activities. 
Furthermore, GAO found that HEW ~nd the States have not taken' sufficient action 
to force nursing home administratorS to correct fire safety and other deficiencies. ' 

.. 
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Because the GAO has no authority to challenge an agency's failure to enforce 
its own laws, a consumer advocate is needed to see that positive corrective steps 
are taken when such a situation is uncovered. 0' 

EXPLODING WHEELS 

In 1968 the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration (NHTSA) held meetings 
with General Motors to investigate alleged defects in certain % ton, 1960-65 model 
trucks with wheels which unexpectedly exploded while in use. When GM and the 
agency agreed that the only wheels which were defective were those on twcks with 
camper bodies (50,000 trucks, !lot the entire 200,000 in question, the Center for 
Auto Safety In Washinston filed suit (1970). The judge in the Kelsey-Hayes/GM case ';;: 
ruled that this distinction could not be made and that the investigation had to be 
reopened to consider the hazards of the remaining 150,000 trucks. A mere two months 
later, all 200,000 trucks were found to be defective. Nevertheless, notice to the owners 
didn't go out until 1974 when court battles were finally resolved. And, until the 
NHTSA makes a formal finding if a defect (or no defect), its investigations are not 
open to the public, the party with the greatest stake in the outcome, The ACP could, 
however, represent consumers right from the start. 

CHILDREN'S ASPIRIN 

Tha FDA has frequently failed to regulate products unless they have been .. proven 
to cause human deaths, and has relied instead upon voluntary compliance from the 
industry it is charged to oversee. For example, the aspirin order of February 16, 
1972 was the first regulation under the Poison P!evcIltiOtl.Packaging Act ofJ910,~._c .. 
an act which aliows FDAtopiescribe' childproof safety packaging for hazardous 
household substances. The regulation took over two years to promulgate and the FDA 
took the unprecedented step of soliciting exemption petitions from manufacturers. 
Thereafter, FDA granted permission for non-compliance for three categories of aspirin 
products and extended the deadline for compliance by other categories until July 
I, 1973. According to FDA figures, approximat>~ly 800 children un\~er five years of 
age were suffering accidental poisoning eachmoiith and 90 pel'(:ent 01' these accidents 
would be prevented by special packaging. During the delay, over 25,000 aspirin 
poisonings could have been avoid~. 

DRUG DEVIATIONS 

In 1973 the GAO found, upon reviewing the inspection ,records of 73 drug producers, 
that 48 percent of the producers critically deviated froJll good manufacturing practices 
on successive inspections. A critical deviation is one which creates the greatest proba-

" bility of the manufacture of adulterated products, The investigation by GA,P found 
that FDA has taken relatively 'few legal actions to, ensure good manufacturing practices. 
During fiscal year 1971, FDA made a total of 7124 inspections of drug producers, 
4000 of which were follow-ups where deviations from good m!lJlufacturing practices 
had been reported previously. Of these followup inspections, 2 I 74 showed that produ
cers still were not complying with good manufacturing practice. GAO suggests that 
producers chronically deviating from good manufacturing prac.fices do ·not have suffi
cient incentive to correct their practices because FDA has not used available legal 
enforcement measures. Such cases of non-enforcement of federal law persist because 
the userS of these products have no representative like an ACP pressing the FDA 
to fulfill its responsibilities. 

COCKROACHES, FLIES, AND RODENTS . 

The GAO in 1972 foiJnd tHat about 40 percent of food manufacturing plan~ which 
are regulated by the FDA under the Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act, were operating 
under conditions that were unsani~ry or worse. The report documented such conditions 
as cockroaches and other insects', rodent excreta, and non-edible materials in and 
around products and equipment; improper use of pesticides in close proximity to 
food-processing areas; use of unsanitary equipment. The GAO report, together with 
FDA's own inspecting records showing a general decline in food industry sanitation 
practices, indicates that the Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act has beel) flagrantly disqbeyed. 
The need fot" a consumer advocate is eS~cially clear when revolting situations like 
this are exposed "'and little is done about them. The ACP CQuid have carefully kept 
track of Agriculture's and FDA's responses to the GAO reports and insisted that 
necessary measures Were undertaken to clean up the meat and food processing pli;Ults. 

I) 
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THE PEADL Y CARGO DOOR 

On March :3, 1974, an airline crash occurred just after a McDonnell-Douglas DC-to 
took off from a Paris airport. ~Il 346 persons aboard were killed because of negligent 
regulatory action by CAB. Thi:l accident resulted from an inadvertent opening of the 
aft cargo door durin~ flight, causing the plane to lose pressure and the floor to collapse. 
The possibility of thIS cargo door danger was brought to the attention of both McDon
nell-Douglas, the manufacturer, and the FAA on at least two occasions during the 
prior four years-first when ground pressure tests conducted in 1970 revealed the 
problem and then again on June 12, 1972 when another in-flight incident occurred 
over Windsor, Ontario. In the Windsor accident, fortunately, the plane was able to 
land safely despite the crisis. In dealing with the problem after the Windsor incident, 
the FAA chose, on the strength of a "gentleman's agreement" with an official of 
McDonnell-Douglas, n9t to issue a mandatory Airworthiness Directive (which would 
have involved FAA oversight in the correction of the defect) as recommended by 
the NationaJ Transportation Safety Board, but instead to allow the manufacturer to 
handle the· problem through its own service bulletins. These are usually issu~: fer' 
non-essential matters, and they are not mandatory and are not sent to government 
officials or airplane operators. A Senate Committee investigating the. incident harshly 
criticized the FAA for this approach to the problem, noting that th~ public interest 
in safety requires strt;ag regulatory action. The ACP could have protested FAA's 
minimalinvolvemento'petitioned it to issue an Airworthiness Directive after the Windsor 
incident, and· perhaps corrected the cargo door defect and averted one of the deadliest 
plane crashes in history. 

TOXICITY OF HCP IN BABY POWDER 

In September 1972, the FDA classified all products containing hexachlorophene 
(HCP) as prescription drugs, ending profligate use of the untested substance and hun
dreds of over-the-counter remedies and cosmetics, after 30 to 40 French children 
died from exposure to HCP in baby powder. Animal evidence on the toxicity of 
HCP has been available to the FDA from its own scientists fol' several years ll1,ld 
FDA admitted at the time of the action that the central nervous system lesio1ls ,in 
these infants were 'identical to those that had been produced in experimental animals. 
A consumer advocate could have forced action far earlier. 

WARNING bEVICE ORDERED INSTALLED AFTER CRASH 

Over 50 p~rcent of all airline crashes world\vide are caused by what is referred 
to as "controlled flight into terrain" (CFIT). A Boeing study revealed that CFIT 
accidents in 1972 and 1973 resulted in the loss of I, I 20 lives and 20 aircraft in 
the Western world. The FAA is aWare of these facts. The FAA also is and was 
aware that a device called a "ground proximity warning system" (GPWS), warns pilots 
with lights and taped loud voices to "pull up" should the plane be in danger C?f 
a crash due to inadvertent proximity to the ground. The device continues to signiil 
until the pilot pulls up to a safe altitude. 

The cost of installing the warning system i"s about $ I 1,000 pei'--plane-an insignificant 
amount considering the $5 to $25 million price for each airliner. _. 

Finally, in December, 1974, the crash of .a TWA 727 into a mouiitainside near 
Dulles International Airport in Washington ir. which 92 persons were killed, led to 
an FAA ruling that a limited version of this device be required on all airliners by 
December, 1976. 

An Agency for Consumer Protection could have worked for installation of an 
adequate device several years earlier and perh,,\ps hundreds of lives woul<;l have ~!! 
;save-d. " -

FDA IGNORuS TOXICI1~Y OF HCL 

In September 1972, the FDA classified all products containing hexachlorophene 
(HCP) as prescription drugs, ending profligate use of the untested substance and hurt
dreds o~ over-the-counter remedies and cosmetics, after 30 to 40 French children 

died fr'Om exposure to HCP in baby powder. Animal evidence on the toxicity of 
HCP has been available to the FDA from its own scientists for several years and 
FDA admitted at the time of: the- action that the central nervous system lesions in 
these infants were identical to those that had beenrproduced in experimental animals. . 

An Agertcy for Consumer Protection could have urged the FDA to act earlier saving 
countless lives. ' 

.. 
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DEFECTIVE HEART PACERS II 

A 1975 Report by the Compt~oller General of the United States found that the 
Food and Drug Administration did not comply with its own procedure in a "life 
threatening situation." Apparently" the FDA failed even to follow its own procedures 
to independently investigate the CaUSe ofa recall of cardiac pacemakers by manufac
turers. The common defect in the pacemakers was a leakage of body flUIds, through 

"the plastic,seal of the pacemakers causing short circUiting which led to .sudden speeding 
up or slo;"';l'Ig down of the electronic heart pacing. To date, no standard has be,en 

<! issued by the FDA to deal with this problem. " 
The FDA has not independently established how many deaths and injuries have 

been caused by this defect, and the number could be sub,stantial. What we do k!1oW 
i~ that the FDA did not give adequate .;::onsideration to possible adoption of a standard '-;" 
developed by the Navy for hermetic sealing of electronic components to prevent 
short-circuiting caused by moisture. Had there been an ACP, the Agency could have 
urged the FDA to consider t~e advantages of hermitically sealing, perhaps saving 
many lives. 

"TIRED ,BLOOD" ADVERTI~ING 
When the Federal, Trade Commission ruled that "tired blooCi" advertising for Gentol 

was deceptive and ordered it stopped, the Company was able to continue the ad 
campaign for 9 years while it ran the case through the appeals process. The consumer 
advocate could have recommended to Congress at an early date that the Trade Commis
sion authority be adjusted to avoid such an abuse. 

-RADIATION EXPOSURE 
On August 15, 1972, the FDA promulgated performance standards for diagnostic <I 

x-ray equipment, wpich would significantly reduce the major SOUTce of man-made radia
tion exposure. The FDA subsequently extended the deacUine for compliance to 1974. 
These performance standards, which apply only to new equipment, came, four years 
after passage of the 1968 Radiation Control Act. While the FDA -was dragging its 
feet on standards for the new equipment, millions of peopl\: were exposed to unnecessa
ry radiation. And old equipment is still radiating thousands of people daily. A consumer 
advocate would assert the consumer's interest in safe diagnostic techniques, minimizing 
the61necessary risks of excessive radiati9-n. 

~AFER PRODUCTS AND BETTER WARNINGS" 

The Food and Drug Administration rQutinely malces decisions, affecting the public 
health and safety. Most of these decisions are made .behind closed doors, with little 
or no opportunity for consu.,'i1er participation. FDA has -approved the use of PES 
as a "morning-after" birth control pm, despite evidence- linking DES to vaginal cancer 
in offspring of women taking DES during pregnancy. fDA does not require that women 
be warned of this risk, even thOUgh the "morning-after" pill is not 100 per~eut--ff~ctive. 
FDA refuses to "ban or more strictly regulate "feminine hygienehSpra~, al",;,.~~gh 
injury complaints about these prOduc!il run several. times higher than DA's 0 

"acceptable" complaint level. The agency finally proposed weak warning 1 I requi 
ments but even these have not been put into effect. FDA has, also refu ~ to b 
red dye No. 2 from use in foods, drugs, and cosmetics, although evidence h~Jl 
this SUbstance, to c,ancer .in "animal,S', B,ecause of deficiencies in the law, consumers, ,~" 
do 110t know which products contain this color additive. A, consumer advocate would 
argue for safer products and better warnings.' 

_._~"""'=;.~_o::..~-.....:::--

FAA AND:'RADtOACTiVc:MA1~klALS-c; 

On April 6, 1974' a Delta airlines passenger flight from Washington, DC to Baton 
Rouge, Louisiana carried some radioactive, materials which were ,improperly packaged, 
resulting in the uncontrolled radiation exposure qj;",!;I,und(eds of passengers. ThecFederal 
Highway Administration representative, in Louislan/l- whQ ,alse;! single-han,dedly ,covers 
the entire state for the' Federal Aviation Administration testified that he <:lid not consider 
eri'forcel11ent of,the hazardous materials packagin~regulati~ns to be part of his responsi
bility, nor did' he have enforcement .capability.· In practlce,,lii't.he,.FAA ,relies on the 
sender to self-ehforce the federal regulations, and under the-dOCtrine of federal preemJr.", 
tion, the state's power to issue regulations governing shipments of hazardous cargoo§"' § 

in commerce is severely rl:~tPGted. Thl: state of Louisiana fouo_d it was unable to • 
protect pas&engers traveijng into !;Ir out of the state. An activ!, ACP could have assisted 
Louisianl\ ,in: its fact-:find~ns efforts. and pressed, FAA to enforce the federal radiation 
regulations. ;} - C) 
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" SCHOOL ,BUS SAFETY I' 

The Department of Transportation failed for seven years to is~e standards to improve 
survivability of school buses despite numerous Congressional r~uests. This failure finally 
necessitated Congressional enactment of statutory deadline~requiring 001' action. A 
consumer advocate could,.have pressured 001' to follow the{Nvill of Congress. ,. 

The consume·)voice in agency proceedings will demand that the federal bureaucracy" 
be more accouiltable. The following examples are cases where ACP intervention could 
have saved consumers money. ' 

ICC,LlMITS COMPETITION OF NEW TRUCKERS :';"';; / "cr 
The ICC has recently been criticized for restricting the formation of n;;-,W tr~cking ,:" 

companies-limiting competition that WOUld hold shipping rates do:wn. ,According tQ: 
the New York Times (4/11/77) a small number of trucking comp~~lieli bllv~ paid:; 
more than $80 million for Federal licenses in the last four years ,;tj:'ia~ theQr~ticp..lJy, 
they could have obtained for less than $150,000 in license fees,Consequently, con
sUmers and businessmen are overcharged for what they buy. A()P could jntervene 
in the ICC licensing procedure and demand more competition "',tween shipping compa-
nies, hence brinlling prices dq)VIl for consumers and businesses." , ' 

FEA REGUCATION COSTS CONSUMERS $20 MILLIOf,(', 

On May 29, 1974, the Federal Energy Administration (FEAl:vrorilUlgatf;cl a pric~, ,/ 
regulation on unleaded gas which set the, unleaded gas price Aqiml to' the C:9GC"~~' 
premium gas. The regulation was issued without the usual notice~'Pm;visiorts )t~~iJ1I'ea 
by law except. in emergencies. Worse yet,. the r~gulation was issued~.;l,f§ip~t'~ "evidence 

,that the refimng costs of ,unleaded gasolme was about the same as."~£1!lar grade 
gasoline, net higher priced premium .. On July 10, the FEA agreed 'that the earlier 
pri.ce rule was, wrong ~d with~rew it. During ~hesix wee~ ptlriQc\, 11.9.weve~, ~opsum.ers 
paId the unnecessary hIgher pnces for gas wh\<;h were estimated at $20 mllhon. Later, 
Consumer's Union sued the FEA and sought' restitution. In a' decision that is being 
appealed, the D.C. District Court rtiled that FEA had acted illegally but did not 
order restitution. 

FEA LETS GAS PRICES RISE AGAIN IN 1977 

After issuance 'on July 1974 of the rule limiting the price increase of lead free 
gasoline to a penny per gallon" the,' oil industry complied for the next two years, 
saving the consumer about 1 billion dollars. But beginning in the summer of 1976, 
the oil industry gradually raised thepnce of lead-free' gas to the point wherc, the 
price difference beiween lead free and leaded gas was about three cents per gallon. 

The reason for the price increase was the lax enforcement by FEA. In December 
1976, FEA proposed and then adopted by February 1977 a complex new set of 
gas pri~e "regulations that effectively permitted a price differenc~ of up to seven or 
eignt cents per gallon for lead free gasoline. ' 

Clear'Iy the price increase was not justified and reflects no ,"pnsumer input. The 
cO ACP ~ould demand a higher 'standard of consumer protection from the FEA. 

I; "EMPTY TRUCKS COST BILLIONS 

Interstate Co~merce Commission regulations which requite trucks to return empty 
from delivery, to make manoatoryoften out of the way stops, and ;which allow COMpa
nies to cooperate in rate-setting have been estimated to cost consumers several ~\;"'m 
dDII~':"", yearly" The w,lGking, industry has little .im~~ntiye to, !!rgye' with ,.the IC(;: becai!.>~ 
It 'passes'tiuise cost,~ 'on to consumers, wilo nave po represeritalioll in'iCC rait:-st:iiiug '" 
acthitle§. ' 

$300 MII.,LlON RATE HIKE 

The CiVil Aeronautics, Board 0(CAB) seems regularly to take action detrimental to 
tbJ~ consumer aft:er inadequate consumer participation in the decision-making process. 
The Board staff, rO!ltinely puts airline tariffs into effect without speciala board action. 
One especially' notable increase, was the increase of 4 percent effective November 
15, 1974. The CAB was involved in a conspiracy under which all the airlines were 
persuaded to file identical rate, increase applications, ,:thus obviating' the requirement' 
of a ,bearing at which citbens' groups could protest the hike. This ;;Iot wa£, an attempt 
to avoid the rule announced by the U.S. Court of Appeals in Moss v. CAB, which 

'required hearings for CAB-directed rate' changes, and was' in 'addition seemingly '1n 
violation of laws against<' price-fixing. The rise in prices cost the public $100 million, 
at a time when prior increases and' elimination of most discounts had already raised 
the average per-mile p~\SSenger revenues for such major airlines as United and TWA 
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by about' 18 percent in the previous 12 months (New York Times, November I; 
1974). The bOttol1A~line in this unwarranted rate hike was that air travel dropped 
off so markedly in the months following that the airlines had to scramble to reinstitute 

" the discounts they had been so anxious to eliminate only months before. CitiZen groups 
.,' were without the resources, needed to appeal this apparently illegal ratemaking. actio!lc 

and there was !'IO help forthcoming from. the Justice Department, despite requests C 

from many members. of Congress. The Board's internal consumer advocate strongly 
protested but was without power. to initiate a court challenge. The role of the ACP 
m such a case is obvious. U 

300 PERCENT INCREASE IN PROPANE GAS PRICES '" 

In 1973 the Cost of Liviri~ Council issued a rule which segregated petroleum products 
into two categories for pricmg purposes. For a category of "special products""refiners 
were allowed to include in the price only the actual. costnof the crude oil ·used in 
those products plus their historic profit margins. For other refined products, refiners 
were allowed to .load the cost of crude oil price increeses on ~the '. refined products 
of theic choice. Propane was one such product in this latter category, so the result 
of the rule was that refiners allocated a disproportionate share of their costs onto 
the price of propane. Refiners chose propane to carry the burdens elf price increases 
because it Has the most inelastic demand of all petroleum 'products: i.e., consumers 
are more likely to consistently buy a certain amount of propane regardless how high 
.the p0:14e get'l. This is because propane is relied on very heavily by the broiler chicken 
jndu~~fy, for grain drying and ,for heating aQd ccooking by poor families, especially D 

in the South. Crude oil cost increases,.'i¥ere tilted' pnto the. price of propane, so. much 
that between mid-1973 and early 1974: the price I70se 300 percent. When: the FEA 
came into existence in 1973, it could have changed the special products rule. Instead, 
gradual changes were belatedly instituted by August 1974, and then largely due to 
legislation -rather than FEA~mlemaking;'An'=activif'-ACP cCiuJdhave petitioned the 
FEA to act more swiftly to allilyiate this unjust pricing system. 

OIL REFINERS AND "DOUBLE DIPPING" 

An FEA regulation permitted oil refiners to collect increased oil costs twice. This 
pradice which has been dubbed "double dipping:' might have, evenatually led to $332 0. 

million in consumer overcharges. After 6 monilisthis loophole was discovered and' 
eliminated. An Agency fQtConsumer protection might have spotted the loophole and 
spared us 6 months of "double dipping." 

USDA FAVORS GAS·RIPENED TOMATOES 

{] In 1937, the Depart,ment of Agricul!ure issued a rule that vine ripe!l~~?!OImltoes 
'-must be larger than tliilse whIch are' pIcked prematurely and colored artificlally'With~ 

ethylene gas. The effect was to gi~e premature JO.!.J1atoes a competitive advar'\tage. 
Although the gas ripened vegetables are inferior in taste, texture, and vitami!1 content, 
the USDA kept the. regulation on the books long after th~ Depression. based':'fationale 
for the rule had become obsolete. Two wee1<.s ~ago, consumer groups \Von a ,lawsuit 
to overturn the regulation. An Agency for Consumer Prote.ction could haVe petitioned 
USDA far earlier to reverSe the rule and sought court review to irlsure qonsumers 
tasty and nutritious tOmatoes. 
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FPC CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 'c,' 

In September, ~274!th~. GAO: .!'~I!'l.~~_~aJepQ~,_cI!argin!Lthat~the~IIeclemLPQ1.I!~r~ ~'':''''=;c,:::~ 
qP!TI!!lt~~!~!!:~!:R:.~t-J·~-=-=~::-:i!=Z:~=;!~i::-l~~::.1n~~~a~fvl ""4ug-=ita :-\)Wlf··i~it~l·ctl~,?'li.S-iur-=:tiis-ci(F ....... ~ --. -~ 
sure of potential ~onfliqts o,f ihteres~ aml?ng .its. high7Ieve,!~fficials:A1thouglt fPC 
standardS of conduct.,teguiatlons require dISclosure of fmanclal holdtngs by· officials, 
the repottsaid a to-month GAO investigation had reve~led numerous failures· in tiling 
lilnd reviewing the forms tiled, For e~mple, of 12S officialS required at the time D 

they~' were hired to ·file financial disc;losure forms, 55 did not do so, and nine used" 
a less detailed form intelided for lower-Ieyel officials. Nineteen"officials (including 
administrative laW judges and offici~sin the Commission's Bureau of Power ;md Office ' 
oj/Economics) were found to own prq\libited secunties in gas production an4.pipo=line 
and electric power companies such as Exxon, Texaco, Tenneco and Potomac Electric . 
Power. Under GAO prodding the nineteen were ordered by the FPC to divest holdings. 
"that couid conflict with their duties." An A,CP could. mal..;e SUle that· the . nec~ () 
divestitures are carried out and that the FPC does a better job of enfort;ing its regula-
tions in the future.' 
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RAISING THE PRICE OF OLD OIL 

The Cost of Living Council raised the, controlledprlce of old oil (two thirds of 
U.S. production) from $4.25 to $5.25 a barrel in December 1973 without opporlunitlY 
for any public comment or even a statement, for reasons. Subsequent freedom of 
'information reque!'Jts revealed that the agncy's own, documents argued against the in
crease which cost consumers about $2¥.l billion., A Federal advocate viithin the govern
ment could "have fdund out about this imminent increase before it took place and 
argued against it. 

FEA ALLOWS PROFIT MARGINS TO GAS RETAILERS 

On January 15, 1974 and again on March 1, 1974, the FEA granted increases, 
totalling 3 cents per gallon in the permissible profit margin limitations allowed gasoline 
retailers. These increases were granted to cover fixed costs during the period of 
decreased gasoline sales caused by government allocation during the oil embargo. When 
gasoline sales returned to pre-embargo levels, FEA continued its policy of expanded 
rrotit margins. In response to a consumer petition, FEA finally reviewed the profit 
margins on April 24, 1975, over one year after the special dealer margin increase 
was no longer warranted. A consl,lmer advocate could have forced the FEA to act 
sooner, saving consumers millions of dollars. " 

f) 
_RUSSIAN WHEAT DEAL 

In the summer of 1972 the USSR bought over 700 million bushels, of graiIi from 
six large U.S. grain corporations. Nearly 440 million bushels of this was wheat-25 
percent of the total. U.S. wheat crop. The Department of Agriculture (USDA) paid 

,,$300 million in, exjxllt -i()bsidies-supposedly as an incentive for the S'ovietsto 
buy-despite intelligence reports indicating poor crop l'ionditioJ1s" in the USSR and 
tlte ,fact that the U.S. was the dominant world wheat supplier. Secretary ~utz, as 
chairman of the Board' of Directors of the Commodity Credit Corporation, decided 
to grant the subsidy which allowed the grain complmies to sell for prices lower than 
those prevailing in the domestic U.S. market. The Export Marketing Service in USDA 
then established the daily subsidy rates. , 

The USDA decision to subsidize the sale of an unlimited amount of wheat to the 
Russians cost consu11)ers dearly. The direct cost of unnecessary subsidies was $300 
million. In addition, consumers paid enomious indirect costs irlCluding higher prices 
for bread and flour-based products, increased prices for beef, pork, poultry, eggs and 
dairy products due to higher costs for feed grains lmd it severe disruption of transporta
tion facilities, resulting in higher costs and shortages or delays in delivering certain 
supplies. Joseph Ferri, Assistant Director of GAO, estimated that the total cost to 
the American consumer was about $1 billion: \ 

The' Soviet grain deal also, had an adverse effect on famiers who were unawa:re 
of the same and sold their crops at low" prices in thllt'·,begirining of the summer. 
Farmers in Texas, Oklahoma, Illinois and Missouri sold their wheat in July for $1.38 
a bushel; on August 8 a bushel of wheafcost $2.04. -

If an ACP, had existed, it could <llave ~,participated in the USDA's decisions' and 
perhaps' averted. the losses sl,)ffered by consumers and farmers. 

CAB TURNS DOWN CHEAP FLIGHTS TO LONDON 

CAB, in its role of controlling the entry of airlineslfili'l the market has not approved 
"a new trunk carrier since 1938. In September 19-14, CAB rejected an application 

"._... . by, Laker Airwavs. a pri1,'ate!v, owned. British, ,airline. ,to .f1v reJ!Ular)v ,scheduled N~w 
1::-~7::-~~~--~-~¥Gik"tv,.tUfiduii.::-t1{~~iti~fvr-$1~t·rUtuh ~ai;"""a:nttlu- ii1~i'u- than Giic;~thiitr-tli\j "'C\;oii0Iiiy;'-' 

fare now charged by Pan Am, TWA, and other members c;f the lATA, the International 
rate-fixing carlel. The constmler (,advocat~ ,could have ?nterveneU in the application 
proceeding 'and sought judicial re.view of the agency rejection on behalf of the consumer 
interest in competition. '..' ,_ , .f , 

." ,1,;< :' 
IMPORT TJl.ADE RESTRAINT _,," . 

Voluntary trade restl'aint agreements are' generally~l?gb'tlated by inter-agency task 
forces in inform~1 proceedings that provide no opportunity for input by intel'ested 
consumer groups. Three,examples iIIustrat~ the need for an ACP in this area: 

( 1) Consumer groups estimate that voluntary restraint agreements on steel negotiated 
'" by the State Deparvnent without public'.'notice until December 1974 cost U.S. con

sumers between $500-' million 'and $1 billioll. The GAO reported that aIthough restraints 
on steel protected the domestic industry against import competitionbtitween 1969 
and 1971, they did not result in increased modernization or other improvement in 
the industry. 

ii' {; 
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(2) The Committee for the Implementation of Textile Agreements provides no formal 
public hellrings before agreements with foreign exporters are announced. Consume. 
groups estimate that this added between $1 billion and $2.5 billion in costs toconstimers 
in 19.72. 
, For both steel and textile restraints, the GAO estimated costs of $430 willion for 
administration of ,the quotas, loss of Treasury revenue from import taxes,and conces
sions to foreign. gove~ments as compensation for their loss due to restrained eXpOl1$; 
There were set-offs to this cost but GAO did not suggest a tigure. GAO did suggest, 
however, that these restraints were negotiateti-:w\,ithout a, careful, assessment of the, 
arguments for protection and the most appropriate form it should take, and without, 
regard to current or prospective conditions. 

(3) Although high meat prices and consumer outrage brought an end in 1972 to 
voluntary restraint agreements limiting the amount of meat ,the u.s. imported, new 
restraint agreements" have been negotiated in response to cries for protection from 
cattlemen throughout 1974. 

The ACP could introduce consumers' views to these and other heretofore closed 
negotiations detrimental to consumer interests. 

Wasting funds in federal agencies is a commO'n occurrence, due to inefficiency, 
diSorganization, and inertia. The following cases arci' examples where the ACP could 
have intervened ,and saved, the fedeJ;al government money. I) 

EXPENSIVE DRUGS 

HEW issued ~~egulation in July 1975 which states that the governmentwillreim
burse, under Medicare and Medicaid, only for the "maximum liUowable cost" of 
prescription drugs, which is the lowest cO'st at which a drug is widely available. HEW's 
action comes in' response to evidence documented by a variety of" sources (inCluding 
Congressional hearings) that although dmgs of the Same quality are' sold at widely 
~iffering .prices, the difference often depends"simply .on ';Vh~ther a dr;rg i~ sold under 
Its genenc. or a. brand name. When the new regulatIon' IS 10 effect, It Will save state 
and federal governments from 60 t~ 75 million doltars ayear,according to Dr;, Mark 

"Novich, Deputy Assistant CommiSsioner of Medical Affairs. However,as of April 1977, 
the regulation has not yet been implemented. Two drugs, ampicilin and penicilin pk, 

"are nearing final action. These two drugs alone will save thegovernmenf two million 
dollars a year. Twenty to thirty more "MAC'~ limits will be inlposed withir .. ,the next 
year, according to Dr. Novich~ AMA filed, a iawsuit to block the implementation 
of this program-which was s(::"led in March '77 in favor'of the government, The 
ACP could have been instrumenthl in defending this program, and' ensuring a thorough 
and more immediate implementation, 

i) 

USDA'S WASTE;FUL STUDIES 

USDA recently spent $45,000 on a study for food industries to discover how long 
Americans usually take to cook breakfast. Similar stUdies are planned for cooking 
lunch and dinner. The agency spt<nds $16 million annually on pres~ releases and televi

sion films as selt.promotion. $16 ('million is spent on pUblications to })e .distributed 
to the pub1ic. The Department spends $22 million l,\nnually tin cottop research, .and 
the sa.v1e for ;wheat, com al1d soybean research-although the latter are far' more 
important to US farm income. ACP intervention could prove these kinds of activities 
wasteful, and consequently save federal funds. 

~ ~lfE.'!~7.2!j,:;:.;;:~~~:ti~1:~~::1i.~~;f.~.~;j:;;~o~~:~~~o:;~55~t~Stnt;~::f~ttld;;~'LC::~o:~~,:, 
"--- to learn why people fall in 19ye. NSF, the Space Agency, and the Office gf Naval 

Research spent $500,000 jointly to research why monkeys, clench ,their jaws. In 1976, 
National Aeronautics and Space Administration (NASA) requested $2.8 million to 
build housing for lOQ pounds of moon rocks. NASA already spent $8. 7 million in 
1971 for a building to store, handle,and study the rocks. ACP could examine these 
kinds ofwastefld expenditures and tighten the government's budget. 

WASTE IN HEALTH CARE~ SYSTEM 'l 
The magnitude of :rYasteful costS tolJf~ted by our system of health can: is staggering, 

It has been estimated for example, that !lnnecessary hospitalizations cost. about $10 
billion '~eveIy year,and that unneceS5at)' surgeries cost over $4 billion per year. (See 
testimony by Dr. Sidney Wolfe before HouSe Subcommittee on Oversight and Investiga
tions, July:15, 1975). HEW has the power to reduce sub$tantially some of this waste, 
yet it has not taken sufficient' action .. For example,' Medicare 'Il~d Medicaid~payments 
cQuld be made contingehtupon hospitals',,; use of preadmission cenific;:ation~: tO,verify CJ ' 
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the necessity of every hospitalization, or second opinions to confirm the necessity 
of every elective surgery. In 1974 HEW was considering a proposal to require preadmis
sic:m approval of all federally-reimbursed hospitaliZation, but the proposal was withdrawn 
by Secretary Weinberger. Subsequently, in February 1975, HEW did issue a regulation 
requiring the hospitals to review hospitalizations. within 24 hours of· admission, but 
the regulation is in jeopardv from an. AMA lawsuit challenging it. Furthermore, HEW 
has done nothing to require' second surgical opinions or other waste trimming me~ures 
such as pre-admission testing which have been shown to be effe<;tive in reducing 
costly overutilization without sacrificing quality of care. An ACP could prod HEW 
into action in this area. . 

PRECEDENTS FOR SUCH AN AGENCY 

Large government subsidy and advocacy programs that benefit business ineterests 
already exist. 

GOVERNME~T SUBDIDIES TO BUSINESS 

A study published in the. Joint Economic Committee in 1974 projected the amount 
of federal subsidies in 1975 as $95.1 billion. The committee's staff estimates that 
the amount has now passed the $100 billion le,vel (New York Times). The study 
defines a subsidy as "the provision of Federal economic assistance, at the expense 
of others in·,the economy, to the private sector producers or consumers, ofa particular 
good, service or factor of production." Government subsidizes a plethora of areas: 
Food and agriculture, health, education,transportation, trade, commerce and economic 
development, etc. The following examples are industries subsidized by federal funding. 

Conrail, the nation's largest railroad, began operations in April of 1976. The 17,000 
mile" rail. system employs some 96,000 people thru 16 northeast states. III the first 
nine months, Conrail lost $205.5 million on revenues of $2.45 billion. Edward Jordan, 
chairman, and chief executive officer of Conrail, estimates that the industry will mllke 
a profit by the end of 1980. The government will invest more than $2 billion during 
this tiine to keep the railroad operating, 
, The annual subsidy in 1975 for the maritime industry was $589.7 million for the 
construction of ships, sailors' wages, and research and development. The '77 authoriza
tion bill calls for a half billion dollars for the entire maritime industry. 

Secretary, Bergland estimates that the ';price supports program for agriculture as sub-
mitted by the administration for 1978 will be around $2 billion. " 

The USDA will spend $4 million in 1977 on peanllt research, including studies 
examining how to increase yielc\s. At the same time, the Department will pay $188 
million for,surplus peanuts. ,. ':' " 

U.S. Travel Service spent $11.2 million in 1975 to promote trav,eI to this country. 
In effect, the government funded an advertising campaign for airline and hotel indus
tries. 

Overseas Privat,e Investmellt Corporation provides insurance and guarantees for cor
porations investing in undevelo.ped countries. Between 1970 and 1975, the government 
funded OPIC with $106 million: of which 70 peN::ent supported the"5(oo largest industrial 
corporations.. j 

T.he number of federally insured and federally guaranteed loan programs total 147, 
with a substantial amount of the monies underwriting business interests. 

Lo.AN -GuAP_A_~~-E_ C~:.rALQ9 

DEPARTMENT OF AOR/,CULTURE f) 

I. Farm Credit Administration. 
li2. Fanners Home Administration-Emergency Loans. 

3, Farmers Ho.me Administration-Farm , Labor Housing Loans and Grants. 
4. Farmers Home Administratioll-Farm Operating Loans. 
5. Farmers Honle Administration-Farm Ownel'Ship Loans. 
6. Farmers Home Administration-Grazing AsSociation Loans. . 
7. Farmers Horne Administration-Irrigation, Drainage and Otlier Soil and Watt;r 

Conservation Loans. ,.J 
8. Farmel'S Home Administration-Low. to Moderate Ill,comekousing Loans. 
9. Farmers Home Administration-Rural Housing Site Loans. 
10. Farmer:; Home Administration-Recreation Facility Loans. , 
1 I. Farmers Home Administration-Resource Conservation and. Development Loans; 
12. 'Farmers Home Administration-Rural Rental Housing Loans. 
13, Farmers Home Administration-Soil and Water Loans. . 
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14. Farmers Home Administration-Water and Waste Disposal Systems for Rural 
Communities. 

15. Farmers Home Administration-Watershed Protection and Flood Prevention 
Loans. 

16. Farmers Home Administration-Business and Industrial Loans. 
17. Farmers Home Administration-Indian Tribes and Tribal Corporation Loans. 
18. Farmers Home Administration-CoDm\unity Facilities Loans. 
19. Farmers Home Administration-Emergency Livestock Loans. 
20. Farmers Home Administration-Federal Crop Insurance Corporation. 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 

21. Bureau of Indian A:ffairs-Indian Loans, Economic Development. 
22. National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration-Fishermen Reimbursement 

of Losses. 
23. National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration-Fishing Vessel Obligation 

Guarantees. 
24. Maritime Administration-Maritime War Risk Insurance. 
25. Maritime Administration-Federal Ship Financing. 
26. Trade Adjustment Assistance for F,,)"Jls. 
27. Trade Adjustment Assrtl!nce for Communities. !b 
28. Economic Developmel1l.~j.Business Development Assistance. 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, EDUCATION, AND WELFARE 

29. Health Maintenance Organization Development. 
30. Nursing School Construction Assistance Direct Loans, Grants Guarantees and 

Interest Subsidies. 
3 t. Higher Education Act Insured Loans. 
32. Student Loans. 
33. Academic Facilities Loan Insurance. 
34. Academic Facilities Loan Insurance, 
35. Student Loan Marketing Association. 
36. Hospital Construction Loan Program. '~ 

DEPAKrMENT OF HOUSING AND URl>bN DEVELOPMENT 

37. Federal Insurance Administration: Flood lrisurance. c 

38. Federal Insurance Administration: Urban Property Insurance. (;, 
39. Federal Jnsurance Administration: Crime Insurance. 
40. Housing Production and Mortgage Credit: (nterest Reduction Payrneut....:::iRental 

and Co-op Housing for Lower Income Families. 
41. Housing Production and Mortgage Credit: Interest Reduction Acquisition and 

Rehabilitation of Homes for Resale to Lo~er Income Fiunilies. . . 0 

42. Housing Production and Mortgage Credit: {ntere-'1t Reduction ang Mortgage In-
sUrance for Homes for Lower Income Families.,.... . . 

43. Housing Production and MQrtgage Credit: interest Reduction and Mortgage In-
surance for the Rehabilitated Homes for Lower Incom!: Families. . . 

44. Major Home Improvement: Loan Insurance for Housing Outside Urban Renewal 
Areas. •... . 

45. Mortgage Insurance: Mobile Homes, 
'-46. Mortgage Insurance: Construction or Rehabilitation of Condomin.ium Projects. 

47. Mortgage Insurance for Development of Cooperative Housing Projects. 
48 Mortp'ap'e m!i:uranC'!p..fo1" 0rn •• ~.~Pr~,..t.""~_~~l"'iI~ti~'" ~'~ _ _. -;'':'-0- -~:;':.::. -o-":-:=: .•. < 

"-~9: Mongage In;u.-ifi~;f~tHb~~ Pt';';~h~;.~"'''~; "'~< .-' 

50. MOTtgagl,l Immrnnce for Homes for Certified Vetera!l~, " 
S 1. Mortgage Insurance for Homes for Disaster Victims. "'. • 
52. Homeownership Mortgage Insurance for Low arid Moderate Income Facilities. 
53. ~gl1gage Insurance <for ~omes In Outlying .Areas. 
54. Nlortgage Insuranc,:e for Homes in Urban Renewal Areas. 
55. Mortgage Insurance for Housing in Older Declining ~eighbQrl:1gods. 
56~ Mortgage Insurance for New Communities."" • 0. '. 

57. Mortgage Insurance for Management~Type Cooperative Projects .. 
58. Mortgage Insul"dtIce forHospj~s. . 
59. Mortgage Insurance for Mobile Home Courts and Parks .. 
60. Mortgage Insurance for Nursing Homes and Related Care Fa<;ilities ... 
6 k Mortgage InsurancefQr Purchase of Sales-Type Cooperative Housing, 
62. Mortga&~ Ins,~rance for Purchase byl;!~meoWt\ers of ~e~ Simple. Title Lessors, 
,63. Mortgage Insurance for Purchase of Umts of;CondomlOlums. 
64. Mortgag,,, Insurance for Renta,\ Housing. . 

I 
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65. Mortgage Insurance for Rental Housing for Moderate Income Families. 
66. Mortgage Insurance for Rental Housing for Low and Moderate Income Families, 

Marke,t Interest Rate. 
67. Mortgage Insurll11ce for Rental Housing for the Elderly. 
68. Mortgage Insurance for Rental Housing in Urban Renewal Areas. 
69. Mortgage Insurance for Special Credit Risks. 
70. Property Improvement Loan Insurance for Improving All Existing Structures 

and Buildings of New Non-Residential Structures. 
71. Property Jrnprovement Loan Insurance for Construction of Non-Residential Farm 

Structures. 
72. Property Insurance Loans for,Existing Multifamily Dwellings. 
73. Property Insurance Loans for COnfltruction of Non-Residential or Non-Farm Struc

tures. 
74. Supplemental Loan Insurance for Multifamily Rental Housing and Health Care 

Facilities; ',;, 
75. Mortgage Insurance for Expenfuental Homes. 
76. Mortgage Insurance for Experimental Projects Other Than Housing. 
77. Mortgage Insurance for Experimental Rental Heusing. 
78. Mortgage Insurance for the Purchase of Refinancing of Existing Multifamily 

Housing Projects. ,', 
79. Community Planning and Development-New Communities Loan Guarantees., 
80. Single Fiamily Home Mortgage Coinsurance. 
81. Multifainily Housing Coinsurance. 
82. Mortgage Insurance for Graduated Payment Mortgage. 
83. Aid to Indian Housing-Annual, Contributions to Pay Off Bonds and Notes. 
84. College Housing Debt Service Grants. 
85. Mortgage Insurance for Armed Service Housing in Impacted Areas.' 
8.Q. GNMA Mortgage"Backed_Guarantees. , __ 
8? GNMA Special-Assistance Mortgage Purchases. 
88. Mortgage Insurance for One to Four Family Homes. 
89. Homeowner's Emergency Relief to Assist Homeowners in Danger of Foredo

sure~oinsurance. 
90. Mortgage Insurance for Multi-Family Rental Housing. 
91. Low-Income Public Housing Contributions for Payment of Bonds and Notes. 

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR 

92. Indian Loan G14i\rantees. 
93. Indian Loan Insurance. 

"\ 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

94. FAA~Aviation War Risk Insurance. 
95. National Capital Transportation Act. 
96. Rail Passepgep Service Act. 
97. Regional Rai) Reorganization Act;~~'" 
98, Aircraft Loli'n Guarantee Program. 
99. Emergency Rail Guarantee Program. 
100. Guarantee Program for Washington Metropolitan Area Transit Authority Obliga-

tions. ," j) 

101. Passenger Rail Improvement Program. 
102. United States Railway Association (acquisition and Modernization loan). 
t 03, Emergency Assistance for R'''i!roads Operf,.ti~~, P!!SSen~er Service. 

DEPARTMENT OF STATE 

104. Worldwide and Latin American Housing Guarantee Program. 
105. Protection of Ships from Foreign Seizure. ' 
106. Agricultural and Productive Credit and Self-Help Community Development Pro-

gram. ,c' 
107. Foreign Housing Investment Guarantees. 

EXPORT.IMPORT BANK 

108. Loans Sold with Recourse. 
109. Medium Term Gilarantee3. n 

, 11 o. Ce,~ifisate-sof,L.oan Participation. II 
111. Medium Term Insurance. 
112. Short-Term Insurance.':-' I', j 

" 

A 



.. 

8S 

SMALL BUSINE~'S ADMINISTRATION 

113. Displaced Business Loans " 
It4. Ecolfll?mic Injury Disaster Loans. ' " 
ItS_,Economic Opportunity Loans for Sl,nall Businesses. 
116. Lease Guarantees for Sm,all. Businesses. _ 
117. Physical Disaster Loans. -
118. Small Business Loans. , 
119. Small Business Investment Companies. 

'120. State and Local Development Company Loans. 
121. Coal Mine Heahh and Safety Loans. 
122. Bond Guarantee for Surety Companies. 
123. Meat and Poultry Inspection l@ans. ' 
124. Occupational Safety and Health Loans. 
125. Base Closing Economic Injury Loans.' 
126. Handicapped Assistance Loans . 
.127. Handicapped Assistance Loans. 
128. Emergency Engery Shortage. 
129. Strategic Arms Economic Injury Loans. 
130. Water Pollutioo::.Control Loans. 
131. Air Pollution Control Loans. 

~-, 

132. Loans to MinOl'lty Enterprise Small Busin,ess Investment Companies. 
133. Small Business Loan Program.' 
134. Pollution Control Financing Program" ' . 

OVI\RSE~;S PRIvATF.INVESTMENT CORPORATION 

135. Foreign Investment Insurance. D 

136. Forei¥n Investme,rit Guar~tee. 

VETERANS ADM/.NISTRATION 

,137. Mobile Home Loans 
138. Vef.:;,rans Insu,red Loans for Residential Housing. 
139. Veterans Guarante~ Loans for Residential Housing. 

ADDITIONAL 

140. Emergency Loan Guarantee Board. 

l:t ~~:=~S;~ili~~ti~~e~~~ales. {} 
143. Federal National Mortgage Association. [) 
144. Farm Credit Administration Banks for Cooperatives, 

GENERAL SERVICES ADMINISTRATION 

145. Federal Building Loan Guarantee. 
146. Guaranteed Loans. ' 

o 

147. Real Property Guarantees. 
There ate several government agencies which already intervene in other agency's 

proceedings. Occasio!!ally the consumer interest gets represented iii this fashion, but 
more often than not it is the business interest that gets represented. ,I.if ¢ 

COMMERCE DEPARTMENT 1;1 
The Commerce Dep"rtm~n intervened_on behalf of .aOl:dcn •. lnc_'!!l-~-E,?g'?~~Ti'i!.(If--~~~ 

Commission (FI'C) case -that WOtid require -B6tden 'to license other' companies to 
make and sell Borden's Real '~mon ynder the ReaLemcn mpne. (Wli\U'Strect Journal, 
March 2,1, 1977). The gov'ifrnmehl \nsuredthat the blill(f1ess interest was developed!.) 
and conSidered by thle FIC? " ' , 

SMALL~USI~E~S AoiuNISTMTION 

The SB4 represents small busiQcs::.es primarily in rule changes or propolied legislative 
8JC':ges. SBA" haS, never interveiled in fOnt:lal ,agencf' proceedings,' but works behind 
the Scenes ,tJhav~ agencies respOnd to individual complaints. SJlA will not repreSent 
a small business urlless the" case will benefit the small. busin~ss Industry at. large, SBA,d 
has a liaison with 37 agencies, and acts as ombudsman,,(or indUstry." " 

Steve Millet of SBA,says the,SBA bqdget isapproximatelyS750,OOO: SBA'sa,utll9nty' 
comes from. 15 USC 6~l, 637JJ 12, 639 F.The supplementaJexecutiv~ Q!JIer, 11-5'1:8, ;; 
March 20, 1970, anl,J Flldefal Register, Vol. 35" p. 4939! prQvidell, fQ". iI!.9z:e~d 0 ":,: 

representation of ~mall bll~ffl:sS .concerns. He said that SBA "saves small busiJ1esses 
three times wh,at they spend olJ us." The follo~ng>are exa.'(itples Q,(SBA caseS;,' ' . 

a 
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FEA proposed that all businesses turn off their signs at night. SBA intervened because 
for many small businesses, signs lighted at night are the ony form of advertising. 

ICC controls the movement of freight by determining a specific route (gateways) 
for independent truckers. SBA became involved in this case as small busincsse~ who 
do not have a direct route as deScribed by the ICC are at a disadvantage. 

When DOD Clec;-';oo to change the bidding system for moving the household goods 
of military pe~~nh~~round the world, SBA intervened on behalf of the small freight 
forwarders. The! new"'~ystem would consolidate such moves by geographic area. Large 
freight forward~!rs WQ tId have the advantage as they have more equipment, more 
authority from the IC~ \ to move across state lines and can underbid the small forwar
ders. This new 'bidding' system would eventually eliminate 60 small freight forwarder 
companies and effect sci:ne 20,000 individuals. 

, GENERAL SERVICES ADMINISTRATION 

The GSA isi, primarily interested in state cases, representing the interests of the 
government as !Ian advocate. There are six lawyers in the agency who travel in various 
states to Iitigal/e. These lawyers are in the Regulatory Law Division in the Counsel 
DepaI1ment. 1ihis division has worked on and off since 1949, and consistently since 
1973. The agency has 14 jurisdictions, dealing with issues in transportation, electricity, 
gas, telephone-basic revenue issues. Annually GSA works on 20-25 cases actively, 
mostly among state commissions. The authority for GSA derives from 40 USC 481-A4. 
The following is an example of GSA intervention: 

Florida has the highest business telephone rates in the country, but Southern Bell 
Telephone and Telegraph is applying for still higher rates, GSA will intervene in the 
rate proceedings, representing federal agency interests. 

JUSTICE DEPARTMENT-ANTITRUST DlVIS!ON 

in the last decade, the Antitrust Division has become increasingiyinvOlved in cases 
and proceedings before regulatory agencies. One third of the Justice Department's 
Washington-based attorneys are involved in litigation before regulatory agencies. This 
section, approximately 50 lawyers; handles some 200 cases each year. 

There is no statute granting the Justice Department authority to intervene in regulato
ryproceedings. The Antitrust Divisicn takes authority from Justice Department regula
tions, 28 CFR 0.40, and is referenced by appropriation bills. 

According to George Hays of the Economic Policy· Office, approximately $6 million 
is designated for litigation with regulatory agencies. He says it is impossible to state 
how much money is saved by such intervention, but cites examples of cases in which 
a considerable amount of money is saved. . 

In 1968 the AD worked to eliminate the fixec! rate at the New York stock exchange, 
which saved approxi~tely $300 million in the first year. 

,The Antitrust DivisIon is presently intervening in CAB regulations on behalf of 
the airlines. If the CAB regulations are relaxed, affecting 22-50% of the nation's 
airfares, approximately $1.5 hillion will be saved. 

In 1966, the FCC approved the ITT acquisition of the American Broadcasting Com
pany. The AD found this merger anti-competitive, and requested the FCC to reverse 
its decision. As FCC refused, the AD filed suit in federal court to prevent the sale. 
ITT and ABC abandoned their deal before the case went to trial. ' : 

In February 1977 th1j Antitrust Division urged the FEA to amend its regulations 
to encourage increased supplies of, and lower prices for residual fuel oil and refined 
petroleum products. Residual fuel oil is used by utilities for the generation of electricity 

::--'::..-"·:O:--:-:';::--:-~::"-i!t!d ·ru;-hniicr f!!~l~ primarily!!!! the- Fa.st-Coast. . . ~ ,,-

CIV1L AERONAUTICS BOARD=OFF!CE OF CONSUMER ADVOCACY 

The Office of Consumer Advocacy (OAC) is a stilff component of the U.S. Civil 
Ae.ronautic& Board. In a March 1977 compendium OCA listed the. following as an 
example of it representation of the consumer interest: Domestic Baggage Liability 
Rules Investigation. . . . 
,Howe\'er,'~he original petition to increase baggage liability from $500 to $750 came 
'from the Aviation Consumer Action Prcject in August;d973. OCA filed its first com
ments in the matter in June 1975 even though its complaint handling section finds 
that 10-12 percent of complaints are on baggage. No real action was taken by the 
CAB .on the issue until February, 1977, two weeks after ACAP filed suit. The final 
rule raising baggage liability to $750 plus consequential damages is scheduled to become 
effective April 19, 1977-four years after the formal petition by ACAP. 

Although the OCA'developed a position comparable to that· of the outside> consumer 
advocate, as an in-house critic the office was not that influential. 

.;( 
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To provide some historical ~rSpective to ~his testimony, I am providing a synopsis 
of some of the issl',es that faced the 94th Congress. . . 

QUESTIONS SET TO OPPONENTS OF CPA ACT 

1. What has Congress done for consumers in It. period racked by rising prices, 
busine~.<f0!llinated government, and ~despread disclosures of corporate and govern~ 
ment VIolations? . 

2. How can a member of Congress vote against. a modest con~uml!t agency yet 
support or 'condone billions of dollars of taxpayer funds to promote and subsidize 
many business interests? 

3. Why is it fair to approve large subsidy and advocacy activities on. behalf of 
corporate interests by the Department of Commerce; the Maritime Administration, 
the Department of Interior and other Departments while denying millions of American 
consumers, young and old, just the right to advocacy (at less than 10 cents per 
consumer per year) in Washington, DC? 

4. Does not Congress need a consumer advocacy agency to balance the advel'SllI)' 
process before federal regulatory agencies who make quasi-judicial decisions affectihg 
the health, safety and economic well-being of millions of Americans? . 

5. Is there not needed a non-regulatory consumer agency to advice Congress. about 
what really is going on in these regulatory institutions and to work for deregulation 
where it benefits consumers? . 

6. Isn't there a need for a consumer agency to push for fairer procedures that 
would permit participation before these departmnts and agencies by citizens and civic 
groups around tile country who are now shut out. of this part of their government 
because of the expense, and other unjust obstacles? 

7. Are you not interested in the ways in which the consumer agency is eqUipped 
to help small businessmen 'and farmers as consumers of products and services in the 
course of doing busin~tss? " .' _. ,_ , .. '. __ ~.__ '. ._, _~ .•. ~"'"~= . _,_. - - --. .-. . .... - "---c~.~=' 

S;-Do=you'iiltend't:o vote against all future special interest business subsidies and 
promotional activities, renewed, or initiated, that build up the bureaucracy at the tax-
payer expense if you vote against the consumer bill? 0 

9. Do you dismiss the judgment and experience of hundreds of consumer, civic, 
religious, labor, cooperative, women, senior citizens and farm groups, along with several 
dozen companies, who strongly favor H.R, 7575 and who both oppose bureaucracy, 
inflation and marketplace injustices that have led to so many casualties and so much 
depletion of consumers' income? 

10. If ybU oppose this bill, would you be willing to debate your position with 
consumer advocates on r~dio and televi$ion from your office or the House studio 
for transmission back to your district? 

~ 

OBJECTIONS TO THE CONSUMER REPRESENTATION PLANS PROPOSED BY THE FORD 
A-DMINISTRATION 

The followi~g- is a list of the major objections the. consumer movement has to 
the Ford ,;:,Administration's proposed. Consumer Representation Plans .. The fact that 
representatives of consumer organizations have been denied the opportunity to present 
their views at these regional conferences manifests the lack of interest th~i,::O'White 
House actually has in hearing what consumers have to say. o· 

1. _,The plans were developed as a cosmetic devise to allow Gerald Ford to claim 
that he is interested in the plight of cOflsumers despite his declared intention to veto 
the Consumer. Pr?tection bill. w~ich passed the Senate in May and the House .in o. 

November. ThiS bill; long and Jl!!.tl.Yclv sUDoorted .. bv" ooPJ!!!mer· ,gmu~s"wCl!J::!_"~:;tubbsl-,,?=,~~_:.'~· " 
, .aninllependonf1i(l;;-ocrrtC 't'ti"itrgue itie'cullsulllds fi1[erest-oofofe-::t.;a~fiil=-agen~ies' aner--------

courts. Were the White. House truly concerned about the American consnmet'.Oemld 
Ford would sign the. Consumer Protection bill. ; . . '0 

2. The plans 'create no new legal rights for consumers. Ci.tizens· have no legal right 
to assure that. the agencies obey the guidelines they have setout. 

3. Many of the> plans add ·new jobs and new layers of bureaucracy. By doing so, 
they may well make citizen access to government more difficult and will certainly 
cost many taxpayer dollars. ,. . . 

4. The plans fail to addres the problem of consumer advo<;acy. What the ConsOmer 
Protection, bill does, and· what these plans fail to do, is to assure that the consumer 
interest Will .be. presented ·before any government agency makes a decision Which affects 
the health, safety, or pocketbook of the American consumer.· /;~uicker reSponse to 
consumer complaints, establis~.men~ of more: advisory councils, ,!In'a abstract plGdges • 
to consider the interest of consumers cannot substitute for the c1\eatiori of· a consumer 
~~ . ~ 
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S. Plans were submitted by only seventeen agencies and departments. Regulatory 
agencies, whose decisions directly impact on every American's life, submitted no plans. 

6. Symptomatic;:. of the White House attitude towards consumers is the format of 
the regional conferences. They are set up to assure that the press covers the statements 
of the White. House officials. The opportunity for citizen statements is scheduled to 
prevent significant press attention. Furthermore, the length of individual statements 
IS severely limited. 

7. The, release of the Consumer Representation Plans and the planning of regional 
conferences are designed to delude the public about Gerald Ford's record on consumer 
issues. As President, Ger~d Ford has been a disaster for the American consumer. 
He has opposed measures to;,require tougher health and safety standards while endorsing 
efforts to increase profits fo~/Iarge corporations. 
The pOlitics oj consumer protection 

Although many new democratic procedures have been adopted in the Congress during 
tl)e 1970~s, minority rule still governs. For five yearsl the Consumer Protection Agency 
bill has been the captive of a few vigorous Congressional opponents and a lobby 
of multinational corporlltions. With no re~ulatory or enf,orcement power, the consumer 
agency would act liOlely as a representative and advocate of consumer interests. The 
embattled consume!' would be assured, for the first tiine, that his voice is heard when 
federal agencies make the important daily decisions that affect his health, safety and 
pocketbook which. buys 8.8 percent less today than it did last year, and 18.2 percent 
less than it did in,\!;f73.. . . 

Fearful that the\, enlightened 94th Congress might enact thf~ long-awaited consumer 
bill, the business eSh'lblishment ,,~~ mounted a massive campaign to secure.a Presidential 
veto commitment and to capture enough progressive votes to prevent a two-thirds 

. veto override. Their techniques mirror a James Bond novel,~omputer directed mail 
campaigns from companies all over the United States sparked to oppose the bill by 
misleading trade a'1Sociationinformation;discrete conversations withihe· President while 
playing golf; an expensive, unethical public opinion poll purporting to show that people 
no longer want government supported consumer protection2; a lengthy television film 
with retired Si~nator Sam Ervin railing against a bill. never understood during the 
.years he filibus~ered it in the Senate ("the Administrator would be an official scandlll
monger and wo~\Id destroy business without any, recourse to the COUrts."3); grassroots 
lobbying by c01'Jiorate district managers; withheld or promised campaign contributions; 
big dollar honori.lria for speeches by mer'ilbers of Congress; a misleasing and intimidating 
letter sent at the, request of the Chaml:Jer of Ccimmerce by Representative Don Fuqua 
(D-FL). to the business supporters 4 of the 'bill. suggesting that their position had been 
misstated by the supporters of the bill, and on and one""'.. 

Securing the promise of a Presidential veto w~~-e~y for the corporate lobbyists, 
even though it requii'ed reversal of Ford's prior support for the bill as Congressman 
from Grand Rapids 5 and rejection of the 1972 Republican platform by an unelected 
Presdient. TIle Challenge was to co-opt the new Congress. After the third Senate 
filibuster against the bill wa~ finally broken by a vote of 71 to 28, the business' 
lobby focused its fire on the House where the bill is certain to pass but needs to 
muster a % vote for enactment over the veto. 
Business lobbying to.deny consumers the privileges it enjoys 

While the Chamber of Commerce (budget: $20 million), !'Ifational Association of 
Manufacturers (budget $6.7 million), Grocery Manufacturers Associ,ation (budgc:t: $3 
million), Business Roundtable (budget: $3 million) and oth~~8 01?~~\'i!1~" c()~s~m~E! 

-,,- 'T"~ Sen,,!e pliilstiltlle bill by a vote of 74 to 4 in 1970-, but .i He vote iii -Ule -House Rules Com-
mittee p:revented the house frol!l voting on th!' m!lllSlJf!'. The HQlJ§e Qve.whelmin!!ly passed the bill in 
the 92nl} and 93rd Congresses, but the Senate filibustered both times. 6S Senate votes in 1974 was 
.one vot~-.short of the 'I!s needed. . 

.~ The Library of Congress analyzed the poll in depth and concluded that "The public may favor the 
ponsume~ Advocacy Agency or oppose it, but it is not possible :to use the Opinion Research poll to 
·~rrive at a final conselusion. on this maller." 

''fhe Chamber sent the film and tape to hundreds of television and radio stations but refused to 
dlselo!C the list to the bill's SPO~ISOrs who have filed a complaint with the FCC. 

• Supporters of thebill includ,\: AMFAC, Inc.: Atlantic Richfield Co.: Banlllm Books: Connecticut 
General Ufe Insurance Company: the Dreyfus Corporation: Gulf IIlld Western Co.: Jewel Companies, 
Inc.: King S\lper Markets Inc.; Labenthal Company: Mobil Oil Co.; Montgomery Ward: Phillips-Van 
Heusen, Poliuoid Corporation: Stop and Ship Companies: Stride Rite Shoes: United Artists. (l ., •. 

"in the 92nd Congress, Representative Gerald. Ford said:. ~.,.,~ • it is a sound, wor~:able bill ••. .I 
tl\ink we' will be well on the road to good legislation ill the consumer area." " 

'. • Major business opponents: Chamber of Commerce, National Association of ManUfacturers, Busi
ness Roundtable, National Association of Food Chains, Gmcery Manufacturers Association, General 
~l,otors, Ford Motor Co., American Cyanamid, Greyhound,,',Goodrich Tires.,Sears Roebuck, Gulf Oil, 
Proctor and Gamble, Union Carbide, General Electric, American Can, Bryce Harlow of Proctor and 
Gllmble and Rodney Markley of Ford are Presidential confidents. 
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the. capability in a modest $10 to $20 million agency to monitor the federal 'agencies 
and present their case at the appropriate time, they; themselves have long enjoyed 
these privileges. Although business receives taX' deductions. for' the costs' of lobbying' 
federal agencies, there is scarcely a major business interest group which dQes. not 
li!f!O have an agency or department expressly d(l~igned to spell!! its many millions 
of dollars of annual budget to promote, liubsidize .or advocate i~ interests: aviation, 
maritime, trucking, cotton,' tobacco, banking, nuclear power, drugs, automobiles, 
agribusiness, etc. A few examples. of legislated subsidies recently passed Or renewed 
are: . 

On February 19, the HCiuSe increased railroad assistance grants from $85 million 
to $282 million for operating expenses. The next day it added $100 million for Penn 
Central and other bankrupt railroads.' 

On May 12, the House: passed the maritime industry's annual subsidy" Much of 
the $589.7 million budget subsidizes the construction of ships, research, and. develop
ment. 

On. May 13, the House gave $11:2 million to the U.S. Travel Service to mount 
an. advertising campaign promoting business for the hotel and airline industries. 

On June. 26, the House passed the Department of eommerceappropriation. ·Included 
was $61 million for the Domestic andlntem<1,tionalBusiness Administration which 
subsidizes the sale of U.S. goods in foreign and domestic mar(ets, 

On July 14, the House refused to delete a subsidy for Cotton, Inc .. from the Agricul~ 
ture appropriations bill despite flagrant abuses by the corporation, inculding. building 
rellovation and moving expenses of well over a million dollars and payment to the 
corporation's President of a salary twice that of the Secretary of Agriculture. The 
remaindetof the $3 billion in funds is spent on research which the industry should 
be doing itself. .. . . 

On September 15 the tobacco industry obtained an alteratiort of the forwula which 
determines tobacco price supports. The .cost over the ne)(t 15 mont.lts: $Hn million .. 

In -the face of evidence that about' 5,000 deaths and 200,000 injuries result each 
year from burns associated with falmmable fabrics, Congress strengthened the Flamma
ble Fabrics Act in 1967. The Commerce Department charged with administering this 
law; took no action under it for four years. Finally, the agency issued clothing standards 
for children's sleepwear up to size 6)( (fits children &-7 yea,p' old). Manufactufers 
were given a two-year grace period to meet these requirements. There are still. no 
flammability s~andaf(!s for any clothing over size 6~. 

The.,Department of Transpprtation failed for seven years to issue standards to improve 
the crash survivability, of school buses despite numerous Congrci;siomil requests. This 
failure finally necessitated Congressional enactment of statUtory deadlin,~s requiring 
DOT action. . Ii 

The Federal Energy Office raised the maximum profit margin for gasoline retailers 
from 8 cents to 11 cents per gallon during the early months of 1974 to compensate 
them for a reduction in sales caused by government allocation. But when gasoline 
sales returned to normal, the Federal Energy Office failed to rolloback the maximum 
profit margin to 8 cents~ 

A \:975 Report :by the Comptroller General of the United States . found that the 
Food and Drug Administration did not comply with its own procedures to independently 
investigate the cause of a recall of cardiac pacemakers by manufacturers. The common\) 
defect in the pacemakers' was· a leakage of ~y fluids through the plastic seal. of 
the pacemakers causing short circuiting. The· FDA did. not give adequate conside~atiQn 
to possible adoption of a standard deve.loped, by the NaVy for . hernietic~a1ipg_9f - '.'-~-"',=,"=--c.-
er~~tr:Q!lic._~_£~m~~~~~ ___ ~::~~~p~~~n~"';-§\!grt~~f;J!it!ti~;causeq:"hy~~mifmtti~-,·::and:';5tiU~n~~-
not issuedanY"stafiaar(Js fo deal With thiS problem. 

THE AGENCY FOR CONSUMER ADVOCACY AND LABOR-MANAGEMENT RELATIONS 

One provision in the cons~mer agency bill, S. 1262, which nas attracted 'considerable 
attention' and debate. states that the ACA shall not, intervene in .labor-management 
disputes before the National Labor, Relations Board (NLRB), "and its, sister agency,,, 
the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service (FMCS). It is argued that iiconsumer 
advocate should be able to participate in federal agency activities· involvillg .Iabor 
as i~ will before those regulating business inasmuch as wages contribute signific;antly 
to the ultimat!;':, cost oJ consumer prodUCts. The purpose of this memorandum is to 
show that under the basic'definition of "interests of consumers" in S. 1262 and under 
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the scope of the NLRB and FMCS authority, the consumer advocate would be powerless 
to affect the terms of labor contracts. 

It is important initially to stress that the Iimitati011 under discussion is not an exemp
tion of organized labor. To the contrary, unions that intervene directly in the product 
and service market are as much subject to S. 1262 as any other person. 

During the last forty years it has been acknowledged that labor-management bargain
ing could nnt work effectively unless the parties were left to negotiate without outside 
interference. The labor laws in this country have accordingly been extensively and 
carefully nurtured over the years to accommodate this reality. Thus, the NLRB and 
the FMCS-the only two agencies which brush the bargaining process-may not deter
~lnf,l or dictate in any way, shape or form the parties' demands or the terms of 
their settlement. 

The NLRB was created to protect employees' rights to select bargaining representa
tives without management intc;:f;;,dnce and to bargain collectively. Beyond that, the 
NLRB does not have the authority to affect the actual outcome of the bargaining 
process. Indeed, the Supreme Court just five years ago expressly held that the Board 
may not intervene in that process or dictate any of the substantive terms (including 
the ecomomic impact on consumers) of collective bargaining agreements. Justice Black, 
speaking for the Court in Porter v. NLRB, 397 U.S. 99, 106, 107-108, had this 
to say about the Board's role: "it is clear that the Board may not, either directly 
or indirectly compel concessions or otherwise sit in judgment upon the substantive 
terms of collective bargaining agreements * * * and that Sec. 8 (d) [in particular] 
was an attempt by Congress to prevent the Board from controlling the settling of 
the terms of collective bargaining agreements. * * * It is implicit in the entire structure 
of the Act that the Board acts to oversee and referee the process of collective bargain
ing, leaving the results of the contest to the bargaining strengths of the parties." 
Since CongrtldS has determined that the Board is not to assess the "subsu., -ive terms 
of collective bargaining agreements", it would be mischievous to empowet the ACA 
to intervene before the Board to argue issues which are outside the scope of the 
Board's jurisdiction. 

Thus, while there can be no doubt that the activities of unions in representing 
the interests of their members-the working men and women of this nation-do from 
time to time "impede the flow of goods in interstate commerce" or temporarily "impair 
the operations of an instrumentality of commerce", as found by the Congress in section 
I of the National Labor Relations Act (29 U.S.C. 151), the .. purposeof the Congress 
there was not to confer responsibility or authority upon the NLRB to evaluate economic 
considerations of labor-management controversies as has been suggested by certain 
opponents of the ACA. In fact, any casual student of the legislative process readily 
recognizes that this language was inserted in the National Labor Relations Act as 
a means of bringing it within the scope of the interstate commerce clause of the 
United States Constitution. Moreover, even a summary examination of the history 
of that Act reveals that the Congress hoped to reduce the number and frequency 
of the many long, bitter and often violent strikes which characterized the times as 
a result of total employer recalcitrance to the very notion of collective bargaining. 
Indeed, this goal has been largely obtained by guaranteeing employees the right to 
organize, ,/1.0 strike, if need be, and to select representatives with whom employers 
must bargsin collecti.vely. 

Another miGconception advanced by some opponents of the ACA is that the NLRB 
is authorized, and does regularly consider, many other public interest objectives such 
as the safety and general welfare of the popUlation at large when resolving various 
disputes arising under the National Labor Relations Act. Were this the case, then 
ACA intervention in NLRB proceedings might be appropriate to present such considera
tions. In fact, however, the Board is charged with responsibility under its Act for 
protecting employees' rights, including the right to strike, regardless of the consequences 
unless the strike is directed against a neutral or secondary employer. 

In order to provide relief to the general public in emergencies when a strike might 
threaten the public health, safety or welfare, the Congress conferred authority upon 
the President to impose what are commQnly called Taft-Hartley injunctions. 29 U.S.C. 
Secs. 176 et seq. By exempting the NLRB from the ACA, the Congress would hardly 
be prohibiting that agency from calling upon the President to issue such an injunction. 
The important point is quite simply that the NLRB is not empowered to consider 
the effects of its actions upon the general consuming public. 

Those who argue that the ACA should be entitled to partiCIpate in proceedings 
before.the NLRB argue that cases arising under Section 8(b)(4) and (e) ofthe National 
Labor Relations Act can have a substantial impact on consumers. The provisions in 
question prohibit union activities, includin/! strikes, which are directed at neutral, or 
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secondary employers, as a tool for obtaining a favorable s~ttlement of a dIspute with 
a primary employer whose, employees the union actually represents. An illustration 
of this type of proscribed activity, which has in fact been cited repeatedly by opponents 
of the labor-management provision, is where a union is seeking to preserve' work 
for its members and is striking to present an employer from purchasing prefabricated 
materials from an entirely neutral company. ' 0 

In Woodwork Migrs. Ass'n. v. NLRB, 386 U.S. 6/2 (1967), the Supreme Court 
was presented with the issue whether a strike by carpenters to protest their employer's 
decision to purcbase prefabricated doors, instead of pennitting them to cut the doors 
themselves, was a prohibited secondary union activity. In affirming an NLRB finding 
that in the circumstances of the case Sections 8(b)(4) and 8(e) had not been violated, 
the Court made it clear that these provisions were "limited to protecting employers 
in the position of neutrals between contending parties" and that the NLRB's task 
was not to weigh the economic effects, but rather to determine whether the strike 
was really directed 'toward the striking employees' oWn employer (viz., a "primary 
strike protected by Sections 7'and 13), or toward anp,ther "neutral" employer (viz., 
a "secondary" strike prohibited by Sec:tion 8(b)(4) arid (e». See 386 U.S. at 625, 
645~46. 

As to the relevance~, of economic considerations in arriving at this determination, 
the Supreme Court stres.::.ed: 

"The Woodwork Mant:facturers Association and amici who support its position ad
vance seyeral reasons, g'rounded in economic and technological factors, why [work 
preservation strikes] should be invalid in all circumstances. Those arguinents are ad-:
dressed to the wrong branch of"government. It may be that the time has come for 
a. re-evaluation of the basic content of collective bargaining as contemplated by the 
federal legislation. But that is for Congress. Congress has demonstrated its capacity 
to adjust the Nation '~, labor legislation to what, in its legislative judgment, constitutes 
the statutory patterrl appropriate to the developing state of labor relations in the 
country. Major revisions of the b~ic statute were enacted in 1947 and 1959. To 
be sure, then, Congress might be of' opinion that greater stress should be put on 
... eliminating nlore and more economic weapons from the ... [Union's] grasp . 
. . . But Congress' policy has not yet moved to this point.' ... Labor Board v . 
.(nsurance Agents' International Union, 361 U.S. 477, 500." (386 U.S. at 644.) 

In light of the foregoing, should there still be any lingering doubt about the Supreme 
Court's command to the NLRB to refrain from taking into consideration the economic 
and other peripheral consequences of its decisions which are to be based solelyupori 
the legal criteria set forth in the National Labor Relations Act, then an analysis of 
Section 4 will surely remove that doubt. From the date of its creation in 1'])35 through 
1940, the NLRB utilized the services of an internal organization known as the Division 
of Ecoaomic Research which prepared economic. data ·for use by the Board when 
resolving cases arising under its Act. When the Congress Jearned of this fact in t 940, 
it specifically aboliShed the Division. (See S. Min. Rep. ,No. 105, pt. 2, 80th Cong., 
lst Sess., p. 33.) But in 1947 Senator Taft an!=! Congressman Hartley were so intent 
on assuring that the BOard would attend to the law, and not to ,potential economic 
consequences, that they added to Section 4 the proviso that "Nothing in this Act 
shall be construed to authorize the Board to, appoint individuals for the putpose of 
* * * economic analysis." The point that under our present national 'labor policy 
the ACA has no place in NLRB or FMCS proceedings could not be more forcefully 
~ 0 

Similarly, the~e 1sno role for the ~CA to serve before the Federal Media:tion 
and Conciliation Service which was created simply to offer mediation services to parties 
in labor disputes to help them resolve their disagreements peacefully. It has 110 regulato
ry functions. The FMCS cannot impose its services upon unwilling parties nor dictate 
the outcnm~ of negotiations where their services have not been solicited. 

Historically, the. Collgress. has studiously followed a course of non-intetfe.-encewith 
free, give-and-take collective .bargaining and has sought only to create and preserve 
the delicate balance between organized )"bor and business management. While some 
people may, belieye that the time has come to readjust this balance, the place to 
do so.is not in the consumer agency bill. Any legislative tinkering with the collective 
bargaining process or. the potential economic strength of the respective parties will 
reqUire a thQrough analysis of all ,labor laws and the amendment of many of their 
provisions. The relative state of labo[' cpeace we. have achieved in this country by 
allowing two evenly matched, albeit economically powerful, parties to engage in unen
cymbered negotiations is not to be so cavalierly discarded. 

Should .a decision to readjust this delicate balance and to encourage consumer inter
vention.. be made, the Congress would have to give consumers, the tools needed to 
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effectively participate in labor-management negotiations, including a distinct group of 
expert personnel, subpoena power, and full rights of participation. 

A consumer representative could not intelligently assess union demands, nor effective
ly advocate a position of restraint without first making an extensive inquiry into produc
tIVity, an important cor.-~!ative factor in the consumer price function. The consumer 
!epresen~tive w<?uld a~cordingly have to be able to secure from management. exten;;ive 
mformatlon deahng WIth such zealously guarded matters as profits on vanous hnes 
of products, decisions relating to the type, cost and supply of raw materials, the 
design or composition of prOducl~, the design of assembly lines and allcication of 
the. labor force, the availability of more advanced or efficient machinery, plant locations, 
etc. As Mr. Lloyd T. Williams, Assistant General Counsel for Automotive Distribution, 
Ford Motor Company, said in the 1973 House hearings on the consumer agency 
bill, intervention by consumers in labor-management negotiations would be costly to 
the parties. It is apparent few legislators are now prepared to insert consumer interests 
into the midst of labor-management negotiations on a full partnership basis. 

The case for the creation of the independent Agency for Consumer Advoca<;y 
proposed in S. 1262 and for arming it with the painstakingly delineated powers stated 
in Sections 4, 5, and 6 has been so strongly made that some opoonents of the bill, 
bereft of arguments on the merits, have resorted to fabrication of a superficially appeal
ingissue. Their public posture against the labor-management r.elations provision is 
billed as advocacy of equal treatment of business and. labor and opposition to an 
exemption for a powerful special interest group. The hypocrisy of these new converts 
to strengthening the ACA's powers with authority to intervene in labor-management 
activities is made evident by their simultaneous opposition to removal of Section 
10(a)(4) which exempts over 90 percent of all businesses from the duty to provide 
information to the ACA. The so-called "labor exemption" smokescreen is another 
creation designed to confuse many well-intended members of Congress who as a matter 
of principle do not favor special exceptio'Js in legislation. 

GENERAL BACKGROUND MATERIALS 

RESPONSES TO QUESTIONS ABOUT THE AGENCY FOR CONSUMER PROTECTION 

QUestion. Why not reform the existing agencies instead of creating a new agency? 
Answer. The Agency for Consumer Protection is the most sensible route to regulatory 

reform. It is an. anti-bureaucratic ombudsman which can prod the regulatory agencies 
to perform. And it addresses the fundamental flaw in the regulatory process-the 
failure of agencies to consider the interests of all affected persons in making crucial 
decisions affecting citizens' health, safety and economic wellbeing. . 

Regulatory agencies act in a quasi-judicial capacity and base their decisions on 
the record of information before them. To be an effective advocate before an agency 
requires considerable expertise and money. Large corporations and trade aSsociations 
have the wherewithal to present a strong case to a regulatory agen.cy. Consumers, 
however, lack the organization and resources. While they are charged with acting 
in the public interest, regulatory agencies are not obliged to search out rebuttal iijforma
tion and analyses to make a balanced record on behalf of consumers, and indeed 
they rarely do so. As a result, agencies have habitually tilted toward tliase exerting 
the most persistent pressure. With a consumer representative, the regulators would 
have to strike the fairest balance between opposing views because capricious accom
modation of one party would form the basis for a judicial challenge by the other 
side. '" 

Thus, while agency procedures can and should be reformed, prcicedural· reform is 
no substitute for equal representation. No amount of procedural reform will provide 
consumers with the expertise and analysis that is developed by an advocate in a 
specific proceeding. And not to be dismissed is the fact that, with that expertise 
in hand, citizens would be better able to express their individual views. 

Question. How can the Consumer Protection Agency contribute to regulatory reform? 
Answer. The consumer advocate would enhance and further the goals of regulatory 

refomi. For example, it would seek: more openness in the conduct of government 
.and partiCipation by citizens in decision-making: explicit reasons publicly stated for 
actions taken or not taken by an agency; revie\:oand exposure of excesses and violations 
of rights by agencies; abolition of whole or parts of agencies, particularly those which 
shield industries from competition, deter new entrants, and prevent enforcement of 
the anti-trust laws; systematic non-partisan reporting to the Congress about the contribu
tions and the deficiencies of regulatory actions, especially as they affect the victims 
who are supposed to be protected: consistent, in-depth review of specific agency activi
ties. 
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Regula,tory reform is a continuing process, not a one time decision. As an independent 
particip~nt, In agency proceedings, the consumer advocate would be in a position to 
continually push for, evaluate, and report on agency refomi. 

Question. Will the Consumer Agency be another layer of bureaucracy? 
Answel', No. Because it is an advocate, not a regulatory agency, its rights are virtually 

identiCal to thos~ of any oth!lr perso~ under t.he Yaw. It .cannot stop a re~uJatory 
agency from actmg, nor can It force It to act. It clinnot Impose any penalties, nor 
~ssue any licenses. It does not constitute. another step in the regulatory process with 
which the regulated lndustry must contend, except to the extent tbat it must be accorded 
due process rights to comment or otherwise participate in an agency proceeding. and.= 
to seek judicial review on behalf of consumers just as the regulated industry is accorded 
these' lights. 

To suggest that representation of interests not otherwise represented in a government 
proceeding constitutes a "layer" of activity is ~o misunderstand advocacy and due 
process rights. In addition, the consumer advocate's activities do not duplicate any 
responsibilities or functions of existing agencies. 

Question. In view of the need to cut Government spending, how can the creation 
of this agency be justified? 

Answer. First, it is a mere polka dot in the federal budget, with a maximum authoriza
tion of $15 million in the first year and $25 million in the third (less in the House 
bill) .. The appropriation will be smaller. This represents about two to three hOlli'S'" 
of the Pentagon budget, or about 25 cents per American taxpaying faJllily per year. 
By way of comparison; the Commerce Department, which is charged with the duty 
to "foster, promote, and develop commerce and industry," has a budget of $1.4 billion, 
many times that of the consumer agency. " 

Second, it is hypocracy to suggest that we cannot afford a tiny consumer 'adVOcate 
at a time when the government· is spending billions and billions of dollars of taxpayer 
money for subsidies and promotion of a multitude of business interests including avia
tion, maritime, trucking, cotton, tobacco, banking, nuclear power, drugs, automa;biles, 
agribusiness, small business, and on and on. Each of these industries has a goverliment 
agency concerned specifically about its welfare. Cotton, Inc., for example, was recently 
appropriated $3 million in federal funds to promote cotton. 

Third, the consumer agency is not a subsidy program. Historically, the mushrooming 
budgets have supported subsidy programs, not the regulatory agencies. The budgets 
for the federal regulatory agencies are together less than about $500 million; and 
agencies like the Federal Trade Commission which have been inexistencesinc~ 1914 \ 
have budgets of only $40 million. Claims that the consumer advocate's'budget will ".;J! 
balloon ignore historical precedents. 

Question. Won't the consumer advocate increase the cost of agency proceeqings? 
Answer. To the extent that existing proceedings are budgeted to hel!1 opposing (('t 

views, .as they obviously should, it is unlikely that one additional voice Will increase 
agency costs. To the extent that agencies do not now consider a variety of views, 
.it is possible that a small incremental cost will be added. On tbe, other h-imd, a 
consumer advocate can be a catalyst for more expeditious proceedings by opposing 
the kind of intentional. delay now practiced by regulated industries as their way of 
avoiding enforcement and' maintaining the status quo. Because deaths, injuries and 
frauds are continuing, consumers are usually interested in speedy action, Where delays 
are 'short circuited, costs are cut. "," 

Other gains can also offset costs. These include: 
, 1. Effective consumer advocacy' in opposing unjustified or excessive increases in 

prices sought by regulated industries ~an reduce budgetary pressures on federal agencies 
who are large consumers of goods ;il!d services supplied byregu~jlted industries (e.g., 
the Defense Department is one of the largest users of long distance telephone calls); 

2. Regulated industries will tend to exercise restraints in seeking 0 excessive or un
justified increases and concessions in the face of effectiveconsumeroppbSition; 

3. The shllrpening of iSSUeS and narroWing. of, debate likely to result from adversary 
proceedings in which all sides are reasonaoly represented will leoo to' more efficient 
desicion-malting, and more importantly, fairer decisions. 

Question. Won't the Consumer AdvOCate increase'the cost of complying with Govern-
ment regulations? ...., 

Answer. There is no inherent reason why consumer participation 'should. increase 
compliance, cos~. In fact, for many cases the presence of a consumer advocate should 
help reduce compliance costs because consumers do not want to pay higher prices. 
Thus, regulations,.whi,ch require trucks to tmvelempty to accommodate the trucking 
monopoly or railroad cars t9 remainr.idle would be opposed. 

j 
l 
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As to health and safety standards, one role of a consumer advocate could be to 
press for performance standards, thus allowing the manufacturer to meet the standards 
with any design it wishes, including the most cost/effective design. To a great extent 
the costs of compliance lie clearly within the discretion of the regulated industry 
which can use costleffective or cost/meffective designs. 

Regulated industries have blamed the government again and again for increased 
prices when in fact only a small portion of an increase, if any, is attributable to 
the regulations. Automobile manufacturers are a case in point. An important role 
for a consumer advocate is to dissect cost claims so that regulatory agencies can 
strike the fairest balance between protection of the public and the costs of achieving 
that protection. Without consumer participation in regulatory proceedings, the cost 
claims of the regulated industry are rarely examined. 

Question. How will the Consumer Advocate decide what is in the interest of con
sumers? 

Answer. The consumer interest in health, safety and economic well being in market
place transactions is generally both apparent and uniform. For example, all consumers 
have an interest in preventing consumer fraud. Where there are different consumer 
interests, the responsibility of the advocate is to make sure they are reasonably heard, 
not to decide which to represent and which to ignore. To the extent anyone is already 
adequately represented, the advocate is directed to focus on others. The bill also 
makes it clear that the agency is not an exclusive advocate, thus encouraging private 
consumer representation wherever feasible. 

'Thus, the consumer advocate need not decide what is "the" consumer interest. 
Rather, it would present facts and arguments about the effect of federal agency decisions 
on consumers, with either single or multiple points of view. In this regard, the consumer 
agency is no different from other organizations which represent diverse points of view, 
whether they are the Department of Agriculture or the Chamber of Commerce. 

The, fact that consumer interests may be diverse is hardly a reason for perpetuating 
the present monopoly of representation by producers, and rejecting representation by 
a consumer advocate. 

Question. Can't consumers be adequately represented by offices within the regulatory 
agencies or by private organizations? 

Answer. Consumer protection offices within federal agencies can serve as an impor
tant referral service and prod for consumers interests, but they are not a substitute 
for an independent office outside the regulatory agencies. A consumer advocate must 
not be beholden to the interests of the agency before which it is appearing. Businessmen 
routinely hire outside the auditors to review business 'activities independently. The 
same principle applies to consumer representation. Agency consumer offices are merely 
adjuncts of the agency, with little or no authority (for example, no right of judicial 
review) and meager budgets. Business Week referred to them, whether in corporations 
or agencies, as "window dressing." If adequately staffed, a consumer advocate office 
within each agency, even without judicial review, wi;mld cost more than H.R. 7575 
or S. 200. ,: 

As to private organizations, historically they have':,~en under-financed and forced 
to compete beyond their means with business trade organizations as the Chamber 
of Commerce (budget: about $20 million); the American Petroleum Institute (budget: 
ahout' $18, million); the National Association of Manufacturers (budget: about $6.7 
million); the Grocery Manufacturers Association (budget: about $3 million); the Busi
ness Roundtable (budget: about $3 million); the National Association of Food Chains 
(budget: about $1.25 million). In addition, the corporate members of these trade as
sociations have millions of dollars to spend on representing their interest in addition 
to being the key sOUi'ce for information about the matter subject to regulation. Further
more, it is unrealistic to' suggest that even a combination of consumer groups could 
handle intervention or participation in major cases such as long distance' telephone 
rate increases or corporate fraud. 

Question. Is it appropriate for one Government agency to sue another? " 
Answer. The belief that the United States cannot sue itself is the greatest misconcep

tion of all, In the U.S. v. I.C.C., the Supreme Court overturned a district court decision 
which had held the government was restricted in this way. 

The Justice Department has stated that intra-governmental litigation "in fact, of 
course ... is far from unique." Milton M. Carrow, Chairman' of the ABA Section 
of Administrative law has written: ". . . no new problems, either doctrinal Of practical, 
are presented by the proposal to give the CPA the right to initiate ('Ir intervene 
in proceedings for judicial review of other agency's actions, and that tbe feasibility 
and desirability of interagency iitigation should accordingly be recognized in this context 

~ as readily as elsewhere ... 

,. 
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RE~PONSE TO BUS.INESS COMMENTS ON CONSUMER PROTECTION AOENCY 

Question. Would CPA create more unnecessary bureaucracy unresponsive to con
sumers? 

Answer. CPA is a response to the fact that the existing governmental decision making 
has been closed to those without power, money, and organization. CPA would "break 
in" to .the bureaucracy, carIying the views of consumers who have been unable to 
penetrate the agencies making crucial decisions affecting them. Rather than, increase 
bureaucracy, CPA would help to make it more responsive to citizen interests. 

Question. Would CPA be a super agency with powers never before given to a, 
Government agency? 

Answer. CPA would have absolutely no power to regulate, tei impose penalties, 
to grant or deny licenses, or to make rules.· It would serve simply as an advocate. 
CPA would have no greater right to obtain information from business Or from <)ther 
agencies than other government agencies. 

Question. Would CPA radically alter the way Government relates tc Business? 
Answer. To the extent that government and business have reached dosed-door .deci

sions without giving due consideration to the consumer viewpoint, CPA would change 
the present relationship. However, CPA would not change the reftUlatory responsibilities 
of other agencies nor would it prohibit business and other mterested parties from 
communicating with these agencies. CPA would simply open the door on these delibera
tions, exercising its right to participate to the same extent as other interested parties. 

Question. Would CPA mean more delay and red tape for business? 
Answer. CPA would be bound by the same' proceclural rules and time limits which. 

apply to busil!ess and other parties to agency proceedings. CPA would simply enter 
an ongoing agency proceeding or activity, in accordance with the rules of th", host 
agency. Also, the CPA will have limited resources ($15 to 25 million)-!oss, for exam
ple, than the Defense Department's public relations office on the annual budget of 
the Chamber of the Commerce, and it therefore would be able to participate in 
relatively few, carefully chosen cases. 

Question. Would CPA be a "dual prosecutor"? 
Answer. CPA would have no power to decide the outcome bf a case or ,"'-.) impose 

fines or other penalties. Its rights in enforcement proceedings would be 'the same 
rights of advocacy, discovery, cross-examination of witnesses, and presentation of 
evidence as other parties or participants. 

Question. Would CPA harass business with· "fishing expeditions"? 
Answer. CPA is given limited power to gather consumer-related information by send

ing interrogatories (i.e., que~tionnaires) to those engaged in business activities wb~9-. 
substantially affect consumers' interests. Business can challenge these requests in couit-· 
and they will be enforced only if CPA can show that they fleek information that 
substantially affects consumer health or safety or which is nec;essary to discover con
sumer fraud or other unconscionable conduct detrimental to consumers. They will 
not be enforced if the recipient shows that they are excessively burdensome. Moreover, 
CPA cannot use this power if the information is already available publicly or from 
another agency. c, , 

CPA has no independent subpoena power, but it does have the same right to ask 
a host agency to use its subpoena power during an agency proceeding as' any other 
party, including any business, has under the Administrative, Procedure Act. CPA may 
also request that an agency issue a subpoena relevant to a structured j:ltoceeding 
in which it is a participant but not a full party, but the host agency will issue the 
subpoena only if it is relevant and the evidence· sought is reasonably related to the 
proceeding. ' 

Question. Could CPA expose trade secrets? 
Answer. CPA employees would be subject to the same criminal penalties for 

unauthorized disclosure of trade secrets and oth~:' confidential information Which apply 
to employees of other federal agencies. CPA would nol>ba' authorized to disclose 
trade secret or other information acquired from another agency if that agency stated· 
that the information is exempt from disclosure under· the Freedom of InfoiTnation 
Act. Where, CPA acquired trade secret information from another source, it could 
be discl~d only if necessary to preotect the public health and safety. 

Question. DOes the bill bar CPA from intervening in any matter affecting labor 
unions? ,'. 

Answer. No. CPA would be barred only from participating in labor-managemerli 
negotiation' sessions before the NLRB or the Federal' Mediation and Conciliation$er
vice, agencies~'lat sel";'e principally as impartial arbiters assuring that both sides follOW 
procedural rules in working out their differences. Although . labor costs .~o affect. prices 
in the mark~t-place, both -'labor and management (including active opponents of CPA 

/) 
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who berate this exemption) favor exclusion of CPA from participating in these sessions, 
as CPA would require access to management's productivity and other financial data 
in preparing its case. Of course CPA would not be precluded from intervening where 
a union serves in a role other than collective bargaining a&ent. For example, CPA 
could act where a union conspired with an employer to VIolate anti-trust laws or 
where a union owned bank violated truth-in-lending laws. 

Question. Would CPA have unique rights to seek judicial review or agency decisions 
which would open all agency decisions to "second guessing?" 

Answer. No. Any person who is "aggrieved" by an agency decislon may seek judicial 
review of that decision whether or not he participated below. Participation in an 
agency proceeding is not a prerequisite for standing to seek review of the agency's 
decision, according to case law. CPA is given statutory standing where consumer 1Il

terests are aggrieved and thus may initiate judicial action or intervene in an ongoing 
case, as any "aggrieved" party could. 

Prior to initiating judicial review of decisions in which he did not participate, however, 
CPA must petition the host agency for rehearing o. reconsideration. No other person 
is required to automatically file such a petition in. every case, It is a unique burden 
placed on CPA. Thus, CPA's ability to seek review of these decisions is not unique 
and would not open decisions to "second guessing" to which they are not already 
subjected. 

Question. Would CPA make informal negotiations 1)etween Government and business 
impossible? 

Answer. No, but CPA could participate in these non-structured activities by presenting 
written or or~l submissions in an orderly manner and without causing undue delay. 
The Federal agency would have to give full consideration to these submissions. Such 
orderly participation does not make negotiations impossible. It merely assures that 
the decision-makers are cognizant of the impact proposed negotiated agreements will 
have on consumers before negotiations are concluded. . 

Question. Would CPA result in less consumer protection by increasing costs and 
reducing choice in the marketplace? 

Answer .. CPA would have no power to take products off the market or to set 
standards wlllch products must meet. If products on the market are unsafe or ineffective, 
the consumer\linterest warrants bringing these facts to the attention of the appropriate 
regulatory age\lcy. CPA could petition the agency to act, but the regulatory agency 
would decide wi;ether to take the products off just as they do today. 

CONSUMER PROTECTION AND SMALL BUSINESS 

In many ways the plight of the small businessman and. the consumer are parallel. 
The Consumer Protection Agency bill creates an instrument, a consumer advocate, 
which will substantially benefit small businesses as well as consumers in the following 
ways: 

1. Some of thl! most! significant and necessary costs to consumers and to small 
businesses emanate from anticompetitive and monopolistic practices. Professors William 
Shepherd and Richard Barber have both calculated that up to two-thirds of our manu
facturing sector is characterized by oligopoly power-where four or fewer firms control 
50 percent or more of the market. J,n a preliminary 1972 study of just 100 major 
industries, the Federal Trade Commi~sion found consumers overcharged a· total of 
$ 1 5 billion due merely to their concentrated structures. F. M. Scherer, director of 
the Federal Trade Commission's Bureau of Economics, has estimated the economic 
waste and losses from oligopoly and other breakdowns of competition at 6.2' percent 
of the GNP-which based on the 1974 GNP of $1,396.7 billion amounts to $87 
billion annually. 

In addition to their overpayment of costs because of monopoly power; .small business 
is continually squeezed Ollt by the monopoly power of" large companies. One key 
obligation. of the consumer. advocate will be to focus on'iR)10nopoIistic practices and 
press for strict enforcement· pf the antitrust laws throug.! participation :in antitrust 
consent decree hearings, through sending data to the Justice Department Antitrust 
Division and the Federal Trade Commission Bureau of Competition, through petitions 
to these agencies for initiation of cases enforcing the law, and recommendations to 
Congress for new legislation to facilitate antitrust enforcement on behalf of consumer 
interestS. 

2. Business fraud is a major source of illegal revenue and much of it is taken 
from. hc;mest small businesSmen as well as from consumers. Other criminal activity 
by bllsiness incre~s prices or ref!ylt& in Ynfair gQm~titiQn. An l.mprecec:\e!1tec:\ wave 
of corporate illegality. has been sweeping the business community, with daily revelations 
about .political payoffs, tax fraud, illegal campaign contributions, (some in return for 
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specific favors), over charges by government contractors, failure to comply ~th securi
tIes disclosure laws and others. 

In the 18 months ending in December, 1974, the FBI"announced that white collar 
convictions were up 30 per cent, and the Uhited States Chamber of Commerce reports 
that white collar cnme costs Americ~ns at least $40 billion annually. 

One responsibility of the consum'h advocate will be to press for enforcement of 
federal regulatory laws against violatol'S, whether they be deceptive advertisers, price 
fixers, or manufacturers of defective products. While protecting consumer interests, 
such action by the consumer advocate will also fac;:i1itate the business operations of 
honest small businessmen who are disadvantaged by dishonest competitors or corrupt 
sellers of products small businessmen use in the course of doing business. 

3. Many of the rate-making regulatory agencies have become governmentally sanc
tioned price fixers for the regulated industries, such as trucking, airlines and telecommu
nications. The agencies' slow pace and expensive clearance procedures JJdeter entry 
of newcomers into the marketplace, their requirements often cost consumers far more 
than an unregulated, competitive industry, and the antitrust immunity granted the regu
lated industry fosters monopoly<,which in tum demands continued regulation. The con
sumer interest and small businessman's interest in deregulation of such industries and 
reintroduction of competition is similar. The consumer advocate could petition existing 
agencies to release some of their regUlatory controls aud recommend corrective legisla-
~~~~pa • 

4. The small fann,er wiU also be significantly assisted by the consumer advocate. 
Like all American families, fanners face the same consumer injustices, such as price 
gouging, fraudulent schemes, mail-order gyps, unsafe products, credit abuses, and energy 
manipUlations. Farmers also consume products for their operations-propane and other 
fuels, fertilizers, seed, fann equipment-and need such services as credit and animal 
,health care. Just in the fann equipment area alone, a volume could be written 'about 
''fanner gtievances. And fanners often speak, as do state attorneys general, of 
monopolistic practices and corporate collusiveness designed specifically to relieve, far_ 
mers of their hard earned money. Another concern of fanners is transportation of 
fann products. Railr('a.d freight rates and practices may not concern the Interstate 
CommerceCommissi6n but they do concern farmers. Exorbitant "middle men" profits 
raise the price of food to consumers for which farmers often receive the blame. 
The Washington D.C. based trade associations which represent many of these "middle 
nlen" are p~'rdictably against the consumer agency. 

LISTS OF ORGANIZATIONAL AND BUSINESS SUPPORTERs OF THE LEGISLATION 

Our coalition, (:onsisting of various consumer, farm, senior citizen, religious, and", 
community group:$, labor unions, and state and local officials, favor enactment of"'<, 
the agency for consumer advocacy legislation. " 

NATIONAl. GROUPS 

Amalgamated Ck)thing Workers of America (AFL-CIO). 
Amalgamated Mellt Cutters and Butcher Workmen (AFL-CIO). 
American Association of Retired Persons. 
American Association of University Women. 
Americans for Democratic Action. 
B'nai B'rith Women. 
Common Cause. 
Communications Workers of America (AFL-CIO). 
Consumer Action for rrijp~oved Food and Drugs. 
Consumer Federation of America. 
Consumers Union of the United States, Inc. 
Cooperative League of the United States of America. 
Friends of the Earth. 
International Association of Machinists ¥Id Aerospace Workers (AFL-CIO). 
International Union of Electrical Radio!a:iJd Machine Workers (AFL-CIO). 
International Ladies Garment Workers Ullion (AFL-CIO). 
Movement for Economic Justice. ' 
National Black Media Coalition. 
National Congress of Hispanic-American Citizens. 
National Consumers Congress. 
National Consumers League (Esther PetersPn, Pr!:Sident). 
National Council of Senior Citizens. ' 
National Fanners Union. 
National Women's Political Caucus. 
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Oil, Chemical and Atomic Workers International Union (AFI.r-CIO). 
Public Citizen (Congress Watch). 
Retail Clerks International Association (AFL--CIO). 
Sierra Club. 
United Auto Workers. 
United Mine Workers of America. 
United Presbyterian Church (Washington Office). 
United Steelworkers of America (AFLrCIO). 
Women's Equity Action League. 
Women's Lobby. 
Women's National Democratic Club. 
Consumer Advocates. 

LOCAL GROUPS AND INDIVIDUALS 

,i'(llabama 

.il Alabama Labor Council (AFLrCIO). 
J Julian Butler, Attorney-at-Law (Jluntsville). 

Morris Decg, Civil Rights Attol'irey (Montgomery). 
Elmore Community Action Committee (Wetumpka). 
Dr. Higdon Roberts, Jr., Director, Center for Labor Education and Research, Univer

sity of Alabama (Birmingham). 
Ronald Menton, Director, Alabama Credit Union League. 
William Baxley, Attorney General. 

Arizona 
Paul Castro, Governor. 
Arizona Consumer Council. 
Arizona Committee for Social Utility. 
Tucson Public Power. 

Arkansas 
David Pryor, Governor. 
Earl Anthes, Community Development Consultant (West Memphis). 
Arkansas Community Organization for Reform Now (Little Rock). 
Arkansas Consumer Research (Little Rock). 
Jim Guy Tucker, A~orney General. 

California 
Alamada County Consumer Action, Inc. 
California Citizen Action Group. 
California Public Interest Research Group. 
CalPIRG Advocates. . 
Coalition,for Santa Clara Valley. 
Consumers Cooperative (Don Rothenberg, Richmond). 
Consumers Coop of Palo Alto. 
Consumers United of Palo Alto. 
Fight Inflation Together (Los Angeles). 
Friends Committee on L.egislation of Southern California. 
Gil Graham, Esq., Lawyers Committee for Urban Affairs (San Francisco). 
Bob Fellmeth, Deputy District Attorney (San Diego). 
People's Lobby (Los Angeles). 
San Francisco Consumer Action. 
San Francisco Consumer Advocates. 

Colorado (> 

Colorado League for Consumer Protection. 
Colorado Public Interest Research Group. 

Connecticut 
Connecticut Citizen Action Group. 
Connecticut Consumer Association, Inc. 
Connecticut Public Interest Research Group. 

Delaware 
Mrs. Frances West (Director, Consumer Affairs Division). 

District of Columbia 
District of Columbia Public Interest Research Group. 

~\ 
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Florida 
Reubin Askew, Governor. 
American Consumers Association, Inc. 
Concerned Consumers of Dade County. 
Congress of Senior Citizens. 
Consumer lnfonnation Center of Central Florida, Inc. 

~) 

Mrs. Stanley Goldberg, Commissioner of Metropolitan Dade County. 
Georgia 

Citizens Consumer Council of Georgia. 
Guam 

Ricardo Bordallo, Governor. 

Idaho 
Cecil D. Andrus, Governor. 

Illinois 
Dan Walker, Governor. 
11Iinois Public Interest Research Group. 

Indiana 
Indiana Public Interest Research Group. 

Iowa 
Iowa Consumers' League. 
Iowa Public Interest Research Group. 

,Kansas 
Consumer Relations Board, Kansas"3tate University. 
Consumer United Program. 
William Griffin, Assistant Attorney General & Chief, Consumer Protection Division. 
Kansas City Consumers Association. 
Richard L. D. Morse, Professor, Family Economics, Kansas State University. 
Earl Sayre, Legislative Chainnan, Kansas Couni:il on Aging. 
Curt Schneider, Attorney General. 

Kentucky 
Consumers Association of Kentucky, Inc. 
Kentucky Public Interest Research Group. 

Louisiana 
Acadiana League. 
Consumer Protection Center. 
William Guste, Attorney General. 
Louisiana Consumers' League. 
Mayor's Office of Consumer Affairs (New Orleans). .. 
Charles W. Tapp, Director, Louisiana Governor's Office of , Consumer Protection. 

Maine 
COMBAT, hic. (Portland). 
Maine Public Interest Research Group. 

Mary/and 
Marvin Mandel, Governor. 
Alliance for Democratic Refonn (Montgomery County). 
Maryland Citizens Consumer Council. 
Maryland Public Interest Research Group., 
Montgomery County Office of Consumer Affairs. 

Massachu,etts 
Father McEwen, President, Association of Massachusetts Consumers (Boston). 
Massachusetts Public Interest Research Group. . 

Michigan 
William G. Milliken, Governor. 
Consumer Alliance of Michigan. 
Michigan Citizen's Lobby. 
Michigan Consumer's Council. 
Michigan Public interest Research Group. . 
Es.ther K. Shapiro, Director, Consumer Affairs Departme~t, City of Detroit, 
Robert Leonard, District Attorney (Flint). . 0 

\1 
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Minnesota 
Wendell R. Anderson, Governor. 
Sherry Chenoweth, Director, Minnesota Office of Consumer Services. 

Missouri 
Housewives Elect Lower Prices. ~/ 
Mid-American Coalition for Energy Alternatives (Clinton). 
Missouri Public Interest Research Group. 
St. Louis Consumer Federation. 

Montana 
Thomas L. Jud~e, Governor. 
Consumer AffaIrs Council, Inc., of Montana. 

Nebraska 
J. James Exon, Governor. 
Consumer Alliance of Nebraska. 

Nevada 
Consumer League of Nevada. 
Rex Lundberg, Commissioner of Consumer Affairs. 
Robert List, Attorney General. 
Elliot Sattler, Deputy Attorney General. 

l'{ew Jersey 
Brendan Byrne, Governor. 
Center for Consumer Education Services (Edison). 
New Jersey Public Interest Research Group. 

New Mexico 
Toney Anaya, Attorney General. 
Emily Belasquez, Director, Consumer Education Program, All Indian Pueblo Council. 
Delacroix Davis, Jr., Chairman, FEB Consumer Issues Committee (Albuquerque-

Santa Fe). 
Herman Grace, Director, Division of Human Resources, Office of the Governor. 
Mrs. Viola Pena, Director, Consumer Protection Division (Albuquerque). 
New Mexico Public Interest Research Group. 
Jerry Apodaca, Governor. 

New York 
Adolfo Alayon, Consumer Action (Bedford Stuyvesant). 
Center for Community Issues Research (Rochester). 
Consumer Action Now (CAN). 
Consumers Association of New York (Rochester). 
Consumer Protection Board (Huntington). 
Metro-Act of Rochester. 
New York Consumers Assembly. 
New York Public Interest Research Group. 
James Picken, Commissioner of Consumer Affairs (Nassau County). 

North Carolina 
North Carolina Cons.umer Council. 
Consumer Center of North Carolina. 
Conservation Council of North Carolina. 
North Carolina Public Interest Research Grou!'. 

North Dakota 
.Arthur A. Link)· Governor. 
Community Aption Line (Grand Forks). 

Ohio 
Consumer Action of North Dayton. 
Consumer Conference of Greater Cincinnati. 
Consumer Protection Association of Cleveland. 
Consumers League of Ohio. 
Ohio Consumers Association. 

Oregon 
community Care Association, Inc. (Portland). 
Oregon Consumers' League. 
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Pennsylvania 
Milton Shapp, Governor. 
Alliance for Consumer Protection. ? 
Bucks Coul}ty Consumer Organiza~jljh. 
Pennsylvania League for Consum,et Protection. 
Philadelphia Area Consumers' Council. 
Ruth Rodman, Director, Consumer Affairs Education Divi~ion, Philadelphia School 

District. 

Rhode Island 
Philip W. Noel, Governor. 

South Dakota 
RiI::hard F. Kneip, Governor. 

Tennessee 
Tennessee Consumer Allflance. 

Texas " 
John Hill, Attorney Geileral. 
Texas Consumer Assoq'fation. 
\~xas Public Interest ~esearch Group. 

Vermont 
Thomas P. Salmon, Governor. 
Vennont Public Interest Research Group. 

Virginia 
Virginia Consumers Citizens Council. 

Washington 
Daniel J. Evans, Governor. 
Washington Committee 9~Consumet' Interests. 

West ':~lirginia ' - ' 

West Va. Citizen Action Group. 

Wisconsin 
Patrick J. Lucey, Governor. 

Wyoming 
Wyoming Public Interest Research Group. 

C) 

BUSINESS SUPPORTERS OF THE CONSUMER PROTECTION BIL.LS H.R. 6118 AND S. 1262 

Advanced R&D, Inc., Orlando,F1orida. ' 
Aldi-Benne~ Burlington, Iowa. , 
Alexander Hiimilton Life Insurance Co., Fannington, Michigan': 
American Income Life Insurance Co., Waco, TeXas. 
American Sound Corporation, Warren, Michigan, 
A,MFAC, Inc., Honolulu, Hawaii., _ . 
Amivest Corporation, New York, New York. 
Applikay Textile Process Corporation, Passaic, New Jersey. 
Atlantic Richfield Company, Los Angeles, California. 
Bantam Books, New York, New York. 
Blake's, Springfield~ Mass. 
Brands Mart, New York, New York. , 

(Cardinal Outdoor AdVertising, Erie, Pennsylvania, Danville, mi,nois, Terre HalJte, 
Indiana. ' " ,', 

Chain Store Systems, Burlington, Iowa; 
"Chief Auto Supply, Cerritos, California. 
Cinema 5 Development, New York, New York. 
Coffee Associates Food'Enterprises, South WindSor, Connecticut. 
Condamatic Company, Inc., Warren, Michigan. 
Connecticut General Life Insurance, Hartford, Connecticut. 
Consumers Cooperative of Berkeley, Inc., Berkeley, California. 
Conllumers Cooperative Socie~ of Palo Alto, PaIo, Alto, California.' 
Consumers United Insurance Company, Arlington; Virginia .. 

. Co-Op 'andCon~umer Supennarkets, SCAN ContemporarY Co-op Furnitli~i Siiver 
Spring, Maryland. 

Cummins Engine Company, Columbus, Indiana . . ; 



I" 

102 

Dansk Design, Mt. Kisco, New York. 
The Dreyfus Corporation, New York, New York. 
Dyna D~y Plastics, Inc., Warren, Michigan. 
Dyson-Kissner Corporation, New York, New York. 
Walter Emery, Bank of Denver, Denver, Colorado. 
Executive Life Insurance of New York, New York, New York. 
Factory Equipment Corporation, Los Angeles, California. 
Federation of Cooperatives, New York, New York. 
Feuer Precision Gauges, Inc., Forest Hills, New York. 
Florida Investors Mortgage Corporation, Gainesville, Florida. 
Frankel Carbon & Ribbon, Denver, Colorado. 
General Instrument Corp., New York, New York. 
Laurence Good, L. S. Good, Wheeling, West Virginia. 
GRT Corporation, Sunnyvale, California. 
Gulf & Western Company, New York, New York. 
Hamburger's, Baltimore, Maryland. 
Hang Ten International, San Diego, California. 
Harper Systems, Little Rock, Arkansas. 
Harris. & Frank, Los Angeles, California. 
Robert Hart, Boulder National Bank, Boulder, Colorado. 
Henhouse Interstate, St. Louis, Missouri. 
Hydro Medical Science, New Brunswick, New Jersey. 
International Creative Management, New York, New York. 
International Group Plans, Inc., Washington, D.C. 
Jewel Companies, Inc., Chicago, Illinois. 
Joseph & Feiss, Cleveland, Ohio. 
J<B Marketing System, Inc., Brillant. Ohio. 
Kennedy'S, Boston, Massachusetts. 
King Super Ma.rkets, Inc., Irvington, New Jersey. 
Labenthal Company, New York, New York. 
Levi-Strauss, San Francisco, Calif. 
Lloyd's Shopping Center, Middletown, New York. 
Maxell Corporation of America, Moonachie, New Jersey. 
MCA (parent of Universal Pictures). Universal City, California. 
Mobil Oil Company, New York, New York. 
Monogram Industries, Inc., Los Angeles, California. 
Montgomery Ward, Chicago, Illinois. 
Myers Bros., Springfield, III. 
National Patent Development Company, New York, New York. 
Oakland Consolidated Corporation, Maitland, Florida. 
Optical Systems Corp., Los Angeles, Calif. 
Phillips-Van Heusen, New York, New York. 
Piedmont Industries, New York, New York. 
Pioneer Systems, Manchester, Connecticut. 
Polaroid Corporation, Cambridge, Massachusetts. 
Professional.lnsurance Agents, Washington, D.C. 
Puritan Fashions Corp., New York, New York. 
Putnam-Gellman Corporation, New York, New York, 
Rainer Corporation, San Diego, California. 
Redwood & Ross Stores, Kalamazoo, Michigan. 
Rice's/Nachman's Stores, Norfolk, Virginia. 
Rob Roy, New York, New York. 
Royal Transmission, Las Vegas, Nevada. 
Scottie Car, Springfield, Illinois." 
Scottish Inns of America, Knoxville, Tennessee. 
Stop and Shop Companies, Boston, Massachusetts. 
,Stratford Town Fairs, Stratford, Connecticut. 
Stride Rite Shoes, Boston, Massachusetts. 
TDK Garden City, N.Y. 
United Artists, New York, New York. 
Warner Communication, New York, New York. 
Wroogler Hosiery, N.Y.C., New York. 

Chairman RIBICOFF. Mr. Riehm? ') 
I just want you to know Mr, Riehm that as long as I am chai~man 

tlothiIig is cut and dry. I welcom~, the point of view of every segment 
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of society, whether I agree with it or not. But I would hope that 
I will always accord an opportunity for every person and every group !~ 
to make their position known whether I agree with it or not. I think 
that is the very basis of democracy and. open government. 

I do welcome your position and I know it is taken sincerely. 
Whether I agree with it orenot, you do represent a substantial body. 

TESTIMONY OF JOHN W. RIEHM. DIRECTOR, VIcE PRESIDENT 
AND SECRETAr1t:i TO THOMAS. J. LIPTON CO., ,IN€., ACCOM
PANIED BY JEFFREY JOSEPH, DIRECTOR OF GO~RNMENT AND" 
CONSUMER AFFAIRS, CHAMBER OF COMMERCE OF THE UNITED 
STATES 

Mr. RIEHM. Mr. Chairman, I appreciate your very thoughtful obser
vation and open mindedness and willingness to listen to our remarks. 

I am J. W. Riehm, the vice president of external affairs of Thomas 
J. Lipton, Inc., and a member of the consumer affairs committee " 
of the chamber of commerce. With me is Mr. Jeffrey Joseph, the 
director ofgoverhment and consumer affairs for the national chamber. 

We are, as;;=.TQI.! might well expect, appearing on behalf of the 
chamber in gpposi'ti0n to S. 1262. 

I have a preP?i-ed statement and request that it be filed for the 
.' record. 

Chairman RIBICOFl". Without objection Y9ur entire statement will 
go in the record as if read and r as,~.'Jme you ,.}Vould like the exhibits 
to also go in the record. 

Mr. RIEHM. If they may. 
Chairman RIBlcoFF. The entire statement with the exhibits will go 

into the full committee record. 
Mr. RIEHM. Thank you. That will permit me to offer a few brief 

. summary remarks-which I want to suggest that the Agency for Con
sum.?r Advocacy is an idea whose time really has 'come agd' gone. 
Since it was first proposed 8 years ago, there have been' sweeping 
changes in Government including a change in administration which 
renders the ACA con\?ept, we believe, in;,~)evant, obs9,lete, and in 
fact disruptive of the current administration's goals. . "~\ 

Substantively there has been a near revolution in ,the creation'of 
Government programs and authority to fill gaps in serving and prote~t- c 

ing the consumer. I also appended to these remarks a partial listing, 
but one of the earlier speakers has detailed them to such a degi"ee 
Ido not feel it neces~ary to repeat that. " 

In addition, significant procedural steps have also been' taken to 
make existing agencies and programs more responsive to consumers 
and the public generally. 

Thet\CA's purpose is not in fact to assist the President .and the (j 

~~ngre~s in !?ect~f:ying bu~eaucratic ~ottlc::n.eck~, but ra~her I submit 0 

It IS to create costl;y and tlme-consummg lItigation. Nor IS the ACA '~, 
purpose to really help individual agencies themselves identify the con
sumer interests, but rather 'to th~eatert them' with litigation afte·r they 
have acted. " ., ' 

The ACA Was originally conce,ived by our forfuer speaker, Mr. 
Nader, as an agency strike forc~ .for regulatory reform, and it$ opt-moO 
ended litigation powers would permit the ACA to challenge virtually 
any Government decision in court from envii'OiimentalpoIicy'tQ ttii!lS." 
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portation to ener~olic.y. Neither the consumeJ;s nor eve.n the Pres
ident CQuid queshon tIie A"C:A'S actIvity and ft would decide solely 
on its own what its position is going to be and how: it would espouse 
it. Agencies are created. under our system of government as agents 
of the President or the Congress to lend: expert judgment in carrying 
out agreed upon policies in a complex society, The establishment 
of an ACA with sufficient expertise to secottd-glless every governmen
tal· decision in the courts means that either the Government or the 
ACA is redundant. The presence of a Democratic President in the 
White House makes possible a joint Presidential and congressional 
program of Government reorganization and reform. To create a litiga
tion strike force at this time is completely inconsistent with any ra
tional reorganization and reform program. 

I said earlier before you came in, Senator Percy, that one of the 
central points of this legislation is the giving of this power to the 
advocate or to the Administrator to carry on these proceedings both 
in an intervening sense at the administrative level and at the judicial 
level. .'. . 

The ACA bill treats all government alike, lumping. State, Treasury 
together. ~ith OMB, the CAB and the FBC. Yet the .very,' premise 
of reo~ganization is the need for selec~ive approaches such as, for 
example, deregulation in. some areas like the CAB, and the ICC, 
a,nd consolidation in others such as in eni~rgy. I cannot help wondering 
whether Mr. Carter reflected on the pq,tential inconsistency between 
his message to you on the 'ACA and his position on energy. And 
I cannot help wondering how happy he would be with an ACA inter
vention in' an energy department, determination to raise natural gas 
rates or reallocate the use of reserves. 

Instead of instructing its own committees to seek information from 
agencies to evaluate their performance and ensure their accountability 
to .the public, this bill would have Congr.ess delegate that task of 
congressional oversight to yet another agency by granting it the right 
to unrestricted access to the files of all the Government without 
making the agency accountable to the President or anyone but itself . 

. This goes to the point, Senator' Ribicoff, which you. mentioned earlier 
in your observations toMr. Nader about the relative degrees of over
sight responsibilities of the Congress on the one hand and. what the 
advocate would be doing On the other. 

Instead of urging or enabling agencies to cooperate in obtaining 
more complete data on industry, Congress would be creating yet 
another agency to issue its own subpenas, forms" and requests for 
report$,~ Instead of trying to create a framework for responsive deci
sions that need not be reviewed and litigated.in courts, Congress 
would be creating an agency, one of whose purposes would be to 
subject as many governmental decisions as.po{;sible to court review. 

In sho~t, without going into the detaiJed language of the bill, we 
believe all of the inherent defects of the earlier bills· .are still present 
and the. comments we submitted on, those bills are equally, appliqable 
here. 

Appended to this statement is an index of 400 newspapers around 
the countty which have editorialized in opposition to the ACA concept 
of. .more government. and more' complex regulatory mechanisms 
disrupting the' Government. 
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Also 8ttached are copies of editorials written in the last several 
days. 

It is apparent that public opposition to this concept continue!; to 
grow as its true meaning is better understood. We submit that the 
legislation should be defeated once more and hopefully for the last 
time. 

Thank you. , 
Chairman RIBICOFF. Thank you very much. 
Senator Percy, do you have any questions? 
Senator PERCY. Not at the moment, thank you. 
Chairman RlBtcOFF. Thank you very much, ¥r. Riehm. 
Mr. RIEHM. We may disagree but we are still friends; Senator . 
Chairman RIBICOFF~ As I said to yOU, we try and we always will 

try to give every point of view known to come here before this. 
committee, and frequently even though people do disagree, they may 
have very constructive suggestions to make"',abouLchanges or weak
nesses in the bill th'at we can see an9 uuderstand. We know that 
you do represent an important segment of American ,society and we 
wonld welcome your testimony on any issue at any tiirte .. 

Senator PERCY. I would like to say this, Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. Riehm, you said in YOI,ir testimony that you have cQnsistently 

opposed this legislation. I· hope that YOll would take into account 
that from the inception of the idea some years back, we have met" 
with a great many business groups, including three meetings that I 
have had with U.S. Chamber of Commerce. panels. We have taken 
into account many objections, including the objection that it might 
burden small businesses. W;.>; have amended' and improved steadily 
and consistently. Many. major businesses in this country have had 
such an impact in imprqvblg the legislation that they are· not only 
110t opposing it, they are advQca,ting it. They think it is a good thing 
for business. There is a long list of major corporations now that 
have come to that cQnclusion, and I think their, vo.ices should 'be 
taken into account. 1 .. would lik,e to .express appreciatioIi to. those 
businesses that have rt~al1J helped us on this. Seotion 24 alone ought 
to be something th~t. busi~e'ss groups would applaUd. I tbink it may 
prove to._ be the most valuable single item ever embodied in ,a piece 
of legislation, ~~ction 24 aims to. end harassment by regulatory agen
cies who. issue r~gulations without regard for costs to the consumer. 

We have really wo.rked hard to make this a bill that is responsible. 
Mr .. RIEHM. Senator, 1 appreciate that' observation and"pbviously 

it is the basis on which good friends can disagree on fundamental 
principles,'and obviously there is not complete. uniformity{w1~,hin indus
try. Industry is not a monolithic structure, neither areconsumets 
a moriolithic- structure, .and _this. IS where.J fthi':lk~\'Ve in. the chamber 
come apart witt)' our friends is on these f~ndaiUl3ntal principles that 
there are not jhe kinds of controls, and frankly I do. not believe 
you can draft them into the legislation,. that ~out.d pla(!e the proper 
kinds of restraints on the ,consumer advocate: He. is' given, '. in .effect, 
unlimlteclpowerand the old adage; that power corrupts and unlimited 
power corrUpts absolutely is the thing· that we really fear in light 
of pas~ performance. Thank you very much.. 

Senator PERCY. We will continue our oversight ih this area just 
as we have in other areas where we have legislated. We are certainly 
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doing it in the budget area and the drug area. We are pledged to 
oversee the consumer advocate, !ncluding use of· the "advise-and
consent" function. I think 2;nd hdpe that 5 years from now industry 
will have no cause for complaint, and I hope they will look back 
to the cases and agree that they have been good for business. We 
hope to end the kind of practices that no good businessman would 
countenance and which really hurt the free enterprise system. 

Mr. RIEHM. I might offer one final observation. 
Before you came in, Senator, we were commenting on the other 

legislation which has been developed, and I would only hope that 
you would exercise the most stringent kind of oversight with respect 
to all of the existing agencies for 5 years, and then look and see 
if you need the act. 

Senator 'PERCY. Well, as you know, Senator Ribicoff, Senator Bob 
Byrd, and I are the authors of sweeping regulatory reform legislation, 
S. 600, which we think will get right to the heart of the problem 
you describe. 

Chairman RIBICOFF. Thank you very much. 
[The prepared statement of Mr. Riehm with exhibits follows:] 

STATEMENT OF J. W. RIEHM, ON S. 1262, CONSUMER PROTECTION ACT OF 1977 

I am J. W. Riehm, Vice President-External Affairs and Secretary, Thomas J. Lipto!,!. 
Inc., and a Member of the Consumer Affairs Committee, Chamber of Commerce 
of the United States. With me is Jeffrey H. Joseph, Director of Government and 
Consumer Affairs for the National Chamber. 

As the world's largest federation of businesspeople and business organizations, the 
Chamber of Commerce of the United States counts among its members most of the 
nation's best known manufacturing, retailing and service companies, trade associations 
and state and local chambers of commerce. Our membership clearly has a vital stake 
in S. 1262, to establish a Federal Agency for Consumer Advocacy (ACA), because 
of its impact upon the relationship of business and consumers in the marketplace. 

We have, On numerous occasions, expr,essed the belief that legislation should be 
enacted to provide a stronger program within the federal government'fa, the representa
tion and coordination of the consumer interest. 

We have" on numerous occasions, made known our full support for a statutorily 
created and strengthened office within the executive branch of the government to 
coordinate existing federal. consumer programs. 

In addition, we are currently working through our broad membership to improve 
the structure and increase the accessibility of small claims courts at the state and 
local government level. This effort has recently been lauded by Attorney General 
Bell, Chief Justice Burger and the American Bar Association. 

But we have steadfastly opposed the creation of an independent Agency for Consumer 
Advocacy which would be empowered to intervene, at will, in regulatory agency 
proceedings, and when dissatisfied with the outcome, immediately would take an appeal 
to the courts. Some members of Congress and some consumer activists say this stance. 
casts us in an anti-consumer posture. We completely disagree. It is our belief that 
consumers will be more effectively served, not by' establishing a meddlesome new 
bureaucracy, but by a strong voiced CongressiOnal commitment to effective oversight 
of agency programs and to consumer protection embodied in a statutorily established 
executive office to coordinate and oversee the activities of agencies in the area of 
consumer protection. 

We have consistently made these points as this issue has been debated over the 
last several years. Some will say that in making them again we having nothing new 
to offer. Yet, the record shows that support has grown dramatically for our position 
While those who advocate the legislation have been steadily losing ground. 

History shows that members of Congress have become increasingly disenchanted 
with the idea as they become more educated. The House of Representatives, for 
example, passed this legislation in 1971 by a vote of 344 to 44, but the margin 
was razor thin in 1975-208 to 199-with over 400 newspapers, representing over 
80% of this country's total daily circulation editorializing in opposition. 

o 



107 

. Member;; of this Committee ,,~'Ve publicly stated that this legislation has been co~
sldered, dIscussed, debated and" ru)a1yzed to an unprecedented degree and there IS 
not much new to explore. Well, tliat is true. but only to an extent. The arguments' 
for the bill are the same today as they were .. seven years ago. Yet, circumstances 
have ,changed radically since this legislation wai·1~)"·st introduced. For example, a related 
concept, direct reimbur~ment to public interest groups who. wish to rarticipate in 
regulatory agency proceedings under certain circumstances is now' in ful bloom. This 
session, the House and Senate have already held hearings on legislation which would 
authorize all federal agencies to reimburse such groups. This concept is currently 
in place or is being considered in the Federal TS!ide Commission, the Consumer Product 
Safety Commi~sion, The National Hig~way Safety Transportation Agency'. Department 
of Transportatton and others. At heanngs on S. 2715, last Congress's bIll to broaden 
this concept, Senator Javits stated ·,before this committee that there wos· a need for 
either an Agency for Consumer Advocacy or the direct reimbursement concept of 
public interest groups, but not both. Yet, no mention is made of this development i) 

now and supporters of the ACA again push for the legislation llsing the same old C' 

arguments. 
EVALUATION OF THE ACA PROPOSAL 

The principal difficulty with this legislation today derives from the fact that Congress 
has eliminated the major reasons for creating it. The ACA was initially conceived 
to address two basic problems. FirSt was the enormous gap in governmental authority 
over wide, substantive areas of consumer protection. such as .basic product safety,l 
environmental pollution 2 and consumer fraud.3 Second was the ineft:ectiveness of exist· 
ing governmental agencies which were not exercising their existing authority to protect 
consumers, either because of bureaucratic inertia (such as 20-hour work weeks at 
the FTC·). domination or "capture" by the industries supposedly SUbject to regulation,S 
information secrecy6 or a combination of these and related factors adversely affecting 

( performance. It is instructive to' review how marty of these' problems have already 
, been addressed (due largely to the ACA sponsors' efforts) inotder to determine 

whether the ACA is an appropriate or inappropriate response to any problems that 
remain. 

Substantively, there has been a near revolution in the creation of governmental 
programs and authority to fill the gaps, as the following partial list indicates; 

-Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) (1970) augmented by NEPA (1969), 
Clean Air .~ct Amendments (1970), Water Pollution Control Act Amendments (1972), 
and most !iignificantly, the Toxic Substances Control Act (1976); Consumer Product 
Safety Commission (CPSC) (1972); FTC Improvements Act (1974); Ocoupational 
Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) (1970); Agriculture and Consumer Protec
tion Act (1973); Federal Energy Administration Act (FEA) (1974); Medical Device 
Amendments (1976) (giving ,the FDA the equivalent"of- m:w drtlg control over medical. 
deVices); the Antitrust Penalties and Procedures Act (1974) and the Antitrust Improve-
ments Act of 1976 (for the Antitrust Division and the FTC),7 . 

There have also been significant procedural efforts to, make .existingagehcies and 
programs more responsible to consumers and the public generally, The FrC, for exam
ple, . has become highly activist on behalf of consumers, in large part as a result 
of a critical Ralph Nader study in 1969, the new authority granted by the legislation 
cited above and the consumer moveml)nt generally. The Antitrust Division now of tell 
intervenes before the regulatory agencies to ensure that the consumer interest In com
peti!ionis !.I_ot ~~rit1c~~ "!ore than minimally necessary.s Many agencies have begun 

I See, for example, Hearings on S. 860 and S. 2045 before a Subcomnlittee of tlie Senate Commit
tee on Government Operations, 91st Congress, 1st Sess. (1969), p. 368 (Ralph Nader), and Hearings 
on S. 1177 and H.R. 10835 before a Subcommittee of the Senate Committee oltGovernllient Opera-
tions,:,92d Congress, 1st Sess. (1971), p. 29 (Statement of Representf.tive ·Ro""nthal). .' 

'See, for example, Hearings on S. 1177, supra, at 65 (Ralph Nader), and "F"';eral Role in Con
sumer Affairs"-Hea .. ings 011 Numerous Bills Before a Subcommittee' of the Senate Committee on 
GoVernment Operations, 91st Congress, 2" Sess. {1970), p. 296 (Dr. Herbert L. Ley). ., 

'See, for eltample, Hearings on S. 1177, supra. at 348 (Betty Furness), 355 (Senator Ribicoff), and 
366 (Ralph Nader). ' ,,' • 

• Hearings on S. 860, supra, al391 (Ralph Nader). 
• Hearings. on S. 1177, supra, at 24. (Ralph Nader). ,; 
old. at 56 (Ralph Nader); Hearings' on S. 860, sup~ at III (Senator Gurney) and 375 (Ralph 

Nader). " >'1 " , 

7See also the Fair CI'"dit Reporting Act (1970). Fair Credit Billing Act (1974). ConsumerGOoc:Is 
Pricing Act (1975). Home Mortgage Disclosure Act (1975), Consumer Leasing Act (1976), Federal 
Boat Safety Act ( 1971 ). Safe Drinking Water Act (1974) and Noise Control Act (1972). 

• See testimony of Thomas Kauper. Assistant Attorney General, Hearings on S. 2028 Before a Sub. 
committee ofthe Senate Committee on the Judiciary, 94th Con~., 1st. SellS. (1976). pp. 18-36. 
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to dispense funds to public interest consumer groups for intelVention in proceedings. 
The Freedom of Information Act Amendments of 1974 and the "Government in the 
Sunshine Act" of 1976 have .radically opened agency proceedings to public scrutiny. 

The principal remaining-problem is the perceived domination of federal. agencies 
by, and their identification with, the industries they regulate." The two reasons for 
this preceived domination~often called the "capture" t)1eory-appear to be inadequate 
appointments and lax Congressional overSight. lo Many invariably go back into industry 
for better financial rewards as part of the "revolving-door" syndrome. This creates 
troublesome conflict-of-interest problems and deprives the government of sufficiently 
long-and disinterested-selVice. Many in Congress have admitted that it has con
tributed to a politicization of the appointments process and that it has failed to monitor 
the enforcement and implementation of legislation it enacts. As ACA sponsor Represen
tative Rosenthal once stated in 1971 in an ACA hearing, "(I)f the Congress had 
the opportunity, the inclination and the time, the motivation, to overSee all these 
agen!=ies and to monitor them the way they should be, we wouldn't have to be here 
tod2.Y.," II 

The current steps to finish the process of eliminating the possibility of excessive 
industry influence to make agencies more responsive are numerous and well-known. 
Both the House and the Senate Reports have urged appointment of more independent 
and qualified administratol1<" along the lines proposed by President.Carter and recently 
fonowed by Governor BroWn'ln California. President Carter has already made consumer
oriented appointments. to the Federal Trade Commission, the Department of Agriculture 
and the National Highway Transportatioll Safety Agency. The Peterson Commission's 
executive pay and ethics recommendations should enhance the ability of agencies to 
attract and retain qualified personnel, in addition to reinforcing President Carter's 
proposals regarding financial disclosure, four-year commitments to office, the 
"revolving-door" syndrome and the adoption of strict conflict rules. 

Regulatory reform should complete. the process, begun m~arly a decade ago, of 
making government. more accessible, accountable and responsible. Both the exec).ltive 
and the legislative branches should learn as a byproduct of the reform exercise precisely 
how to institute effective ongoing oversight with respect to the widely varying govern
mental activities affecting consumers and the public generally. 

The ACA, however, would contribute little to the fundamental need for oversight 
and accountability. It would more likely perpetuate the underlying problems by per

.mitting(and perhaps requiring) tl'\e President and C()ngress thereafter to ignore con
sumer interests and regulatory oversight. Moreover, the ACA's purpose is not in fact 
to assist the President or the Congress in identifYing bureaucratic bottienecks, but 
rather to help create them by costly and time-consuming litigation. Nor is the ACA's 
purpose to hc;,lp the individual agencies themselves identify the consumer interest, but 
rather to threaten them with litigation after they have acted. Finally, the ACA assumes 
that its powers are just as applicable to and required for the State Department and. 
the cpnduct of foreign policy as the prosecution of fraudulent advertising,. As Ralph' 
Nader himself described the ACA, it is to be a "strike agency" designed to 
"revolutionize" the government. l • As noted above, there already has been something 
of a revolution. But ,the job that remains can surety be accomplished better directly 
than indirectly by the creation of yet another agency that is itself no more accountable 
to thj::pub1i.c than the agencies it is to harass and by definition a great deal less 
expert: . . 

Instead of instructing its own committees to seek information from agencies to evalu
ate their performance and ensure their accountability to. the public, Congress would 
delegate this task to yet another agency by granting it the right to unrestricted access' 
to . the files' of all of government without making that agency accountable to the Pre-, 
sit;lent or anyone but itself. 

'See the Senate Report on the CPA bill, S, Rep. No. 94-66. 94th Cong., 1st Sess., pp. 9-10. See 
also "Federal Regulation and RegUlatory Reform," Report by the Subcommittee on Oversight and In
vestigations of the Commitee on Interstate and Foreign Commerce, House of Representatives, 94th 
Cong., 2d Sess., October 1976, p. 474. , 

10 See, in addition to the reports noted above, the first and second volumes of the Study of Federal 
Regulation, prepared pursuant to S. Res. 71, Committee on Government Operations, United States 
Senate, February 1977. 

11 Hearings on S. 1177, supra, at 27. 
II Hearings on H.R. 6037 and Related Bills Before the Executive and Legislative Reorganization 

Subcommittee of the House Committee on Govenlment Operations, 91st Cong., 1st Sess., pp. 
175-76. . 
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- instead C?f urging or-enabling agencies to cooperat~,jp obtaini~g mC(Ie compiete ... 
data from mdustry. Congress would create yet ano\..;':;;r·~gellcy to Issue Its own sub-
poenas, fonns, and requests for reports. . j' " 

Instead of trying to ensure the framework for responsive decisions ·that need not 
be reviewed and litigated in the courts, Congress would create another agency whose 
principal pU1'pQse is not to eliminate the need for time-consumiIlg court review,/but 
rather to subject as maIJY governmelltal decisions as possible to .court reyiew.. ii 

Quite apart from the propriety of delegating to the overburdened ju~iciaryincrea,sing 
day-to-day control over Executive BraIJch operations, "adversary~' govemm~nt con" 
ducted by lawyers under threat of litigation and subpoena is simp'!y not good govern- C 

ment. The problem is even worse if the lawyers are accountable tOllo·.one, let alone 
the consumer. Yet, the ACA is such aIJ unaccountable creature. Neither consumers( 
nor· even the President could question the ACA's activities, and it could decide solely 
on its own what position to espouse before the government and what decisions to 
take to court. The smallj\\T the ACA, the less expertise it can possibly have as to 
responsible positionS to' take, aIJd therefore. the more irresponsible its actions are likely 
to be. To give the ACA sufficient expertise, on the other hand, .would require the 
creation of an agency sufficiently large to constitute a. shadow government. Put. another 
way, if the ACA were to be large enough to represent all the relevant interests of 
consumers in all relevant activities, then it might help influence agency decisions so 
that no appeal to the courts would be necessary-but at a cost. that would be prohibitive. 
But because in fact .the ACA will be too small to appear. in more thaIJ a: very feW 
proceedings, it will necessarily be unable to. participate in most initi~ decisions and 
therefore will have to litigate later in court Jo vindicate its peculiar. view of the 
consumer interest. 

One of the most interesting cited examples of the need for ail. ACA-the 'Soviet 
grain sale of 197313-is also. one of the, .best examples of the; utter futility of entrusting 
the goal of "consumer" protection and responsive government to. one Unac;countable 
and inexpert agency. Even if artificially low food prices were. clearly more impoctaIJt 
than foreign elCchange earnings to consumers in an increasingly interdependent world 
economy, an effort by an ACA to block a foreign wheat sale would st.iIl not guarantee 
that farmers, in the future, would not reduce supply in response to lower prices, 
How can any Presid~nt have consistent control over foreign policy o\", honor campaign 
promises of no further grain embargoes, if another part of government can~with 
total abandon,.-effectively nUllify ,any trade decision by taking the issue to the courts? 

Agencies are created as agellts of the Pre.sident or Congress to lend expert judgment 
in carrying out agreed-upon policies in a complex society. The establishment of an 
ACA with sufficient expertise to second-guess every governmental decision in the courts 
means that either the' government or tbe ACA is redundant; on theotber hand, if 
grain sales are beyond the competence of a lean ACA because of its limited resources 
and expertise, then it is'hard to understaIJd why every other governmental issue is 
within the ACA's competence. 

(t is true, of course, that 'as aml'!Ilded on· the flOOr, the Senate ACA bill last session 
would 'exempt governmental decisions i'nvolving farmers from the .ACA, notwithstanding 
the criticized Soyiet grain deal. The impoI:4L'1ce of this and ot/ler el'emptions is not 
so much that they are unfair, but that they reveal tbe total inadequacy and irrationality 
of dealing nonseiectively with the myriad problems of consumers and regulatory refonn 
by creating one monolithic agency to litigate with the rest of government agencies 
over what it thinks is in the interests of all consumers. 

The plain fact is that if the regulated industries dominate agencies to exclude con- IJ 

sideration of other legit\ma~ concerns, the answer, is to try to eliminate the factors 
which accQunt for the domination before creating another agency. If, after these. factors 
are addressed, there is still an' underrepreseqtatiOD of legitimate .consumer ,md. other 
public interests, it is then possible to make corrections on a rational, selective and 
targeted basis. . . . . « 

However;ll-ny' viable consumer protection 'proposal must address the varied needs 
of consumers in' the context of the different. types of governme-nta! activities involved. 
It is impossible to" view. a trade decision by the State Department or a loan agreement 
by the Exim' Bank. as presen~ing the same k.ille:!' of decision-making problems as a 
Federal R~serve Board decision on the money supply. a Fefleral Trade Commission 

'"lIearings on S. 200 Before the Senate Committee on GoVernment Operations,,94th C:::ong., 1st 
Sess. (1975), p~ 73 (Carol-rucker J'orema:n), a,nd P. 108 (Ralph NlIder)., " 
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deceptive advertising case, or a Federal Communications Commission COMSAT rate 
decision. While no effort to categorize agencies in terms of the need for and ability 
to accommodate consumer representation can ever be.'{ully successful, almost any 
effort to do so is better than the sweeping "strike-force" litigation concept of the 
ACA. - ~ 

To assert the need to create an independent new agency to make the rest of govern
ment more responsive to the public is by definition to ignore the varied needs of 
actual consumers and the bureaucracy entirely. It is to assert the failure or irrelevance 
of all of the cO:Jsumer legislation of the last ten years, as well as current attention 
on regulatory reform, a stricter code of ethics and financial disclosure, rules against 
,the "revolving-door," more careful appointments, simpler regulations, more open 
government and higher salaries for the civil service. Finally, it is to assert that the 
President cannot represent the public, for the ACA would indeed vest the interests 
of 210 million consumers in an agency over which the President could have no control. 

CONCLUSION 

Since the ACA was first proposed eight years ago there' have been sweeping changes 
in government-including the change in Administrations-which render the ACA con
cept wholly irrelevant, obsolete, and in fact dismptive of the current Administration's 
goals. 

The ACA was originally conceived by Ralph Nader as an "agency strike-force" 
for regulatory reform, and its' open-ended .litigation powers would pennit the ACA 
to challenge virtually any governmental decision in the courts-from environmental 

,policy to transportation policy to energy. 
The election of a Democratic and consumer-oriented President now makes possible 

a joint Presidential and Congressional program of government reorganization and regula
tory reform. A litigation strike-force is thus wholly unnecessary and in fact is completely 
inconsistent with any rational reorganization and reform program. The ACA treats 
all of government alike-lumping the State and Treasury Departments together with 
OMB, and CAB and the FTC. Yet, the very premise of reorganization is the need 
for selective approaches-such as, for example, consolidation of agencies in the energy 
fields. 

The litigation and subpoena strike-force concept of the CPA is also inconsistent 
with the President's reorganization efforts to reduce governmental dependence upon 
lawyers' writing and litigating floods of complex regulations and report forms. Asked 
if the new energy reorganization would reduce the work of lawyers, James Schlesinger 
answered, "that is a consummation· devoutly to be wished." The ACA, on the other 
hand, is a government-by-Iawyers bill, a codification of Dick<lns' Bleak House and 
the lawyer's prayer, "God bless the man who sues my client." 

ApP(Jnded to this statement is an index bf 400 newspapers from around thfl country 
which have editorialized in opposition to the concept of more government, more lawyers 
and more complex regulatory mechanisms disrupting the government. Also attached 
are copies of the most recent editorials written in the last several days. It is apparent 
that public opposition to this concept continues to grow. . 

This legislation should be defeated one more time and put to rest for good. 

[From ~he Dallas Morning News, Tue;da~. April 12. 1977.1 

SUCH A NERVE 

To contemplate the frustration of those who style themselves "consumer activists" 
is' to enjoy a kind of perverse satisfaction. Seven years have the consumerists labored 
to bring forth a federal Consumer Protection Agency, and there is not, we rejoice 
to say, such an agency yet in existence. 

The problem is that we may have one by the end of the year., 
Where his two predecessors were loathe to give a Consumer Protection Agency 

swe.eping powers to "speak for" consumers, Jimmy Carter is heartily in favor of the 
.notlon. TIle agency he proposes to create would be called the Agency for Consumer 
Advocacy, but the distinction between it and the Consumer Protection Agency would 
likely prove a fine one. "Advocates" always see themselves as protectors anyway. 

Protectors of whom? Of all of us-rich, poor, smart, dumb, old, young, white, black. 
To the consumer activists we are all ·consumers.' We all think alike. We' have the 
$amc interests. . 
, . This is of course the most impudent kind of nonsense, but it is the orthodoxy 
of the consumer advpcacy movement. It is the orthodoxy that the massively DemoCratic 
Congress may be expected to engrave on tablets of stone once it gets around to 
acting on Carter's proposal. 

.~ 
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What makes this sort of thinking nonsensensical? Let ~us dwell on "just one exam-
ple-'-energy prices.. ; . 

Consumenst-cr,if you prefer, Naderitc-orthodoxy holds that the lowest prices 
are the best prices. You see consumerists therefore crusading against rate ,increases· 
for utilities and lobbying against deregulation of natural gas prices. Viscerally, many 
of us want to cheer them on, the prospect of higher, ever- higher, prices ,being mf 
prettyone. 

But then arises the question: Where is the realistic .altemative to price increases? 
rThe utilities must cover their costs, and so they must raise their rates.· The natural 

gas producers need the spur of higher prices to get them looking for and prodUcing 
new supplies of natural gas. Is this not plain to us by now? For 23 years'interstate 
natural gas prices have been regulated at a rate too low to encourage long-term 
replacement of supplies. In consequence, we are running out of natural gas. 

Besides affording economic incentives, higher prices encourage conservation. We 
are told that utility bills this summer will be ghastly Very well; we raise our windows, 
and tum on the buzz fans. ' 

In fine, the matter of lQW prices is not so simple as the Naderite ztlalots suppose 
it to be. Which means there are widely divergent views on how the federal government 
should proceed with regard to .energy prices. This being the case, it mak,es no sense 
to endow any bureaucrat, or any bureaucracy, with the power to represent' the 
"consumer viewpoint" on this matter. There is no one consumer- viewpoint; and the 
consumerist who pretends there is, is talking through his hat. ., .j . 

Of course this scarely means that the consumer agency bill will not pass, and that 
various consumerists will not thereafter try to fob themselves off on us' as our 
"spokesmen." No, the point is' that they will be imposters. And we all know just 
how carefully imposters are to be listened to. 

[Fro", the Dallas Times Herald, ,Friday, April 8. 1977J 

PROTECTING CONSUMERS 

President Carter pledged during his campaign that one of his principal goals· would 
be the reduction of the number of government agencies and an attack on bureaucratic 
red tape which frustrates citizens and adds billions to the co§t of government. 

Ignoring these promises, President" Carter has now asked Congress' to create an 
"Agency for Consumer AdVocacy," an unguided missile which can create havoC'in 
the functioning of government-all in the name of protecting the consumer: 

It is our view that consumers are not a unique group' standihg apart from the 
rest of the citizenry. All of us are consumers; all of us are affected by the activities 
of all levels of government. The federa: government is not an enemy of the people, 
nor a monster out to maul the consuming public. ,-

The Presid!lnt and most governmental agencies may inde.ed. need consumer advisers 
to ,insure that adequate attention is given consumer interest, but the creation of another 
bureaucratic conglomeration with vague powers and. guidelines is an unnecessary and 
potentially dangerous move. _, 

The Congress itself is, or ought to be, an "agency for consumer. advocacy." Its 
members can make certain that consuQlch are heard during consideration of legislation 
and existing federal agencies can be instructed to be more sensitive, to consumer 
needs. 

But the Carter program, already embodied in legislatio!'l now before Congress, would 
establish an agellcy with a budget of $15 million, charged with ,advocating Jlle views 
of consumers before other federal agencies. It could, for example, urge the Federal 
Communications Commission to set telephone rates thatbenefjt consumel'$, take a 
position on whether the Food and Drug Administration should ban saccharin, advise. 
the State Department and the White House about actionsoin regard to coffec'ag(eements 
or shoe tariffs that might help hold prices down, and lobby for or against grain sales 
to foreign countries. 

It could take another agency to court if it thought a given decision ignored consumer 
views. Exactly how the" agency would operate would depend. 'on the. decisions, ,or 
whims, of the President and the person he names to" head the. consumer agency. 
The legislation does not define consumer. interests nor ,- provide any predictability, as 
to the government's attitude when different groups of "consii'mers" have conflicting 
interests. ,~, 

President Carter's special message to Congress also urged legislation giving citizens ' 
more of a right to sue the government, more chances to . .Mle class action suits and 

_, more help in making their views known. to federal agencieS, and in court suits. The 
m<1asures he recommends, the President ~d, "will "enhan~~' the 'consumer's' int1uen~ 
within the government without creating another unwidely purea,ucracy." 

\ 
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We fail to see how the consumer agen<:y could be kept small, given the comprehensive 
scope of consumer interests. But small or large, a consumer advocacy agency could 
gum up the works of all other departments and load the courts down. with thousands 
of suits. 

We believe deeply in the. need to protect consumers, but we think that .it is a 
job for President Carter, all of his cabinet officers and executive department administra
tors, all regulatory agencies and all the members of Congress. 

Specific problems of consumers can he answered by specific legislation or specific 
regulations issued bY. gove. rnmentaI al;l~ilcies. Creating a special agency with a vague 
charter will solve few problems buifwiIl, in all likelihood, cause needless conflicts 
and confusions. 

[From the Dispatch, Henderson, N.C.f' February 19, 1977) 

PROTECTING PEOPLE' FROM THEIR GOVERNMENT 

In America in these latter times, it has come to the point that the individual thinks 
he ueeds help in protecting himself from his own government. In more common sense 
years such a thing was unthinkable. What would the Founding Fathers have thougt~c) 
of such a monstrosity? ; 

This is the reason for the long agitation for the so-called Consumer Protective 
Agency. It ought not to be necessary, and would not' but for the !l]aze of bureaucracy 
which throws 'its "weight around in imposing decrees, restrictions and restraints upon 
the individual; , 

This Consumer idea has been repeatedly rejected by Congress and the administration. 
It did get by House and Senate but was vetoed by the President. It would' only 
add r..nother layer of bureaucratic harassment and creation of unlimited jobs and payrolls 
to increase government costs. 

Congress created these agencies but lacks the confidence that they will function 
properly, and hence a watchdog must be provided in every office to assure proper 
treatment for citizens. These sleuths would 'hear' consumer complaints and seek to 
make adjustments in fairness to those involved. 

President Carter has said he wants to reduce the labyrinth of agencies which regulate 
the lives and privileges of citizens. He has not expressed an opinion on the proposed 
Consumer Protective Agency in particular. If he goes for it, Congress will follow. 
Then the American people will have an additional haltar around the neck. It's a 
poor brand of democracy, or freedom, if you please. 

[From the Washington Stnr~ Friday, April 8, 1977] 

CLOTHING THE CONSUMER 

The .. Ralph Nader apP!eciation bill has begun its journey through Congress again, 
this time propelled. by a jet stream of White House rhetoric. 

It would establish the Agency for Consumer Advocacy, nee the Consumer Protection 
Agency, that Mr. Nader and others among the vocal consumer groups have been 
pushing for nearly a decade. Its alleged purpose is to protect the consumers who, 
Mr. Nader would have us· believe, stan!) naked 'in the marketplace before greedy, 
abusive, insensitive merchants. ,I, 

The ACA (we've never really understj.w'Jwhy they changed it from CPA-perhaps 
it sounded too ,bookk~lperish) would, IIM; ',President Carter vowed, be a "regulatory 
agency." Its purpose, he: said, ·"is t<l'improve the way rules, regulations and decisions 
are made' and"carried out, rather than issuing new rules itself." 

That'suggests what critics have been saying all along: It's going to be a "super" 
agency-a watchdog over the watchdogs-that will insinuate itself into the business 
of nearly every other agency inl,town and before long may be telling them all what 
to do. 

Mr. Carter said the agency will not cost more than $15 million a year. Maybe 
that's all it will cost in the beginning but it's a gross misreading, we suspect, of 
what it will cost eventually. 

, Playing to consumer interests is usually good politics. But is a consumer protection 
agency really all that important to the American public? An opinion poll a couple 
of years ago indicated that a large majority of people don't want such an agency. 

Is Mr. Carter's advocacy of another layer of bureaucracy likely to be interpreted 
as contrary to his pledge to reduce government? 

Where's the saving!! in a consumer protection agency? Any saving that the agency 
produces very likely will be offset, even outweighed, by the cost to the taxpayers 
of operating the agency and the cost to business of complying with the additional 
red tape it's bound to create-a cost that will be passed on to consumers; 

\\ 
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Mr. Carter would do more for the consumer by holding down inflation. 
He would do more by putting the' government to work finding cbeaper sources 

of energy." . 
He would do more by reducing the cost of government, which in tum would reduce 

the tax burden. 
He would do more by seeing that existing agencies do a better job. There are 

enough agencies that are supposed to look out for the public interest; there's no 
need for another Nllderesque super-watchdog unit. 

We had hoped Mr. Carter would not fall victim to, that Washington syndrome that 
makes too many officials hereabouts think that the only way to solve a prpblem 
is to create another government agency. 

[From' the Wan Street J.ourna1, AprJl. 8, 1977) 

THE SUGAR AND CREAM BOYCOTt 

We support the idea of a coffee boycott; if the price" goes up consumers should 
buy less. What puzzles us, though, is the lack of a similar organized squawk over 
the price of sugar and cream. 

The prices of both these products would be artificially boosted by measures ,the 
Carter administration has taken or is being urged to take. For the sakei'of 225,000 
commercial dairy farmers', President Carter, and his' Agriculture Secretary Bob Bergland 
have boosted milk-price supports by a hefty 9 percent. ConsumerS will shortly be 
paying up to six cents more a gallon. President Carter is now mulling over recommenda
tions 'from his International Trade Commission to reduce quotas for sugar imports; 
to boost domestic prices and protect some 22.000 United States sugar growers; 

Mr. 'Bergland Makes some feeble argumentScabout steadying swings in the free market 
price, but he's 'determined to even them out for the benefit of sellers, not buyers. 
Even though we can remember when the milk lobby was a dirty word, he quite 
frankly admits that milk prices are going up to payoff a campaign promise Jimmy 
Carter made to Wisconsin dairy far:mers. ' 

The proposed sugar boosts would benefit" an even narrower interest group, the beet 
sugar growers whose costs are inherently higher than cane sugar. (Some of these 
beet farmers, incidentally, used to be former Congressman Bergland's constituents.) 
In sll'Ort, both these measures are classical examples of squeezing the general public 
fOI:, the sake of special interests. 

'So where are the consumer advocates,? Joan Braden, the State Department's resident 
consumerist, has written several "imp,!ct" statements on the sugar question, but her 
superiors have filed them aWay, and with a few exceptions, most private groups have 
failed to connect talk of "import quotas" with rising prices. The only concerted lobbying 
against the sugar restrictions has come from the large sugar refining companies, wbich 
rely on imported cane sugar. The milk boosts, says Secretary Bergland, actually had 
the approvat of Carol F'Oreman, the consumerist recently appointed Assistant Agriculture 
Secretary for food and nutrition. 

President Carter is parading his support for consumers by proposing a flew Agency 
for Consumer, Advocacy, but we can't see how this new, bureauc;ratic outpost would 
dQ more than these present- appointees to. reverse politically inspiredprcsidential deci-
sion!! like the milJ:<,price increase. " 

~arely has such a large slap in the face for consumers been S'O lightly passed over 
by their professional defenders,. The "c'Onsumer movemerit;" seems to be indifferent 
when prices afe being pushed up n'Ot by the market or a real or imagined foreign 
cartel, but by. our own governtnent in Washington, D.C. 

Il [From the Boston Herald American] 

() No NEED FOR SUPER SNOOPS 

Ralph Nader's hopes' of ac;hieving 'Official federal power are rising again with the 
imminent introuction of new Capitol Hill legislation which W'Ould establish the Consumer 
Protection Agency he ,conceived eight years ago and has been battling f'Or ever since. 
It is a proposal which Congress, this time, should reject beyond the: possibility of 
further consideration . 

. As envisioned by the nation's buzziest conSllmer gadfly and his supporters, the CPA 
·wouid be a tax-financed, independent agency whose function would be",to protect 
consumers by representing their interests in government. The idea sounds good enough 
in theory, and its adoption may once even· have been desirable, but today it has 
become irrelevant" obsolete and potentially disruptive. 

I) 
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In the past ei~ht years there has been a revolution in consumer protection legisiation 
and reorganization. Currently, the federal government has 33 agencies and approximate
ly 400 bureaus and subagencies operating more than 1,000 consumer-oriented programs. 
In addition, Congress has created a dozen special regulatory agencies to ride herd 
on the others. 

The nation, in sum, simply no longer has any need of a super agency whose chief 
intended function-as proposed-would be to argue the consumer cause in court action,s 
involving federal regulatory agencies. How this purpose would work out in practice, 
moreover, is as doubtful as it would be expensive. 

It wbuld cost a minimum of $60 million to get up the CPA and run it for three 
years. Far more onerous to the taxpayer would be the incalculable added costs of 
other agencies responding to the demands of the proposed super agency-or acting 
even more slowly than usual through fear of CPA interference. 

There would be plenty of that because the CPA, in practical operation, would 
in fact be little more than an official agency constantly looking for places to interfere. 
It would have absolute power to meddle in the affairs of other agencies-from Defense 
Department procurement to foreign trade-alld to second guess actions through its 
open-ended litigation authority to challenge and possibly overturn any government 
decision. 

The clearly inherent danger of giving such vast authority to one group, especially 
one which wQuld be operating independently of the executive branch and Congress, 
always has been the most potent argument against the CPA. Today, when there no 
longer is a demonstrable need for_such an agency, the argument should be overwhelming 
and irrefutable. ' I 

Government admittedly cannot protect everyone from everything. In this case, how
!;Iver, Congress can protect all taxpayers by emphatically defeating the idea of creating 
a costly, unnecessary anf probably despotic new bureaucracy of Naderite super snoops. 

[From the Sunday Republican, Sunday, April. 10, 1977] 

PROTECTION FOR MOTHERHOOD 

Voicing support for the consumers of America is akin to speaking out in defense 
of motherhood. Therefore U.S. Sen. Abraham A. Ribicoff and others have no compunc
tion about hailing the proposed Consumer Protection Agency. He and others are almost 
daring opponents to admit they are "anticonsumer." 

The proposal will permit Ralph Nader to dust off his slightly tarni' hed armor and 
sally forth again as the protector of the irmocent consumer; 

Neither Ribicoff nor Nader nor the others who favor the creation of the new bu
reaucracy predict the cost to the consumer. Sen. Charles Percy, Illinois Republican, 
has estimated the cost at $15 million the first year, $20 million the second and 
$25 million the third. Wanna bet! 

If Ribicoff' and the others would be honest with the pUblic, then his bill could 
be assessed more fairly. But he ignores the countless governmental agencies-some 
estimates exceed 400-presently operating programs designed to benefit consumers. 
There are more than 1,000 different consumer-oriented programs at present. 

Who does OSHA protect, if not consumers? Was the Federal Drug Administradon 
created to protect drug manufacturers? What about the Federal Communications COln
mission, the enforcers of anti-trust laws, the Food and Drug Administration, the Employ
ment standards Administration, and the host of other alphabetical units with staffs 
paid for by taxpayers? 

Let's not deceive the public into thinking that every one of the existing governmental 
agencies was created merely to protect the industry and to oppress the consumer. 

There is already fighting among agencies with some, for example, proposing that 
more coal be used to reduce oil imports and others prohibiting the use of coal 'to 
avoid air pollution. ' 

Just imagine what will happen when the Consumer Protection Agency starts fighting 
with consumer protection bureaucrats already on other agency payrolls. The end result 
will be court cases which will negate all. progress because the courts today are not 
noted (or speedy decisions. , 

Meanwhile the consumers will pay the bill for federal employes in two different 
departments with two sets of opinions, for court staffs to evaluate them, and for 
the extra' expense imposed on industry. The $25 million cost estimate by Sen. Percy 
is the tip of the iceberg. 

Look at the controversy over saccharin. The pending prohibition is supposed to 
be in the Interest of consumers. ,But the consumers of this nation won't abide by 
the decision and have told their congressmen so in no uncertain terms. Even ~ancer 
Society authorities question the merits of the restrictions. . 

I' 
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Yes, I)ppOsing consumer protection is like opposing motherhood. But medical expe~ 
will agree that tbere are times when motherhood can be harmful to health. 

The Consumer PtotectiQn Agency backed by Ribicoff' and others wilt cost consumers 
more than they will save-':"if they save anything. 1/, • 

'/ ' 
[From the San Antonio Light, Thursday, ~arch 31, 1977) 

SUPER SNOOPERS NOT WARRANTED 

Ralph Nader's hopes of achieving official federal power are rising again with the 
imminent introduction of new Capitol Hill legislation which would establish the Con
sumer Protection Agency he conceived ei&ht years ago and has been battling for 
ever since. It is a proposal which Congress, ttilS time, should reject beyond the possibility 
of furtner consideration. 

As envisioned by the nation's buwest consumer gadfly and his supporters, the CPA 
would be a tax-final\cecl, i!1dependent agency whose function would be to protect 
consumers by representing their interests in government. The idea sounds good enough 
in theory, and its adoption may once even have been desirable, but today it has 
become ,irrelevant, obsolete and potentially disruptive. 

In the past ei~ht years, there has been a revolution in consumer protection legislation 
and reorganizatIOn. Currently, the' federal government has 33 agencIes lh"ld approximate
ly 400 bureaus and sub-agencies operating more than 1,000 consumer-oriented pro-, 

~,~>grams. In addition, Congress has created a dozen special regulatory agendes to ride 
herd on the others. 

The nation, in sum, simply no longer has any need of a super agency whose chief 
intended function-as proposed-would be to argue the consumer cause in court actions 
involving federal regulatory agencies. How this purpose would work out in practice, 
moreover, is as doubtful as it would be expensive. ' 

It ,,\,ould cost a minimum of $60 million to set up the CPA and run it for three 
years.' Far more onerous to the taxpayer would be the incalculable added costs of 
other agencies responding to the demands of the proposed super agency-or acting 
even more slowly thall"Jsual through fear of CPA interference. 

There would be plenty of that because the CPA, in practical operation, would 
in fact be little more than an official agency constantly looking for places to interfere. 
It would have absolute power to meddle in the affairs of other agencies-from Defense 
Department procurement to foreign trade-and to" second guess actions through, its 
open-ended litigation authority to challenge and possibly overturn any government 
decision. 

The clearly inherent danger of giving such vast authority to one group, especially 
one which would be operating independently of the Executive Branch and Congress, 
always has been the most potent argument against the CPA. Today, when there no 
longer is a demonstrable need for such an agency, the argument should be overwhelming 
and irrefutable. ' 

Government admittedly cannot pt:otect everyone from' everything. In this case, how
ever, Congress can protect ali taxpayers by emphatical1~' defeating the' Idea of creating 
a costly, unnecessary and probably despotio new bureaucracy of Naderite super snoops. 

[From the Orlando, Fla., Sentinel Star. Wednesday, ~pril 6, 1977.J 

PROTECT OR VEX CONSUMERS? 

An eight-year-old bill to create a Consumer Protection Agency is alive and well 
in Congress and shows no significant signs of aging despite the lapse of years. It 
is scheduled for committee hearings this month, probably in the House first. 

CPA supporters contend federal regulatory agenCies do not adequately represent 
consumers; that a consumer or representative groups could not possibly attend all 
the hearings necessary for effective oversight of government action as it related to 
them; that a new agency is the only effective remedy .. 0. . 

Critics claim the proposed new super-agency is scaled to the interests of organized 
COllsumer activists rather than to individuals; that consumers can be better served 
with existing age"lcies such as the Federal Trade Commission, Consumer Product Safety 
Commission and. others with broad protection power. and responsibility; and that if 
the agencies are not performing properly Congress should intercede, not create another 
sprawling bureaucracy. 

While argument,'i on each side are valid, zealous CPA sponsors are overlooking 
the new administration's rapid implementation of its promise of a more efficient and 
open gov~rnment. " .. 11 .' 

President Carter has said he will personally t;f;present the consumer .and is working 
with the Congrells toward government reorganiz!ltiou"and regulatory reform. 
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At present, the federal government has more than 1,000 consumer oriented programs 
operating within 33 agencies, 400 bureaus and sUb-age.ncies, and at least a dozen 
separate regulatory commissions established by Congress to protect consumers. 

A massive CPA with absolute power to interfere with the current conglomerate, 
as the legislation proposes, would clog federal courts, inconvenience firms and in
dividuals who must tlien deal with two agencies instead of one, and cost taxpayers 
a minimum of $60 million its first two years of operation. And that doesn't include 
the additional costs of other agencies forced to respond to CPA intervention. 

That's consumer vexation, not protection, and certainly more government than. this 
country needs, wants or can afford, 

CPA should be tabled until the Carter administration has fulfilled its pledge of 
rational reorganization and regulation reform. 

[From the News American, Sunday, April 3, 1977] 

NADER'S'POWi!R PLAY 

Ralph Nader's hopes of achieving official fede~'al power are nsmg again with the 
imminent introduction of new Capitol Hill legislation which would establish the Con
sumer Protection Agency he conceived eight years ago and has been battling f-or 
ever since. It is a proposal which Congress, this time, should reject beyond the possibility 
of further consideration. . 

As envisioned by the nation's buzziest consumer gadfly and his supporters, the CPA 
would be a talC-financed, independent agency whose function would be to protect 
consumers by r\~pi'esenting their interests in government. The idea sounds good enough 
in theory, and ,its. ado)'tion may once even have been desirable, but today it has 
become Irrelevaih, obsoiete and potentially disruptive. 

In the past eight years there has been a revolution in consumer protection legislation 
and reorganization. Currently, the federal government has 33 agencies and approximate
ly 400 bureaus and subagencies operating more than 1,000 consumer-oriented programs. 
In addition, Congress has created a dozen special regulatory agencies to ride herd 
on the others. 

The nation, in sum, simply no longer has any need. of a super agency whose chief 
intended function-as proposed-would be to argue the consumer cause in court actions 
involving federal regulatory agencies. How this purpose would work out in practice, 
moreover, is as doubtful as it would be expensive. 

It would cost a minimum of $60 million to set up the CPA and run it for three 
years. Far more onerous to the taxpayer would be the incalculable added costs of 
other agencies responding to the demands of the proposed super agency-,.or acting 
even more slowly than usual through fear of CPA int!'lrference . 
. There would be plenty of that because the CPA, in practical operation, would 
in fact be little more than an official agency constantly looking for places to interfere. 
It would have absolute power to meddle in -the affairs of other agencies-from .defense 
department procurement to foreign trade-and to s!'lcond guess actions through its 
open-ended litigation authority to challenge and possil)ly overturn any government 
decision. 

The clearly inherent danger of giving such vast authority to one group, especially 
one which would be operating independently of the executive branch and Congress, 
always has been the most potent argument against the CPA. Today, when there no 
longer is a demonstrable need for sllch an agency, the argument should be overwhelming 
and irrefutable. 

Government admittedly cannot protect everyone from everyi~ing. In. this case, how
ever,Congress can protect· all taxpayers by emphaticruly defeating the idea of creating 
a costly, unnecessary ~d probably despotic new bureaucracy of Nadetite super snoops. 

NEWSPAPERs WIlII::H HAVE CARRIED EDITORIALS OPPOSING INDEPBNDENT CONSUMER 
PROTECTION AGENCY (As OF DECEMBER 1, 1976) 

Alabama 
Birmingham News, April IS, 1975, "The Poor Consumer?" 
Foley Onlooker, May 12, 1975, "Again, Its Ugly Head Appears." 
Huntsville News, April 16, 1975, "Little Support." 
Birmingham News, August 27, 1975, "The Missing Consumer." 

Arizona 
The Phoenix Gazette, May 20, .1975, "Regulation Atop Overregulation." 
The Phoenix Republic,May 29, 1975, "'Protecting' Consumers." 
Avondal!'l WC$tslder. August 13, 1975, "Guess Who'll Be Boomeranged." 
Phoenix RepUblic, August 28, 1975, "Mr. Sam's Advice." 
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Phoenix Republic, Dllcember 12, 1975, "Potential Monster." 
The Phoenix Gazet,te, March 16, 1976, "A Distorted View of 'Heroes'." 

Arkansas 
ArkansasDemocrat (Little Rock), July 18, 1974, "Consumers don't need it." 
West Memphis Times, July 2, 1975, "More Regulatidn.'t , 
Fort Smith Southwest Times-Record, August 21, 1975, "Proposed protection agency 

not in the public interest." , 

California 
Pomona Prog(ess-Bulletin, April 8, 1975, "Consumers do it on their own." 
Visalia Times-Ddta, April 9, 1975, "Fighting Another Bureau." 
Pixley Enterprise, April 23, 1975, "Help We Can Do Without." 
Hanford Sentinel, May 12, 1975, "Con~umer Complaints." 
Sacramento t}nion, May 16, 1975, '''Consumer Advocacy-Congress Proposes a 

Needless Agency. n 

Ukiah Journal, May 27,1975 "Unneeded bureaucracy." , 
Fresno Business, June 1975, "Inflation-::,A Product of Too Much Government?" 
Lompoc Record, June 13, 1975, "'Changing the bureaucray." 
The Sacramento Bee. June 16, 1975, "An Unfortunate Exemption. " 
Los Angeles Harold Examiner, June 20,1975, "Excessive Government." 
Reedley Exponent, June 26, 1975, "Paying for Government." 
San Diego Tribune, July 8, 1975, "A $20 billion 'nightmare· ... 
Los Angeles Herald-Examiner, July 22,1975 "Labor's Consumer Bill." It:, 
San Francisco Chronicle, July 23, 1975, "The Consumer Sill." , 
Riverdale Free Press, July 31,1975, "Guess Who'll Be Boomeranged?" 
Reedley Exponent, August 7, J 97S~ "Something We Need?" 
Burbank Daily Review,November 21, 1975, "A superfluous agency." 

Colorado 
Fruita Times, April 10, 1975, "Public Is 75"/0 Opposed To New Consurtler Agency." 
,Rangley Times, April 21, 1975, "Help We Can Do Without." 
Golden Outlook, May 23, 1975, "Help We Can Do Without." 

Connecticut 
Westport News, May 2,.1975, "Closing their ears?" ~ 
Waterbury American, May 6,1975, "Needless Consumer Agency." 
Stamford Advocate, May 13, 1975, "Caveat consumerT' 
Hartford Times, May 24, 1975, "Consumer Advocacy 

more." 
Agency should be s.~~l1ied 

\',i'\\. 
Hartford Times, June 27, 1975, "Consumer Advocacy Agency." 
Hartford Times, Septei!;,oer 8, 1975, "Rep. Dodd's clarification." 
New Haven Rigister,J'iovember 28, 1975, "Consumer Agency Lacks Support." " 

District of Columbia 
Washington Star, January 5, 1975, "Consumerism off the deep end. " 
Star-News, April 29,1975, "Regulate the Regulators." 
WaShington Star,1'!'fay 18, 197$, "Consumer Bureaucracy." 
Transport Topics, June 16, 1975, "The Consumer Speaks." 
Personal Finance, Fall 1975, "Former Senator Ervin Blasts Consumer Protection 

Bills. " 
Traffic World, September 8, 1975, "A 'Country Lawyer.'and Q:cJI:)sum. et'Protection." 
Transport Topics, September l~, 1975, "Protect Against Protel;torsi" ji 
The Washington post, November 23, 1975, "Regulating the Regulat'ort," 
The Washington Star, August 11, 1976, "Mr. Carter and the consumrt.,J)i\I." , . 
~~ , fi Q 

, . . k '11) '1 . 7' S C \' ii, P . . " flonda News-Umon (lac 'sonvi e , Apn 25, 19 5, ' uper. onsumt,r foteCtion. 
The Miami Herald, April 30, 1975, "Ford Is Right on ConsumerAg~!lcy." , .'" 
Tallahassee Democrat, April 30, 1975, "Protecting the Pllblic. .. \\ ',' 
Orlando Sentinel Star, May 1, 1975, "Consumt,:r Does Need Prot~~tioll' but from 

More Bureaucracy." .' . , . 
The Florida Times-Union (Jacksonvill~l' May 31, 1975, "RegulatioJ'Js ad N'illiseum." 
Hialeah Florida Grocer, July. 1975,' :National AS~jOCiation of FOQd Chains WlPlts 

No Part of Con~umer Agency or Legislation." IJ . 0.' ' 

Miami Herald, July 14, 1915,"C'onsumer Agency Deserves a Veto.'Il""". " 
Ft. Lauderdale News, July 29, 1975, "Too Much Protection Coula S~ffocate Us." 
Orlando Sentinel-Star, September :;l,' 1975, "Proposed Federal CClnsurner Agency 

Just Another Ripoff Of Taxpayer. " 
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Pensacola Journal, Nove!';lber 18, 1975, "Consumer Protection Agency Unnecessary." 

Georgia 
Wrightsville Headlight, April 10, 1975, "Public is 75% Opposed to New Consumer 

Agency." 
Americus Times-Recorder, April 16,1975, "Those Polls." 
Jefferson Reporter (Wrens), April 24, 1975, "Is This Something We Need." 
Savannah News, May 3, 1975, "No Need for Agency." 
Augusta Herald, May 14, 1975, "Pro-Business Poll." 
Valdosta Times, May IS, 1975, "Not Another Watchdog." 
Griffin News, June 2, 1975, "Not Needed." 
Warner Robills Sun, June 10, 1975, "Unneeded Bureaucracy." 
Atlanta Journal, July 15, 1975, "A Consuming Need." 
Sparks Eagle, August 1, 1975, "Guess Who'll Be Boomeranged?" 
Valdosta Times, Novemoor 8, 1975, "Little Consumer Help." 

Hawaii 
Pacific Business News, March 17, 1975, "Poll shows most consumers oppose a 

new Federal consumer agency." 

Idaho 
Idaho Free Press (Nampa), May 9, 1975, "Another bureau layer?" 
Idaho Farmer-Stockman (Boise), May 15, 1975, "Consumer Protection." 
Salmon Recorder-Herald, August 21, 1975, "Faith in the future." 
Boise Idaho Stateman, September 8, 1975, "Establishing Meaningful Dialogue." 

Illinois 
Savanna Times Journal, March 25, 1975, "Study Carefully ... ". 
Watseka Times-Republic, April 16, 1975, "Who know best-The people or Ralph 

Nader?". 
Saybrook Gazette and Arrowsmith News, April 24, 1975, "Is this something we 

need?" 
Springfield Morning Journal-Register, April 25, 1975, "Making agencies work." 
Lincoln Courier, April 30, 1975, "Editorially Speaking ... Not in Need of Any 

More." 
Chicago Tribune, May 3, 1975, "We're 'protected' enough, thanks." 
Chicago Tribune, June 3, 1975, "Protect us from Congress." 
Gra.in & Farm Service Center (Chicago), June 11, 1975, "Beware Consumer Advoca

cy." 
Chicago Tribune, July 19, 1975, "ONce he thinks you like being protected, it's 

hard to stop him." (cartoon) 
Bloomington Pantagraph, August 21, 1975, "Deregulation by agencies real govern

ment scorecard. " 
RSC (Refrigerat.ion Service & Contracting) (Des Plaines), September, 1975, "Super 

Agency Would 'Hurt' Consumers." 
Springfield Monling Journal-Register, December 4, 1975, "Ford's consumer plan 

takes logical approach." 
Kankakee Daily Journal, December 26, 1975, "Consumer protected." 

Indiana 

Terre Haute Star, April 18, 1975, "Little Support By Public For New Consumer 
Agency." 

Logansport Pharos-Tribune & Press, April 20, 1975, "Cost of Consumer Protection." 
Lebanon Reporter, April 23, 1975, "Consumers Prefer To Do It Themselves." 
The Indianapolis News, May! 7, 1975, "Whether We Want It Or Not." 
Elkhart Truth, May 20, 1975, "Consumer Bill Issue." 
Evansville Press, May 20,1975, "Some Watchdog." 
Indianapolis Star, May 25, 1975, "Monsters At ~ge." 
Fort Wayne News-Sentinel, June 2, 1975, "Th,? Consumer Pays." .. 
Anderson Herald, June 5, 1975, "New Supergovernment Bill Looms-." 
Fort Wayne News-Sentinel; June 30, 1975, "The Blank Check." 
Indianapolis News, July 25, 1975, "Questionable Protection." 
Muncie Star, August 3, 1975, "Hole in the ACP Bill." 
Yorktown NewlI, August 20,1975, '''Consumer Protection Agency' unwise?" 
Fort Wayne News-Sentinel, September 11, .1975, "Adding ~ore Lard." 
Richmond Palladium, December 8, 1975, "Unwanted." 
Fort Wayne News-Sentinel, December 31,1975, "Agency Push Weaken~." 
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Iowa 
Oelwein Register, April IS, 1975, "Most people don't faver new agency." 
Sioux City Journal, May 18, 1975, "Consumer's Agency. '\ ' 
Des Moines Tribune, May 20, 1975, "Consumer's advocate." 
Grundy Center Spokesman, June 7, 1975, "We don't need another layer of bureaucra

cy." 
Davenport Times-Democrat, June 8, 1975, "Hey, What's With ACA." 
Keokuk Gate City, August 4, 1975, "unneeded bureacuracy.," 

Kansas 
El Dorado Times, April 16, 1975, "Does Ralph Nader know best?" 

~':~~~~':;~~~~~~ :~:~9;~~~~~:e~~~~~acy." it 
Lawrence Journal-World, July 17, 1975, "Another federal panacea." 
Great Bend Tribune, NovemlJer 25, 1975, "Creating a monster." 

Kentucky 
Hopkinsville Kentucky New Era, April 12, 1975, "Such Protecting!" 
Glasgow Times, May 1, 1975, "Consumers Prefer to do it Themselves." 
Murray Ledger .. and ,!"imes, May 1, 197~, "WlIo Kno~ J3est-The People or, Nader." 

Louisiana 
New Orleans Times-Picayune, April 3, 1975, "Consumer 'Protectors' Again," 
Alexandria Daily Town Talk, April 15, 1975, "Consum-ers Want No Super Advocate." 

____ ~Iexand~a ?~il~ ,!?wn Ta~k-,-~~~~_~75, ': Anoth~rAge!1cl We Don't Need. II 

Maine 
Damariscotta News, May 8,1975, "Is This Something We Need?" 

Maryland 
Salisbury Times, April 18, 1975, "Do It Themselves." 
Frederick Post, April 21, 1975, "Consumers prefer to do it themselves." 
The Baltimore Evening Sun, June 3, 1975, "1 can't decide whether we can best 

protect the consumer by creating an agency, or by doing away with some of the 
agencies we already have." (cartoon) 

Massachusetts 
Boston Herald American, October 28, 1974, "Breaking a Bad Habit." 
Boston Commercial Bulletin, April 18, 1975, "Who Knows Best? The People or 

Ralph Nader?" , 
Worcester Evening Gazette, April 23,1975, "Naderism Rampant_" 
Boston Herald American. May 27, 1975, "Consumers: Too Much Protection?" 
Westfield News, June 3, 1975, "Bureacracy Unneeded." 
Lynn Item, June 24,1975, "Agency for whose protection?" 

Michigan 
Detroit Investor, March 22, 1975; "The Consumer Deception Act of 1975." 
Adrian Telegram, April 10, 1975, "More Costly 'Protection.' " 
Owosso Argus PresS~ April IS, 1975, "We prefer do-it-yourself." 
Detroit Investor, April 19, 1975, "Who knows B.est? The People or Ralph Nader?" 
Hillsdale News, April 25, 1975, "Doing it Themselves." 
Detroit News, April 30, 1975, "A case ofoverkiU." 
Detroit News, May 13, 1975, "Why is it needed?" 
Coldwater Reporter, May 17, 1975, "Consumers Prefer Own Way." 
Charlevoix Courier, May 21, 1975, ('-1s This Something We Need?" 
Royal Oak Daily Tribune, July 5, 1975, "Protecting the Consumer." 
Edmore Times, August 7, 1975, "Guess Who'll Be Boomeranged?" 
Detroit tlIews, August 25, 1975, "A plague of frogs." 
Flint Jou:"t\al, November 24, 1975, "Consumer bill veto would be justified." 
Marquette Mining Journal, December 4, 1975, "Illusion of protection." 
Iron Mountain News, December 6,1975, "Illusion of protection." 
Cadillac News, December 18, 1975, "Consumer p(otection." 
Alpena News, Dec'P~.!lber 17, 1975, "Refoun protects consumer." , 

. (;,.0-
Minnesota .. 

Austin Herald, March 28, 1975, "Deception bill." " 
Thief River Falls Times; April 16, 1975, 'Most Americans Don't Want New Consumer 

Agency." 
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International Falls Journal, May 16, 1975 "Taxpayer is one to help." 
Rochester Bulletin, t..1flY 29, 1975, "U.S. Senate Votes to Increase Prices and Taxes." 
St. Paul Cereal Foods World, July, 1975, "Consumer Protective Advocacy-Formerly 

the Consumer Protection Act." 
Warren Sheaf, July 9, 1975, "More Consumer Laws!" 
Minneapolis Star, July 30, 1975, "Consumerism-with loopholes." 

Mis$issippi 
Starkville News, April 18, 1975, "Little Support." 
Natchez Democrat, April 21, 1975, "Consumer bureau may be shelved." 
West Point Times Leader, April 21, 1975 "Is This Something We need?" 
Vicksburg Post, April 26, 1975, "Consumers Prefer To Do It Themselves". 
Biloxi-Gulfport Herald, July 4, 1975, "Labor power in the Senate." 

Missouri 
St. Louis Globe-Democrat, "Anti-Consumer Aency." 
Ki\nsas City Star, April 9, 1975, "Another Federal Agency?" 
Caj)e Girardeau Southeast Missourian, April 14, 1975, "PUblic says forget it." 
Carthage Press, April 16, 1975, "Business Better Than Government." 
Hermann Adv/1rtiser-Courier, April 23, 1975, "00 We Need This?" 
The Kansas City Star, April 29, 1975, "The President's Long List of Things to 

Do." 
Sikeston Standard, May 23, 1975, "Who Knows Best?" 
Fulton Sun-Gazette, May 30,1975, "New Bureaucracy." 
Oscedlaco Herald (Reed City), July 24,1975, "Farmers fear forming o/:'CPA." 
Cape Girardeau Southeast Missourian, August 21, 1975 "Give it a merciful death." 
Temperance Courier Monroe Adventure, September 11, 1975, "The Consumer Pro-

tection Agency and Farmers." 

Montana 
Helena Independent-Record, October IS, 1975, "Baucus backing a rotte,l consumer 

bilL" 
Helena Independent-Record, November 13, 1975, "Consumer agency oiil very much 

alive." 
Nebraska 

Omaha Morning World Herald, May 22, 1975, "Conflict and Consumer Interest." 
Columbus Telegfll!11, June 5,1975, "Unneeded bureaucracy." 
Orchard News, June 20, 1975, "There is still talk of creating a Consumer Agency." 
Fairbury Journal-News, July 22, 1975; "Thoughts while shaving." 
The Neligh News and Leader, July 31, 1975, "Another Agency." 

NeVada 
Elko Daily Free Press, August 23, 1975, "Dangerous Bills Poorly Conceived." 
Ely Times, August 26, 1975. "Against creation of consumer agency." 

New Hampshire 
Nashua Telegraph, May 3,1975, "A Super Agency?" 

New Jer$ey 
Camden Courier-Post, February 25, 1975, "More Bureaucracy?" 
Montclair Times, April 17, 1975, "Little Support." 
Woodbride News, Tribune, April 30, 1975, "Questionable 'protection'." 
Bridgeton South Jersey Star-Advertiser Press, May 8, 1975, "Help We Can Do 

Without!",.(Cartoon) "Is This Something We Need?" 
Woodbridge News Tribune, June 6,1975, "Unsound 'protection'." 
Wyckoff News, November 19, 1975,"Js This Something We Need?" 
Newton New Jersey H~rald, November 27, 1975, "Another agency." 

New Mexico 
Las Cruces, New Mexico Fann & Ranch, May 1975, "Consumer bill is a deception 

on the public." "Congressional report." 
New 'York 

The New York Times, March 14, 1975, "Consumerism, Limited." 
New York Daily News, April 5, 1975, "00 Us No Favors." 
Cheektowaga Times, April 24, 1975,"HelpWe Can 00 Withoutj" 
Wellsville Shopping Wise, ('\pril 24, 1975""Is This Something We Need?" 
Syracuse Herald-Journal, April 30; 1975, "A waste." 
Briarcliff Manor Wholesaler, May, 1'975, "How It Looks From Here." 
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Buffalo Evening News, May 9, 1975, "Bad Idea Whose Time Has Gone." 
Corning Leader, May 9, 1975, "Existing Agencies Able To Protect The PubIiI;." 
New York Daily News,May 17, 1975, "A Costly Mistake." 
Buffalo Courier-Express, May 18, 1975, "Another Consumer Agency Not Needed." 
Kingston Daily Freeman, July 18, 1975, "Bureaucratic Lar,ers." 
New York Sunday News, July 20,1975, "Guest Editorial.' 
(New York) National Review Bulletin, July 25, 1975, "At Home." , 
Horseheads Reporter. July 3 I, 1975, "Guess Who'll Be Boomeranged?" 
Ellenville Journal, July 31, 1975, "Lord Help the Consumer!" 
VestaL Tempo, August 27,1975. "Engulfed by Government." 

North Carolina, 
Monroe Enquirer-Journal, April 23, 1975, "Americans say ~\o to new federal con-

sumer agency." Ii 
The Wilson Daily Times, May 14, 1975, "Reduce Business Reg\.lIations." 
Aberdeen Sandhill Citizen, May 15, 1975, "IS This Something We Need?" 
Rocky Mount Telegram, May 18, 1975, "Reduce Business Regulations." ' 
Charlotte Southern Textile, May 19, 1975, "Yet Another?" 
Granite Falls Press, May 29, 1975, "Public Is 75% Opposed To New Consumer 

Agency." 
Jacksonville News, June 3, 1975, "Unneeded bureaucracy." 
Burlington Times-News, June 4, 1975, "Ignoring the Public." 
Lenoir News-Topic, June 23, 1975, "Political Magic." 
Henderson Dispatch, June 24, 1975, "Is Congress So Blind It Cannot See?" 
Albemarle Stanly News & Press, June 27, 1975, "CPA Not Needed." 
Monroe Enquirer Journal, July 28, 1975, "Guess who is payi'!Jg bill for consumer 

protection?" , , ", 
Wilson Times, August 19, 1975, "Consumer Protection Is Bad BiI!.\I;' , 
Henderson Dispatch, August 21, 1975, "protection From The Protectors." 
Henderson Dispatch, August 23, 1975, "Proposed Protection Agency Is ,Bad Buy 

For Consumers." "-
Henderson Dispatch, November 20, 1975, "Consumer Agency Another Bti>:eaucracy;" 
Wilson Times, November 24, 1975, "No Need For Consumer Agency." '\ 

Ohio " 
Salem Farm & Dairy, April 10. 1975, "Public Is 75% Opposed To New c~~~umer 

Agency." , \ 
Warren Tribune Chronicle, April 12, 1975, "Little Support." ,(;) \ 
Zanesville Times Recorder, April 17, 1975, "Congress: Please Take Note." i\. 
Cincinnati Enquirer, April 18, 1975, "Better, Not More.", " ,'" 
Sabina Advertiser, April 23, 1975, "Help We Can Do Without!" (Cartoon) "Is 

This Something We Need?" , , 
Barnesville Whetstone, April 24, 1975, "Is This Something We Need?" ~) 
Mansfield News-Journal, May 5, 1975, "Battle Lines Drawn On Consumer Agency." 
Kent-Ravenna Record-Courier, May 14, 1975, "Most consumers don't want advocacy 

agency~" 
Dayton Journal Herald, May 19, 1975, "Consumer Bill ... we doubt that public 

will be protected" 
Athens Messenger, May 21,1975, "Protecting Consumers." 
Columbus Citizen-Journal, May 21, 1975, "Some watchdog." 
Salem Farm & Dairy, May 22, 1975, "Help We Can Do Without!" (Cartoon) "Is 

This Something We Need?" ' 
Youngstown Vindicator, MilY 22, 1975, "Consumer Age,ncy Needed?" , 
Akron Beacon 'Journal, May 24, 1975, "Consumer;s Own Alertness Would Serve 

Him Better." 
Cincinnati Enquireri',May 28,1975, "First, Make The Old Laws Work." 
North Canton Sun"lIl1ay 28, 1975, "Public Opposed To New Consllmer Agency," 
Cincinnati Enquirer, June 4, 1975, "A Consumer "Aggravacy' Agency?" 
Columbus Dispatcb, June 5,1975, "Consumer Advocacy: Just Who Needs It?" 
Cincinnati Enquirer, June 9; 1975, "There's ABetter Way." 
Salem News, June 24, 1975, "More Bureaucracy,?" ' , 
Toledo Blade, July 23, 1975, "Another Consumer Boondoggle." 
Colum.bus DisPiltch; August 21, 1975, "Superagency Bill Lacks Grouilds.well." 
Cincinnati Post, September 10, 1975, "A plague of frogs." 
Geauga Times Leader, December 4, 1975, "Superfluous." 
Painesville Telegraph, December 16, 1975, "Consumer agency unnecessary." 
Lima News, December 19, 1975, "Reform overdue in consumerism." . 
Cincinnati Enquirer, August 4, 1976, "The Carter-Nader Alliance." ' 
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Oklalwma 
Oklahoma City Journal, April 12, 1975, "ConsumE)~s Favor 'As IS'.;' 
Tulsa World, April 23, 1975, "Measuring The Cost." 
Oklahoma City Oklahoman, May 15, 1975, '~,Ford Should Veto ACA." 
Tulsa World, June 3, 1975, "The Loaded Question." 
Tulsa World, September 2, 1975, "New Plague Of Frogs." 

Oregon 
Ontario Daily Argus Observer, April 19, 1975, "Consumers Prefer to do it Them-

selves." 
Albany Democrat-Herald, May I, 1975, "Are gains worth costs?" 
Nyssa Gate City Journal, May 8, 1975, "Is This Something We Need?" 
Portland Oregonian, May 22, 1975, "Regulatory mistake." 
Junction City Times, July 10, 1975, "Today the adversary approach ... " 
Bend Bulletin, August 23, 1975 " ... on the other hand." 
Mill City Enterprise, September 4, 1975, "Guess Who Will Be Boomeranged?" 
Ontario Argus Observer, September 26, 1975, "George Meany, The Consumer's 

Friend." . 
Gresham Outlook, November 17, 1975, "A Reply To Mr. Nader." 

Pennsylvania 
St. Mary's Press, April 22, 1975, "Consumer Agencies Not Doing The Job." 
Monessen Valley Independent, April 23, 1975, "For the consumers?" 
Ridgway Record, April 23, 1975, "Who needs it?" 
Souderton Independent, April 23, 1975, "Is This Something We Need?" 
Titusville Herald, April 24,1975, "New Consumer Agency Needed?" 
Corry Journal, April 24, J 975, "Two more bureaus needed?" 
Shippenburg News-Chronicle, April 25, 1975, "Not another bureau, please!" 
Reading Times, April 25, 1975, "Little support. ': 
Uniontown Herald, April 26, 1975, "Do It Themselves," 
Punxsutawney Spirit, April 26, 1975, "Two More Bureaus needed?" 
Irwin Standard-Observer, May 5, 1975,"New agency is unpopular." 
Mount Joy Merchandiser, May 14, 1975, "Public Is 75% Opposed To New Consumer 

Agency." 
Beaver Falls News Tribune, May 15, 1975, "Is a new agency needed?" 
Irvin Standard-Observer, May 19, 1975, "Consumer Bureaus." 
Altoona Mirror, May 20, 1975, "An Insidious Bill." 
Pittsburgh Press, May 21, 1975, "Some Watchdog." 
Pittsburgh Post-Gazette, May 27, 1975, "Not Another Federal Agency." 
Oil City Derrick, June 5, 1975, "Another Superagency?" 
Elizabethtown Chronicle, June 12, 1975, "Let the Consumer Beware." 
Philadelphia Inquirer, November 9, 1975, "Congress gets the message on still mOre 

bureaucracy. " 
Pittsburgh Press, November 18,1975, "Dead In The Water." 
Hazelton Standard-Speaker, November 28, 1975, "Another agency superfluous." 
Hazelton Standard-Speaker, December 20, 1975, "Reform protects consumer." 
Philadelphia fnquirer, August 31, 1976, "Carter-Nader Blimpworks." (Cartoon) 

South Carolina 
SpartanbUrg Herald, May 13, 1975, "Consumers Don't Want New Agency." 
Columbia State, May 18, 1975, "Federal Consumer Advocates Not Needed." 
Rock Hill Herald. June 10, 1975, "Unneeded bureaucracy." 
Greenville News, December 21, 1975, "Genuine Protection." 

South Dakota 
Mitchell Republic, April 10, 1975, "A $60 Million Agency." 
Pierre Capital Journal, May 16, 1975, "More Regulation·Of Everybody." 
Brookings Register, May 20, 1975, "Where more tax dollars are headed." 
Wilmot Enterprise, June 12, 1975, "Is This Something We Need???" 
Watertown Public Opinion, July 24, 1975, "Another federal agency? You'lI·pay 

the bill." 
Watertown Public Opinion, November 20, 1975, "Another consumer agency-do 

We need it?" 

Tennessee 
Greeneville Sun, March 21, I 975r "The ,Consumer Deception Act of'1975." 
Kingsport Times, April 14, 1975, HOD-it-yourself consumerism." 
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Mt. Pleasant Record, April 24, 1975, "Is This Something We Need?" 
The Nashville Tennessean, May 5, 1975, "Antipathy for Consumers,:' 
Chattanooga News-Free Press, May 22,1975, "Avoid A Consumer Dictator." 
Memphis Commercial Appeal, June 6, 1975, "Listening To Complaints." 
Union Messenger, June 10, 1975, "Consumers Have A Better Idea!" 
Chattanooga News-Free Press, July 18, 1975, "Warning Ahead Of Error." 
Chattanooga News-Free Press, December II, 1975, "Freedon Can Protect Con-

sumers." 

Texas 
Gainesville Re~ister & Messenger, March 24, 1975, " '75 Consumer Deception Act." 
San Antonio LIght, April I, 1975, "Protection Agency's Not Needed Here." 
Waco Tribune-Herala, April' 9, 1975, "Consumers Not A~king For This 'Protection.' " 
Gainesville Register & Messenger, April 11,1975, "Who Knows Best For You?" . 
Kilgore News Herald, April 16, 1975, "Who Knows Best: People or Nader?" 
Lufkin News, April 16, 1975, "Consumer self-protection." 
Abilene Reporter-News, April 17, 1975, "Most Citizens Are OppOSed To Federal 

Consumer Agency." 
Cleburne Times-Review, April 20, 1975, "Consumers Prefer To Do It Themselves." 
Vidor Vidorian, April 24, 1975, "Is This Something We Need?" " 
Princeton Herald, April 24, 1975, "Nader Nadir." 
Farmersville Times, April 24,1975, "Nader Nadir." 
Plainview Herald, April 27, 1975, "Other Side Of Coin." 
Kermit News, May 1, 1975, "Who Knows Best?" 
Amarillo Globe-Times, May 2,1975, "Untying the Knots." 
Austin American Statesman, May 7,1975, "Unneeded Agency." 
D~'las Morning News, May 15, 1975, "Public Busybody." 
Dat .IS Times Herald, May 15, 1975,"Consumer agency." 
Amarillo Daily News, May 21,1975, "Give Daddy Your Hand." 
Fo~ .Worth ,~eekly Livestock Reporter, May 22, 1975, "Ma¥beth' Consumer Needs 

DefimtJon ... 
Houston Chronicle, May 22, 1975, "This is madness." 
Pampa News, May 25, 1975, "Unneeded bureaucracy." 
Victoria Advocate, May 27,1975, "Costly and Unneeded." 
Levellaml Sun News, June I, 1975, "Unneeded bureaucracy." 
Brownsville Herald, June 4, 1975, "Unneeded Bureaucracy." 
Pampa News, June 15, [975, "Loading A Question." 
Irving News Texan, June 22, 1975, "Federal controls abuse." 
Garland News, June 22, 1975, "Federal controls abuse." 
Fort Worth Star Telegram, july 14, 1975, "Let's Not Throw In That Wrench." 
Tyler Courier-Times, July 22, 1975, "Consumer Protection Agency Showdown Near

ing In House. " 
Fort"Worth Morning Star-Telegram, July 23, 1975, "Consumers need help, not more 

bureaucracy. " 
(Houston) Retail Grocer, August, 1975, "Legislation Alert ... Consumer Protection 

Act." 
Waco Tribune-Herald, August 24, 1975, "What We Dori't Need Is"Another Federal, 

Agency." (> 
Dallas Morning News, September 9, 1975, "Consumer Advocacy: A Question of 

Power." , 
Houston Chronicle, December 8, 1975, "Consumer agency idea dying." 

Utah 
Ogden Standard-Examiner, April 24, 1975, "Americans Oppose Super-Agency." 
Ogden Standard-Examiner .. April 29, 1975, "Ford Would Curb Federal. Agencies." 
Salt Lake City Tribune, April 29, \975, "Bureaucracy Burgeons." 
Salt Lake City Tribune, April 30, 1975, "No Need for Super Bureaucracy To Protect 

U.S. Consumers." 
Gunnison Valley Times, May 8, 1975, "Protect Public From Protectors," 
Salt Lake City Deseret News, May 12, 1975, "Consumers don't need this kind 

of 'help'." 
Salt Lake City Deseret News, May 14, 1975, ~~Veto the fonsumer agency bill." 

Virginia 
Lynchburg Advance, March 18, 1975, "Consumer deception." 
Richmond Times-Dispatch, April 9, 1975, "An Unneeded Agency," 
Richmond Times-Dispatch, May 3, 1975, "I'd Just Love Ya to Death!" (Cartoon) 
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Norfolk Led~er-Star, May 6, 1975, "Dubious consumer aid." 
Richmond T1mes"Dispatch, May 18, 1975, "Sticking the Consumer." 
Suffolk News Herald, May 26, 1975, "Sticking The Consumer." 
Staunton Leader, July 10, 1975, "Why stomach high cost of red tav,e?" 
Newport News Times-Herlad, July 29, 1975, "Consumer nonsense. ' 
Richmond Times-Dispatch, September 1, 1975, "A Plague of Frogs." 
Spokane Chronicle, May 16, 1975, "More Bureaucracy Opposed" "Consumers Vs. 

People." 
Pasco Tri-City Herald, May 27, 1975, "No Need for consumer agency." 
Vancouver Columbian, November 18, 1975, "Consumer bill veto likely." 
Seattle Times, November 20,1975, "Consumer-protection overdose." 

West Virginia 
Beckley Post-Herald, April 23, 1975, "Scheme Feared Just Another Bureaucracy." 
Clarksburg Telegram, April 29, 1975, "Is This Something New?" 
Clarksburg Telegram, June 21, 1975, "The Consumer Choice." 
Wheeling News-Register, November 30, 1975, "More Bureaucracy Not Needed." 

Wisconsin 
Antigo Journal, March 22,1975, "Excessive Power." 
Wausau-Merrill Herald, July 7, 1975, "Let's call a halt ... RegUlation grows and 

grows." '. 
Janesville Gazette, November 14,1975, "Milking the Taxpayer." 

Chairman RIBICOFF. Mr. John T. Miller, please? 
Mr. Miller, you are our final witness, and we have to break up 

at 5 minutes to 12, so you may proceed. 

TESTIMONY OF JOHN T. MILL'ER, JR., PAST CHAIRMAN OF SECTION 
ON ADMINISTRATIVE LAW, AMERICAN BAR ASSOCIATION 

Mr. MILLER. Mr. Chairman, Senator Percy, I regret that I was 
not here when my name was called, but both sides of the Hill are 
holding hearings on this same very important legislation at the same 
time, and it is a little difficult to coordinate. 

My name is John T. Miller, Jr. I am a practicing attorney in 
Washington, D.C., an adjunct professor of law at Georgetown, and 
a past chairman of the Section of Administrative Law of the American 
Bar Association. 

I have been asked by the president of the American Bar Association, 
Mr. Justin Stanley, to appear here today to express the American 
B,ar Association's support for legislation establishing an Agency for 
Consumer Advocacy. 

I have a prepared statement, Mr: Chairman, which I ask be copied 
in the record as though read so that I may make a brief statement 
in lieu of that. 

S. 1262 would establish an independent Agency for Consumer Ad
vocacy. We support the proposition in prindple because we believe 
it would facilitate the consideration of consumer interests in adminis
trative proceeaings. 

There are two aspects ,of this legislation which we are very nfl.ic~ 
interested in. We testified about this when we appear,f;d 4 years ago" 
before this committee on similar legislation. 

The first is the right to intervene. We believe that t.he Administrator 
ought to have an effective right to intervene in administrative 
proceedings. To make him an amicus curiae, which means he hopes 
that what he writes will be read, is not the way to permit him or 
to leave him. 

The legislation as we see it will' 'permit him to be an effective 
participant at the administrative level and we support that. 
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On the appellate level, we have two recommendations. We believe 
it is very important that the Administrato.r be allowed to appeal to 
the courts wherever such an appeal. is o!herwise permitted by law 
to anyone who would be effectIve In thIS maTI;1~r. But we would 
recommend that you amend the legislation-to the extent it would 
permit the court to decide whether the Administrator should proceed 
on appeal. . 

We realize there is a problem where the Administrator did not 
participate in the Agency proceeding and 'has decided that there is 
a substantial consumer intere.st which requh:es protection through a 
court of appeals. We think that it is impoftant"in such a situation 
that if the regulation requires that one apply for rehearing to the 
Agency first, that the Administrator be required to follow that course 
so that the Agency can correct error if there is error before there 
is a court challenge. But where there is not that kind of provision, 
and the Administrator has not participated in the agency proceeding, 
we do not think it advisable to leave it to the court to decide whether 
the Administrator should be allowed to appeal. 

The legislation now requires the court to in effect block the Ad
ministrator if his action in the court of appeals' would -not advance 
the interests of justice. That requires the courts to make two value 
judgments on the appeal. First to decide whether the Administrator 
should be allowed to appeal, then later on after briefs, the merits 
of the appeal. . 

We think that on the one hand, you give the court a standard 
for knocking out the Administrator which does not have any 
background 'to it. It will just add to confusion and concern. On the 
other hand, we think that the courts are quite able to protect them .. 
selves against appeals which are unwarranted and to tell the Adminis
trator so when they catch him in that situation. 

I have an additional comment to make on this in light of the 
fact thatjl ou have ~sunset provision in this law. I think it is fair 
to say that if this law dies in 3 to 4 years and we express no opinion 
on. the merits of that, but if it does you may well have the situation 
where. the Administrator is about ready to go to the court of appeals 
at the time. this legislation ends~ And you will not'have had a fair 
demonstration of whether appeals to the court of appeals by the 
Administrator are worth it in terms of protecting consumer interests. 

We can conceive the possibility, immediately after,t>he Agency is 
set up, he will find situations where'; because he did not have a 
statutory existence before, he could not participate. And yet the' situa
tion warrants a court review. 

Wen, this legislation would pretty well block him from that?'kind 
of court participation until the seasoning process had taken place 
and he had actually participated in new Agency proceedings and 
appealed those. I do not think that is what you really intended, 
becaiJse there is going to be art area of failure to protect the consumer 
interests on' the appellate' level for Some period of time the way 
the law is now written. 0 

Senator PERCY. Mr. Miller, I .would like to ask a question at th~:,j.i 
point. Is there any precedent for the Government intervenor to initiatt:i' 
court review without participation in the Agency proceedings? 
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Mr. MILLER. Well, there are many cases I believe involving appeals 
by, say, the Department of Justice Antitrust Division, of ICC actions 
where there is a collision between the regulatory function and the 
antitrust laws. And I believe in those instances you will find cases 
where there was not a particularly active role played by the Depart
ment of Ju!.tice in the agency proceedings before they went to court. 
I believe you can find an article entitled "Administrative Agencies 
as Judicial Review Petitioners". It is in the joint hearings before the 
Subcommittee on Reorganization, Research and International Or
ganizations of the Committee on Government Operations and the 
Subcommittee on Consumers of the Committee on Commerce in the 
U.S. Senate on the prior bill, S. 707. These were held in March, 
April, and June 1973. I think you will find a handle there for court 
decisions along this line. 

Senator PERCY. In view of the fact that we are short on time 
this morning and that your full testimony will go in the record without 
interruption and questions will follow, would you mind if I ask a 
couple of questions at this stage? 

Mr. MILLER. Yes, sir. 
Senator PERCY. I have gone over your testimony and we are very 

grateful for it. Please express my appreciation, if you wou!d, to my 
valued constituent, Justin Stp-.nley. 

We have built in a 3-year sunset provision. Such a provision would 
evaluate how much money has been spent and what benefits have 
been derived. 

Is there any set of criteria that you could develop and submit 
for the record to us that we could use in the evaluation process? 

Mr. MILLER. None that occurs to me right now, Senator, but let 
me explain a few thoughts that go through my mind. 

I do not think an evaluation that says that the Administrator ap
peared in \So many hearings is any help. I have spent 25 years in 
administrative proceedings largely representing what people might call 
consumer interests. Although those consumers are often giant utilities 
or industries and so on. 

What you have to do is to get an evaluation of the participation. 
That is the only way it is meaningful. Did the attorney who showed 
up from the Administrator's office play an effective job? Was' he 
prepared for his job? Did he do his homework? And perhaps the 
key to it, because we tend to lose sight as lawyers that we sometimes 
playa subordinate role, it may be very important that the Administra
tor tap the resources of economists and others who can present a 
viewpoint as to why the rule or regulation or adjudication ought 
to go one way rather than the other. 

In other words, the material turning point in these proceedings 
may well be not the lawyer's arguments but the evidence, the facts. 
So the evaluative process you set up has got to determine whether 
or not there is really a use of the tools available to our society 
in terms of technical help and skills to present the other point of 
view which the Administrator is trying to present. 

So I think you shoulr.l give consideration to an evaluate process 
not unlike that that is used when recruiting administrati."e law judges. 
You try to get an opinion from those who participated I.n proceedings 
in which that person appeared, and try to get a value judgment as 
to whether that participation was truly well prepared. 

t 
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Senator PERCY. I wonder if you could expand on why you feel 
that the right to appeal to the courts is an important power of the 
ACA Administrator. I have had problems with the bQsiness community 
on this particular point. They take issue with it. They think it is 
just going to harass them. Why do yoU" consider it an important 
power? 

Mr. MILLER. The courts consider their role as one of partnership 
with the administrative agencies. The administrative agencies. often 
groan that they are the junior partner in that transaction. But as 
a matter of fact the courts of appeal have helped the agencies very 
much to a better understanding of the laws that they admirlister and 
the kinds of facts and proof necessary to carry it out. 

It is important therefore that there be someone interested who 
can carry to the courts of appeal problems that require that kind 
of helpful elucidation by that part of the partnership. After all, we 
are not talking about creating a new law which burdens anybody 
in society, but rather trying to create somebody or a group who 
will make those perform more effectively. 

If somebody is saying that it is better that they not work well 
just as they are-then it is better to just .get the laws off the books. 
If that is really the value jUdgment that must be made. But if those 
laws supposedly are there to protect cons1;lmers among others, there 
ought to be effective review by the court of appeals when they stray 
from the function they are suppose to perform. Too many people 
do not have the means to go to the court of appeals or to prepare 
the necessary record. 

Senator PERCY. You have obviously given this bill careful considera
tion. Would S. 1262 as now adapted and as you have gone througW' 
it obviously in any way prevent the Administrator from appealing 
to the court on those questions which may need court review? 

Mr. MILLER. I have mentioned the one problem that we have. 
We do not think that he ought to have to ask the court's permission 
first to go on appeal. We would ask that that be amended. 

The second is a perhaps unintended problem raised by the 
draftsmanship which is spelled out in my testimony. You have a provi~ 
sion in section 21 (b) which .in effect if they do not affect the validity 
of the Agency decision. The language is so written that if the Adminis
trator does not get the documents he needs through hi~ subpena 
requests and so on, that that might be considered one that does ,', 
not affect the validity of the final decision. So it guts his tight to 
raise on appeal-the right he ought to have to challenge-the failure 
of his subpena power. \1 

I .. think that is an unintended effect of draftsmanship that could 
be easily changed. 

Senator PERCY. Thank you. I have one final question. 
When the Congress passed the National Environmental Protection 

Act of 1970, ,it intended fot Government agencies to substantively 
consider the environmental impact of their actions. In the past few 
years, agencies have too frequently just gone through the motions., 
The act often serves simply as a costly procedural delay, and it has ~\ 
not fU. lfilled the hopes of some of the drafters of that legiSlation.. . '\ 

Now we are proposing in this bill, section 24, tha~ agencies must 
assess the cost-benefit relationship. How can we Insure that this 

cJ 
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cost-benefit proposal avoids some of the weaknesses that resulted 
from our environmental legislation that was passed in 1970? 

Mr .. MILLER. This particular provision was not before the American 
Bar Association, so let me respond as an individual. ' 

I think the idea is excellent. But I think what it· lacks-and this 
gets back to your evaluative process we were discussing a moment 
ago as part of the sunset provision of this' statute itself. What I see 
lackjng is an evaluative part which in effect says to an agency-look 
3 years you gave a cost-benefit analysis of something you were going 
to do. Now time has shown that is a lot of hocurn. It was a beautifui· 
act of draftsmanship, lots of skill with rhetoric, but it just proved 
to be wrong. I think you need that kind of a followup, so you get 
these cost-benefit evaluations into some kind of a real world, much 
as a businessman would have to when he is called to account after
wards for his recommendation in the form of a budget. 

Senator PERCY. Mr. Miller, I want to thank you very much indeed. 
You are the final witness in these hearings. I think the hearings 
have been constructive and very helpfuL I think everyone' has been 
giyen an opportunity to express himself, and Senator Ribicoff has 
conducted the hearings with his usual dispatch and fairness. 

The hearings are therefore adjourned and completed. '; 
Mr. MILLER. Thank you. . 
[Whereupon, the hearing was adjourned at 11:55 a.m.] 
[The prepared statement of Mr. Miller follows:] 

STATEMENT OF JOHN T. MILLER, JR. PAST CHAIRMAN, SECTION ON ADMINISTRATIVE 
, LAW, ON BEHALF OF THE AMERICAN BAR ASSOCIATION 

My name is John T. Miller, Jr. I am a practicing attorney in Washington, D.C. 
and a past Chairman of the Section of AdIl'\~'nistrative Law of the American Bar 
Association. . . 

Four years ago I appeared before the pred/~cessor of this Committee in. the 93d 
Congress to express the American Bar Associa~(on 's support for legislation establishing 
an Agency for Consumer Advocacy, or a Co:nsumer Protection Agency as it was 
then called.' My successor as Administrative Law:"~ection Chairman (Acting) reiterated 
the ABA position in correspondence 'with the other body the following year.2 I am 
pleased to return once again, at the request of pjiesident Justin Stanley of the ABA, 
to assure this committee of Ollr cO,ntinued SUPIX?jtt for the principles which underlie 
the relev~t J'2visions~62, the pro~sed CJ,\sum~! Protection Ac~7_. __ _ 

S. 1262 would establish an independent Agency for ConsumerAavocacy to par
ticipate on bP.half of consumer interests in proceedings before other administrative 
agencies and on judicial review of other agencies' actions. At the 1972 Annual Meeting 
of the American Bar Association, the Association's House of Delegates endorsed in 
principle the enactment of comparable p,~ovisions in a Consumer Protection Agency '" 
bill then pending in the 92d Congress (H.R. 10835, 92d Cong., 1st Sess., as passed ' 
by the House of Representatives on October 14, 1971). The basis for our endorsement 
was our belief that such legislation would materially improve the administrative process 
b:v facilitating agency consideration of important interests-those of the coliSumer as 
defined in the bill. We further applauded the bill's utilization of the scheme of the 
Administrative Procedure Act "Illi the frame of reference for defining the role of the 
Consumer Protection Age!lcy. . 

By creating an, Agency for Consumer Advocacy with authority to intervene or other
wise participate in administrative prOCeedings before other agencies, and to seek judicial 
review of other agencies' actions, S. 1262 would similarly facilitate the consideration 
of COnsumer interests, in administrative agency proceedings and thus, in our view, 

'Joint hearings on S. 707 and S. 1160 Before the Subcomm. on Reorganization of the Senate 
Government Opemtions Comm. and the Subcomm. on Consumers of the Senate .Commerce Comm., 
93d Cong., 1st Sess. 241-49, 314-35 (1973). . 

"Letters from Marion Edwyn Harrison. Acting Chairman, ABA Section of Administrative Law, to 
Hon. Chet Holifield and Hon. Fmnk Horton, Committee on Government Opemtions, House of 
Representatives, Mc.rch 14, 1974. 
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would materially- improve the fairness of the administrative process. We are aware 
that S. 1262 dIffers in some respects from H.R. 10835 as passed by the House in 
the 92d Congress, as well as from S. 707 on which we testified in 1973, and we 
express no position on their relative merits. What we endorse in the fundamental 
pnnciple of all these bills-that an independent consumer advocatd~ should be 
eHtabhshed with authority to participate in proceedings before other agencies, including 
the right to intervene in appropriate cases, and the authority to seek judicial review 
of administrative agency action when necessary to vindicate the interests of consumers. 

P .... RTICIP .... TION IN AOENCY PROCEEDINOS 

There can be no dispute with the basic proposition that every administrative agency 
should be fully cognizant of the effect of its actions on the interests of consumers. 
Every agency IS explicitly or implicitly required by law to act in the "pubUc intere.st". 
Regardless of the particular aspect of public interest committed to its/-jurisdiction, 
an agency must also be concerned with the broader impact of its actions on consumers 
if it is to act in a sound and responsible manner. TIle Ame'rlcan Bar Association 
believes that the Agency for Consumer Advocacy which would be created by S. 1262 
would be an important aid t() many agencies in considering consumer interests, and 
would be a vital source of p~"tection for such interests wherever they might otherwise 
go disregarded or misunderstOod . 

We do not mean to suggest that the administrati'ie agencies are presently insensitive 
to consumer interests, and our support of the principles underlying S. 1262 is nor 
based on any lack of confidence in the, abilities or dedication of existing agencies 
in carrying out their assigned responsibilities. Rather, we believe' that for many kinds 
of agency 'proceedings and activities, the growing complexity of, the task of defining 
consumer mterests, and of reconciling consumer interests with the over-all "public 
interest", requires new safeguards against actions based on inadequate information 
or superficial analysis. 

The increasing (and increasingly accepted~ efforts of consumer organizations to par
ticipate in a wide range of agency activitlesr:eflect a growing belief that administrative 
agencies are not performing adequately their assigned roles of promoting the "public 
:nterest" insofar as consumer interests are concerned. We can weI! understand a 
reluctance of some agencies to permit' the kind of participation in agency activities 
which has been sought, and their concern with possible loss of control over their 
own proceedings and with additional burdens on agency resources. We suggest, however, 
that the felt need for additional consumer representation can to, a great extent be 
satisfied, Without the adverse effects envisioned by some agencies, by means of a 
measure such"as S. 1262. 

There is an important role for an Agency for Consumer Advocacy even where 
anothor agency is charged with the protection of some specific conSUmer interest. 
Many administrative activities which are designed to promote a single cOlisumer interest 
may at the same time impinge upon or conflict with other important consumer interests . 

. Actions designed "to increase produc~ safety may necessarily increase product price; 
actions intended to maintain low tran§portation rates may result in eventual deteriora" 
tiqg ,ofsr.ryj,ce; actions designed to relieVe the energy crisis may directly rtCiuce competi" 
tion or haml'tilq;k I>lnviroriment. Beyond '~uch obvious conflicts and dilemmas are more 
complex and subtle intel'~tions of discrete consumer interests which must be examined 
and weighed in order to 'ehsl.lr~ a SOUild resolution. Wherever suc-It tbnfliciting 01' 
ovetIapping interests are affected by ~, proposec:L~~ncy action, the best way to assure 
that the action finally taken will serve'ti\,,' over-all interest of consumers is to provide 
an opportunity for effective independent advocacy on behalf of each of the interests 
affected. ' 

The proposed Agenc:l for Consumer Advocacy would provide such an opportunity. 
In fonnulating a position; the Administmtor would consider all aspects of the consumer's 
viewpc:>int, -and, in presenting the position to other agencies or on judicial review, 

)!iswould be an independent voice on behalf of important consumer interests. which 
, might otherwise go unrepresented.,· " 

We stress that adoption of a mtmsure such as S. 1262 will not and should not 
eliminate efforts by private organizations to playa constructive role in agency activities. 
Indeed; as recently" as two months ago the ABA House of Oelegates endorsed the 
enacment of legislation encouraging the participation of non-govemmental representa~ 
tives in agency proceedings in areas of the law which Congress finds would',benefit 
from increased citizen participation. Rather, we suggest that appropriate, participation 
by an Agency for Consumer Advocacy in other agencies' activities will complement 
the need for· private intervention of interests which would othblwise go unrepresented. 

o 
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In earlier stages of the development of this legislation there was substantial debate 
as' to whether the Agency for Consumer Advocacy should be authorized to intervene 
as a full party in administrative agency proceedings, or whether it should be confined 
to the role of an amicus curiae. The American Bar Association Qelieves that partil::t;lar 
circumstances may well necessitate full intervention by the Administrator as a party 
if consumer interests' are effectively to be represented. We therefore endorse, the grant 
of statutory, .authority to the Administrator to intervene as a party in appropriate 
cases. 

The ceilt~a1.. purpose of S. l262 is to assure opportunity for effective representation 
of consumer interests where.they are presently lacking. The procedural rights of parties 
to administrative proceedings, as spelled out in the Administrative Procedurtl' Act, 
are those rights which Congress has deemed essential to enable a party adequately 
to develop a.rid present his case. An amicus curiae, by contrast, has no such rights 
except as may be conferred by the agency before which the proceeding is pending. 
If the Administrator of the Agency for Cosumer Advocacy determines in a particular 
case that the effective representation of consumer interests requires him to 'act as 
a party rather than merely as amicus, he should be given the procedural tools tt> 
~~~ . 

In fact, many agencies are presently empowered to allow other governmental agencies 
to intervene as parties in proceedings before them, in the exercise of the host agency's 
discretion, and in some i.nstances these agencies are required by statute to allow such 
intervention. Legislation such as S. 1262 would simply guarantee to the consumer's 
advocate the benefits of this well-established practice.' The agency before which a 
proceeding is pending should plainly have the same power to regulate the Administra
tor's exercise of procedural rights which it has when a representative of some other 
r~cognized interest is concerned, and S, 1262 expressly so provides.3 But surely no 
greater power over the consumer's representative would be warranted. 

JUDICIAL REVIEW 

The American Bar Association also endorses the grant of authority to the Agency 
for Consumer Advocacy to initiate and participate in proceedings for judicial review 
of administrative action affecting consumer interests. The right of participation in an 
agency proceeding, to ensure that consumer interests are properly coflsidered, would 
be of little value without the complementary right to judicial review of the final 
agency action. Wherever conflicting interests must be reconciled in atcordance with 
a statutory mandate, judicial review is essential to guard against arbitrary or unreasoned 
administrative decisions. This is no less so in matters involving agency re,",olution of 
conflicting consumer interests, such as where the agency itself is the proponent of 
one interest and the Agency for Consumer Advocacy intervenes to ensure consideration 
of another interest important to consumers. 

The right to seek judicial review so as to protect interests within the safekeeping 
of the Agency for Consumer Advocacy may well be implicit in its authority in any 
event. As with intervention as a party at the agency level, there are ample statutory 
precedents for explicit recognition of that right, and in this regard S. 1262 is well 
with,in the mainstream of federal administrative law. . 

We also note the requirement in Section 6( c)( 1) of the bill that, where the filing 
of a petition for rehearing or reconsideration at the administrative level is specifically 
'authorized by the host agency's statutes or rules, the Agency for Consumer Advocacy' 
must file such a petition before seeking judicial review if there was no previous par
ticipation in the proceedings. This ensures that every agency will have the same opportu
nity to COrrect its own errors as when private parties are aggrieved by agency action, 
and that the power }Jf the Agency for Consumer Advocacy to seek judicial review 
will be exercised only where necessary. 

The American Bar Association, believes, however, that the judicial review provisions 
of S. 1262 should be strengthened in two important respects. 

First, the Adm'inistrator's right to secure judicial review of agency action should 
in no way depend upon whether or not he participated at theageney level. As presently 
written, Sectton 6(c)(l) would grant an unqualified right to judicial review ()f any 
final action that the Administrator of the Agency for Consumer Advocacy determines 
may substantially affect an interest of consumers, but only if he intervened or par
ticipated in the agency proceeding or" activity out of which the agency action arose. 
The right to review in any other case (i.e., where the Administrator did not participate 
at the agency level) is withheld by this provision of the bill where ,he reviewing 
court fails to determine that the initiation of a review proceeding by the Administrator 
"would advance the interests of justice ... 

• Section 6(a)(I). Sec also Section 6(a)(3). 
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While we do not believe that the Administrator should initiate a judicial review 
proceeding that would not in fact "advance the interests of justice," we believe that 
the incorporation of such a vague and confusing phrase as a statutory standard is 
undesirable. This language provides no meaningful criteria for the courts to apply 
in deciding whether to allow the Administrator to initiate a judicial review proceeding, 
and would be susceptible of the most rigidly exclusionary application. Moreover, the 
likely desire of the Administrator to avoid thi'l potential barrier, of uncerta!n dimensions, 
to his opportunity for judicial review might lead him to file pro forma papers and 
appearances in all agency proceedings which look toward final actions he may sub-
sequently wish to challenge in court. i - - , 

The courts have ample authority to prev;;.;! abuses of the judiciol review process, 
through such means as a remand for further administrative considerution, without the 
necessity for an "advancement of the interests of justice" clause such as in Section 
6(c)(1) of the bill. We therefore urge the deletion of this open ended and potentially 
troublesome language. 

Second, we not an apparent inconsistency within Section 21 (b) of the bill relating 
to vindication of the Administrator's rights under Section 6(f) to utilize the host agen
cy's compulsory process PQWers. As presently worded, Section 21 (b)( I)(A) permits 
the AdmInistrator to seek reView of the host agency's denial of.·a Section 6(f) request 
fOT compulsory process "only to the extent that fiuch determination affected the validity 
of * * '" [the final agency] action." The introductory language in Section 21(b)(I), 
however, states generally that "no act or omission * * * relating tt,l the Administrator's 
authority under * * * [Section 6(f)] shall affect the validity of an agency action 
* * *." 

It seems clear from the stnrcture oC-Section 21(b)(1) as a whole that the last
quoted language is directed o;~ly to third-party claims that a Section 6(f) request 
of the Administrator was improperly denied. This intent shoulq be clarified so as 
to avoid any possibility that the language might be helri to derogate from the clear 
authority conferred upon the Administrator, to seefi"jreview of a SectiOn 6(f) denial. 

CONCLUSlor:{ , 

The American Bar Association is convincedr/hat S. 1262, as modified in accor&'ance 
with our suggestion~" would materially improve'the administrative process by facilitating 
agency and court consideration of important consumer interests. We urge the prompt ~; .. ::" 
amendment and enactment of S. 1262 or other legislation embodying the same statutory· 
principles. 

"J 
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S.1262 

. IN THE SENATE OF TJIIU U.NITFJ) STA'NJ}S 

APRIL 6 (legislativ.e o.~y, FEBRUA~Y 21), lll77 

~r. RIBrcoFF (for himself, Mr. JAVlTS, Mr. PERCY, Mr. MAGNUSON, Mr. CRAN

B'EON, :Mr. JACKSON, Mr. MmcAa;, Mr. MA-THV.S, ami~. ~~) 
introduced the following bill; which was read twice and referred to tIre 
Committee on Governmental Affain; 

To establish an .independe.Jlt 'CQns\Ulle.r ~~ ·to p:r.o~~.a.Il4 

serve the interest of oonsumers, and for otb.~r purposes. 

1 Be it enacted by the Senate qnd House of RepresenttJ.. 

2 tive$ of the Unit¢' States of America in Oo:n!Jr~ q.ssembletl .. 

3 That this Act may be cited as the "Consumer ProtectiQll A<t 

4 of 1977". 

5 STATEMENT OF FINllINGS .AND PURPOalllS 

6 SEC. 2. (a) The Congress finds that the interests of 

7 consumers are in,a;dequately repr,csen,ted a..nd protected within 

8 the Federal Govermnent; vigorous representation and pro-

9 tection of the. interests of consumers are .essential to the fair 

10 and efficient £uncti~ of a free market e.c(}nomy. Each 

n 
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2 

1 yeoI', as a result 'Of this lack of effective representation bef'Ore 

2 Federal agencies and courts, oonsumel'S suffer personal :in-

3 jury, economic harm, and ,other flIdverse consequences in the 

4 'course 'Of acquiring and using g'oocls and 'services available 

5 in the marketplace. 

6 (b) The Congress therefore declares that-

7 (1) A governmental organization t'O represent the :in-

S teres,ts of 'consumers before Federal agencies and courts 

,9 '0 could ,help' the agencies in the exercise of their statutory 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

2.1 

responsibilities in a manner consistent with the public :interes't 

and with effective and responsive government. It is the 

purpose of this Act to protect and promote the interests of 

the people of the United States as consumers of goods and 

sel'vices which. are made available t'O them through com

merc~or which affect commerce by so establishing an :inde

pendent Agency for Consumer Advocacy. 

(;~) It'is the purpose of the Agency for Consumer 

Advocacy to represent the interests of consumers before 

Federal agencies and courts, receive and transmit consumer 

c'Omplaints, dev~I'OP and 0 disseminate :inf'Ormati'On 'Of :interest 

to c'Onsumei's; and peii'Orm 'Other functions t'O pr'Otect and 
oLi',,' 0, \ ' 

22 pr'Omote the interests 'Of c'Onsumers. The authority 'Of the 

23 ; Agency to 'carry 'Out this purpose shall n'Ot be c'Onstrued t'O 
, .. 

24 s~p~ersed~, s~pplant, 'Or r~place the jurisdicti'On, functi'Ons, 'Or 

25 P'OWerS 'Of any 'Other agency t'O discharge its 'Own statut'Ory 

26 resP'Onsibilities acc'Ording t'O law. 

W', 
f 
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(3) It is the purpose of this Act to promote protection 

of consumers with respect to the-

(A.) safety, quality, purity; potency, healthfulness, 

durability, performance, repairability, effectiveness, 

dependability, availability, and cost of any real or per

sonal propeilty or tangible or intangible goods, services, 

or credit; 

(:8) preservation of consumer choice and a com

petitive mll-rket; 

(C) pri~e and adequacy of supply of goods and 

services; 

(D) prevention of unfair or deceptive trade 

practices; 

(E) maintenance of trutliiulness and fairness in the 

advertising, promotion, and'sale by a producer, distrib

utor, lender, retailer, or other supplier of such property, 

goods, services, and credit; 

(F) furnishing::of full, accurate, and clear instruc-' 

tions, warnings, Jtnd other infopnation . by any such 

supplier concerning such property, goods, services, and 

credit; 

(G) protection of the legal rights and remedies of 

consUmers; and 

(4) This Act should be so interpreted by the .execu-' 

tive branch and the courts so as to implement 'the intent of 

/ 

'r;: 

" (( 
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1 Congress to ,protect and promote the interest's :of consumers, 

2 and to achieve the foregoing plITposes; 

3 ESTABLISHMENT 

4 SE~. 3. (a) There. is hereby established as an izidepend-

5 entagencyof the United States within the executive branch 

6 {)f the Government the. Agency for.Consumer Advocacy. The 

7 Agency shall be directed and administered 'by an Adminis-. 

8 .. trat~r who shall be appointe'd by the President, by and with 

9 the advice and consent of the Senate, for a term coterminous 

10 with the term of the President, not to exceed four years. The 

11 Administrator shall ~e an individual who by reaSon of train-

12 mg, experience, and attainments is. exceptionillly qualified to 

13 represent the interests of consumers. There shall be in the 

14 AgenQY a I)eputy Administra.tor who shall ~e. appointed by 

15 the. PresidenJ, by and with the advice and consent of the 

16 Senat~. The Deputy Administrator .~hall perfonu such func-

17 tions, powers, and duties IljS may be prescribed from time to 

18 time by the Administrator 'and' shall 'a.et £01', and exercise the 

19' powers of, the Administrator during the absence or disability 

200£, or in the event of a vacancy in the office of, the Adminis-

21 trator. On the expiration of his term, the Administrator shall 

22 continue in office trotil he is reap'pomt,.edor 'his successor is 

23 appointed and qualifies, The Administrator may be removed . . 

24 by the' Pres~dent· for iI1effici~cy; neglect.' of alIt'y,' or malfear . 

25 sauce in office. 

.. 
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5 

"1 . . (b) IS" 0 employee Of :the -Agenoy whil~s~nring in suoh~ 

2 position may engage in: any business, vocatio~; (lther e;m-:: 
I' 

"3' ployment,or have other interests, incqns~stent with his of-:: 

4 ficial responsibilities. 

5 " ( c) T!here sM,iJl he' in the Agency f1, Gen.~ral Ooun.sel
ii 

'I 

6 who shall be" appointed by the AdminiBtr.to~. :; 

" (d) The Administrator is authoriUld to appoint within 

8 the Agency not ·to exceed :fiye Ass~'Stant A~istrators. 

9 POWERS AND ;DUTIES OF THE ~Mlli"~STRATOR 

10 SEC. 4. ( a ) The Administrator shall be :responsible for 

11 the exercise of the powers a:Q.d the discpargl3 pi t4e duties9f 

12 the Agency, and shall have the fl,uthority to dirf39t ,and super-

13 'vise all 'personnel and activitie~ therflof. ' 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

'~") 

(b) In addition to any other authority -cP.Ilf~ed upon 

him by this Act, the Administrator is authQ~d! h,l carryin,~ 

out his functions under this Act, to-

o (1) subject to th6 civil jSflrvi~ -and 1118.ssifica~n 

laws, select, I1ppoint, ~mploy, and f1~ the cpwpensation 

of-such officersa:Q.d employ~es ~ ar~ R~essary to c~ 

out the provisions of this Act and fP pr~~pribe th~jr 

authority and duti~s; 

( 2) employ experts ~dconsU,lU,tn;ts in accorda~e 

with se.ction 3109 'of title ~i U:Q.itedSta..te~ pode, ap.d 

compensate individuals so ·~(JnPl.oy{',d for ea04 day (~-' 
, " 

, " cluding tra.veltime) fl,t Xl),tesMt bJ. ~~OOIls of the m~~i 

90-731 0 - 77 -- 10 " 

I~ 

o 
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1 mum rates of pay for Grade GS-18 as provided in sec-

2 tion 5332 of title 5, United States Code, und, while such 

3 experts and consultants are so serving away from their 

4 homes or regular place of business, pay such employees 

5 travel expenses and per diem in lieu of subsistence at 

6 rates authorized by section 5703 of title 5, United States 

7 Code, for persons in Government service employed in- 4 

8 termitten tly ; 

D (3) appoint advisory committees composed of such 

10 private citizens, including consumers and business rep-

11 resentatives, and officials of the Federal, State, and 

12 local governments as he deems desimble to advise him 

13 with respect to his functions under tIns Act, and pay 

14 such members (other than those regularly employed by 

15 the Federal Government) while attending meetings of 

16 such committees or otherwise serving at the request of 

17 the Adniinistrator com~B1lSation and travel expenses at 

18 the mte provided for in paragraph (2) of this subsection 

19 with respect to experts and oonsultant'S: Provided, That 

20 aU meetings of such comnnttees shall be open to the , 
21 public and interested persons shall be permitted to at-

22 te~d, appear before, or :61~statements with any advisory 

23 committee, subject to snch reasonable rules or regula-

24 tions as the Administrator may prescribe; 

25 (4) promulgate, in accordance with the applicable 
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1 provisions of the Administrative. Procedme Act, title 0, 

2 United States Code, such ru1es, regu1ations, 'and proce-

3 dmes as may be necessary to carry out the provisions bi 

4 this Act, and assnre faimess to all persons ,affected by 

5 the Agency's actions, and to delegate authority for the 

6 performance of any function to any officer or employee 

7 

8 

under his direction and snpervision; 

(5) utilize, with their consent, the services, per-

9 sonnel, and facilitie$ o£ other Federal agencies and 'of 

10 State, regional, local, and private agenCies' and mstrl1:-

11 mentalrties, with or without reinibursement therefor, 

12 and to transfer funds made available under: this Act to 

13 Federal, State, regio'~al, local, and private agencies and 

14 instlUmentalities as reimbul'sement. for. utilization of such 

15 services, personnel, and facilities; 

16 (6) enter into and perform such contracts, leases, 

17 

18 

19 

20 

cooperative agreements, or other transactions as may 

be necessary to carry out the provisions of :this Act, on 

such terms as the Administrator.maydeem appropriate, 

. with any agency or instrumentality' of the. United States; 

21 with any State, or any political subdivision ,thereof, or 
(';/ 

22 with any person; 

23 (7) .accept volmitary and uncompensated'services 

24 ' Ilotwithstanding,the provisions 'of sectioIl; .. 367-9 (b) 'of 

25 the Revised Statutes (31 U.S.C. 665.'(b):) ;' . '. " : \i 

ry 
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1 (8) adopt an official seal, whibh shall be judicially 

, notiood; 

3 (9) e1!tablish such regional bffices as the Adminis-

4 trawl determines to be necessary t() serve the interests 

5 of consumers; 

6 (10) conduct cohferences and hearillgs and other-

7 

8 

wise secure data. and expression of opinion; 

(11) accept unconditional gifts or donations of 

9 services, moil~y or property, real, personal, or mixed, 

10 tangible or intangible; 

11 (12) designate representatives to serve or assist on 

12 sUbh committees as he may determine to be necessary to 

i3 maintain effective liaison with Federal agencies and with 

14: Siam aild local agencies carrying out programs and activ-' 

15 ities related to the interests' of consumers; and 

16( 13) peroonn such other administrative activities as 

Ii 

18 

19 

may be necessary for the effective fulfillment of his 

duties and functions. 

(13' Upon request made by the Administrator, each. 

20 ,Fedetal ~ncy is auth()ri~ed and directed to make its serv~ 

21 ices, perllOtlDel, iUld facilities available to the greatest prac-

22 ticable extent within its capability, to the Agency in the 

23 perfl)flfi~ of its functions. An agency 'Shallllot be required 

24 ro ~i'Ovide linch senriees, pe~!onnel, or facilities to the Ad-: 

25 ministrator ~ to do ,so wottld seriously affect in an 

,. 
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1 adverse manner the agency's ability to caiTy out its respon-

2 sibilities, including any responsibility the agency has to 

3 Pl'otect the public health 01' safety. IS 

4 (d) The Administrator shall prepare and submit simul-

5 taneously to the Congress and the President, not later than 

6 February 1 of each year beginning February 1, 1978, an 

7 annual report,:Which shall include a description and. anal

S ysis oi-

9 (1) the activities of the Agency, including its rep-

10 resentation of the interests of consmners before Federal 

11 agencies and Federal courts; 

12 (2) the major F~deral agency actions and Federal 

13 court decisions affecting the interests of consumers; 

14 (3) the assistance given the Agency by other Fed-

15 

16 

eral agencies in carrying out the pUl;poses of this Act; 
II 

(4) the performance of Federdt agencies and the 

17 adequacy of their resources in enforcing consumer pro-

18 tection laws and in otherwise protecting the interests of 

19 . consumers, and the prospective results of alternativ.e 

20 consumer protection programs; 

21 (5) the !1ppropriation by Cong'l'ess for the Agency, . 

22 the distribution of appropriated funds for the current 

23 fiscal year, and a general estimato of the resoUl'ce' 

24 requirements of the Agency £01' each of the next three 

35 fiscal years; 

8.1262--2 
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( 6) consumer complaint;'! received (in summary 

form) and actions taken thereon; and 

(7) the extent of participation by consumers in 

Federal agency activities, and the effectiveness of the 

representation of COnSllJ'.lerS before Federal agencies;, 

together with recommendations for administrative ac~; 

tions to deal with problems discussed in tbe report, to 

protect and represent the intereMs uf consumers more 

effectively, and to curry out the purposes of this Act. 

(e) The Federal Register shall publish a notice indi-

cating that the annual report prepared pursuant to subsection 

(d) of this section is available. 

FUNOTIONS OF TEE AG:ENOY 

14 
:.1.', 

? SE~. 5. (a) The .Agency shall, in the performance of 

15.- its functions, advise the Congress and the President as to 

16': matters affecting the interests of consumers; and shall pro-

17 tect and promote the interests of the people of the United 

18 States as consumers of goods and services made available 

19 to them through the trade and commerce of the United 

20 States. 

21 (b) The functions of the Administrator shall be to-

22 (1) represent the interests of consumers before 

23 Federal agencies and courts to the extent authorized by 

24 this .. Act; 

-. 
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1 (2) conduct and,suppol't research, studies, and test-

2 ing to the extent authorized in section 9 of this Act; . 

3 (3) submit recommendations annually to the Oon-

4 gress lind t:he President on measurffi to improve the 

5 operation of the Federal Government in the protection 

6 and promotion of the interests of consumers; 

7 (4) obtain information and publish and distribute 

8 material developed in canying out his res#onsibilities 

9 under this Act in order to inform Uonsnmol'f1.· of ~!}at-
, ",: 

10. tel'S or interest to them, to the extent authorized in 

11 this Act; 

12 (5) receive, transmit to the appropriate agencies 

13 and pe:sons, and make publicly available collsumer 

14 com111aints to the extent authorized in -section 7' of this 

15 Act. 

16 (6) conduct conferences, surveys; and investig-n.-

17 tions, including economie surveys, concerning the need~, 

.. 18 interest'(" and problems of COllsumers: Provided, 'l'hat 

h elf .' . . t 
SUC COIl (;}l'ences, surveys, 01: J.lwesttgatLOns are no 19 

20 dnplicntive in significnnt degree of similar activities C011-

21 .. dncted by othel' Federal agencies; 

22 (7) cooperate with State and local govol'l1ments 
': 

23 und enconrageprivatoontol'pl'ise in the promotion ul~d 

24 protection of the int~rests of consumers; c 

o 

= 
() 

... 
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1 (8) keep the appropriate committees of Congres~ 

2 fully and cllrrently informed of all the Agency's acti1'-

3 Hies, when asked or on his own initiative, eJ{cept that 

4 this paragraph ~s not authority to withhold information 

5 requested by individual Members of Congress; 

6 (9) publish, in language l'eadily understandable by 

'1 consumers, a consumer l'egister which shall set forth the 

8 time, place, and subject matters of actions by Congress, 

9 Federal agencies, and Federal courts, and other in£o1'-

10 illation useful to consumers; 

11 (10) encourage the adoption and expansion of effee-

12 tive consumer education programs; 

13 ( 11) encourage the application and use of new 

14 technology, including patents and inventions, for the 

15 

16 

17 

18 

promotion and protection of the interests of consumers; 

(12) encourage the development of informal dis

pute settlement procedures involving consumers; 

(13) encourage meaningful pal'ticipati.on by con-

19 Sluners in the activities 'of ,the Agency; 

20 (14 ) coordinate its activities with the activities of 

21 other executive departments and agencies with respect 

22 to consumers; and 

23 (15) perform such other l'elated activities as he 

24 deems necessary fol' the effective flilfillment of his duties 

25 and functions. 

--~------

• 
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1 REPRESENTATION OP CONSUlVIERS 

2 Soo. 6. (a) (1) Whenever the AdministJ.'ator deter-

3 mines that the result of any Federal agency proceeding or 

4 activity may substantially affect an interest of consu.mers, he 

5 may as of right intervene as a party or otherwise participate 

6 for the purpose of representing an inrerest of consumers, as 

7 pl'Ovided in paragraph (2) 'or (3) of this 'subsecti'Oll. In 

8 any proceeding, the Administraror shall refrain from lnter-

9 vening as a party, unless he determines tho,t such interven-

10 tion if) necessary to represent adequately an interest of 

11 consumers. The Administrator shall comply with Federal 

12 agency statutes and rules of procedure of general applicabil-

13 ity governing the timing of intervention or participation in 

14 such proceeding 01' activity and, upon intervening or partie-

15 ipating therein, shall comply with laws and agency l11les 

16 of procedm'e of general applicability governing the conduct 

17 thereof. The intel'Ventio~ or participation of the Adm. 

18 tJ.'ator' in any Federal agency pI'oceeding or activity shall 

19 not affect the obligation of the Federal ~gency conducting 

20 such proceeding or activity to ~~Bure procedural fairness to 

21 all participants. 

22 (2) Whenever the Administrator determines that the 

23 result of' any Federal agency pr()ceeding which is subject 

24 to the provisions of section 553, 554, 556, or 557 of title 5, 

25 United StatesOode, relating to administrative procedure, or 

I) 
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1 which involves a hearing pmsuant to the administIB:tIYe 

2 procedural requirements of any other statute, regulation, 01' 

3 practice, or which is conducted on the record after oppor-

4 tunity f.or an agency hearing, 'Or which provides for public 

5 notice and opportunity for comment, may substantially affect 

6 an interest of consumers, he may as of right intervene as n. 

7 party 01' otherwise participate for the pmpose of representing 

8 an interest of consumers in such proceeding. 

9 (3) With respect to any Federal agency pl'Oceedillg not 

10 ~'dvered by paragraph (2) of this subsection, or any other 

11 Federal agency activity, which the Administrator determines 

12 may substantially affect an interest of consumers, the Ad-

13 ministrator may participate by presenting writtell or oral 

14 submissions, and the Federal agency shall give. full consid-

15' eratioll to such submissions of thi') Administrator. Such sub-

16 missions shall be p1856uted in mi orderly manner and with-

17 out· causing undue delay. Such submission need not be 

18 simultaneous with that of any other person. 

19 ,/ (b) At such tiine as the Administrator determines to 

20 lintervene or participate in a Federal agency proceeding 

21 under subsection (a) (2) of this section, he shall issue 

22 publicly a written statement setting forth his findings under 

23 subsection (a) (f); statirig concisely the specific interest of 

24 ('onsnmel'S to be protected. Upon in~ervening· or participat-
;1 

25 ino' he shull file a copy of his stttte\1nent in the proceeding. 
M )J 

" !I 
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1 ( c) To the extent that any person, if aggrieved, would 

2 by law have such right, the Administrator shall have the 

3 riglit, in accordance with the following provisions of this 

4 subsection, to initiate 01' participate in any Federal court 

5 proceeding involving a Federal agency action-

6 (1) The Administrator may, as of right, and in the 

7 manner prescribed by law, initiate any civil proceeding in 

8 a Federal court which involves the l;eview oia Federal 

9 agency action that the Administrator determines may sub~ , 

10 stantially affect an interest of consumers. If the Administrator 

11 did not intervene or otherwise participate in the Federal 

12 agency proceeding 01' activity out of which such agency 

13 action arose, the A,ilministrator, before initiating a proceed-

14 ing to obtain judicial review, shall petition such agency ~{)r 

15 . rehearing or reconsideration thereof, if the statutes or rules 

16 governing such agency specifically authorize rehearing or 

.17 reconsideration. Such petition sh~1n be filed within ·sixty days 

18 after the Federal agency action involved, or \vithin. such 

19 longer period as may be allowed by applicable pl·ocedures. 

20 The Administrator may immediately initiate a judicial te-

21 view proceeding i,£ the Federal agency does not finally act 

22 upon such petition within sixty days after the filing thereof, 

23 or at such earlier time as may be necessal'y to pl'esel've the ,,,, 

24 AdmiIiistrator's right to obtain effective judicial review of 

25 the Federal agency action. Where the Administrat.o~ 'did not 

. ~ ~ 
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1 intervene or otherwise participate in a Federal agency pro-

2 ceeding or activity, the Administrator shall not be pm-Ifiltted 

3 to initiate a judicial proceeding with respect to such agency 

4 proceeding or activity unless the court shall first have deter-

5 mined that initiation of such a proceeding by the Adqlinistra-
.. 

6 tor would advance the interests of justice. In advance of the 

7 initiation of such a proceeding by the Administrator, he shall 

8 file a statement setting forth the reasons why he did not 

9· intervene or otherwise participate in the Federal agency 

10 . proceeding or activity out of which the contemplated judicial 

11 proceeding arises, for the court's consideration in connection 

12 with its determination whether the initiation 'Of such judicial 

13 proceeding W'Ould advance the interests of justice. 

14 (2) The Administrator may, as of right, and in the 

15 manner prescribed by law, intervene or 'Otherwise partici-

16 pate in any civil proceeding in a Federal c'Ourt which in-

17 volves the review or enforcement of a Federal agency action 

18 that the Administrator determines may substantially affect 
• 

19 an interest _of consumers. 

20 (3) The initiation or other participation of the Ad- ... 

21 ministrator in a judicial proceeding pursuant to this sub-

22 section shall not alter or affect the scope of review otherwise 

23 applicable t'O the agency action involved. 

24 ( d) When the Administrator determines it to be in the 

25 interest of consumers, he may request the Federal agency 
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1 concerned to initiate such proceeding, or to take such other 

2 aotron, rus may bc authorized by law with l'cs]!ect to j'Hlch 

3 agency. If. the Federal agency fails to take the action re-

4 quested, it shall promptly notify the. Administrator of the 

5 reasons ~here£or and such notification shall bea matter of 

6 public record. 

7 (eJ NotwithstandiQg sections 514~519 inolusive, of 

S chapter 31, title 28, United Stwtes Code, appearances hy the 

9 1\.gency lmdcr this Act shall be in its own name and shall 

10 be made by qualified representatives designated by the Ad-

11 ministrator. 

12 (I) In any Fedel'al agency proceeding in which the 

13 Administrator is interve.ning 01' participating. pursuant to 

14 subsection (a) (2). of this section, . the Administrator is 

15.' authorized to r~quest the Federal agency to issue, and the 

16 . }"'ederal. agency:.shnll, on· a statement or showing" (jf suoh 

17 stl1te~ent·or. showing is l'equil'!3dby the Federal agency's 

18: rules of proc~dure') of general relevance and reasona1>le 

19 'scope of the eyidence. sought, issue such orders) 'as are 

20 authorized by '~he Federal agency's statuto:ry pOWers, for th~ 
'\ 

21 copying of dQcuihents~ papel's,andrecordsi summoning ,O! 
22 witnesses, Pl'o~llction of hook,~ and papers, andsub¢i!!~ioll 0.£ 

23 . information in;. writing. 
j •• • 

24 . .: .( g ). ThE)' Administrator is not. autlJ.orized to intEll'vene 
. . -'".... . ~";:'~' . 

,25: .01' appear .in. pl'{)ceedings or activities of. State. or locnl 
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1 agehOies and State coutts, or to engage directly 01' indh'ectly, 

2 in lobbying activities befoi'e State 01' local agencies, or the 

3 Congress; ill the miUlnet lwohibited by section 1913 of 

4 title 18, Ul1ited. States Cotle. 

{) (h) Nothing ill this sactini! shall be cofistl'illld to pro-

6 hibit the Administrator from commllllicating \Vith, or pro

'7 'titling ihformation reqtlestetl by lthy']j;edet'l1l, State, or local 

sagenCies !lhd State courts at any time and ill any manner 

fl ctH1sistent with law 01\ agency l'llles. 

10 (i) Each Fedet'al agency shall review its l'ules of pro-

11 cedure of general applicability, and, after consultu:tion with 

12 the Administrator, issue ailY additiunal rilles whioh may be 

13 neCeSllltry to provide for the Ad:fuinistl.'atoes oi'detly inter-

14 vention 01' participation, in acoordance with this section, in 

15 its proceedings and activities which may su,1:Jstantially affect 

16 the interests of consuhlei"lh Each Federal agency shall issue 

17 rules determining the circumstances under which the Admin-

18 istrator may be ali owed to make sihltlltaneous submissions 

19 under sttbsectioil (a) (3) of this section. Any additional 

20 rules adopted purSUant to the l'equiteineilts of this subsection 

21 shall be published ill. proposed and final forlU in the Federal 

22 Register. 

23 (j) The Administrator is authOriied to reptese~t an. 

24 interest of consumers which is presented. to him for his con-

25 sideratio\l upbn petition in Wlilting by a. substantial ll1nnber 
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1 of persons or by any otgallization which includes a substan-

2 tial number of persons. The Administl'atQr shall notify the 

3 principal sponsors of any such petition within a reasonable 

4 time after receipt of any such petition of the action taken or 

5 intended to be taken by him with respect to the interest of 

6 consumers presented in snch petition. If the Administrator 

7 declines or is unable to represent snch interest, he shall notify 

8 snch sponsors and shall state his reasons therefor. 

9 QONSUMER cm.tPIJAINTS 

10 SEQ, 7 .. (a) Whenever the Administrator receives from 

11 any person any complaint or other information which 

12 discloses--

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

(1) an apparent violation of law, agency rille or 

order, 01' a judgment, decree, 01' order of a State or Fed

eral coutt relating to an interest of oonsl1~el's; or 

(2) a commerciall, trade, 01' other practice which is 

detrimental to an interest of consumers; 

18 he shall, unless he. determines that such complaint or in for-

/1 19 mation is frivolous, promp!.!:y transmit sueh con1plaint or 

20 information to any Federal, State, or local agency which has 

21 the authority to enforce any relevant InsV' or to take appl'o-

22 priate action. Federal agencies shall keep the Adminish'ator 

23 informed to the greatest pta.cticnhle extent of any action 

24 which they ate taking Oil complaints ttartsmitted by the 

25 Administrator pursuant to this section. 
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1 (b) The Administrator shall promptly notify producers, 

2 distributors, retailers, lenders, or suppliers of goods and serv-

3 ices of all complaints of siguificHllce concerning them 

4 received or developed under tbis section unlcss the Adminis-

5 t1'ator determines that to do so is likely to prejlHlice or im-

6 pede an [lction, investiga tion, or prosecution concel'l1ing all 

7 alleged violatioll of law, 

S (c) The Administrator shall maintain a public docu-

9 ment room containing, for public inspection and copying 

10' (without charge or at a reasonable charge, not to exceed 

11 cost), all lip-to-date listing of all consnmer COml)laints of 

12 significance which the Agency has received, arrmrged hi 

]3 meaningful and useflll categories, together with mv"o\fatioil1:r">~> 

] 4 or actions taken in response thereto, Unless tJj~ Adminis-

15 b'ator, for good cause, determines not to l~lfike any specific 

16 complaint available, complaints listec1:;hall be made avail-

117 able for public inspection and copyr;lg: P1'CiJided, That-

18 (1) the party complained ;~"gainst has had a roason-

19 able time to comment on. ({uch complaint and such 

20 

21 

22. 

2~ 

24 

comment, when receiye'.l, is displayed together with the 

. complaint; ,:/ 

(2) thea{\ency to which the complaint has heeh 
~. 

refe.rred has had a~eas{)nable time to notify the Admin
\. 

istrator what action,if"any, it intends to tahe with l'e-

25 spect to the.comlllaint; 

.. 
/ (; 

// ! 
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1 (3) the complaillilnt's identity is to be protected 

2 .. ' when he hasreqliestoo confidentiality. 'Whenever the 

3- . cQmplairlant l'eqtiests that his identity' be protected, the 

4 Administrator shall place an approprla,te designation on 

5 the complaint before making it available to the public i 

6 (4) nO' unsigned complaints shall be placed in the 

7 public docmuent room. 

8 OONSUlIIER INFOl{M.A.~IO:t{ AND SERVIOES 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

SE~. 8. (a) In order to cal'l;y ollt the pi1l'poses of this 

Act the Administrator shall develop on his own iUltiative, 

and, sltbject to the other provisions of this Act, gnther from 

other Federal age'ucies and non-Federal sources, and dissemi

nate to the public in such manner, at·stwh times, and in such 

j form as he determines to be most effective, information, 

statistics, and other data including, but not Ijmite4 to mutter 

concei:ning'-

(1) the functions and duties of the Agenoy; 

(2) consumer products and services;' . 

(3} problems enc0ll1ltel'ed by conSUl~lel'S' generally, 

illcluding l1nnual reports on interest rates and commer

cial and trai(~ practices which may adversely affect con

sumers; and \ 

(4) notic~ik of Federal hearings, proposed and unn-l 
(0 

rules and orders, and other pertinentcactivities 'of Federal 

agencies that affect (JQn~llm.9l·SI 

90-131 0 - 77 --11 
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1 (b) Ail FeAaral agencies which, ill the jllilgment of tQ.e 

2 .A.dmirostl'ator; possess ipforw&tiQA whjcA woul(l ~~ useful to 

a oOAsumers are a,ut)1ori2/ed and directed to coop~rl1te with tho 

~ Adminjstrator in making such informatiol1 available to the 

Q p1.lblic. 

6 STupms 

7 SEO. 9. The Administrator is aui:4ol'ized to conduot, 

s support, and assist l'eaoaroh, ~tI;tdies, pla:I}s, investigations, 

Q conferences, dem,on~tl'ation projects, 'u11(l S'~U'veys concernip.g 

10 the wterests of co:tJ.sulp.ers. 

11 INlJ'ORl\IATION G,A.TIQlIRI~m 

12 S~o~ 10. (11) (1) The Ailministrator is authorized, to 

lS the e~tent l,'equired to protect the hel.lJth 01' sp,fety of con~ 

14 ll1lllflfS, 01' to djscovol' consumer frau<lor subsmlltial eoo,. 

15 nomio injury to COnSlUIj.era, to obtain Q!ltlJ, by requiring any 

16 person engaged III a trade, business, or indllstry' which 

17 sub~J:u,Ati&lly ll,ffecti3 interstll,te CPl'nJ)1erce and whose activitie~ 

18 he determines way sllbstantiailyaffect fln jnterest of con,. 

19 sumers, by g~neral <n' specific order setting !Ol'th with par .. 

20 ticull1l'ity the consqmer interest involved 1l)1Q. thj;l purposes 

21 fOIl which the. inform.lttiol1 is sO'!lght, to file with hinl a report 

22 or answers in writing to specific questions cOlworping suc4 

23 notivties und othe).' l'elfttcd information, Nothing in this 

24 subsection shllli be construetl to authorize th~ inspection or 

25 copying of documents, pa,pel's, bo.oks, or r(lcords, Q!, to compel 

~\ 
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1 tlle ~ttel1dal}c~ p,f ~ny persop., Nor sl1aU .lWythlng in tltis 

~ liItIb~{lctiQtl :n~ql}.ire th~ dj!lQJQ~qre 9£ ipiQr1l1tltioI! wbich woqld 

a vl()lMe~p'y r~1atioI!sb.ip privil.ag~i\. ~ccordipg to Ilj,w. Wh~ro 

* !l-pplic!t~le, cbp.pt~r 35 of title 4:4, U nit~ S.mt{l~ Co~~, shall 

5 g1)Y\,~l1 l'~qlJ~sts fpl' r~poTts lijlder tbill sqbsectipp in the 

!l IDttIWer jn w}licP. im1Qpel1dept Federal l'~gWf}tory agenGies 

7 p,re ~llbject tQ ita I1l'{lvisi9ns, 

a (~) Th~ !dll1wistl'ato)' shtJ.ll not (;lx:el'{li~c the iluthotity 

9 llnd~r paragraph (1) pf t4i13 $Ubll~ction if tM illiop:pation 

10 ~pug;ht-

:).1 (A) is availabl~ as r. mnttel' pf pnblic record; or 

lZ (B) cun be obtained fromanothEif Federal ageMY 

1S pnrsunnt to flubl3ectioll (b) of this section; 01' 

14 (0) is for ll~e h,l connection with his hltflrventio~l in 

lQ u,p.y tJ.gellCY prQ~edmg q,gq,in&t the persPn tQ whom the 

l6 intflf'l'pglltia'y is Ild~l'$l~l3e~ if the proclleding is Pl'lndmg . " 

1'1 at tlw timE) t1ie intemgatm'y ill rtlquel'~d, 

18 (;3) In th~ eV/3IJ.t of n9!1PolTIplian~ witp. ~Ij.y re<1u,C!st 

W fmQIIj.~~ted tQ a.ny "ppl'ilPn by th/3 1\.dmiIJ.i!ltr~t()r PUTsQ1lnt to 

~Q "PIU'llgrq.ph (t), aJlydilltl'ict 90urt· of t4e Unttea· St~tes 

~:t: within the jlll'l$di{.ltipn of wpicbs/Jc4 p.erson. is {o!ll}d/or hp,s 

~2 hi~ PfilwiPIlJ pl»l:l~ III b)l~hwsj!, shall iSSJl0 aIJ. Qrde)', PJl <\Qn-

23 4itillns aod with ~uch a.PlWl'tjollment pf (Xls'j;s as it (l/:lamS .ju..~t, 

~;l ).'I}quil'illg ppll}pljl).QCil wicth a Y.lllid order Qf the AdJ1lil1i!it~;:a,. 

~ij tOT. Tb~ jJ.iStl1ipt COltl't of the United State~ shallisflllf;} fl,!ch 

Q .0 
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1 all order upon petition by the AdministratOl: Ol' on a motion 

. 2 to quash, and upon the Adrninistrator'13 ·cairyillg the'lm1'd~m 

3 of Pl'OVillg incoiu't that such 61:der i~ ·fo1' iillol'lilfttion. thtlt 

4 may suhstahtiaJly aneOD the health 'or safety'b£ consumenl 

5 01' may he necessary in the discovery of conSumer· fniud 

6 (i1' suhstantial economic injury'to C01lsumers, and is i'clevullt 

7 to the purposes for which the :illformntioll is iought, lUllcss 

8 the periSon to whom the interroglltoi'yor request is addressed 

9 shows that answering such interrogatory 01' request will 'he 

10 lUlnecessarily 01' excessively burdensome, 

11 (4) The Administrator shl111not have 'the power to TC-

12 '.quire the pl'ouudion {)rdiscloostlre '0£ any data 01' other 'ill-

13 formation under this subsfrction from any small business, 

·14 ']j'01' the purpose '0£ this paragraph, "small husiness" means 

15 Ilny person that, 'together with its affiliates;; including itny 

16 othei' person with ,whom' such. person is associated by meails 

17 of u. fru.nchise agreement, does not have assets· exceedIng 

18 $7,500,000; or does not have 11et worth in exc~ss of $2,500.,. 

19 000; 01' at the time of proposed . discovery by the Adminis-

20 tl'lLtor does not have more than the equivalent of one hundred 

. 21 und fifty full:..time' employ~es . Nothing in ,cthis iniragral}h, 

22 shull he construed to prohibit the Administrator from ,re-

23 questing the voluntary production of any such data or jnfor-

'24· mation. Notwithstanding this .paragru.ph, the Administrator 

25 shall have the power, pursuant to paragraph (1), to 'obtaul 

!II 
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1 infOlmation {r0111 a small business if necessary to prevent 

2 imminent and substantial. danger to the health 01' safety of 

3 consltmel'sboud tJ;te Administmtol' has no other effective \\ ; .. ' ". 

4 means of actid¥,_./.:: 

5 (b) Upon ~titten request by the Administrator, each 

6 Federal agency is authorized and directed to furnish 01' allow 

7 access to all documents, papers, arid records in its possession 

8 which the Admiriistrator deems necessary for the perform-

9 unce of his functions and to furnish at cost copies of specifi~d 

10 documents, papers, and l'ecords. N otwithstandillg this sub-

11 section, a Federal agency may deny the Administrator ac-

12 cess to and copies of-

13 (1) information classified in the interest of national 

14 defense 01' national security by an individu.al authorized 

15 to classify such information under applicable Executive 

i6 order' or statutes, and restricted data whose oissemina-

17 tion is controlled pUl'suant to the Atomic Energy Act 

18 (42 U.S.C. 2011 et seq.) i 

19 (2,) policy and prosecntt)rial recOlnmendutious by 
. , 

20 Federal agency personnel intended for internal agency 

21 use only; . 

22 '(3) iuformationconceming routine' executive and 

23 . adlninistrative functions which is not~O'llierwise a matter 

24 'of public record; 

II II 

D 
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1 (4) personnel and medical flies amI similar ,files the 

2 disclosme of which would constitute a clearly, unwar-

::.: ranted invasion of personal pl'ivacy; 

4 (5) information which such Federal agency is ex,-

. 5 pressly prohibited hy law from c1isclosing to another 

6 

7 

Federal agency, including, but not limited to, such ex

pressly prohibited information contained in or related 

8 to examination,' opemting, or condition reports concern-

9 ing any individnal financial institution prepared .by, on 

10 behaH of, or for the use of an agency responsible for reg-

11 ulati'on or supervision of financial institutions; 

12 ( 6) information which would disclose 'the :financial 

13 condition 'of individuals who' are customers of financial 

14. institutions; : and 

15 (7) trade secrets and commercial or financial in-

16 formation described in sectiOl~ 552 (b) (4) of title 5, 

17 United States eoue-

18 (A) obtained prio!" to' the effectiyedate of this 

19 Act by a Federal agency, iithe agency ha,d agreed 

20 

21 

.22 

to treat and has treated such in£(}rmation as privi-' 

leged or confidential andstates in writing to the Ad-

. ministrator that; . taking into account the natme of ' 

23 the assurances given, thecharactel' of the informa·, 

24 tion requested, and the purpose, as .stated by the Acl-

25 ministrator, for which access is songhf, to 'permit 

D 

;l\ 
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, 1 such acccss would constitute a breach of faith by 

2 the agency; or 

3 (B) obtained subsequent to the effective date of 

4 ' this Act by a Federal agency, if the agency has 

5, agreed in writing as a condition of Teceipt to treat 

6 such information as privileged or confidential, on' the 

7 basis of its reasonable determination set forth in 

8 writing that such information was l10t obtainable 

9 without such an agreement and that failure to oh-

IO tain such information woulc1 seriously impair per-

U formance of the agency's function. 

12 Before granting the Administrator access to trade secrets 

13 and commerclal or financil~l iniol'mation described in section 

14 552 (b) (4) of title 5, United States Code,. the agency ;shall 
(? 

15 notify the person who provided such information of its in .. 

1.6 tention to do so and the reasons therefor, and shall",notwith

l!,] standing secj;ion 21 (b) ,a.:fford him 'U reasonable opportunity, 

18 not to exceed ten"working days after l'eceipt of s~ch notice, 

19 to:conun~;n}J;~~: seek injunctive relief.: Whenever nO't~ceis 
.~r -

20 sepltlif by mail, such notice shall be considered to be received 

21,' three days after the date on which it is mailed. Where ac-

22 . cesstJio ,infol1nation is denied to the Administrator bya 

23 Federal agenoy pursuant. to this subsection, the head 

24 of· the agency and· the Admini,stra,wl' shaUsee'k to find a 
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'1 means of providing the information in such other form, or 

2 under such conditions, as will meet the agency's objections. 

3 (c) Oonsistent with the provisions of section 7213 of 

4 the Internal Revenue Oode of 1954 (26 U.S.O. 7213), 

5 nothing in this Act shall be construed as providing for or au-

6 thorizing any Federal agency tD div~llge or to make known 

7 in any manner whatever to the Administrator, solely from an 

8 income tax return, 'the amount or source of income, profits, 

9' losses, expenditures, or any particular thereof, or to permit 

10 any Federal income tax retUrn filed pursuant to the pro vi-

11 sions of the Intm:nal Revenue Oode of 1954, or copy thereof, 

12 01' any book containing any abst.racts or particl,llars thereof, 

13 to' be seen or examined by the Administrator, except as 

i4 provided by law. 

15' LIlIIITATIONS ON DISCLOSURES 

16' SEO. 11. (a) Except as provided in this sectiOli, section 

1,,: 552 of title 5, United States Oode, shall govern the release of 

18 information by any officer or" employee of the Agency. 

19 (b) No officer or employee of the Agency shall disclose 

20 to,the public;lor to any State or 10cI11 agency any informa-

21 tion which was received solely from a Federal agency when 

22 such agency has notified the Administrator that the informa-

23 tion is within the exceptions stated in section 552 (b) of title 

2,1 5, United States Oode, and the Federal agency has deter-

25 mined that the infOlmation should not be made available to 

."1 

~ 
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1 the publio; exoept th~t if suoh Federal agenoy has speoified 

2 that suoh information may be disclQsed in a particular form 

3 or. manner, suchillformatioll may be disolosed ill suoh form 

4: or manner. 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

If 

15 

16 

11 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 ' 

24: 

(c) The 'foll\~wing additional provisions shall govern 
" 

the release of infOl\Jllation by' the Administrator pursuant to 

any authority ooni!,erred by this' Act, e,xoept information 

released through tM presentation of evidenoe in It Federal 

agenoy or oourt pro~\eeding pursuant to seotion 6-
\i, 

( 1 ) The' .A\\~niinistl'ator, in' T~leasing 'information 

conoerning oonsuinerl'prodilCts and servioe;;, shall deter

mine that (A) s~\oh illforrriation, so 'far as praotioable, 
,I 

is acourate, and (1\) no. part' of suoh informatiQn is pro

hibited from disclostu'e by law. The Administrator shall 

comply with any notioe by a Federalagency'pursuant 

to section 11 (b) that the information should not be 

made'available to the public or should be disclosed only 

in a particular form Qr manner, 

'(2) Irdhe dissemination of any test resuits or other 

infol'mation which, directly or indirectly disclose produot 

names, it shall be made clear that (A) notnll produots 

'of a competitive nwtw',e have' been' tested, ~f -such is the 

oaSEl, and (B) there is no intent Ol'pUl'pOse to ~ate pl'od

ucts -tested 'Over those not tested, or 'to imply tIl/it dlO;;!) 
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1 tested 8J'e super.ior or preferablp in quality over those 

2 not tesred. · 

3 (3 ) Notice of all changes in, or any additional 

4 information which would affect the fairness of· informa-

5 tioD previously disseminated to the publio' shall be 

6 

7 

'promptly disseminated in a similar manner. 

(4) (A) Where the release of information is likely 

8 to clUlSe substantial injury to the reputatIon or good . 

9 will of a person, the Administli£oor shall notify such per-

10 sonoi the information to be' releW3ed :lnd afford him a 

11 reasonable opportunity, not to exceed ten working days 

12 . ruter receipt of such notice, to comment or seek injunc-

13 . tive relief, unless immediate relea~ is' necessary to pro-

:;:4 teet the health or safety of the public. Whenever notice 

15 is served by finn, such notice shall be considered to be 

,16 rec~ived three days after the date on which it is mailed. 

17 The i,listrict COllrts of the United States shall have juris-

18 

19 

20 

diction OVer any action brollgJit for injunctive reliM 

under th.ls.sub::;ectionr or under sootion 10 (b) (7). 

(B) 'Nothing in this paragraph shull affect the 

21 rights of the public to obtain inforfuation under section 

22 552 of title 5;, United StatesOode; 

23 (d) InIlllY suit against the Administrator to obtain 

24 information pursuant to the provisions of section 552 of title- . 

25 5, United States Code, where the sole basis £01' the l'efusal to 

+ 
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l' produce th~· hUOl'mation is that another Federal agency has 

2 'specified that the documents not be disclosed in accordance 

3 with the provisions of subsection (b) of this section" the 

4 other Federal agency shall be substituted as the defendant, 

5 and the Administrator shall thereafter have no duty to de:. 

6 fend such suit. 

7..NOTICE 

8 SEQ. 12. (a) Each Federal agency considering any 

9 action which may substantially affect ,Igl inte:r~st f)J consumM 

10 ers shall, up(.~p request by the Administrator, notify him of 

11 any proceeding 01' activity at such time, as, public notice is 

12, given. 

13 (b) Each Federal· agency considering any action which 

14' may substantially affect an interest of consumers shall, upon 

15 specific, l"equest by the Administrator~ promptly provide 

16 hiI)l with-

17 . ( 1) a brief status I'eport which shall contain a 

18 statement oftha subject at issue undu SUIDJIJal'Y' otproJ 

It) , posed .measures c~mcerning such subject; and 

20 . (2) suooother relevant notieeand .inf():rm"ti~nJ the 

2l' ,. provision of, which would not he \UU"ea~ably hu,nl~n· 

22 ' oome. to the, agency and wlllch would facilitate the, A.d-., 

"23 ministrator's timely and effective intervention 'o~'J.l&Itici- < 

24' plltion under.section 6 of this Act," 
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·1 ( c) , Nothing in this section shall affect the authority 

2 or obligations of the Administrator or any Federal agency 

3 under section 10 (b) of this' Act. 

4 SAVING PROVISIONS 

5 SE~. 13. (a) Nothing in this Act shall be construed to 

6 affect the duty of the Administrator of General Services to 

7 represent the interests of the Federal Government as a COll-

8 sumer 'pursuant to section 201 (a) (4) of the Federnl Prop-

9 erty and Adminisb;ative Services Act of 1949' (40 'U.S.O. 

10 481 (a) ('4) ) ~ 

11 (b ) Nothing in this Act shall be construed to relieve 

12 any Federal agency of any responsibility to protect and 

13 promote the interests of consumers. 

14 '(0) Nothing in this Act shall be construed to limit tlie 

15 right of any consUmer or group or class of consumers to 

16 initiaie, intervene' in, or otherwise participate in any Federal 

17 agency or . court proceeding or activity, nor to require any 

18 'petition or. notification to the Administrator as a' condition 

19 precedent to the exercise of such right, nor to relieve any 

20 Federal agency or court of any obligation, or affect its discre.; 

21 tion, to' permit or facili'tate intervention or participation by 

22 a consumer or group or ciass of consumers in any proceeding 

23, or activitY. 

24 ( d) Nothing in this Act shall be construed to affect the 

25 duty of the Small Business Administration to aid, counsel, 

, , 

'·1 

:::., 

... 



-~------------... 

t67 

33 

1 assist, and protect' the interests of small business concerns, 

2 puxsuaut to secti<llii 631 (a) of the Small Business Act of 
31958 (15 U.S.C. 631 (a)); 

4 DE:E'INITIONS 

5 SEC. 14. As used in th:ls Act, tIDless the context othei'-

.6 wise requil'es-

7 

8 

9 

10 

11· 

12 

13 

14 

15 

(1)·· "Administrator" mea'ns the Adniillistratol' ~of 

the Agency for Consumer Advocacy; 

(2) "Agency" means the Agency for Consnnier 

Advocacy; 

(3) . "agency action" includes the whole 01' ptll't 

of anllO'enoy "rule" "order"·· "license" "sanctiQll" 
b '." . , 

"relief", as defined in sectii;Jn 551 of title' ,5, United 
\\ 

States Code, 01' the equi'valent;. 01' the denial ,thereof, or 

failure to act; 

16 ::i!( 4) «agency activity" n1etU1S ally ·agency 1>roceJ:;8, 
Ii 

17 01' phase thereof, cOl~ducted pUl'suftnt to ullyauthority ,or 

18 . responsibility UJ,ldel' law, whether such p1'ocess is fOl·inal 

19 01' informal; 

20 (5) "agency proceeding" meallsagency tlrulemak-

21 . fug", "adjudication"., or I 'licensing" , as defined 'in section. 

22. 551 of title 5, United States Code ; 

23 (6) "commerce" means commerce among 01' be-

24 

25 

tween the several States and commerce with foreign 

nations; 

--.-~----

,=' ' 
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3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

l3 
14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

~.£~.~. 10 
.1:" 

20 

21 

22 

23 
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(7) l<c;JoP,SlllJler" Pleq,ns a.ny lllqividual wpo uses, 

PIJJ9M~es, ~pqutrfl~, l),tt()IP.J'ts to pnrc1;Vl,se or I!cqn!f'e, pr 

is offered or furnishe<l &'~lJ re!!>l or p6rstl~~1 prpperty, 

tangible or intallgible goods, services, 01' crcdit for por

sonl),l, fll>Plily,or household p"rposes; 

(8) "Federal agency" or, "agency,j :w.ealJ,t;; 

tta.gency" Il.!l de:Qplld in section 551of title 5, Unit{ld 

States Code. The tei'I),l shall4tcl\ldf.l tlle United Staws 

Postp,l Se!'V~ce, tbe )?olltp,l RQ.w COIIllllis»ion, and allY 

other authority of the United States whiclt l!l a COrpOfllr 

tiPll I1nd wpicJ:J. receives IHlY I1pp~'ppriAted funds, al\d, 

unless othe~'wis!l ~~wessly provided by law, any FederQ,l 

ngtlllcy eflu}'bli»lwd §,fter 1:4e d.a~ of en~f,ltJnent of this 

Act, but shall not include the Agenc;:y fO.I' Consumer 

Advocacy; 

(1}) "ll'ederQ1 court'" mean~ Illly court of the Uniwd 

St~tes, inclqding the Suprenw Co'nrt of lhe United 

States, any United Stlltes cpurt of I}pp~llls,ft,ny United 

28, U l}ited States Code,' thaDilitript Court of Guam, the 

District OOllrtof the Unit£d StM.ell OUlltOJIlS Court, the 

United States OOUl:t of C~stOlns and Patent Appeals, t)le 

United States Tax Court, and the U nitea States COM.).'t 

(jf Claims; 

(10) "individual" means n, human being i 

-~ --('------- ----~--

• 
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1( 11) "mtl3J'l3st of COll~I,1.JlltlrS" means any health, 

2 aafety, Qr eCQllom,ia CmlC~m of cOl,l~4iner$, il\(llqding but 

3 pot limited to the fActors tlPum,el'atfJd in spctiQn 2 (1}) 

4 (3), involving real 01' personal property, tangible Pl' 

5int!Qlgible goods, servicl3s, or credit, or the advertisiIj.g 

6 

7 

8 

or other description thereof, which is or may b(lcome tRe 
sllbjeot of n~y bllBiness, trade, cOnm\~l"~ial, or market~ 
place "offer or transaotir.lllfl-itf3ctmg copJerce, 0\' whiclt 

9 ml),Y be related to any t(lrm or conditi()Jl of such offer tn~ 
n 

10 transaction, Such offer or tranf?RctiQll need not involve 

11 the payment or promise of a ponsidel'l\,tion; 

1~ 

13 sion; 

H (i3) 1/1)e1'80n" hlcludes auy inclivid1.lru, corporatiop, 
() 

15 partnership, fum, association, institutjqu, or public or 

16 

17 

18 

24 

pri\7qte ofgllnizQ.ti(m Qther than IJ, Feq~rl\l agency; 

(14) "State" me,ans,6!loh of the f,jtkl~l States of 

the United States, the District of Coluili:bia, the Comr 

(15) "fSllbmissjon" meq,ns Plll~,!}ipll-tion thnlligho tha 
() 

presentatiQu or cortullunicfttion of l'el(lvttnt~vi~enoe! 
b 

ilocmmmts, /l.i'guwf3ntsi· or 9tlJ.er 4li()l';Ill!\-ttont 

(J 

II 

o 
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1 CONFORMING .A1rIENDMENT 

2 SEC. 15. (a) Section .5314 of title 5, United States 

3 Oode, is amended by adding at the end thereof the follow~ 

4 ing: 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

" ( 60) Administrator, Agency for Oonsumer Ad~ 

vocacy." 

(b) Seotion 5315 of suoh title is amended by a~ding 

at the end thereof the following: 

"(100) Deputy Administrator, Agency for Oon~ 

sumer Advooaoy." 

(c) Sootion 5316 'of title 5, Uuited States Code, is 

amended l)y adding at the end thei'eof the following new 

paragraphs: 

" (135) General Counsel, Agenoy for Oonsmner 

Advocacy. 

"(136) Assistant Administrators, Agency for Oon~ 

", 'smllel':iAdvocacy (5)." 

, EXEl\IPTIONS 

SEC. 16. (a) This Act .shall not apply to ilie Oentral 

Intelligence Agenoy, the Federal Bureau of Investigation, or 

the National Security Agency" or the national security or in~ 

telligence functi~ns (including related procurement) of the 

Departments, of State and Defenso (including the Depart~ 

ments of the AmlY, Navy, and Ah' FOl'ce) and the mmtary 

o 
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\~ ~, 

1 weapons program of the Energy Research find De~1't 

2 ment Administration, to any agency ,~£tion in the Fcacral 

3 Oommunications Oommission with respect to the renewal of 

4 any.radio or television bl'ondcuflting license, 01' t.o a lahor 

5 dispute within the meaning of section 13 of tho Act on~ 

6 titled "An Act to amend the Judicial Co(10 and to clefine 

7 and limit the jnris(liction of conrts sitting in equity, and for 

8 other purposes", approved l\farch 23, 1932 (29 U.S.C. ;/' 

9 113), 01' of section 2 of the Lahor lfanagementRelations (( ,. 

10 Act. (29 U.S.C. 152), or to a labor agreement within t4e 

11 meaning of section 201 of the Labor. :l\fanagement Relations 

12 Act, 1947 (29 U.S.C.171). 

13 SEX DISORIl\UNIATION 

.14 SEC. 17. No personshaU on the ground of sex be ex-

15 eluded from. participation in, be denied the benefits of,·or.be 

16 . subjected to discrimination under' any, p'l.'Ogram or a()tivity 

carried on or receiving Federal assistance under this Act. 17 

18 

)9 

20 

'21 

22 

This provision wHl be enforced through agency provisions 

and mIcs similar to those already established, with respect 

to mcial and other discrimination, uIider title VI of the Oivjl 

Rights' A'ct of 1964. HowevOl~ this remeily is not exclusiv.e 

and Will'liot prejudice 01' cut off any othCl' legal' remedi~s 

2il .. availahle· to a person 'ulleging' discriinination. 

90-731 0 - 77 -- 12 
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1 Lt:MITATIONS RELATING TO SMALL BUSINESS AN!> FAMILY 

2 FARMING INTERESTS 

3 SEC. 18. (I\,) It is the sellse of the Oongress that small 

4: business and family farming ·interests should have . the'ir 

5 vari(\(l,\l"leeds considered by all levels '0£ govel'rnnen~ in the 
jl 

6 implementation '0£ <tIle procedures pi'ovided fur Ithroughout 

7 this Act. 

S (b) (1) In order to cany out the policy stated in sub-

9 section (a), the Small :Business Administration and the 

10 Departmellt 'of Agriculture (A) shall to the maximum extent 

11 possible provide small business and family farming interests 

12 with full information concerning the procednres provided 

13 for throughout this Ant which ,particularly affect Buch in-

14 terests, and the aotivitie,~ of the various agencies . in con-

15 nection with such provisions) and (:B) shall, as part of its 

16 annual report, provide to the Oongress a summary of the 

17 aotions taken under this Act which have particularly af-

18 feoted snch interests. 

19 (2) To the extentreasible the Administrator shall seek 

20 the views of small busilless and family farming interests in 

21 tJOnnection with establishing the Agency's priorities, as well 

22 as the ptomUlgation of TIlles implementing this Act. 

23 (3) 'In administ~rin,g the programs provided for in this 

24 Act, the Administrator shaR respond in an expeditious man-
"-
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1 ner to the views, l'equests,and other filings by small busi-

2 ness and family farming interests. 

3 (4) In implementing this Act, due conside:ration shall 

4 be given to the unique problems of small business ~~d 

5 family farming interests so as not to discriminate or cause 

6 unnecessary hardship in the administration or implemeh-

7 tation of the provisions of this Act. 

s (5) For the purposes of this sectioh, the term "small 

9 business I) shall have the same meaning as provided in soo-

10 tion 10 (a) (4) of this Act. 

j1 AlJTHORTZATION' OF APPROPR1ATlONS 

12 SEC. 19. There are auth~rizea to be uppropdated itl 

13 carry out the provisions of this Act, not to exceed $~~,- =~"---;;; 

14 000,000 for the fiscal year ending September 30, 19'78; 

15 not to exceed $20,000,000 for the fiscal year· ending Sep-

16 

17 

18 

temher 30, 1979, and not !flo exceed $25,OfWoo~~< the 

fisc.l yenr ending September 30, 19BO. fO~uent 
legislation to authorize appropriations nutter '~~ for '~ 

19 the fiscal year bllginning October 1, I9801/shall be referted 

20 
-./-

in the Benate to theCoD.unitte~" on Governmental Affairs 

'21 and to the Commit.tee O)J-~09-mmerce. '"' lJ - . _ , 

22 EVALUATION llY -T~ifrTROL'tER GENERAL 

23 

24 

SEC. 20. (a) The Oomptroiler General:.'ofthe United 

Stat~s shall audi?' review, and e~aluate the~plemehtatioq,. G • 

"j \)~ 
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,:~ ,of the provisions of this Act by the Agency for Oonsumer 

2 Advocacy. 

3 ' (1)) Not less than thirty months nor more thanthirhy-

4 sL'{, months after the effective dnte of this Act, the Comp-

5 troller General shall prepare and suhmitto the Oongl'OSR' n 

6 report on his audit conducted pursllnnt to suhsection ([I.);, 

7 which shall contain, bnt not bc limi tea to, the' following: , 

8 ( 1) an evaluation, of the effectivo~~ess of ,the Agen-

9 cis consumer representation activities; , 

, 10 (2) an evaluation of the effect . of, the activities of 

11 the A~ency on the efficiency, efTectiveness, and pl'oce-

12 dural fairness of affected :Federal agencies in carrying 

.13 out their assigned functions and duties; 

14 (3) recommendations concerning any leg,islation 

15 'he deems necessary, and tP,e reaSO)lS ther~for, for im-

16 proving the implementation of the objectives of this Act 

17 ' as set forth in section 2. 

,18 (c) Oopies of the report shall be f,I.lrnished to \~~ Ad-
, '" '. 

19 miniatrato~' of :the Ageney for OonsumGl' Advvouoy;' tho , ' 

,20, chltirm(ln of the Senate Oommittees on Oommerce and oli 

21 Governmeiltal Affairs ,and the. chairman of ,the Oommittee 

22 on Government Opel'ations of the House of Uelll'esentativ?s. 

"',23' ,; , (d) Restrictions and prohibitions tlllder this Act appli-
• • " • ..~~ I \\,' 

24, cable, to the ,use or publie,dissemination of information,by tJlC 

25 Agency shall npply with equal force' and effect to the Gen
i 

It 

(j 

" !/ 
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1 era1 Accounting Ollice ~_ carrying out its nmctions under 

2 this section . 

3 MISOELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

4 SEO. 21. (a) Nothing in this Act should be construed to 

5 limit the discretion of any ]'ederal agency 01' court, within 

6 its authority, including a court's authority unger rule 24 of 

7 the ]'ederal Rules of Oivil Procedure; to' grant the Admiuis-

8 trator additional. par,ticipatioh in any proceeding or activity, 

9 to the extent that such additional participation may not. be as 

10 of right, or to provide additional notice to the AdministratOl~ 

11 concerning any agency proceeding or activity. 

12 (0) (1 ) No act or omission by the A'liministrator or " 

13 any Federal agency relating to the Administrator's authority 

14 under sections 6 (n), (d), (f), (i), and (j) I 7,10, 11, 

15 and 12 of this Act shall affect the- va.lidityof an agency' 

. 16 action or be subject to judicial review: P1'ovided, ThlJ.t- 0'", 

17 

18 

- 19 

20 

21 

22 

(A) the Administrator may obtain jUdiQial review 

to enforce his authority !IndoI' sections 6 (a), (d), (£), 

(i), awl CD, 10, and i2 ofthlsAct: Proviaed;Thathe'

may obtain judicial review of- the Federal agency deter-

mination under section 6 (£) of this Act only -after final 
" 

agency action and only to the extent that such determi-
'. (' , 

23 nation affected the validity of such action; 

24 

25 

(B) a party to any agency proceeding or a partic

ipant in any agency activity in which ,the Administl'at~r 

., 
".') 
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1 intervened or participated may, where judicial review 

2 of the final agency action is otherwise accorded by law, 

3 obtain judicial review following such final agency action 

4 on the ground that the Administrator's intervention or 

5 participation resulted in prejudicial. enol' to such party 

6 ' or participant based on. the record viewed' as a; whole; 

7 and 

8 '. (0) any person who is substantially and adversely 

9 aliected by the Administrator's action pursuant to sec-

10 tion6 (£), 10 (a), or 11 of this Act may obtain jUdicial 

11 review, unless the court determines ,that such judicial 

12 review would be detrimental to the interests of justice. 

13 (2) For the purposes of this subsection, a determination 

14 by the Administrator that the result of any agency prciceed-

15 ·ing 01' activity maysnbstantially Il·fiect an interest of conimm-
~'- I 

16' ers or that his iIl.tervention in aIiy pr~<leeding is necessary to 

17 represent adequ!lJtely an· interest of 'COnsmners shall .be 

18 deemed !lot to be a final agency action. 

19 '(3) Tho Adll1il1il>lra,tul"~ uetenuiuatiolf, jJw'l:luant to'. 

20 flubsectio'tlS $(~} (.2) } 6.( a) (3), I,tnd 6 (d) , .thatan agency 

21 action may substantiltlly affect an interest of consumers shall 

22 be subject to review dming judicial review of a final' agency 

23 action. 

24 TRANSFER OF PROGRAMS, OPERATIONS, .AND ACTIVITms 

25 SEC. 22. (a) The President is hereby directed to sub-

26 mit, not later than one hundred and twenty days after the 

.. 
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date of enactment of this Act, a reorganization plan to the 

Congress pursuant to chapter 9 of title 5, United States Code, 

which provides for the transfer to the Agency,of those con

sumer-related -programs, operations, and activities of Fed-
'0 

eral agencies -which can be performed more appropriately or 

with greater efficiency ,ry the Administrator under the 8,U

thQritycontained in this Act. Such plan shall be consistent 

w.ith the.Agency's responsjbilities under section 5 of this 

Act. 

(b) The Administrator! pursuant to section 4: of this 

.A.ct, shall be responsible for incorporating such programs, 

operations, and activities as, £ay ultimately be transferred 

·,and\~:'lr issuing such organizati<lllal, directives. as he, deems 
" .~' 

14 'appropriate to avoid any duplicatiQnol effort and to Qther

,15 wise carry out the purposes of this section. 

~6 

17 

18 

.. (\ . 

.lil 

20 

(,. - PUB).'JIO 'PARTIO~ATroN 

SE.o.2,,3. (a) After reviewing its statutory authority and 

;rules of p:rqcedure, relevant agency and judicial decisions, and ' 

issu~ app!opriate interpretations,g~i4e.lineli; standards, Or 
:"-

21, criteria, and rules' of procedure, to the·extimt ,that such rules 

22, ai'e appropriate and are not rurer.tdy;n efiect,l'elatingto the 

23 rights of i~'aividuals who may ·be a,ffected by agency ac~ 
24 ,tion ~ 

25 (1) petition the agency foractioni'" • 
1,1 
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1 (2) receive notice of agency proceedings'; 

2 (3) file official complaints (if appropriate) with 

3 the agency; 

4 ( 4) obtain information from the agency; and 

5 ( 5 ) participate in agency proceedings for the pur-

6 pose of representing their interests. 

7 Such interpretations, guidelines, standards, criteria, and rules 

8 of procedure shall be published in proposed and final form in 

9 the Federal Register. 

10 (b) Each Federal agency shall take 'ullreasonable meas-

11 ures to reduce 'Or waive, where appropriate, procedUl'al re-

12' quiremen,ts for individuals for whom such requirements 

13 .would be financia,lly burdensome, Ol" which would impede 

14 or prevent effective participation in agency. proceedings. 

15 ( c) Any rules of procedure issued by any Federal 

16 agency pursuant to this section shall be published in a form 

17a,nd disseminated in a manner that is designed to inform, 

18 and that is able to be understood by, the general public. 

19 ctJl:I'r AND BI!JNfgFI'.I.' .Ai;S1!l8S:r.IEi~']! STATEIi'H!JNi'S 

20 SEC. 24. (It) In furtherance 'Of thepurp'Ose and P'Olicy 

21 of section 2 (b) (4) of this Act, and except as. otherwise pro-

22 vided in this Act, each Federal agency which is authorized to 

23 promulgate rules (as defined in section 551 (4) of title 5, 

24 United States Code) shall prepare a, cost and benefit assess-

25 ment statement with respect to nny rules to which section 

.. 

• 
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1 553 (b) ()f title 5, United States Code, is applieable, which 

2 al'e likely to have a substantial economic impact, for the', 

3 agency's consideration in connection with the promulgation' 

4 of such rules. Each such statement shall be short and concise 

5 and, together with such supporting documentation, as the 

6 agency in ~q discretion determines to be necessary '01' appl'o-

7 l,jate, shall consist of the following three elements: 

8 (1) estimated costs, 1;hat are foreseeable as a result 

9 of the effective implementation of such rule; 

10 (2) estimated benefits, that are foresMable as a 

11 

12 

13 

result of th~ effective implementation of such rule; and 

(3) the app:arent relations'hip, if any, between such 

costs and benefits. 

14 To the extent deemed practicable, by the agency responsible 

15! for its prep&rati~n, each cost and'benefi.t assessment statement 

16 shall indicate in an appendix the assumptions, if any, which 

17 were made by it regarding the means, or alternative means, 

18 and attendant:. ~osts orl:o'rnpliance with the proposed rule, 

20 ,flected in the price of any product altected by such rule. 

21 Before releasing any cost and benefit assessment statement 

22 to the public, such agency shall tr~nsmit to the Oomptroller 

23 General' such assessment. and any appendht thereto which, 

24 indicates 't~e assu~ption made regarding the means and 

25 atte11dant cost~ of compliance with, the proposed rule includ~ 
. 'j 
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1 ing nuy .!TIflnnfftr.tnrers' costs nud consumer costs reflected 

2 in the price of any product affected by such rule. 

3 (b) With res::?ect to any proposed rule subject to the 

4 requirements of subsection (a), each Federal R.egister notice 

5 of proposed rulemaking s11all request interested persons to 

6 submit to the applicable agency, in writing, comments, mate-

7 rials, data, information, and other presentations relevant to 

8 the preparation of the required cost and benefit assessment 

9 statement. 

10 . (c) Each such agency shall, to the extent it deems neces-

11 . sary or appropriate, seek to obtain comments, materials, data, 

12 information, and presentations relevant to the costs Dnd bene-

13 fits, if any, likely to enSlle from effective implementation of 

14; any proposed rule, within the time prescribed for considera-

15 tion of the proposed rule, from other Federal agencies and 

16 persons .. No extensions of time for comment shall be granted 

17 solely for the pm'pose of receiving any such presentations 

18 with respect to such benefits. 

;19 (d) Each person who contends that effective imp1emen-

20 .tation oia proposed rule wjll rest!1t in increased or decl'eafied 

21 costs, shall furnish to the applicable agency the infOl'mation 

22 upon which he bases such assertion, and which is in his pos-

23 . session, is known to him, or is subject to 4i8 control. Such 

24: information shall be furnished to ~\e age~cy in .. such form, 

25.cmanner, an~ detail as such agencyin.its discretion prescribes. 
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1 Whenever any relevant information, which an ;~pplicable 

2 agency deems necessary or appropriate to the pre~~ration of 

3 a cost and benefit assessment statement, is or may~e in the 
II 

4 possession or control of a person who may be directlj;\ affected 
\\ . 

5 by the proposed rule, such agency is authorized to\\request 

6 such l'elevant information as reasonably described by it, and 

7 such person shall furnish such relevant information promptly 

~ to such agency. Such request £Qrinformationshall be en" 

9 forceable by appropriate Qrders by any court of the United 

10 States. Such information as is furnished shall be considered 

11 a statement for purposes of section 1001 of title 18, United 

12 States Code. 

13 ( e) A C!)st and benefit assessment statement preparep. 

14 pursuant to subsection (a) shall be published at, the end of 

15· the year in the Federal Register in a rflPortwhich shall 

16 . contain :ilL cost and benefit assessment statements applicable 

17 to rules promulgated during the preceding twelve months. 

18 All relevant information developed or received by the ap-

19 plioable agen'Oy in (joIlnoo~onwitb. the prepamtioll . of iSuch 

20 statement shaP. be available to all interested.persons, subject 

21 to the pr{)~siOhljof section· 552 ·oftitle .5, United States 

22 Oode, and. other applicable law. 

23 (£) The President s4allissne, pursuant to,the provisions 

24 Q~ this 8ll0section, .(1) regulations providing gLlidelines fot: 
.,' 

25 ]'ederal agencies'as to the n~:ture,J\Jld· content or any cost and' 

() 

G 
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1 h.~nefit assessment statement requ.ired by subsection (a) and 

2 (2) regulations which Rhall insure that any agency shall be 

3 able to obtain information deemed by it to be necessary or 

4 appropriate to the preparation of any such cost and l)enefit 

5 assessment statement. Such regulations shall be issued by the 

6 President upon the recommendations submitted to the Pres i-

7 dent by the Office of Management and Budget, the General 

8 Accounting Office, and the Agency for Oonsumer Advocacy. 
\ . 

9 In issrling or modifying any l'egulations implementing this 

10 section, the President shall proceed in accordance with the 

11 procedures prescribed by subsections (b) and (c) of the new 

12 section inserted by section 202, Public Law 93-637 (88 Stat. 

13 2193; 15 U.S.O. 57a (b), (c)). The President shall provide 

14 public notice of proposed rulemaking to implement this sub-

15 section within sixty days of the effective date of this Act, 

16 and f,lhall issue reg'ulations implementing this subsection 

17 within one hundred and eighty days of the effective date 

18 of this Act. After issuance of any regulations implementing 

20 gress, together with all recommendations submitted to the 

21 President pursuant to this subsection. Such regulations shall 

22 take effect ninety legislative days afterr. such transmittal to 

23 the Oongress by the President, unless either House of 

24 OongI'ess by resolution of disapproval, pursuant to procedures 

25 established by chapter 35, title 44, United States Oode, and 

~-"''-'--,;".'''==c;c., _~ 

'~\ 

.' 
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1 .' by section 1017 of the Congressional Budget and Impound

~ment Control Act of 1974 (31 U .8.0. 1407),. disapprov~s 

3 such reg1llations, except that Congress may by conCUlTent 

4 resolution modify such regulations within such ninety-day 

5 period, in which cas.e such re.gulations shall tab effect in 

6 such modified form. 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

(g) No Federal officer or agency shall submit propo~ed 

legi!!lation to the Congress which is likely, if enacted, to have 

a substantial economic impact, unless such legislation is 

accompanied by a cost and benefit assessment statement. 

. The statement required by this subsection shall he prepared 

in accordance with . the provisions of subseotion (a). The 

. requirements 'Of this subseotion may be postp.oned upon the 

request of a committee of Congies~llaviP.g juril3diction over 

such legislative proposal, for a period n.ot,- tQ. e7\:'eeed thirty 

days from . the 'date of ~b@Bsion to the Con~s' of sQ.~h· 

17 legislation .. 

18 

10· ....... 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24; 

(h) In addition to the de£ipitioRS ~ seption 14: (}f this ~---~"'-~,", 

Act, the f(}!l(}.win~ definitions shall ap~lv witn-r«lstle..3t "t.-t-t.ne--. c _ = _ _ ._.:::-J 

prQvisions of this section: 

(~\ the term "rule" means "role" as d_d by:" 

sf3(}tion 4\\~ (4) of title 5., United States Oode; 

(2) th~\tel'ID. "legislp,.tiop." or '''law'' meansa.~tute 
'" of the United'~ta.te$ lOt' a.~y amendment <thereto; 
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1 (3) "benefit" includes any direct or indirect, tangi-

2 ble or intangible, gain or advantage which the agency, 

3 in its ldiscretion, deems proximately related to the pro-

4 mulgation of a proposed regulation or the enactment of 

5 the proposed legislation. The term shall include such 

6 nonquantifiable benefits as the agency identifies and 

7 describes. Benefits may include the costs that would be 
,: 

8 likely to result from the agency's failure to act, but which 

9 are likely to be avoided by the agency's action; and 

10 (4) "cost" includes any direct or indiir~et expeme, 

11 including component costs of production and supply, and 

12 any loss, penalty, or disadvantage which the agency, in 

13 its discretion, ,deems proximately relaJted to ,the promi:tl-

14 gation of a proposed regn!ation, C!r the enactment of pro-
" .-- ---

15 posed legislation. The tktnl shlJll include, such nonquan-

16 tifiable costs as the agency identifies and describes. 

17 (i) The Oomptroller Genera! of the United States shall 

18 monitor and evaluate th.e implementation of this section. In 
'11 .. " _additi{)ll to any 'ather: renorbg lQr stumes_ made bv-, th~'l C{)m.n.= 'H1- ". , ~- • - 1>." ~ 

20 troller General relating to this section, he shall, three years 

Ii 21 after the effective date of this section, conduct a comprehen-

22 sive review of this section including an evaluation of the 

23 advantages and disadvantag~s of cost and benefit assessment 

24 statements and of the nature and extent of FedG:qtf agency Ii 
:,1 

II 
,~\ 25 compliance with this section. The Oomptroller Gehera! shall 

1, \, 
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1 prepare and submit t'O the O'Ongress a rep'Ort' based 'On such 

2 study and review. Such report shall include, but need n'Ot 

3 be limited t'O, his rec'Ommendati'Ons as t'O the necessity 'Or 

4 advisabilHy 'Of the pr'Oy.isions 'of this section, and 'Of the need 

5 to amehd subsecti'On (k), 'Or any 'Other pr'Ovisi'On, 'Of this 

6 section. TheOomptr'Ollel' Geneml shall, if he determines that 

7 the assumptions contained in any statement submitted to it 

8 pursuant to subsecti'On (a) 'Of this secti'On areinaccurate1 in-

9 complete, 'Or lmjustified so report t'O the committees 'Of the 

10 Senate and HOllse of Representatives having ~nisdiC!tion 

11 over any Federal department 'Or· agency ,that prepared such 

12 staten;J.ent. 

13 (j) N'O court shall have the jurisdiction t'O review; 'Or 
'(1 

14 enforce 'Or shall review, 'Or enforce and, except f'Or the general 

15 review of 'the effectiveness 'Of this secti'On ~rovided for in 

16 su.bsection (i), no 'officer 'Or agency ,of theU nited Strutes, ,Qther 

17 than the agency responsible for theJ>l~epamti'On 'Of a cost"and 

18 ,;benefit assessment statement' ~~d the duly authorized 'Cornmit~ 

. 19 ietlll ~or the Ooitgress, "shalltlave· the authOrity 1'0 reVie~, ~~. ~ 

20 enforce or shall re~~ew, or enf'Orce, in ,any way the com-

21 pliance 'Of any C'Ost a'\1d benefit assessment statement with . 

22 thissecti'On, or, except where the agency preparing such a( 

23 st~temeiIt'seeks ,to enforce in court its request for informa-

24 ti'On, the c'Ompliance, by such agency with any 'Other require-

25 ment of this section:: including the manner JJr process by 

(J 
() 

Q ' 
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which such statement is prepared: Provided, That a Federal 

court may, upon the request of any interested person, review 

and enforce compliance with the provisions of this subsection. 

(k) The requirements of thisvsection shall supersede the 

requirements of any existing executive order· imposing any 

economic, cost-benefit, inflationary, or other similar impact 

assessment requirement. No requirement of this section shall 

alter or supersede any Federal agency statutory requirement, 

regulation, or lawful practice which such agency detennines 

to be inconsistent with any of the requirements of this secti~n. 

Further, no agenc,y shall be required to prepare and issue a 

cost and benefit assessment statement required by this sec

tion, if information which would be contained in such state

mentis encompassed within another statement required by 

law to be prepared in connection with the promulgation of 

the applicable nile. 

(1) The provisions of this section shall become effective 

upon the effective date of implem~nting regulations submitted 

EFFECTIVE DATE 

SEC. 25. (a) This Act shall take effect 90 days after 

the date of enootment" or Qll \;Iuch earlier date as the Presi

dent 'shall prescribe and pu.blish in the Federal Regist,cr., 

(b) Any of the officers provided for in this Act may 

(notwithstanding sub!lection (a)) .be appointed in the man

nerprovided for in this. ~ct at any time after the date ofthe 

" 

• 

, 
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1 enactment of this Act. Such officers shall be compensated 
o 

2 from the date they first take office at the rates prov~ded for 

3 in this Act. 

4 ( J SEPARABILITY 

5 SEG. 26. If any Rrovisio'n of this Act is declared un-

6 co~~titution~l or the applicability thereof to ~yperson or 
\ 

7 circumstance is held'ihlvalid, the constitutionality and effec-

8 tiveness of the remainder of this Act and the applicability 

9 thereof 'vo any persons and oircumstances shall not be affeCJted 

10 thereby. 
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STATEMENT OF ROBERT, O. AOERS, PRESIDENT, FOOD MARKETING INSTITUTE 

I am pleased to submit for the record this statement on behalf of our members 
in regard to the legislative proposals before the Congress to establish an independent 
consumer agency (H.R. 6118 and S. 1262). The Food Marketing Institute (FMI) 
represents some 850 food retailing and wholesaling members. In submitting this state
ment our desire is to insure that the Congress in its efforts to establish a mechanism 
for more direct consumer input into the government decision-making process takes 
into account every possible consideration as it prepares this legislation. 

The creation of an independent consumer advocacy agency represents an important 
step in providing a centralized avenue or forum for the citizen's voice into the Federal 
~overnment's process of creating policies and regulations which impact directly or 
mdirectly the consumer. This hopefully will enable government and industry to be 
more responsive to consumer needs. 

Consumer advocacy or input is no stranger to the members of this association. 
Food r-etailers and wholesalers justifiably are proud of the progress they have made 
in providing a "consumer voice" within their own industry. . 

Having made a substantial investment in consumer affairs programs as one element 
of improved operations, our members have found that this function offers within their 
own companies a two-way communication process which not only enhances consumer 
rights in the marketplace, but also improves business performance. 

Also, within the Food Marketing Institute, our members have established a mechanism 
to provide consumer input into the development of overall policy formation. FMI's 
Consumer Affairs Department was established to coordinate that important consumer 
input, to effectively represent the consumer's point of view in the overall industry 
decision-making process and to advise industry policy makers on consumer considera
tions. 

This consumer commitment on the part of FMI and its members was an important 
cornerstone in the Institute's formation. FMI's by-laws begin by recognizing the food 
retailers' and wholesalers' responsibility as the purchasing agent for the customer. These 
by-laws, adopted by the membership, state: "The grocery store retailer" from the smal
lest corner store to the larges~ supermarket company, is the purchasing agent for 
the customer . . . and, in all of its activities and actions the interests of the custotner 
will be given first consideration." 

The Food Marketing Institute believes the establishment of a separate, independent 
agency for the advocacy of consumer interests within the Federal government and 
the intention of these legislative proposals can, if properly constructed, provide a 
system for much needed public participation within our growing bureaucratic and com
plex government structure. 

Presently, there are numerous, and often conflicting, choices seeking to represent 
the consumer in federal matters, with the result that clamor, more often than construc
tive input or coherence, has been the case. Consequently, much of the work of the 
sl1'ostantive agencies has been unnecessarily disrupted and the orderly and responsible 
management of agency proceedings impaired. If government's consumer advocacy func
tion could be formulated through a single responsible agency and duplication minimized, 
substantial public benefits could be realized. Consolidating the consumer advocacy 
function within the federal government would, naturally, make possible the transfer 
of conSUmer advocacy responsibilities' noW existing in other agencies to a single agency. 

It is partiCUlarly important, I believe, that the FMI approved position on an indepen
dent consumer agency be included in this statement. That position adopted on March 
15, 1977, states: "Support the concept of an independent consumer agency that would 
accomplish the following: promote the interest of consumers regarding the safety, quali
ty, availability and dependability of goods and services; preserve the consumer's freedom 
of choice; provide accurate and appropriate information on goods and services of 
interest to consumers; provide a central place, without duplication by other agencies, 
for the receipt and transmittal of consumer complaints directed to the Federal govern
ment and provided that: such proposals be designed within the concept of the Pre
sident's desire for more efficient government management; the coverage of those subject 
to the activities of such an agency be all-inclusive (exemption of labor, agriculture 
or any other economic segments would be unfair and inequitable and not in the 
consumer interest); such an agency be established to represent the consumer interest 
before Federal agencies and courts and in other prO<.~edings, where appropriate but 
in carrying out this purpose it should not supercede, supplant or replace the jurisdiction 
of any other Federal agency over any subject matter, nor deprive any agency of 
any rc:spc)itsibility to exercise its statutory authority according to law; ~uch an l1gency, 
in a proceeding or in preliminary activities that might lead to such a proceeding, 
not be provided the use of unilateral subpoena power or other procedural or discovery 
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devices not available to all persons; such an agency, in the dissemination of public 
information of importance to consumers, be required to protect the confidentiality 
of proprietary information; the proposals of such an agency should be subject to 
a cost-benefit analysis. 

While FMI endorses the concept of H.R. 6118 and S. 1262, it is our' position 
that the best interest of all can he served only if modifications are made in several 
important areas within the existing legislative proposals. These modifications are based 
on two underlying concepts held by FMI about an Agency for Consumer Advocacy 
and designed to insure that the agency is structured within a framework of equity 
and fairness to all. 

First, While it is appropriate for an ACA to have a voice equal to that of other 
interested parties (business, labor; farmers,etc.) the overall public interest will not 
be served by any tilting of the power balance toward such an agency, and •.. 

Second, a consumer advocacy agency should be just that-an. advocate-not an 
agency with substantive adjudicatory rulemaking or investigatory power to be exercised 
independently of the substantive agencies. In this context, the following modifications 
are proposed to the current legislative proposals under consideration. 

1. If the agency is to be given some investigatory power, that power" regardless 
of limitations currently proposed, should not be exercised independently of thesubstan-
tive responsibilities of o~\1er agencies. An acceptable procedure might be to require 
ACA to operate through the substantive agency, petitioning the agency for the iSS!lll11ce ~ 
of whatever investigative discovery process might be available to them and receiving 
the responses through them. This approach, while furnishing interrogatory power to 
an ACA, would be more compatible with the advocacy role of working with and 
through the substantive agencies than the proposal in the pending legislation. It is 
not the funC',tion of an ACA to make law, but most importantly, to advise other 
agencies of cOiisumer interest with regard to the actions of those agencies. 

2. In keeping with an ACA's advisory functions, it is important to prl!clude disclosure 
by ACA of all materials exempt froIU disclosure under the Freedom of Informati(,ln 
Act, particlllariy those exemptions related to tradel_secrets and materials gathered ·for 
law enforce,"ent purposes. Such a limitation would not affect the power of ACA 
to make any appropriate disclosure in connection with any agency proceeding in which 
it is participating, or in matters .. affecting public health and safety. While the current 
proposed legislation contains . seme limitations on disclosure, those limitations are not (). 
full satisfactory. The proposed legislation does not make clear, for example, that infor-
mation obtained from a Federal agency, which might be subject to exemptions to '\ 
the Freedom of Information Act, could not be disclosed by ACA where the agency ",=,,' 
provided the information has not notified the ACA that the material is exempt from 
disclosure. ,_, 

3. The legislation creating an ACA should contain no exemption for various interest \~ 
groups on grounds of political expediency. Specifically. labor and agriculture should 
be included in the legislation. Two major factors affecting the consumer in the food 
distribution system are the cost of raw materials and Jabor productivity. Neithe; of /, 
these exemptions in the legislation is justified. If the ACAis truly going to fully 
represent the interests of consumers, the jurisdiction of any consumer advocac;:y agency " (; 
should be as inClusive as possible. . 

4. Authority to initiate judicial review of a final subs~ntive agency action should 
be gi1U.ted to an ACA only if two cOUrt requiresments ';are met: (1) sUch a review 
would avoid a substantial detriment to the interest of jU$tice- and (2) that ACA has 
some new and important factor to add.' The public interest-and that of affected 
parties-generally would not be well served in situations where a protracted agency 
adjudication leading to a final order \;Zould bi: attacked after its effective date by 
an ACA which had not shown prior interest. " 

5. An ACA, when it i!; participating 1'n a formal proceeding, should not be granted 
greater access tosubstarititive agency subpoenas than that granted to other partieS. 
As the statutes and rules of the substantive agendes presently stand, the present legisla
tive proposals reqUire far less of an. ACA to obtain a subpoena, for eXimlple iIi' an 
FTC proceeding, than is required of a private respondent in such a proceeding. Such 
inequitable t!eatment under the law is certainly not in thepubIic inteteSt. 

The Food ,,Marketing Institute considers. the' above legislative modifications. critical 
to any legislation which has as its design the creation of a workable, effective and 
equitable Agency for Consumer Advocacy. , 

In summary, because of FMI's inherent commitment to consumers...,.Qul' 
customers,-and because of our realization' of the important benefits derived from con
sumer inputs to the foOd retailing and wholesalillg' business, we support the concept 
of an indepedent consumer advocacy agency. ' ' . ' 



------------------------------~------------------------- II " 

190 

The Food Marketing Institute, however, believes that it is imperative that the 
framework for such an agency be ciesigned to assure efficient, fair and equal treatment 
to all sectors of the econt:Jmy which are involved in producing goods and providing 
services for America's consuming public. We feel our proposed modifications assist 
in meeting these, obj~ctives. 

With proper legislation, such an agency could; fulfill its intent to ensure that the 
consumer's viewpoint is represented in the government's decision-making process; 
promote the interests of consumers regarding the safety, quality" availability and de
pendability of goods and services; gather and disseminate approlPriate information of 
importance to consumers; and guarantee the customer's freedom of choice. 

STATEMENT OF WILLIAM CROOK, PRESIDENT, NATIONAL ASSOCilATlON OF RETAIL 
GROCERS OF THE UNITED STATES 

Mr. Chairman and Committee Members, I am William Crook, president of the Na
tional Asssociation of Retail Grocers of the United States (NARGUS). NARGUS is 
a national trade association representing independent retail grocers with over 40,000 
members operating supermarkets as well as convenience stores. 

NARGUS opposes the so-called independent consumer agency bi\1 for two basic 
reasons. First, the interests of consumers, including better representation of consumers 
in the activities of the federal government, will not be adequately served by the 
proposed bill. Second, the bill goes contrary to the urgent need to reduce the federal 
bureaucracy. 

I 

One of the reasons frequently given for creating a new independent consumer protec
tion agency is that the federal government ha~ grown too big and to complex for 
consumers to be heard. President Carter's recent consumer message to Congress 
referred to the need to plead the consumer's case within the government. 

The bill, ;n its declaration of proposed findings, makes the statement that "consumers 
are inadequately represented and protected within the Federal Government." Supporters 
of the bill say its purpose is to protect and promote the interests of the people 
of the United States as consumers. 

Since the entire population of some 212 million persons in the country are consumers, 
and almost everything the federal government does affects consumers, the complexity 
of making sure that government decisions are made in the consumer interest is as 
great and wide-ranging as the huge federal bureacracy itself. 

What is the answer to the question why the federal government makes decisions 
affecting consumers without adequate consideration of consumer interest and why con
sumers cannot make their influence felt when it is needed? 

The answer is that because of the huge size of the federal, government, it is very 
difficult to manage. Government reorganization and reform are I?adly needed. 

Another answer to the problem is to impose on every goven1iment agency the obliga
tion to give a high priority to c;pnsumer interests. Place on eadt agency administrator 
the responsibility to promote and protect the interests of the people of the United 
States as consumers in keeping with their other duties and responsibilities. 

Give f.'~ch administrator and agency director adequate powers to e&tablish procedures 
for carrying out consumer protection. Have Congress oversee the entire operation 
tl}rough periodic checks. Supplement this effort with directives from the President. 
Establish clear lines of accountability. 

What we are proposing here is that instead of centralizing consumer advocacy in 
a new independent agency, give consumer protection a high priority in every govern
ment agency. 

Considering the immense size of the federalbureaucracy-2,OOO agencies at last 
count-and taking account of the wide ,range of government policies that affect con
sumer interests, the most progress can be made by decentralizin/?; this important concern 
throughout the federal government. The job is, too big to assign to one agency. It 
is too important to be delegated to a relatively few agency employees among so 
many on the public payroll. 
, If Congress creates a so-called consumer protection agency, government administra

tors will gi'l'e less attention to the effects of their actions on consumers with the 
result that consumer interests will be moore inadequately protected and less promoted 
in the federal government than is the case today. 

If a conSUlller protection agency is created by this legislation, it won't be long 
before Congress will receive complaints that the Agency is not doing its job, that 

II 
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the purposes of the Agency are not being carried out, that the Agency is ineffective 
and weak. Complaints will be made that the Agency lacks sufficient size, power, 
and independence to do its job. Urgent requests will be made to substantially increaSe 
the size of its appropriations, staff, and power. Cries will be made to strengthen 
the new Agency by giving it more independence of action with wider coverage. Various 
possibilities come to mind, such as demands for direct power to CO!l!;:-el the production 
of documents and witnesses, authority to write rules of business cOllduct, 'irid prosecute 
offenders. In the course of time, the new Agency will tend tei grow (and duplicate 
functions performed by existing agencies. This is the way the federal bureaucracy 
has worked in the past. Nothing suggests the process will be any different with respect 
to the Consumer Protection Agency. 

If we accept the argument that some federal agencies have not carried out their 
responsibilities for protecting consumers, the most effective remedy is to find out 
the cause for such deficiency and take measures that will enable the agency to perform 
better. The answer is to correct any bad practir:es from within, and not to create 
another federal bureaucratic layer. 

If some agencies of federal government are not working like they should in protecting 
consumer interests, nothing is gained by adding to the number of agencies already 
in existence. 

If the bureaucracy is not responsive to consumers, it will only make matters worse 
to create another layer of government making the bureaucracy Jarger and even more 
unresponsive. 

Whatever the federal government is doing wrong in connection with protecting con
sumers will not be corre.;:ted by creating another new independent agency in Washing
ton. Reducing the number of federal agencies and requiring those that remain to 
do their job more effectively with better supervision from Congress are more likely 
to achieve the desired results. 

II 

Proponents of this legislation stress that small business has nothing ,1 to fear frol\:-> 
the proposal because it is exempt from the Agency's information-gathering authority:' 
The statement is made that small businesses are exempted from comptJlsory disclosure 
of information where an imminent ll,mi substantial health or safety danger is not in
volved. 

It seems to be recognized that without effective safeguards, the Agency's powers 
to obtain, information from business liould impose a burden on small enterprises that 
would threaten their success. 

Section 10 of the bill gives to the Agency's Administrator authority to require busi
nesses to file with him reports or answers in writing to specific .questions. The Adminis
trator can obtain data and information from business concerns whose activities he 
determines may substantially affect consumers. He can also obtain information through 
a federal agency issuing its orders, including access to all documents, papers, and 
records. 's 

The provision in the bill providing' a small business exemption from the Agency 
Administrator's power to require filing reports and answering Agency questionnaires 
defines. a small business concern in terms of not having assets or empioyees exceeding 
narrow limits. However, in determining whether any of these limits is exc~eded, the 
small business concern and any of its affiliates, including those arising out of a franchise 
agreement, are'i to be considered together. 

Requiring tllat small business concerns and their affiliates be considered as, one 
enterprise when attempting to qualify for the small business exemption, will result 
in denying the proposed exemption to the vast majority of ifldependent retail grocers. 
The reason for this is that a large percentage of independent groce~ are affiliated 
with either a cooperative or a volun~ wholesale group. " 

Almost 90 percent of total independent grocery store sales are presently accounted 
for by members of a retailer-owned cooperative or grocery wholesaler-sponsored volun
tary group. These grocers, numbering well over lOO,Ooo, . are commonly referred to 
in the trade as "affiliated independents." They are not eX!lmpt from the consumer 
Agency Administrator's demands for filing reports. and answering questionnaires under 
the proposed legislation. Affiliated independent re.tailgrocers, including small single 
store ope,rators, would be required to file consumer Agency government reports and 
questionnaires. . 

The requirement for ~filing Agency reports and questionnaires poses a burdenSome 
government paperwork problem for affiliated independent grocers. The solution to 
this problem is not, in our opinion, to broaden the small business exemption in' Section 
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10 of the bill. A better answer is to postpone approving the proposed measure at 
least until the need for a new independent consumer agency IS clearly justified in 
light of current prospects for governmental reorganization and reform proposals. These 
"rospects include, in addition to various reorganization plans, zero base budgeting, 
the sunset concept, and regulatory reform. When the idea of a consumer protection 
agency first a~pse over eight years ago, there was nothing approaching the urgent 
efforts toward government reorganization and reform that exist today. In light of current 
wide-rangin~ efforts to improve and reorganize government activities, it would be best 
to wait awhile before proceeding with creation of a new independent consumer agency. 

III 

A basic objection to the bill is that it operates counter to the need for reducing 
the size, complexity, and unmanageableness of the federal bureaucracy. 

The President has just signed iegislation authorizing him to begin reorganization 
of the Executive Branch. One of Mr. Carter's most repeated campaign pledges was 
to reorganize the federal government and make what he has termed "the horrible, 
bloated bureaucracy" manageable. There are so many federal agencies now in existence, 
no one knows theIr exact number. Coordination of the activities of federal agencies 
is a matter of such concern that some 129 interagency units are in operation to 
resolve conflicts, overlapping, and duplication of efforts. 

The point of these comments are: first, that this is not the time to consider creating 
another independent federal agency; second, that the most urgent governmental need 
today is reform, reorganization, and streamlining of the federal bureaucracy; third, 
that adding another layer of the federal bureaucracy will cost consumers more than 
any b~nefits they may receive from the proposed new agency; fourth, that business, 
incluilillg small business, such as "affiliated" independent retail grocers are threatened 
by a heavier g'lvernment paperwork burden connected with compulsory filing of Agency 
reports and qut)stionnajres; and, fifth, if a new consumer agency is established it ,,111 
not be long before supporters of the Agency will return to Congress contending the 
Agency is too weak and too small to adequately protl~ct consumers. They will urge 
legislation expanding the Agency's size and powers so' that eventually it becomes ,a 
"super agency" of Government. 

Thank you for the opportunity of presenting this statement. 

STATEMENT OF THE AM~RICAN FARM BUREAU FEDERATION PRESENTED BY JOHN C. 
DATT, DIRECTOR, WASHINGTON OFFICE 

Farm Bureau is the largest general farm organization in the:, United States with 
a membership of 266,259 families in 49 states and Puerto Rico. It is voluntary, non
governmental organization, representing farmers who produce virtually every agricultural 
commodity that is produced on a commercial basis in this country. 

Farm Bureau policies are developed through study, discussion, and decision by majori
ty vote at community, county. state, and national meetings. Our statement, today is 
based on the following policy adopted bY',the voting delegates of the member State 
Farm Bureaus at the 1977 annual 'meeting of the American Farm Bjlreau Federation: 
"Government standards of quality, safety. health, and labeling have a role in the 
marketplace, However, we do not believe the government can protect every consumer 
in each of his transactions without infringing upon his personal freedom. We oppose 
the establishment of any consumer agency or council having other than advisory 
powers." 

In the past ,;bur organization has opposed the creation of a so-called Consumer 
Advocacy Age~\,cy on the basis that it is wrong in concept and wrong in principle. 
We will not take time today to elaborate upon these two points, but we reaffirm 
them. 

We need not now repeat the arguments well made in the past that the "consumer" 
is not, in truth and fact an identifiable group. This is a flaw in the conc;ept of a 
goveniment agency.to represent consumers. Those who have not grasped this essential 
fact wiII not be convinced in the few minutes we shall take here today. 

The proposed ACA Act is a design for government agency chaos. It creates a 
mislabeled cloak of alleged "consumer interest," and vests the total decision in such 
matters in the hands of an Administrator who is to decide where and when he will 
appear in other agency proceedings and in court. The Administrator is empowered 
to undertake to represent whatever interest he may call a "consumer interest". These 
are enormous powers. They are circumscribed only slightly by a certain obeisance 
to administrative law regarding petitions for rehearing, etc. None of these would limit 
in any true sense the awesome legal and practical power of the Administrator. 
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This bill projJoses agency vs. agency confrontations with final resolution of differences 
to be made in the federal courts, if need be. 

Necessarily, we look with keenest interest upon the impact such legislation would 
have on the agency with which agriculture has the most dealings, the USDA. This 
Department has long administered th~ programs, regulations, practices, and government 
cOl;porations that affect American ag:~culture. In the past, exemptions for agriculture 
have been offered ·in various fmini., 'Nie have neithet asked for nor supported them 
then-we do not now. Exemptions grallted by one Congress can easily be withdrawn 
by another, if, indeed, this Congress were to agree upon one. 

From all that has been said in the past, and all that we can perceive in today's 
economic circumstances, prices would likely ba the first target of any ACA created 
by. the. Congress. Let us take just a moment to look at the nature of agricultural 
pnces. 

The American farmer produces only when and what he perceives will return him 
his costs and a profit. Overhang his markets with artificial imponderables affecting 
prices and his problems are compounded. The ability and judgement of those to whom 
he sells to move their product{', the semi-processed or processed products of the 
farmers, are the measure of the fanner's market. From these influences there is possible 
exemption. So .long as there remains a vestige of a free market, prices will be established 
by supply and demand and known economic forclls. But if artificialities are created 
by an approach to market intervention such as is foreseeable .in ACA" then the 
prodticer~s price risk is tied identically to the risk of the processor, wholesaler, and 
ret<tiler; and arbitrary government interference can warp the market. . 

During the last hearing on .the ACP proposal the supporters of this. bilI said, in 
effect, that, given the job of the Administrator, the first thing they would undertake 
to do would be to shut off the exports of grains. This we know as an "embargo." 
In the agricultural areas "embargo" has become an ill-favored word. Parenthetically 
i~ is a favored word in other quarters. The local morning paper found in the announce
ment of these bills in the House and Senate powers for the ACA director to "lobby 
for or against foreign grain sales." 

In agriculture we have had three experiences with embargoes in the last several 
years. One was the Niy.?n embargo of soybeans to Japan. The so-called "shock" of 
this to our Japanese 6Ustomers was wholly destructive . .It has made the Japanese, 
and others, less certain that the United States is by cO!ltract or otherwise a reliable 
supplier. It has led, in fact to Japan's undertaking to become self-sufficient by financing 
and creatingUsoybean contractors, and ;financing their production in Latin America. 
And this was a customer to whom the United States supplied more than 90 percent 
of their requirements. ' 

This bill is in truth nothing but the product of a small but relentless group who 
see in a ACA a mechanism- to lend force t.'1 the advocacy of their viewpoints. TIlere 
is, in truth, little broad public support for thi~ ltind of a bill. 

Wh!!t is clearly perceived, by those committed to th~" "consumerist" idea and by 
those who oppose the bilI, is that such an agency, once in being, can be used to 
wield enonnous inIJuence. It will be made powerful in all sorts of m.arkets, industries, 
businesses, and professions through the attention the media will give it. This could 
result in such things"<:s forcing the Secretary of Agriculture .to open up CCC stocks 
to bring down market prices. 

It is not difficult to imagine the effects upon the futures market were the ACA 
Admiriistrater to call a vress collference mereiy to announce that he was growing 
concerned about the pric~ situation and that he felt quite certain that the Admini~~tation 
would be doing something very soon. 

Mr. Chairman, we can see in this proposal a really monstrous instrument for jawbon
ing, institutionalized in th~J government and available to self-appoil}ted tepresentatives 
of the public, tepresentatives who need not represent a substantial Pndy of opinion 
but:\. need only .an agreement from one man, the ACA' Administrator. Then it can 
proCeed into the fray with the media observing and reporting, as it shOUld. The public 
and political impact would .be enornl0us. In fact, a willful ACA. could by this procCS$ 
bring other agencies into. great disrepute; if not outright ruin. . ' , 

Let us apply all that we have just said to, a current si!Uation, and see ho,!\, this 
might work, . '. . . .. c, 0 

Last year the U,S. export.ed $22 billion worth of agricultural products. We have (, 
to believe that Mr, Blumenthal 'at,-Treasury looks upon this ;figure as one of the 
strong timbers in his balan.,:e-of-Pllyments structure. Agricultural exports generate much 
of the exchange used to pay for our enonnousoil imports. 

Thus ·the, question-.arises:. Who is the constimer? Is it those whocJamor for lower 
food prices. (though it is only the farmer's price' Which would be reduced iF" expOrts 
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are curbed)? Or is it the oil-consuming public which lives, works, and exists by an 
oil-fueled economy? 

_ To repeat, then who is the consumer indeed-the one who seeks lower cost food-all 
of us-or the one who lives by imported petroleums-also all of us? And, Mr. Chairman, 
all markets in our economy, affected by the government or not, are vulnerable to 
an ACA. -

To reiterate, it is perhaps less what is in the bill than the mechanism it creates 
with a great potential power which can be wielded far outside the structure, the 
intent, or the design of the bill that causes such grave concern. 

STATEMENT OF J. EDWAR)) DAY, SrECIAL COUNSEL, CONSUMER ELECTRONICS GROUP, 
ELECTRONIC INDUSTRIES ASSOCIATION 

Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee, my name is J. Edward Day. I am 
Special Counsel for the Consumer Electronics Group (CEG) of the Electronic Industries 
Association. The Consumer Electronics Group represents the great majority of United 
States manufacturers of consumer electronic products consisting of televisions, radios, 
phonographs, audio systems and small calculators. CEG membership also includes 
several Japanese companies which have manufacturing facilities in the United States. 

There are 11 companies which manufacture television receivers in the United States 
and a number of major importers which sell television receivers under their own 
label in this country. There are some very large and some very small companies 
in this group, and many more small companies which manufacture phonographs, audio 
systems and components, and calculators. The companies we represent are intensely 
aware of the importance of consumer satisfaction and fair treatment of the consumer. 

In our Group, we have a Consumer Affairs Council made up of executives of many 
of the leading manufacturers. We have a full-time director of Consumer Affairs ta
work with the Council and various ones of our members have long embarked on 
their own programs with special emphasis on consumer satisfaction. 

The Consumer Electronics Group is primarily concerned with three aspects of S. 
1262. 

Specifically, CEG is concerned with how the proposed Agency for Consumer Advoca
cy would choose the one particular "interest of consumers" it would represent before 
a federal agency from among the numerous competing consumer interests. CEG is 
also concerned that the duplication in function inherent in the bill will produce unneces
sary and burdensome dfllay in agency decision-making. This problem will be particularly 
pronounced in the realin of informal agency decision-making in the context of which 
so much of the country's day-to-day regulatory problems are expeditiously resolved. 
Finally, CEG is concerned that this bill will remove the focus of responsibility for 
consumer protection from where it ought to be-with the regulatory agencies them
selves. 

I realize that you gentlemen have heard much of this before; but we feel our 
arguments have not been convincingly refuted. We have studied the many statements 
and debates;)n this and previous, similar bills, and we feel more strongly about our 
objections than ever. 

Determination of the consumers' interest 
Section 6 would authorize the ACA to "intervene" or "participate" in agency activi

ties when the Administrator of the ACA determines -that, an agency proceeding or 
activity may "substantially affect an interest of consumers." The bill, however, pWvides 
no standards for determining that interest. 

In an age of competing consumer interests, CEG has grave doubt as to how the 
ACA is expected in many situations to select a single consumer interest to represent. 
For example, in a proceeding looking towards the establishment of more efficient 
automobile emission control devices and standards, which side would the ACA 
represent? On t1.e one hand, there is the position which, in the name of public h.ealth 
and environmental protection, calls for ever stricter standards and ever more exacting 
devices. On the other side, there is another legitimate consumer position: The economic 
cost to the car owner. In a time of continuing inflationary and ta.'{ .. pressures on 
the cost of gasoline and, having in mind proper concern for the energy crisis, where 
should the ACA stand: with the environmentalist-priority consumersor··with the 
economic-priority consumers? This latter group has aright to be concerned over poor 
gas mileage and with the increased cost of automobiles resulting from super-exacting 
standards for pollution control devices. 

What position would the ACA have taken in the Trans Alaska Pipeline controversy, 
that of the protector of the tundra or that of the homeowner caught up in the spiraling 
costs of home heating oil and natural gas? Would the ACA favor a consumer interest 
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in cheap geothermal generation of electricity to combat the energy crisis or the interests 
of consumers living near a geothermal plant who would be subject to the nauseating 
odors associated with geothermal generation of electricity? ' 

What about a Federal Power Commission proceeding to develop rules exempting 
small producers of natural gas from rate regulation in order to stimulate exploration 
and increase the gas supply? Which side of that i~sue is the consumer side? 

The Consumer FederatIon formed a task force on energy several years ago. Many 
people are becoming active on the energy crisis. How is it going to help 10 have 
the ACA get into that act-and on which .side? If there is rationing of fuel, which 
would the ACA prefer to cut back: the factories where people work or the house 
where they live? 

Neither liberals nor conservatives are able to agree within their own groups as 
to which is the pro-consumer side in tariff cases or cases under the Antidumping 
Law or the Countervailing Duty Law. Does the consumer side support low consumer 
prices for imported products or does it support protection of American workers against 
unfair foreign competition? .\s Senater Percy said during hearings on an earlier version 
of this legislation: "How do you get consumers to be consumers unless they have 
got a paycheck?" 

What is going to be the consumer side in proposed decisions of the Federal Reserve 
Board? What about the Office of Management and Budget and the General Accounting 
Office? The FBI is exempted, but what about the Secret Service and the Pos'tal Inspec
tion Service? What is the consumer side on overuse of Yosemite National Park or 
on the routes of federally funded interstate highways? 

These inherent conflicts between the, desire for low rates and the desire fOl"'good 
serv\ce can be expe(;ted to be prese!,!t ift nearly every rate case before the ICC, 
FCC, CAB and other agencies. The efforts of commission staffs to resolve this dilemma 
in the consumers' best interests will not be advanced by the ihtervention of the ACA, 
which is likely to be uninformed on the intricate issues involved, or worse yet, tend 
to opt always for only the immediate, ilhort-term politically-visible consumer interest 
in lower rates. 

I have heard valious attempted rebuttals to this concern about how the ACA would 
determine which of competing consumer interests was the one to be espoused with 
all the power, prestige and publicity advantage of a federal government agency. 

Some of the rebuttals say it is only a matter of judgment and that the ACA can 
be expecte<.;l to make proper judgments and strike the proper balance. 

I am curious as to where the Executive Branch is going to find such su~rmell . 
with such far-reaching wisdom. Apparently, the other departments and agencies ha.ven't 
always been able to find such r~ely gifted people; for the basis of this bill is that 
the mere humans heading up the various other departments and agencies need a 
super agency to ride herd on them. 

I have also heard an asserted "e)Cpertise" of the ACA used as a rebuttal to the 
argument that' the consumer interest side of a case will often not be capable of 
clear cut identification. How can we expect an ACA to be eXP\lrt on. hundreds of 
different laws and programs to a degree which would be more reliable thari the expertise 
of a specialized agency having responsibility for a few of those laws or programs? 
To acquire expertise in any real sense as to a1l the variety of federal, state and 
local proceedings the ACA would need a mammoth, unmanageable bureaucracy of 
its own: lawyers, accountants, statisticians, technicians, ifivesiigators, ecom;nnists, doc
tors, pharmacists, geologists, nutritionists, and all the rest. 

Delays 
A second major concern of the. CEG is th~ burdensome delay that will be generated 

out of unnecessary duplication in serving the consumer-protection function. The main 
criterion by which federal agenCies are sup~ed to make regulatory decisions is the 
"public interest.", The public interest, of course, includes the interests of consumers. 
Yet. under this bill, a federal commission will not only be required to cOllsider the 
recommendations of its own staff respecting the consumer's interest, but the recommen
dations of the Agenc), for Consumer Advocacy as we1l. 

In commenting on a similar bill introduced in 1972, S. 1177, the Federal Power 
Commission stated that the ACA authority, "if improvidently exercised, could substan
tially hamper effective regulation • . . by postponing finality of decisions in matters 
of pressing public concern" (letter from John N. Nassikas, Chairman, Federal Power 
Commission, to Senator ,James B. Allen, July 5, 1972, 118 Congo ~ec. S. U2~7 
(Daily' ed., July 19, 1972». The Justice Del>artment, too, rightly feared thatS. 1177 
"pose[d] a threat [to] the orderly ~fi etJeCtive dispatch pf the public busingss •• , 
(letter itom Ralph E. Eljckson, Deputy Atto~ey General, to S"enator' James B. 

Alien, July 20, 1972, 118 Congo Rec; S. 15808 (Dady ed., July 25, ~972). 

\\ 
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A classic illustration of both of the concerns I have just described is provided 
by the Postal. Rate Commission. The statute setting up that independent Commission 
provides for the designation of the Officer of the Commission "who shall be required 
to represent the interests of the general public." An attorney was hired to fill that 
role, and he acquired a staff. These people were totally independent of the other 
staff of the Commission and of the Commission's hearing officer and become deeply 
involved with all aspects of the first postal rate case throughout six months of hearings. 

The case, however, is not one to give encouragement to supporters of the idea 
of an ACA. The participation of the "Officer of the Commission" in the proceedings 
before the Commission simply added to the complications of discovery, cross-examina
tion, briefing, and all the rest. Although the Congress provided in the statute that 
postal hearings were to be conducted as expeditiously as possible, the very first hearing 
mvolved Some 14,000 pages of repetitious and often irrelevant transcript, and over 
1,000 filed documents. Perhaps 20 percent of this huge output was caused by the 
presence ot' the Officer of the Commission in the case. His initial brief, alone, was 
over 300 pages long. 

Moreover, it was never clear in that postal rate case just what decision was supposed 
to be in the best interest of consumers. While higher rates for anything are unpalatable 
to many, they may well be necessary to pennit the Postal Service to keep up with 
rising cCists and to give service to consumers. 

ACA participation in informal agency proceedings 
Section 6(a)(3) of S. 1262 authorizes the ACA to "participate" in infonnal agency 

activitiesl which may "substantially affect an interest of consumers." CEG opposes 
ACA "participation" in such infonnal proceedings because it believes that such par
ticipatiotl will tend to fOlmalize and complicate infonnal proceedings and, thereby, 
lead to 'disruption of such administrative action and to increased delay in reaching 
final deciisions. 

Additi~\nally, this provision will interfere with necessary and legitimate negotiations 
and compromise in the regulatory sector. There is so much regulation of business 
in so marly details and on so many levels that you simply can't go to a full-fledged 
hearing on Clach controversy. The whole regulatory apparatus would bog down. There 
have to be settlements and compromises. It is hard enough now for the FDA, for 
example, to settle a ~ontroversy by compromise for fear they will be jumped on 
as not being tough enough. But if they are to be put in the position of being jumped 
on each time by a "coequal" federal agency-with unique power to attract publici
ty-tht1y will bc under pressure never to settle anything. (This would be a case where 
one agency would be more "coequal" than others.) 

I know this answer of mine is subject to being dislocated into a charge that business 
wants to get off easy by compromising on its problems. But it's not a matter of 
getting 01']' easy. Rather it is a fact of life that settlements and compromises are 
necessary'to keep the system working. (Without settlements of court litigation, the 
courts would probably have a lS-year backlog.) But how can you have sensible, agreed 
winding up of cases if an ACA is to be in there calling foul every time the supposed 
consumer side fails to come out with a 100 percent victory. 

Section 6(a)(1) provides that in participating, the Administrator shall comply with 
the agency statutes and rules of procedure governing timing and conduct. Presumably, 
if neither statute nor agency rules provide for patticipation by third parties, which 
is nonnally the ca.~e with regard to infonnal agency activity. the Administrator will 
not be able to participate. Moreover, under Section 12, a federal agency need only 
notify the Administrator of acthnties-"at such time as public notice is given," or 
"on specific request" by the A~ministrator. Therefore, it appears likely that much 
of tile time the Administrator wil1 not learn of contemplated infonnal activity so 
as tQ participate. Indeed, it appeal:,s thai~ the drafters of this bi\1 did not really intend 
for the Agency for Consumer Adv\xacY,",,1.,.participate in most infonnal proceedings. 
The CEG believes that this point 1\lhouid be'",larified and that the ACA should not 
be pennitted to participate in such pf\Oceeding~'l) 
Respansibility would be Misplaced. tyl 

Final1y, the CEG believes that by creating a superagency to ensure that the interest 
of consumers is t~ken into considera~ion, Congress would remove that responsibility 
from where it tru1y belongs-with thle federal agencies. We recognize that Section 
\3(b) states that this bill does not rlelieve any federal agency of its responsibility 
to protect and promote the interests of consumers. However, where responsibilitY is 
official1y vested elsewhere, it will only be human nature for federal agency· 'personnel 
to take their own r,esponsibility a little le'Ss seriously. Moreover, it will only be human 
naturil for' a President to take less serio\lsly his responsibility. for appointing agency 

.. 
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heads who will carefully weigh the consumer interest in arriving at conclusions respect
ing the public interest. In short, this bill presents an invitation for buck-passing., 

This will not be an "Independent" Agency 
I frequently hear the argument that the ACA would be independent and free of 

industry pressure. I don't go along with the idea that when a government agency 
agrees with industry it has caved in to pressure but when it agrees with professional 
consumerists it has acted in the public interest. I don't think the ACA ''would be 
independent at all. It would come to each proceeding with a built-in bias and through 
its special potential for attracting publicity would impOSe the pressure of that bias 
on every step of that proceeding.' 

Agency rules ag!1inst ex parte' communications, govemment-wida rules ag2dnst conflict 
of interest, high ethical standards in selecting appointees, Congressional and 'media 
oversight, are the ways to keep agencies independent and objective. 

Conclusion 
CEG submits thut if a person is a poor driver, it won't solve the pl'oblem to give 

him a back seat driver. Ie a man is a poor family man and husband, he won't be 
cured by a nagging mother-in-law. The better approach to protecting the interests 
of consumers lies in alnendments, where needed, of the various enabling acts for 
the federal agencies in order to specify more precisely what those agencies must 

',do in order to regulate evenhandedly and satisfactorily. Thus, the better answer lies 
in seeking to improve the host agencies and in continued, but even more effective,' 
Congressional oversight, not in delegation of the basic oversight. function to a new, 
untried agency that would be subject to its own "growing pains" and temptations 
to empire building. 

We appreciate the opportunity to submit this statement and hope that the Committee 
will find it helpful in its; consideration of the closely related problems of constructive, 
meaningful protection for consumers and a fair opportunity for business to meet con
sumers' needs. 

STATEMENT OF CHARLeS 'fiTZMORRIS, PRESIDENT, CHAIN STORE SYSTEMS 

Mr. Chairman, my name is Charles Fitzmorris. I am .President of Chain Store Systems, 
a company supplying computer services and systems to domestic and foreign food 
chains. I am also President of the Aldi-Benner Food Chain, limited stock, economy 
stores Operating in several midwestern states. ' .. ' 

r am pleased to be with you today to advocate the joint consumerfbusiness interest 
in the bill being considered by this committee, a bill to establish a small agency 
which would remind other parts of government, not to forget the consumer's nceds 
when major decisions are made. . 

I know that some businessmen have an automatic negative reflex when government "" 
officials talk about proposals on behalf of the consumer. I remember the objections 
in my industry to unit pricing when it was first suggested by the Special Assistant 
to the President (or Consumer Affairs. Unit pricing helped the industry, consumers, 
and made money for people like mySelf who enjoy selling something that is ethically 
and economicaIly sOund. So I wouldn't be really suprised if there are some negative 
business attitudes towards the creation of a consumer advocate agency. .~ .. 

I know this is IIot another layer of government regulations-a "super agency" to 
make their lives miserable. I have taken the time to find ou.t that the proposed consumer 
agency isn't a regulator at all-that it wiIl have nO power to issue regulations, policies, 
licenses, etc. The bill isn't aimed at business deficiencies at all, but rather at the 
failure of regulators' decisions to adequately consider the consumer viewpoint. If con~ ., 
sumers have more confidence in these decisio!1S, this increase of .confidence is good 
for'the business environment. " 

I am pleased to see that this ACA with a budget of $15 million (or about 400 
positions) will be created largely through consolidation of existing positions around 
government, and that both Senate and House bills call for major Congressional evalua-
tions iis to what kind of job .the agency is doing after a trial period. ,'! 

I'm also glad to see that the Senate bill allows the ACA to ques\ion food marketing 
orders and other food pricing decisions .regarding their effect on conSlilmers. I hope " 
the final House biII does the same thing, because the food chain and !pe consumer 
have the same interest here. I also urge 'the committees of both HoUSes to allow 
the ACA to participate in labor negotiations of NLRB. Again, we in the food business 
sha're the consumer'.s. interests and the occasional presence of the consumer voice 
will have a healthy ~ffect upon the negotiations. It is after all the. consumer who 
alwa~~ pays the bilf when. management and labor,· are imprudent in tbeir negotiations. 

(\ 
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A small agency would, as the President's message suggests, have to set priorities and 
the number of rule making cases, hearings and other decisions it could speak up 
for consumers in will be very small. That's too bad because the more cases the 
ACA can look into the greater the sensitivity of government .regulators to consumer 
needs-and that's good for business. I don't want some regulator who doesn't even 
shop having sole responsibility over my stores. I want the ACA to tell that regulator 
that his regulations are supposed to help the consumer. 

Business should be especially interested in that part of the bill which is directed 
at business-the so called power of interrogatory which would allow the ACA to 
obtain data from business on issues substantially affecting the interests of consumers. 
I feel that the appeal rights and safeguards in the bill plus the clearance procedures 

rroposed by the President are sufficient to preclude unreasonable burdens on business. 
understand that small business is completely exempted from the ACA's ability to 

gather data for use in representing consumers before other agencies of Government. 
I believe this is wise. Naturally, information which is exempt from disclosure under 
the Freedom of Information Act should not be disclosed by the ACA. 

Let's look at the benefits of ACA to business. 
I have already mentioned the benefit to business derived from increased consumer 

confidence in Government.'s decisions. There are more immediate benefits. Most of 
the major problems facing consumer product and service industries today are joint 
business/consumer problems. I refer to such problems as: ( 1) Differing regulations 
of different states. (2) Differing state vs. Federal regulations. (3) The need to get 
Federal agencies to act more promptly on joint consumer/business problems. (4) The 
need to get Federal agencies to establish sound priorities and to stick to those priorities 
so business and consumers can make plans to deal with changed governmental policies. 
(5) Differing regulatory policies among Government agencies. . 

Let me give you a concrete example. Large food chains are installing front end 
scanners which read a label code and automatically COmpl!te the current price from 
the code, eliminating the stores need for readabla prices. Consumers may still feel 
this need and have asked states and cities to require the price to continue to appear 
on the label. There is no national policy here, and it is a problem. Consider new 
chains like mine which offer limited stock of goods, available at lower price and 
which cut costs by providing consumers with a list of all today's prices on the limited 
stock list so that they can compare prices to their heart's content. The consumer 
can take her small price list with her. It isn't necessary to repeat it on the item 
iti;elf. Yet according to some jurisdictions' laws our stores may also have to add 
to costs and consumer prices through a redundant pricing of the item. I favor the 
ACA because I need consistent consumer protection legislation that is based on cqmmon 
sense not on the peculiar prerogatives of a few jurisdictions, The ACA will have 
a mandate to advocate consumer interests on major consumer programs, and believe 
me this is one. I am here today to ask you to permit" indeed to mandate, ACA 
to enter the states and encourage uniformity of regulation before state and federal 
government-not just communicate information but encourage and fadUtate uniform 
regulations that will save the consumer's dollar. ,If the truth were known business 
needs ACA more than consumers. We need less regulation through more uniform 
regulation. ACA should be a force f~r uniformity calling for Federal and state regulators 
to get their act together. 

I support ACA because I see in it some hope for uniformity. 
Thank you. 

STATEMENT OF MELINDA HALPERT, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, NATIONAL CITIZENS 
COMMUNICATIONS LOBBY 

The National CitiZens Communications Lobby (NCCL), a membership organization 
devotrud to broadcast reform, is in general support of S. 1262, a bill to establish I 
an Agency for Consumer Advocacy (ACA), but we are ,seriously distrubed by one 
of the bill's exemptions. 

S. 1262 differs ftom the House bill (H.R. 6118) on one key point that is crucial 
to citizens concerned with improving the media. The Senate bill expressly prohibits 
the ACA from partiCipating in broadcast license renewal proceedings before the Federal 
Communications Commission, while the House bill does not. 

We hope that this subcommittee eliminates this unnecessary and detrimental restric-
tion. ' 

We recognize that some legislators have "difficlilty in determining the appropriatenf;';ss 
of the intervention of the (ACA) in broadcast license renewal proceedings . . .'" 
as noted in the 1975 House'Report. Tney fear that the ACP would ,become mired 
down in rnyriactlicense challenges in whichseemil1g!y §m!M! l1um~!'S of consumers 
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would be affected. The House Report further states that "although such licen~ renewal 
proceedings were not specifically exempted in the bill ..• (t)ime, energy, and expertise 
of the (ACA) should be devoted to matters having a more wide~pread impact." 

We cannot think of any proceedings that have a more "widespread impact" than 
that of broadcast license renewals. 

The citizen movement in broadcast reform was sl?arked by a license challenge in 
the famed 1966 WLBT case in Jackson, MississippI. The ramifications of this case 
go well beyond the correction of racist programing in a small Southern community. 
What is significant about· this case is that it established the very notion of standing 
for citizen participation in -rCC proceedings. 

Just .as every court case enhances and adds to the established body of law, so, 
too, does each license renewal proceedings set a precedent for our entire communica
tions system. License renewal proceedings have not only clarified industry-wide pro
graming standards and equal opportunity employment practices, but also have opened 
the way to meaningful dialogues between citizen groups and broadcasters. 

Fears of license challenges leading to instability in the broadcast industry have always 
been greatly exaggerated by broadcasters who seek to protect their lucrative interests. 
Well over 99% of all licenses are renewed I . 

We would neither urge nor expect the ACP to become enmeshed in every license 
renewal. That would be an unlikely occurrence, since the ACA will exercise full discre- . 
tion in deciding. which cases to pursue. aut the ACA should, at the very least, have 
the opdon of intervening in those few license challenges it feels to be particularly 
significant. -- , ' 

We fervently Mpe that"the final version of the bill will reflect the House's good 
$ense in not hamstringin:;cthis agency before it even exists • 

. STATEMENT OF ODESSA KOMER, VICE PRESIDF.NT AND DJRECTOR OF THE. CONSUMER 
• AFPAi!Ii.S DEPARTMENT, UNITED AUTOMOBILE, AER~'sPACE &. AGRICULTURAL 

IMPLIlMENT WORKERS OF AMERICA-UAW' ' 

The International Ullion, United Automobile, Aerospace and Agricultural Implement 
Workers of America (UAW) with its 1.4 million active members, has vigorously and 
consistently supported the creation of a federal consumer advocacy agency ever since, 
the issue was first raised many years ago by the late Senator Phillip A. Hart of 
Michigan. 

~t is, in fact,difficult to believe that WE: &till dQ not ha.ve an-agency to advocate 
consumer interests so long after the obvious need for and the importance of such 
an agency had been demonstrated over and over again. 

There is an adage that nothing worthwhile is ever easy. If th.e effort ne~ded to 
create it were a measure of its w0r:th, the agency by now is practicalW invaluable: 

For consumers, of course) an independent consumer interest advocacy agency at 
the federal level was invaluable from the start. There Wa3 really ne:l/er much doubt 
that consumer need~ would have been taken into account more' completely and 
adequately if such '.an ag~ncy had been around to advocate consumer interests at 
the federal level. The- TIlore effective and efficient implementation of ~<;Insumer.:protec
tion laws would have Peen the undoubted result of that consumer interest. advocacy. 

Business, after all, !,Ptonds untold millions of dollars every year advocating, its interests 
at the federal level. They assuredly do not expend this kind of money and other 
n:sovJl<.tl.s if the ,e,ffort Was'\~9rthless or pointless. 

UnKfnunalely, the advantages business derives from its advocacy are all too often 
'purchased at the consumer's expense. The: presence of effective consumer "advocacy 

could at least have assured that the benefits from or the costs of federal actions 
would have been niore equally balanced between the two sides than' when only one 
sid2 wall a I'art of the action. .' 

The time that has elapsed since the proposal to create the consult:\er advocacy 
agency was advanccrl, has already cdst AmericlUl consumers dearly in actual lives 
and dollars lost to marketplace practices which eQuid have been curbed or eliminated 
by the more forceful or effective actions federal agencies would uJ)doubtedly have 
been induced'or compelled to take by such aD. advocate. 

We are therefore, very hopeful that no more time be lost and that thf.l agency 
wiII sh()iiIy become a reality ra~erthan just a consumer dream. ii 

We are, of course, very encouraged by the fact that some of the major obstacles 
to success have been cleared away and that your committee has seen fit to act on 
this !egislation so promptly. 

Since this issue has been debated for so lopg, it is practically impossible to say 
anyt!hing II,boutit which has nO~aIrea4Y been. repeated countless times .. The ~~I" 
has been examined under a ml"roscope. It IS a product of compromIse whIch !)as 
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fine tuned the Senate and H"ouse bills to the point that only a few adjustments need 
to be made between the two versions. 

In fact, We;.fcel very strongly that the bill the committee is now considering has 
been stripped -down to the minimum necessary to enable the agency to live up to 
its name as a consumer advocate. Any further limitations on its authority or functions 
would turn it into just another of those mirages that undermine public confidence 
in government. 

The proposal riow before the committee is a reasoned and reasonable one which 
will allow the agency to do the minimum necessary to get the job done. 

Since this issue has been debated for so long, we see little point in commenting 
pn or reviewing each of the improtant provisions contained in the bill. 

However, we do wish to re-emphasize the significance of a couple of especially 
improtant provisions and to show why these are especially vital for the effective opera
tion of the agency 

AGENCY INDEPENDENCE AND ADMINISTRATOR QUALIFICATIONS 

It is imperative. that the agency be independent; that the administrator appointed 
to head it be required to have the qualities which demonstrate that he or she is 
likely to be a forceful consumer advocate; and that the administrator be sufficiently 
insulated from political pressures in this sensitive position by permitting his or her 
removal only for not doing the job. 

No. other arrangement can work and still result in effective consumer advocacy. 
We can just imagine how effectively the rights of our members would be protected 

under a collective bargaining agreement if the failure by management to comply with 
it were policed solely by a labor advocate appointed by management. 

Yet that is almost precisely the type of solution some have proposed as an alternative 
to an independent consumer protection agency. This seemingly reasonable alternative 
amounted to having each federal department or agency head appoint a consumer 
advocate who was expected to hold his or her superior accountable when the depart
ment or age1Jcy failed to take sufficient account of consumer interests, inclUding taking 
the superior to court. 

It should not possibly take anyone very long to figure out why such a scheme 
could not possibly work, and why the agency must be independent and headed by 
an especially qualified person if consumer interests are to be effectively advocated. 

INTERVENTION AND PARTICIPATION IN, AND JUDICIAL REVIEW OF, AGENCY PROCEEDINGS 

The statutory right to intervene and participate in agency proceedings is, of course, 
the essence of the bill. There is simply no way that isolated consumers could participate 
in these proceedings individually, or even do it collectively on a consistent and continu
ous basis. The effort and resources required to do the job on the thousands of issues 
which come up'lmnually are simply not available. 

This inability to participate in these proceedings can be, and has been very costly 
to consumers. 

One excellent example of this cost is the so-called "double dip" provision in the 
old FEO oil regulations which the House Small Business Subcommittee on Regulatory 
Activities unearthed in 1974. The provision designated the methods oil companies 
were to calculate crude oil costs which could be passed on to their customers. Some 
companies interpreted the regulation to mean that they could include the cost of 
crude oil they had sold to other refiners under the crude oil allocation program in 
the cost of raw materials they used for their own production. . 

According to testimony before the House Small Business Sub-CQmmittee on Regulato
ry Reform, consumers had been double billed for $40 million as of October, 1974. 

The FEO quickly eliminated this provision (in fact, claiming the regulation never 
allowed for the practice) wq.;:n the spotlight was turned on it. 

Ail. effective a.gency could have monitored the complicated regulations the FEO 
turned out and intervened right at the beginning to prevent this massive double billing. 

The right to seek judicial review of agency action!; is vital, and in fact necessary, 
for the effective implementation of the intervention and participation provisions. An 
'agency will give the consumer advocate's recommendations the full weight they deserve 
only when it knows that it can be taken to court when it fails tp do so. Consequently, 
the mere ability to seek judicial review is likely to reduce the need to use it. 

INFORMATION GATHERING 

It is vitally important that the agency be able to gafiler the information and data 
it will need to make sound decisions, 
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The authority to obtain information from business by the use of interrogatories, 
to conduct testing and to have available the processes granted to regulatory agencies 
during interventions are the minimum necessary if the agency is to obtain the informa
tion required to act wisely and responsibly. 

The addition of PBB into the food chain which occurred in Michigan more than 
three years ago is an excellent example of how these powers would have enabled 
the agency to get the factS about the problem. It wouJd then have been in a position 
to minimize the catastrophe which has now developed. ' 

The fact is that in this case the agencies which might have· done something sat 
around for far too long instead of getting the information needed to determine the 
extent of the problem. Moreover, it now appears that the testing initially performed 
to evaluate the PBB danger was done more a:> a means to allay fears than 'to assess 
the potential dangers. 

The agency could have insisted on having the proper tests performed and obtained 
information from the chemical firms about the extent of the food pollution which 
occurred. Prompt action, instead of the initial bureaucratic whitewashing which took 
place, would very likely have minimized the problem which now exists. 

Instead, consumer confidence in food has been shaken to the point that some packers 
, Ie refusing to buy any Michigan meat products, and are openly saying so in an 
,,,,ffort to rebuild consumer confidence in the products they sell. 

EVALUATION OF AGENCY PERFORMANCE 

The ACA's obligation to evaluate the effectiveness of other agencies, and its own 
advocacy before these agencies is an important part of regulatory reform. 

The ACA's activities would expose those agency I'tocedures and actions which were 
lin responsive or inadequate, and thus point the way to reform. Injecting effective ad
vocacy into the regulatory process would, by itself, revitalize and reform it by transform
ing it into an effective adversary proceeding. 

Finally, contemplated regulatory reform will be adequate only if they are based 
on unbiased and comprehensive evaluations of an agency's performance and limitations 
and of the proposed alternatives. 

The ACA could perform the vital job of providing that unbiased and comprehensive 
evaluation, without which any proposed reform cannot possibly be effectively judged. 

It is simply too much to expect that the candidate for reform, or the industries 
it regulates, will furnish the unbiased hlformation needed to implement effective reforms 
which also protect vital consumer interests. . 

ADEQ6;"TE BUDGET 

The. agency must have adequate b4dget to carry out tl:1e responsibilities the act 
Gonfers upon it. 

The proposed budget authorizations grant the agency the· minimum it would require 
to do the job it has been assigned. 

It is really a very small price thai; consumers would pay for the substantial and 
tangible benefits which they will receive. After all, the proposed budget amounts to 
only.25 cents per tax paying family. It is also only 1/60th of me budge~ of the 
Pe,partment of Commerce. 

If that Department can be funded at that level and charged with the duty to "fosier, 
promote and develop commerce and industry", we can certainly devote the much 
smaller amount to an agency which would represent and advocate, consumer interests. 

As we have already noted, the provisions we 'Outlined above, as well as the others 
which are now incorporated in both the House and Se.nate versions, are absolutely 
essential if we are to have an effective agency. 

Not only are all theesse.ntial ingredients incorporated in both vetsions,butthere 
appears to be only relatively minor difference between them. In fact, the differences 
appear to be so small that ,we are convinced these cart. be resolved witb.!?ut difficulty 
and without impairing the agency's potential effectiveness., ',I, 

While we again wish'<lQ avoid, going into details about the.se ulfferencesi-"'Ne',do 
want to urge that the following differences be resolved as suggested below: 

CONFI,ICT OF INTEREST PROVISION 

While both versions ,address the conflict of interest problems of agency employees 
durin,g . their en:tJ:!I,?,nuent, t.be Houae version also places some limitations on certain 
professlfJnal activ\tjes followmg employment. 

The House version (Sec; 3(d» more adequately addresses this problem lllld WOuld 
mil'limize the revolving door shuffling of policy-making persolmel between government 

\ 
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and business which has undoubtedly undermined the impartiality of the regulatory 
process. 

FUNCTIONS Of THE AGENCY 

The Senate version (Sec. 5) includes a more complete and comprehensive description 
of the agency's functions than the House version. Although the agency might not 
be precluded from engaging in the activities mentioned in the Senate, but not the 
House version: the inclusion of the items listed in the Senate bill would eliminate 
any possible uncertainties. 

CONSUMER COMPLAINTS 

The provIsIon in the House version pertaining to complaints is unfortunately too 
limiting (Sec. 7). This provision apparently authorizes various actions only with respect 
to complaints which involve probable violations of law or federal court orders. The 
Senate version, on the other hand, would clearly enable the agency to act on complaints 
involving trade practices which were detrimental to consumer interests but not necessari
ly violations of law. The broader S~.nate version would clearly give the agency the 
authority to deal with complaints it will undoubtedly receive concerning such matters. 

INFORMATION GATIiERING 

The sltlall business exemption contained in the House version is more reasonable 
(Sec. lO(d)). The $2.5 million net worth test contained in the Senate version is 
likely to be much too limiting. For example, the Dun and Bradstreet Million Dollar 
Directory, listing firms with net worths of over $1,000,000, states that firms of this 
size represent about 1 percent of all U.S. firms, or about 42,000 out of 4.2 million 
firms. 

The House exemption would clearly ensure that only sizeable firms likely to have 
a considerable impact on the marketplace are going to be covered by this provision 
without the exemption being so large that too many will be excluded. 

There are, of course, additional differences which will have to be resolved. However, 
we are sure that these are more a matter of language than substance, and that they 
can be resolved without limiting the overall objectives incorporated in both bills. 

We, therefore, urge that the Committee and Congress act quickly to make this 
agency a reality for American consumers. 

Although we have strongly urged for some time that the ACA be created, we 
want to make sure that our support for it is not interpreted as meaning that we 
believe it is an alternative to or substitute for the citizen participation in government 
bills (H.R. 6221 and S. 270). 

The fact is that both are vital if consumer interests are to be adequately represented. 
The ACA's limited budget will never allow it to intervene effectively in all issues 
affecting consumers. Moreover, in some cases, direct participation by consumers can 
bring out more information about an issue than if the advocacy were left solely to 
one agency. 

However, the ACA is the only vehicle through which the necessary expertise and 
infornlation can be obtained to make effective advocacy possible on the major and 
technically complicated issues which arise, and which individual consumers could never 
be able to tackle individually or through consumer organizations. 

We therefore urge the speedy enactment of not only the bills to create the ACA, 
but the bills to fund public participation in government. 

STATEMENT OF JOHN W. SCOTT, MASTER OF TIlE NATIONAL GRANGE 

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee, The Naticnal Grange, the nation's 
oldest and second largest farm organization, is opposed to legislation that would 
establish, as a part of the executive branch of government, an agency for consumer 
~\dvocacy. 

The Grange is more than a farm organization. It has a heterologous member
ship-farmers, ranchers, rural and urban residents ;tre represented in our half-million 
members located in 41 states and nearly 7,000 local communities. We not only have 
a basic, inherent interest in agriculture as it is represented by the family farmer, 
but also are keenly aware of the family farmer's contribution and responsibility to 
his community. 

One of the purposes of the Grange is to serve the total interest of its diversified 
membership. Thus, policies and programs of the Grange encompass a broad array 
of circumstances affecting the lives of rural and suburban Americans; they result from 
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member action generated by total community and national inter~st-not by agriculturat, 
interest alone. ' " . 

The delegate body of the National Grange adopted the folloi'Ying resolution at its 
I09th Annual Meeting held in November of 1975:_. " 

AGENCY FOR CONsuMER PROTECTIOl'~. 
. \ 

"RESOLVED, that the National Grange oppose the:'~reatt,i'i of t.lte Agency fo~' 
Consumer Protection in the federal government; and be it furth~'r 

"RESOLVED, that the National Grange take immediate action to express its con-
tinued opposition." . . ,.' 

It ia because of the action taken by the delegates, on be~alf of OUl; one-hil.lf million 
members, that the Gr~nge is opposed to an "agency for' consumer protection", or 
"consumel' protection . ,agency" or "agency for consumer advocacy". Any way you 
phrase it, it spel\si.trouble'to government, business and consumers. 

The "agency" Was initially-and still is-the dream vehicle by which a few self
appointed, Washington-based guardians of the public will try to direct the government 
towards their Viel\!' of What's best for the American consumer. Control will be indirect 
through litigation, subpP""';;';'vaperwork and delay;' .., '·,\t' 

The CPA is an ideawI10se time has come and gone. Since its proposal eig\1t\years 
ago, there have been sweeping changes in government-including',the change lt~, Ad
l1!inistr~tions-which render ~\l~ Cp f\ concept wholly. irrelevant, Rbsoletfl, and in \~ct 
dIsruptIve of the current AdmInIstration's goals.' . .0'" 

There has been, for example, a revolutiol(1 in consumer protection Il3gislation art'q 
reorganization-including the establishment 'of the 'CPSC, FEA, OSHA. unc:\ EPA: ~ 
passage of the Magnuson-Moss FTC Improveme~ts Act, the Hart-ScQtt Antitrust Im- • 
provement~ Act, the Toxic Substances Corftrol Act, the Me!!ical Dllvicf;S Amendments 
of 1~76, the "Government in the Sunshine".,Act, the Freedom o£',Information Act 
Am.t .In~nts and countle~ other c<?'tsUltle;r'-pwtectiol1 bill~. Moreover, the .Pe.t~rson 
CommIssion recommendatIons for hlgn~!:,government salane~ and an effe9ti'''¢ c~de 
of ethics are going into effect., Oversight committees of the House an.d,,'tlie- Senate 
have concluded studies with recommendations to improve cOQflict roles

j
an.d"l:he appoint-

ment process. , " ~.; .. 
The doctrine that agencieS are dominated by the industries they arestlpposed to 

regulate derives from perceived conflicts-oC-interest, lack of complete disJcosure. of e' 
reulatory contacts 'With industry, appointment of persons partial to industry and' the 
"revolving-door" syndrome. ' , . 

It obviously makes more sense. to attack these problems directly than to create 
a new bureaucracy that is no more immune from "capture" than any, other bureaucracy. 
The President and Congress are already taldbg the direct actions necessary-financial 
disclosure, open. decision·making, effective conflict~f-illtel'est rules (including termina
tion of the "revolving door"), higher salaries to attract and retJ;Un personnel and 
more consumer-oriented appointments (such as Joan Claybrook at NHTSA, Mike 
Pertschuk at FTC and Carol Foreman .at USDA. 

We find it difficult to understand why II President who was elected in part ort 
a promise of morerespol1sive, efficient and, open .government, and has, moved .rapidly 
to implement that promise,now finds it nece~ry'to endm'se and .have introduced 
a consumer protection bill. The Administration's ACA con~umer package is as confusing 
and bewildering as the complexity of government bureaucracy itself. Indeed, the Ad~ 
ministration's lack of any deady-defined role fQr the ACA,underscores the fundamental 
weakness of .the premise of the ACA-namely that the problems of the bureauoracy 
can. be cur~,a by creating more' bureaucracy. The fact that the Administration would 
retain the Office of Consumer Affairs in the White House and most of the consuIller 
functions of agencies in the present departments of government is clear indication 
that the A'dministra;ion is not sure of the purpose of the new agency or of its ch;mcel. 
of success. 

The National Grange wishes to expre,ss Its conCern over certain' features of the 
bills now being considen::d by the committee. We are firmly ,c.onvinced that these' 
bills go too far and that such legislation would disrupt the ordedy process of administra
tion' of federal laws, result in damaging delays in necessary government regul3tion 
and, on balance, harm rather, than help consumer intei'b13ts. .Whenever lheconsumer 
protection agency so createQ'.Zwhatever its name) decided that a consumer interest 
WIIS· involved in any activity of any other federal agency or department,. it would 
be empowered to intervene on behalf of consumers as an adversary with full powers 
to subpoena witnesses and evidence and, most important, to appeal to' the courts' 
any action taken, with almost no statutory limitation or restriction. 

<1\ 
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In an effort to im'frove consumer representation and' perhaps to correct shortcomings 
in the operations o' some agencies, the bills would create a new level of bureaucracy 
in the federal government instead of setting out to improve consideration of consumer 
interests within the existing framework. Taking into consideration past activities of 
consumer activist groups in the nation and the current climate of challenge of almost 
every government actIon, we fear that the proposed agency would use its powers 
to the utmost and create havoc in established federal procedures. Delay and additional 
cost to the government and interested parties would be considerable. 

While it is our understanding that the proposed legislation would affect the powers 
of about thirty-five major federal agencies and well over a thousand proceedings and 
activities, we are primarily concerned about the impact on the long-standing and 
well-settled activities of the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA). USDA 
alone has about 75 types of formal proceedings and twice that number of informal 
activities in which the new consumer protection agency could intervene. We understand 
that these include such wide-ranging activities as marketing agreements; regulation 
of packers and. stockyards and the marketing of fresh fruits and vegetables; food 
standards, inspection, grading and labeling; plant patent proceedings; seed standards; 
issuance of licenses to warehousemen and others; conservation programs; price support 
and adjustment programs; Commodity Credit Corporation activities genei'a1ly; feeding 
programs; quarantines; agricllitural chemicals; export programs; rural assistance pro
grams; and Forest Service programs. The list could be extended and many other activi
ties of indirect concern to farmers could be added. 

USDA has operated effectively under its regulatory role for two-thirds of a century. 
There is no reason to disturb the role it has performed and inject an "eager beaver" 
into the situation. 

We urge the defeat of the proposed legislation to establish a consumer agency. 
Please make this statement a part of the hearing record on this legislation. Thank 

you. 

STATEMENT OF NANCY HARVEY STEORTS, PRESIDENT, NANCY HARVEY STEORTS, 
ASSOCIATES 

Mr. Chairman and. Members of the Committee: I am Nancy Harvey Steorts, formerly 
Special Assistant to the Secretary of Agriculture for Consumer Affairs, and now Pre
sident of Nancy Harvey Steorts, Associates, Specialists in'.,Consumer Affairs . 

. The consumer today wants to be heard and wants to be a part of the decision 
making process. No longer will today's consumers sit back and allow government 
and industry to formulate policies and programs which will affect.. their increasingly 
changing life styles without consumer input. 

Consumers today are putting quality and value at the top of their buying decisions. 
They are listening and reacting and they are insistent on being heard at the highest 
levels of both government and industry. 

There has been a great deal of discussion and proposed legislation over the last 
few years as to which was the best way to have consumer interests r!lpresented. 

Some felt that consumers were already being represented fairly in government, others 
felt that individual consumer offices within the Executive Branch would assist the 
consumer in being heard, whereaS others felt the only way for the consumer:to be 
truly represented was to have an independent agency which would serve as a focal 
point and overseer for consumer interests in the government decision making process. 

Having served as Special Assistant to the Secretary of Agriculture for Consumer 
Affairs, I would like to address this question from my perspective of having served 
in that position for almost four years. 

The independent agency which will represent the consumers' interests, I feel, is 
most important today, as I feel this will Serve as the focal point in government to 
bring together and focus on the various issues which are. important to and will have 
impact on the consumer. It can ·serve as a catalyst, .if you will, at the earliest stages 
to look at all sides of the issue. It can bring together producers, manufacturers, retailers 
and consumers to look at the alternatives before an issue becomes a crisis. It can 
request new studies and reSearch so that the best scientific data can be made available, 
it can .bring together the apprbpriate government offices within agencies that m/i!.Y 
have expertise in a specific field so as to avoid later duplication and overlap of 
responsibilities. It can tap into the states and local jurisdictions for additional informa
tion and expertise. It can . interpret for the grass roots consumer in lay language what 
the major facts are about the issues, so that they can make their facts heard on 
the issue. It can also intervene and 'review government decisions if they have not 
adequately heard the viewpoint of the consumer. 
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Producers and industry officials should welcome this new' 'pmposed agency as an 
opportunity to work more closely with the consumer and the government. Most industry 
officials want to do what is best for the consumer-otherwisG- why would they be 
in business! I believe industry officials, when- they understand what this agency can 
be, should welcome it as a tool that will help them be more effective and responsive 
to their customers. 

Not everything has to end up in court with Iitigation-only that which has not 
had full public involvement should end up in court. • 

If government is to be responsive, then all interests should have an opportunity 
to be heard. Once all interests have an opportunity to have input. then the decision 
makers must make a decision which is in the public's interest. Not always is the (( 
consumers' interest going to come out on top. The important concept is th.at the 
consumers' interest be heard right along with all the other special in't'erests. That 
is what consumer input into the decision making process is all about. 

AGRICUL TUR,E EXEMPTIONS , - , 

There has been a great deal of disc~Ssion as to what should\~lor should notb;' 
exempted from this bill. ' I--

It is not in the best interest of the consumer, the producer or a~\riculturaI industry 
to have agricultural exemptio\.is. Agriculture and food policy is of paramount importance 
to the consumer. No decision that relates to market prices, price supports or payments 
for raw agricultural commodities should be made without full consumer involvement 
in the issue. Supply and pricing decisions are some orthe most important decisions 
made in agriculture. There is no reason to have agriculture programs exempted from 
this Act. The same procedures should be in effect for the agriCUlture producer as 
for the oil, steel and aUto manufacturer. I urge you to delete the proposed agriculture 
exemptions from the bill before it is enact.ed; 

It is much better to have consumer involvement in these agricultural issues at the 
early stages of the decision making process than to have the consumer excluded and 
then have them react after the fact. The Secretary of Agriculture should have the 
benefit of consumer input in all major decisions that will impact the consumer, not 
just a few. 

The Agency for Consumer Protection, as I see it, will be involved with the major 
issues that have an impact on consumers.- It should be small, with well qualified, 
nonpartisan individuals who will represent the consumer view point, and it sholild 
focus on carefully selected, major priorities. 

OMBUDSPERSON WITHIN EACH DEPARTMENT 

In addition to the independent agency. it is extremely important that there be within 
each Executive Department and 'regulatory Agency an Office of Consumer Affairs 
or an ombudsperson to represent within the Department the concerns and viewpoint 
of the consumer. This is essential, as each Department needs to have at this stage 
a focal point for the consumers' interests. c< " 

Having served as the first Special Assistant to the Secretary of Agriculture for Con
sumer Affairs, I know how important that function was .. This office 'Should report 
directly to the Secretary of,the Department or to the Administrator of the Agency 
and should have as its functions the representatio'l of the consumer viewvoint and. 
the coordination of the consumer activities within the Department. It is extremely 
important that consumers have one central source, within each Agency that they can 
go to. This office is the key. contact for cpns\lmers regarding new proposals, procedUres, 

,and issues that may have an impact on them. This office should work closely with 
all the officials with the Department to be sure the consumer is being heard and 
is being involved in the decision making process. The ombudsperson should serve 
as th~ spokesperson and advocate for the consumer viewpoint both within and outsicle 
the Department. The ombudsman should work very closely with the Agency for Con~ 
sumer Protection and should establish a good working relationship with all the a"" 
propriate officials within the Agency for Consumer Protection as well as within the. 
individual Department. Respect and rapport is built up when you are within a· Depart
ment, however. it is essential that in addition to the inside llffice the~ be the back
up and assistance from an independent agency as the independent agency will have 
the power. to intervene legally if the' consumers' interests are not being adeqUately 
represented; 

TODAY AT USDA 

Today at USDA. there is no separate Office of Consumer Affairs or ombudsperson 
for the, consumer. It was the decision of Secretary Bergland to abolish 'the Office 
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of Special Assistant to the Secretary of Agriculture for Consumer Affairs when I 
left on February 4. Today there is no central coordinator whose full-time responsibility 
is to see that the consumer viewpoint is being heard throughout all agencies of the 
Department. There is no one that the consumer can tum to when the price supports 
are raised with no input from consumers. There is no one to handle and coordmate 
the hundreds of consumer complaints and phone calls that come in ea.ch week. There 
is no one to arrange. briefings, conferences, seminars, and ad-hoc meetings for consumer 
leaders. There is no one to testify or speak for the consumers' viewpoint in agriculture 
policy. In other words, there is a real void today at the U.S. Department of Agriculture 
for the consumer. 

Carol Foreman, formerly Executive Director of Consumers Federation of America, 
who is now Assistant Secretary for Food and Consumer Services, is a welcome addition 
at USDA. In this position she cannot be expected or should she be an advocate 
for the consumer position. Many areas of concern·to consumers are not under het 
jurisdiction such as marketing orders, export policies, research programs, support pro
grams, extension education priorities, to name a few. 

SUPPORT AGENCY FOR CONSUMER PROTECTION WITH SEPARATE OMBUDSPERSON IN EACH 
DEPARTMENT AND AGENCY 

A foundation for consumer involvement at USDA has been laid, but the frame 
is still to be built. Consumer involvement within a major Department such as Agriculture 
is slow and tedious, but possible. Thus, it is.essential that, along with the independent 
Agency for Consumer Protection, the Congress direct the head of each Executive 
Department and Regulatory Agency to establish an Office of Ombudsperson and that 
these offices be adequately staffed and budgeted to be an effective spokesperson and 
advocate for the consumer within the Department. This will not duplicate the efforts 
of the Agency for Consumer Protection but it will enhance it. This, I feel, will be 
the most effective way to represent the consumer viewpoint in the governmental deci
sion making process. 

STATEMENT OF WILLIAM H. TANKERSLEY, PRESIDENT, COUNCIL OF BETlEFt BUSINESS 
BUREAUS, INC. 

Mr. Chairman, I am William H. Tankersley. President of the Council of Better 
Business Bureaus, Inc. I appreciate this opportunity to submit for your consideration 
comments relating to the proposed Consumer Protection' Act of 1977. 

These views are expressed on behalf of the Council of Better Business Bureaus, 
the national organization for the Better Business Bureau system consisting of 143 
Better Business Burea\.!s and satellites in 41 states and the District of Columbia. Our 
statement is presented with the approval· of the Council's Executive Committee. 

For 65 years, the Better Business Bureaus have been the prime organization to 
which consumers tum when they have problems in the marketplace. Independent polls 
have reflected that more than half of the American people would turn first to the 
Better· Business Bureau if they could not resolve their marketplace problem with busi

·ness. More than half of the people surveyed by Roper Reports stated that they would 
"most likely get satisfaction" from the Better Business Bureau if they were to take 
their problem to it. According to Roper Reports, the better Business Bureau 
"overshadowed all other places or people to whom to tum for help." 

The Consumer Protection Act of 1977 focuses on two important areas: one relates 
to the representation of the consumer within the federal establishment; the. other relates 
to issues involving business and its customers in the marketplace. 

Representing the Consumer in the Federal Government 
To date, most attention relating to. thi~; proposed legislation has been directed to 

the Agency for Consumer Advocacy roll or representing the consumer before federal 
agencies and courts. Because this issue involves the internal oversight functions of 
the Federal Government,. itself, we deem it inappropriate to take a position on any 
section of the proposed Act which relates to this issue. 

The legislative, executive and judicial branches of government all have. oversight 
functions which are parallel to the activities contemplated for the proposed Agency 
for Consumer Protection in representing consumers within the federal establishment. 
However, if Congress deems a new agency essential to create a consciousness of 
public obligation within government, we express only the hope that any such Agency 
would seek to achieve this objective within the existing Federal establishment, rather 
than duplicating staffs and costs already commi.tted to these functions. 

.0 
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We note with approval the language in the proposed Senate version, calling for 
an evaluation of the proposed Agency by the Comptroller General; and we note with 
similar approval the automatic termination on "sunset" provision in the House version. 
BP111 are important, in our view, to assure continuing oversight of the proposed Agency. 

However, we urge that Congress consider the fact that, since this legislative proposal 
first came before Congress many years ago, the scope of the Federal Trade Commission 
powers has been significantly expanded, the Consumer Product Safety Commission 
has been crea~ed, special consumer offices and functions have been established in 
17 federal agencies, and substantial budgetary increases have. been made in' the interest 
of better servIce 'to the consumer. 

Finally, to the extent that the oversight function of the proposed Agency may be 
inttlrpreted as a criticism of those federal agencies conqerned with consumer protection, 
we ','ust note that in our many dealings with these agencies we have found them 
dediCated to the public interest and specifically cognizant of the consumer aspect 
of that interest ' 

Cost-Benefit Analysis 
An element in the proposed law that impels comment is the omission in the HouSe 

version of a requirement of cost-benefit analysis for taxpaying consumers, and we 
urge the Congress to take a hard look at the proposal in these terms. We wholeheartedly 
endorse the principle that, for all laws and regulations relating'to consumer-buSiness , 
issues, cost-benefit analyses be applied prior to their promulgation. The absence of 
formal recognition of this element in the House version, in our judgment, is an omission 
of vital importance ' 

Business-Consumer Issues in the Marketplace 
Our statement is ,primarily directed to those sections of the proposed law which 

relate to the Agency's powers to deal with business-consumer issues in the marketplace. 
Too' little attention has been directed to these provisions during Congressional debate, 
and this is one area where we have professional interest and expertise. As an organiza
tion, we stand for the same basic goal of protecting consumer interests in the market
plac,e; however, we must oppose the proposed powers of the Agency to deal with 
this objective. 

At the outset of tbls statement in opposition to these portions of the p~oposed 
Act, let me state that we do no~ hold out the Better Business Bureaus as the comp1ete 
answer for all consumer problems in the marketplace. However we believe that, the 
private sector, through individual company efforts, through industry associatiops and 
through the Better Business Bureaus, is doing an increasingly better job of re.~~lving 
consumer concerns. . \ >. 

Recent years have also seen increased activity and effectiveness at the federaJ,~nate 
and local levels of government, to accomplish the~ame goal, especially where violations 
of law are fo).ind. 

Our primary areas of concern with this meas~re relate to Sections 7 (Consumer 
Complaints), 8 (Consumer Information and Services), and 1(l (Information Gathe!ing) 
in both the Senate and House versions of the bill, and to Section 9 (Testing ,md 
Research) in the House version. 

CONSUMER COMPLAINTS 

The proposed Agency for Consumer Protection would have the power to deal with 
any consumer c,pmplaint regardless of its source and nature. SpecificaUy,the Agency 
would be empowered to receive any complaint "concerning actions or practices which 

,may be detrimental to the interests of consumers." The term "interests of Consumers" 
is further defined to include every aspect of the marketplace. 

Such an unlimited definition would establish a function of ma&;ive proportions for 
an Agency headquartered in Washington, D.C. Complaints would be received ranging 
from a minor scratch on an article of furniture that has been damaged during delivery 
to a multi-thousand-dollar housing complaint by a home oWner' against a contractor. 
If added frustrations are to be avoiped for the complaining consumer, the Agency 
must be prepared to handle each of these complaints in a fast, consistent and thorough 
manner. 

Judging (tom our experience, it would be extremely difficult and costly ,for a central
ized national office to undertake effectively the full Scope of complaint handling as 
required in Section 7. Of course, both versions of the bill would give the Administrator 
of the AgencyaLithority to establish as . many regional offices as ~ecessary; however, 
in our view, this would be an unnecessry and confusing addition to the many state 
and local authorities and private sector agencies already in existlln'Ce. 

;, .. ' 
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We perceive other problems for the A~ency in' conducting the complaint handling 
functions directed by the proposed legislatton,' Section 7 requires the Agency to notify 
producers, distributors and retailers of ". . • complaints of any significance concerning 
them. . . ." This requirement adds a significant burden to an already massive task. 
As we read this section, a controversy relating to service on an automobile by a 
gas station should be referred to (i) the auto manufacture." (ii) the auto dealer, 
(iii) the service station, and (iv) the parent oil company, on the ground' that all 
are or should be "concerned." Moreover, in the nicked furniture example cited on 
the preceding page, the law would require the same type of notification be given 
to the manufacturer and retailer. 

Finally, there is no direction to the Agency to avoid duplil::ation of contact. under 
this section and we can envision many situations where a retailer or manufacturer 
would receive mUltiple notifications of the same kind from various public and private 
agencies. Indeed, these requirements, taken together, would seem to encourage duplica
tion on the part of public agencies, and the total c.ost of handling complaints would 
be greater, thereby leading to the possible increase in the cost .of consumer products 
to the public 

But, Section 7 goes one step further by requiring all of:'these mUltiple notifications, 
together with Agency and busmess respDnses as well as every other document relating 
to a single case or a single company, to be maintained in a "public docullJent" room. 
It. is predictable that such a room would eventually grow to a size comparable to 
the Library of Congress with Ii vast accumulation of records, many of which would 
be .of little value to either the government or the public. 

Reports which have been accumulated by Better Business Bureaus on individual 
companies, and complaints about such companies; total in the millions even though 
our filing systems' are purged from time to time to permit the elimination of outdated 
reports and complaints. The costs to maintain a document room required by this 
Act would grow from yeai' to, year and very likely would Soon consume the entire 
authorized budget for such an Agency. 

In summary, the Agency is directed to deal with large numbers of compalints requiring 
mUltiple notifications and extensive storage, seemingly without any real study or 
knowledge of the extent of work actually required. 

Apart from the complaints which were handled satisfactorily on a direct basis by 
business itself, last year local Better Business Bureaus processed approximately 400,000 
written complaints and handled another half million on the telephone. If consumers 
were encouraged to send all of their complaints to the proposed Agency rather, than 
to exercise their 'own competence to deal directly with the business or already 
established mechanisms, the Agency would be inundated to the extent that it would 
be incapable of devoting its activities to the accomplishment of major projects. 

However, limiting the Agency's complaint handling functions to those involving viola
tions .of U.S. laws, federal rules and orders, Or federal court judgments, decrees and 
orders, and then only when other federal agencies are unwilling or unable to handle 
them, the Agency for Consumer Protection would be able to undertake those other 
functions which have been discussed mostufrequentiy in the debate by Members of 
Congress.'" 

It is our strong belief that there must be <t, delineation of the respective, roles for 
the government and the private sector in thl~: .,,~jmittedly important area of resolving 
consumer grievances. It is clear that governmi!;!!', .'lhould and must be capable of handling 
all clear violations of the law such as outright fraud in the marketplace. Also, govern
mental mechanisI;l:ls should exist for handling consumer grievances when the private 
sector refuses or is unable to resolve marketplace disputes voluntarily. But the private 
sector should be the first line of action and the means for prompt, fair and ,inexpensive 
resDlution of c.onsumer complaints. Only when this line .of acti.on has been exhausted 
should governmental. mechanisms be utilized. In short, government shouid'serve as 
the remedy of last resort, when parties are unable through the mechanisms .of the 
marketplace to ;resolve their differepces by agreement, mediation or arbitrati.on. 

1;oday the pri,vate sector is dev.oting a large .investment of time and money to provide 
an ./effective means for resolving customer complaints. Through individual corporate 
programs, collective industrywide endeavors, and the network of Better Business Bu
reaus, complaint.handling mechanisms are resolving with increasing efficiency, the 
product and service difficulties that are an inevitable result of an active marketplace 
involving millions of transactions each day. These privately supported actions demon
strate the rising determination of the private sector to improve the marketplace and 
to be increasingly responsive to the consumer. They also reflect the proper decision 
of the consumer to represent his own interests and to achieve appropriate recognition 
of those interests through his own efforts. The consumers' interest obviously is to 
be neither a ward of the state nor a captive of business. 

.. 
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The growing importanc(j of consumer pro~rams in the private sector is reflected 
by the increasing numbe'/.g of consumer affatrs offices in many major corporations. 
This in tum, has spa~ed a four-year old organization-The Society of Consumer 
Affairs Professionals in/Business (SOCAP), which was formed with the assistance of 
th<i Council of Better"Business ijiueaus. This organization of corporate executives, 
who are responsible for the hancUing of consumer affairs in ~eir respective husine~s. 
has more than, 700 members and a goal of further upgradmg the consumer affairs 
profession in the business commUnity. This organization promotes the establishment 
of meaningful;:onsumer affairs policies, the development and implementation of effec
tive internal COllS\lmer programs within individual' corporations and the exchange of 
proven techl1aques' for handling consumer grievances. 'the programs developed within 
corporations by this group of professionals ~re contributing significantly to the resolution 
of marketplace prDblems. 

In recent years, the Better Business Bureaus have demonstrated an increased capabili
ty for effecting final resolutions of consumer problems. Outstanding examples of these 
efforts are the National Consumer Arbitration Program and the National Advertising 
Review Program. 

Five :years ago the Council of Better Business Bureaus announced the beginning 
of a natIOnal program to arbitrate those consumer disputes which could not be resolved 
thrQ<,gh informal means. The program is under way and expanding. To date. more 
tllan'lOO Bureaus in major marketplaces throughout the country have arbitration pro
grams and other Bureaus are adopting this program to provide a final resolutio!l of 
complaints that might otherwise constitute a burden on t1:.J courts. 

One emphasis of these programs is to precommit business to arbitrate in any dispute 
which it and the Better Busil'f~ss Bureau are unable to Ttlsoive and to gtve the customer 
a choice of utilizing this ifee public service or tUrning to the small claims courts. 
To date, more than 23,000 businesses have precommitted to this process. 

Our experience has demonstrated that arbitration becomes an extremely popular 
alternative for resolving consumer grievances when the public is adequately educated. 

We are experiencing an expanding partnership with federal, state and local govern
mental bodies under this program. The Federal Trade Commis5ion hllS written Better 
Business Bureau arbitration into five consent orders; the Attorneys General in Ohio, 
Texas and Louisiana have done the same. Small claims courts in Washington, California 
and North Carolina have either referred or, directed consumer-business disputes to 
Bettel' Business Bureau arbitration. 

The National Advertising Division/National Advertising Review Board mechanism 
is designed to handle consumer complaints as well as advertising representations which 
give rise to such complaints. These grievances originate through the monitoring of 
advertising by our National Advertising Division or through complaints from consumers, 
consumer groups, government agencies or competitors. An investigation by NAD deter
mines whether a reasonable question exists with respect to the accuracy of an ad, 
and if so, it attempts to eliminate or correct tbe advertising through direct negotiations 
with the advertiser. Most cases are resolved through this procedure. If a satisfactory 
resolution is not achieved, the matter is brought before the National Advertising Review 
Board, cosponsored by the American Association of Advertising Agencies, the Associa
tion of National Advertisers, the American Advertising Federation, and the Council 
of Better Business Bureaus. A panel of distinguished individuals drawn from advertisers, 
advertising agencies and the public sector reviews the dispute and renders a decision 
as to whether or not the ad is false or deceptive. ' 

The effectiveness of this mechanism in, ~liminating advertising capable, of inducing 
consumer complaints is immeasurable. Commerce Secretary Juanita Kreps recently 
pointed to this program as an example of self-regulation by business. While the 
procedUre provides for prompt public reference to the appropriate 11i'w enforcement 
agency should" ,anyo advertiser not be willing to eliminate objectionable adyertising, 
to date with more than 1200 cases handled, no advertiser h,as forced us to take 
this action. 'This emphasizes the Better Business Bureau function of maintaining' ,all 
orderly and effective marketplace, and, as such, it must foster the interests equally 
of the consuming and business communities. 

Although this proposed legislation contains little or no recognition of,or reliance 
on, the considerable resources and efforts now being exerted by the private sector, 
it has been th~ announced policy of Congress to encourage the public use of private 
mechanisms. For example, in the Consumer Product Warranty-FfC Improvement Act.~ 
Section I 10 specifically authorizes the Writing of informal dispute settlement 
mechanisms into the actual warranty itself. The Conference report on that bill stat~., 
that it was the intention of Congress to encourage such mechanisms. Yet this proposed 
law purports to establish a federal agency to accomplish the same results with tax 
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dollars rather than private means. We hope that COligress will follow the direction 
established in the warranty law and adopt a legislative approach which encourages 
private eff9rts rather than one which seeks to duplicate or supplant them. 

Other 'Congressional Committees, 'lave addressed their activities to the question of 
resolving c\~J1sumer controversies in'the best possible way. In the last Session of Con
gress, the S~nate passed the "Consumer Controversies Resolution Act," a measure 
designed to strengthen state and local mechanisms for resolving consumer complaints. 
At the suggestion of the Council of Better Business Bureaus, that bill was amended 
to reflect involvement by the private sector. The same measure has now been introduced 
for consideration by both Houses of Congress in this Session. Surely it is not the 
intent of Congress to moVe in such a duplicative fashion on such an important issue 
at such great cost to the taxpaying consumer. 

CONSUMER INFORMATION AND SERVICE 

Another function of the Agency for Consumer Protection is the development, publica
tion and distribution of information and material designed to inform consumers of 
"matters of interest to them." While we applaud any activity which would increase 
consumer confidence in the marketplace, we would point out that today millions of 
dollars are already being spent for this very purpose. 

Public school~, colleges, universities, companies, industries, associations, consumer 
advocates and groups, and innumerable other organizations, including governmental 
agencies at the federal, state and local levels, are conducting consumer information 
programs. 

In addition t6 the educational and informational activities being undertaken by the 
organizations listed above, the Better Business Bureaus have substantial programs aimed 
at preventing disputes from arising in the first instance. Examples include informational 
efforts to tell consumers how to be more effective in the marketplace both in terms 
of wise buying decisions and the avoidance of deception. With the cooperation of 
ail of the major networks, the public service radio announcements developed by the 
Council of Better Business Bureaus are aired on a regular basis over approximately 
4,000 radio stations across the nation. 

Nor have we overlooked America's children. A television series of "Junior Consumer 
Tips, h designed to inform children about good nutritional habits, saving and spending 
money wisely, etc., has been developed and is exposed to more than six million young
sters each week. "Tips for Consumers," a weekly newspaper column, is now provided 
by the Council of Better Business Bureaus at no charge to more than 600 newspapers 
with a combined circulation of over nine million. 

These efforts by the Better Busine~s Bureaus are part of a national effort by many 
public and private agencies to accomplish similar goals. If federal legislation were 
going to be meaningful in this area it might establish a program to coordinate these 
already duplicative activities in such a way that the private and public sectors can 
make current expenditures more productive, rather than spending more at a time 
when costs of government are becoming a topic of intense public concern. 

TESTING AND RESEARCH 

In the House version, this proposed law specifically directs the Agency for Consumer 
Advocacy to support the testing of consumer products. Again, we have difficulty un
derstanding why the Congress would direct the spending of additional monies in an 
area where millions are already being spent by the public and private sectors. For 
example, in the all-important areas offood purity, product safety, and product standards, 
the Food and Drug Administration, Consumer Product Safety Commission, Department 
of Agriculture, Bureau of Standards and others, are already functioning, and the 
proposed law is silent with respect to specifying other areas for th~ Agency to undertal>e 
independent testing. Private concerns such as Consumers Union and Consumers 
Research, are currently undertaking independent testing and research in areas of con
sumer interest. Additionally, colleges and universities from coast-to-coast are involved 
in this important area. But all of the expenditures by all of these organizations and 
institutions are small when compared to the millions of dollars now being expended 
for testing and research by business. 

Since one of the major functions of the Council of Better Business Bureaus relates 
to the way in which products are advertised to the public, we raise serious question 
about the provisions of both versions which would permit the publication of test data. 
Our question relates to the way competitors might use this information, which could 
be incomplete and,hence, misleading in their comparative advertising. At a very 
minimum, we hope that some restrictions would be made on the use of such test 
data in advertising, especially where the public could' be led to believe a product 
has been given "government approval." 
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INFORMATION OATHERI~C.- '" 

The .section relating to the gathering of information h~'-g~~erated extensive comment 
and we will not repeat such comments here. However, to the extent that such informa
tion gathering includes the conducting " ... of conferences, surveys and investigations 
including economic surveys concerning the needs, interests and problems of consumers 
which are not duplicative in significant degree in other government agencies. . . ." 
this again fails to recognize the substanial activity in the private sector and by state 
and local levels of the public sector. Moreover, there is no showing anywhere that 
another function of this type is even needed but, as with the educational and informa
tional functions, perhaps some coordinating efforts would be welcomed. 

We applaud the directives in the proJ?Osed law which would require cooperation 
"with State and local governments and pnvate enterprise in the promotion and protec
tion of the interests of consumers." However, this fails to provide more specific direction 
to the Agency by delineating the kind of partnership that exists today and should 
exist in the future between an Agency, the state and local consumer protection agencies,. 
consumer groups and the Business sector. This failure could well result in unneeded 
bureaucratic procedures, unnecessary expenditures and, most important, added frustra-
tions for the consumer. . 

CONCL\lSION 

In summary, Mr. Chairman, it has been our intention in this statement to: 
1. question but take no position on the proposed function to represent the consumer 

within the federal establishment. This is an internal oversight function of government 
itself and outside the ambit of our special competence; 

2. oppose as ill conceived, duplicative, costly, bureaucratic and legislatively unwise 
those portions of the Act relating to proposed Agency functions in dealing with busi
ness-consumer issues in the marketplace; and 

3. point out the current state of consumer protection activity by the private sector 
and by the state and local levels of the public sector, while urging that there be 
greater recognition of such activj-ties in all portions of this proposed legislation. For 
example, a booklet recently publis;ied by the Better Business Bureaus of Massachusetts 
for the State, entitled The Commonwealth of Massachusetts Consumer Resource Guide, 
contains a listing of more than 400 public and private agencies in that state which 
serve consumers (copies of this booklet are being sent to you under separate coyer). 

It is OUT view that this legislation should be restudied, with unnecessary and-duplica
tive sections removed or referred to more appropriate Congressional Committees which 
are already considering legislation to meet the objectives sought. 

STATEMENT OF PhUL S. WELLER, JR., VICE PRESICENT FOR PIJBLlC AFFAIRS, NATIONAl

COUNCIL OF FARMERS COOPERATIVES 

Mr. Chairman, the National Council of Farmers Cooperativell isplea.<>ed to present 
the views of the nation's farmer-owner cooperatives on legislatiort currently before, 
Congrees to· establish an independent consumer agency. I am Paul S. Well~l', Vice' 
President for Public Affairs of the National Council, alld have primary responsibility 
for working closely with consumers and their organizations on behalf of, the farmer 
cooperatives. 

There are ,currently some 7,500 farmer-owned cooperatives .in the U.S. These • 
member-owneQ and controlled organizations currently market nearly 80 percent of 
the nation's dairy products, 40 percent of its grain, 35 percent of its cotton, and 
some 25 percent of its fruit and vegetables. Total annual volume of·these consumer
owned businesses now approaches $55 billion, helping to provide the nation with 
the world's most plentiful supply of food and fiber. 

Because of farmer cooperatives are themselves consu!11er-ownl;ld, they have had a 
deep commitment to consumer affairs. Staff members of the National Council helped 
form the Agriculture Council of America, an organization dedicated to developing 
close working ties between farmers and consumers. Today, I serve on the· organization's 
advisory com!11ittee, a dairy .cooperative member serves as its chairman, and much 
of its funds come from fainler cooperative organizations from coast to coaSt. We 
in the cooperatives are part of American agriculture, the nation'S largest industry 
serving consumers-with assets of more than $200 billion. And we are dedicated to 
a strong consumer effort for the benefit of aU Americans. 

It is for this reason that the National Council chooses to present this statement 
on government consumer efforts. We do not separate farmers and consumers into 
distinct groups, for we are convinced that both must work together as a team. Indeed, 
we are also convinced that the gr,oups are inseparable, an~ that farme~ rank among 
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our most important consumers-purchasing goods and services far in excess of -the 
national norm. We have an important stake in any consumer effort by the federal 
government. 

In brief, farmers and their cooperatives generally support legislation that WQuid pro
tect consumers' ri~itts. But we find ourselveG in a dilemma on S. 1262, legislation 
del)igned to estabhsh an independent conSUmer agency in the executive branch of 
government. We would like to address ollr remarks-to that proposed legislation. 

Section 2 says the Act will promote protection of consumers as to safety, quality, 
performance, and related- f¢:;iiU;~ of consumers' goods and services-yet we already 
have an independent Consumer '-"roduct Safety Commission, charged with this responGi
bility. 

Section 2 says the A<>$ wi!! protect the consumer through prevention of unfair or 
deceptive trl~de practices, and maintenance of truthfulness and fairness in advertising 
and sale of 'products and services-yet we already have a Federal Trade Commission, 
charged~~th the responsibility to do this. 

Section 2) says the Act will protect consumers' legal rights and remedies-yet we 
already have a Department of JU!ltice and related federal agencies to do this. ' 

And Section 5 says the Act wiIl provide for the adoption and expansion of consumer 
programs in the Executivli: BranGh-yet most of the 17 major executive agencies have 
already begun development of such consumer representation programs, tailored to their 
own respective disciplines. 

But what concerns us in the farmer cooperative most are these provisions of the 
Act: 

Sec. 6(c)(1).-rnitiation of federal court proceedings involving a federal agency ac
tion. There are an estimated 200 decision-making processes within the U.S. Department 
of Agriculture which could be deterimed to "substantially affect the interest of con
sumers . • ." These include the critically needed commodity marketing orders' that 
even out the flow of perishable milk, fruit, and vegetables to the nation's marketplace. 
They also include much of the $20 billion in agricultural exports that help this nation 
pay for much of its escalating energy costs from foreign imports. We in the agricultural 
sector have nothing to hide from such an agency. But none of us-consumers and 
farmers alike-can afford the lengthy disruptions ill the nation's finely tuned food 
and fiber programs that would be caused by judicial actions brought by persons not 
skilled in agricultural production and marketing. The same is true of succeeding provi
sions that permit agency intervention in private judicial proceedings. As addendum 
at the end of this statement lists some of the most serious disruptions that could 
be forthcoming from agency action. 

Sec. lO(a)(l).-lnformation gathering. This section authorizes yet another federal 
agency to send its subpoenas and its staff members into the daily workings of private 
business. Sometimes we in the fanner cooperatives feel we are working more for 
the federal government, than for our farmer members. Let me cite arl example of 
how this increasing federal information gathering can cripple and impede the operations 
of business. Not long ago, the Federal Trade Commission-another consumer agency 
of the executive branch-sent a: 17-page subpoena to one of our northeastern dairy 
cooperatives. It demanded detailed business records of a to-year period. What ensued 
r.early brougbt this farmer-owned cooperative to its knees, for it was required to 
spend approximately 46,500 man-hours at 42 different locations in five states, collecting 
approximately 29,200 documents requested. At $10.00 per hour-a reasonable. esti
mate-it cost this already financially troubled cooperative nearly a half-million dollars 
just to get the data for the Federal Trade Commission. That didn't include legal 
fees. Now we propose to add yet another burden through another consumer agency. 
And we propose to prosecute those who cannot comply through the fedral district 
courts. Nearly all of our farmer-owned cooperatives would be liable under this section's 
small business exemption. 

Sec. 16(a).-Exemptions. Legislation to establish an Agency of Consumer Protection, 
passed by the U.S. Senate 011 May 15, 1976, carried a partial exemption for agricultural 
production programs. It read, as follows: "Nothing in this Act shaIl be construed 
to authorize the Administrator to intervene or participate in any proceeding or activity 
directly affecting producers of livestock, pOUltry, agricultural crops or raw fish products, 
including but not limited to, such proceedings and activities relating to the initial 
sale by such producers of raw agricultural commodities; Commodity Credit Corporation 
price support, procurement, loan and payment programs; P.L. 480 and other export 
programs; acreage aIlotment and marketing quotas; federal crop insurance, soil conser
vation and land adjustment programs; Farrners Home Administration and Rural Electrifi
cation Administration loans; marketing orders; and programs to prevent the spread 
of livestock and poultry diseases, plant pests, and noxioUs weeds." 

.. 
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An Amendment of this type would not exempt agency action or non-farm food 
costs. If price manipulations and anti-consumer practices exist iUl· the p(ocessing. dis
tribution, and retailing sector, then any new consumer agency would have full authority 
to intervene 011 behalf of the consumer. But it would prevent federal government 
intervention into the production of agricultural commodities, where historic pre,eedeI1t 
has proven that sueh action is almost invariably counter-produc,tive. If we are to have 
an Agency for Consumer Protection, then it is absolutely imperative that such an 
amendment be added to this legislation. We .do not feel that the limitations carried 
in Sec. 18(a) and Sl)c. 18(b) provide any kind of adequate protection for agricultural 
production. .' 

Mr. Chaimlan, it is not the tradition of the farmer cooperatives to be cow~letely' 
negative on legislative issues. And we don't want to be at all negative on consumer 
protection and representation within the federal government. We are consumlj'rs. our 
memberS are consumers, and of course, OUf customers are consumers. ,~ ,. 

Mr. Chairman, we would propose to this committee that ~he most sensible and 
effective consumer protection would be forthcoming-not from,.;:tnother federa!. agen
cy-but rather from increased consumer representation arid hlvolvement 'Within the 
federal executive a~encies, where technicians and s~ialistS'actually un(;l,f)!'i'ltand the 
problems and possIble solutions. We in agriculture have made a subsmntial move 
10 that direction. We have a Secretary of Agriculture who is strongly prQ~OnSU\~ler, 
And we have an Assistant'Secretary of Agriculture for Consumer Affairs, >'Mrs. carol 
Tucker Foreman, who has been committed throughout tier ,professional: .,eareet:, for 
consumer portection. ii" 

In brief, we propose that the work of the previous AdminlMration to activate and 
support consumer affairs programs within each of the executive: agencies to be con. 
tinued. This is the logical, course of action, and we in the Carmel' cooperatives support, " 
this type of program:".?' '. 

That each ;1gency organize and adequately fun,d l1;n Office of Consumer Affairs;, 
and that such an office be head~d by a qualified con!\~merliadvoc~te with full authodty' 
to ,represent ,the consumer's VOice in all agency affmrs. :~I;)r t\1e, U.S. Department or:' 
Agriculture, under the new Assistant Secretary for Coniumej\ Affairs, we would propoSti;' 
such a program: " ,:' ':" ;" ' 

( I) That the Assistant Secretary for Consumer Affairs pe'; included in all USDA 
policy meetings thought to have any interest or impact en <;6nsumers; 

(2) That the USDA's Office of·Consumer Affairs h&ve'an advocacy role, designed 
in each case to fully represent the interests of individual>:¢onsumers; , 

(3) That an economic impact study be required on each cQnsumer::Oriented decision, 
taking into account its cost not only to consumcr,;~' qut to farmer" and agribusiness " 
as well. ' 

( 4) That every effort be made within USPA to get valid consumer input at the 
beginning of each pertinent decision-making process. Regulations should not be publicly 
proposed without full consumer input into their preparatio[t lind direction; ," . 

(5) That the USDA Office of Consumer Affairs be allowed to op)~rate with its 
own independent .budg~t and limited supporting staff, ~o include research and accounting 
assistance for maximum effectiveness. ': 'i :'" " ,', 0 ., 

(6) That regular consumer forums be iicheduW(;I by USPA 1hrollgl1 its I~ationwide 
CoOperative Extension Service to involve consumel',Jnput at the 10calc,grlifoSroots k!V~l; 

(7) And that the full capabilities of the' US))Aaft~ce of Communications e:l1ci t~e : 
Cooperative Ex.tension Service be utilized., to p4blic;ii/!:, ih&le conSumer forulllY. as wei! 
as to publicize all USDA actiops that warrant consum't:\' Ulput p.lld action. , "" 

Mr. Chairman, that is. the kind of plan ~t,at ,w'it :p'o~s£(for each of'tIre:C!i~I~(.:uiive 
agencies, for we are convinced that such an iili;ct~igeitc{'effbrt a:imed p,'/; jndi)llidual 
consumerS will be much more effective than. alb ':extet;\;hl bureaucracy' de~ljgn~'~to 
take pot-shotJr at other executive agencies andbtisin~s.i'( . _, 

Our basic objection to this Bill is that it win (,urefy irtcrease the risks oft'am'l.' 
ing-already at an intolerable level for many. The W~\Sh(ngton Post published an edit9ri~ 
allast year that sums up our thoughts on t\:le sn\:l.je'~t. '(t,said. in t'art:., .' 

"The more uncertain and speculative farmipg ~comes;the lwrder it wi.1L hllcome 
to achieve the maximum production that the (!ountr,y,ncw.;l\\r~ntly needs, for \lOth: 
consumers here and those large populations abroad t\lat now d~p\~ild uPOI! r.ts ••• tt, .~. ,_ 

We, and the American farmers whom 'We- t'epf,~'!e.nt, respectfu~N as\<;, your conside\1l- ' 
tion of these comments .• Thank you for this oPP9ttunjty.i.'toapp'~ar l:fere' this morning~ '. h.', 

';, ---:;-. III '~:.:,:'.~~: 

ADD);NDUM-SfATEMeNT OF AN A()~NCY:~~ ~ONSUM1;~ PROTECTION '~ 
Tpere is potential in S. l262 to: 

.:..' .0.' 

~\ 
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(1) Disrupt emergency food aid to foreign nations thorugh the beneficial P.L. 480 
food assistance programs, and thus serioilsly affect U.S. foreign policy; 

(2) Suspend or otherwise disrupt the orderly processes of federal marketing orders 
that exist to even out the distribution-and thus the prices-of milk, fruits, and vegeta
bles to market; 

(3) Embargo the export of U.S. agricultural commodities to foreign customers, thus 
reducing markets for U.S. farmers, adding to the critical balance of payments deficit, 
and disrupting long-standing contracts with buyers around the world; 

(4) B urdem and negate the contractual arrangements of USDA's commodity procure
ment and distribution program that provides food for the nation's School Lunch project; 

(5) Damage the orde;'ly marketing and price surveillance activities provided to U.S. 
livestock producers by the Packers and Stockyards Administration; 

( 6) Boost operating costs, administrative rlelays, and tax revenue needs of 1'be Food 
Stamp program; 

(7) Delay beyond critical deadline dates USDA price support and Commodity Credit 
Corporation food supply programs and inventory control operations; 

(8) Negate and render ineffective the food inspection services and responsibilities 
of USDA in protecting the consuming pUblic; 

(9) Duplicate and complicate the Federal channels of responsibility for consumer 
protection and representation. 

STATEMENT OF THE NATIONAL LP-GAS ASSOCIATION BY ARTHUR C. KREUTZER, 
EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT AND GENERAL COUNSEL 

This comment is submitted by the National LP-Gas Association for consideration 
in connection with Governmental Affairs Committee hearings on S. 1262, the bill 
calling for creation of the Agency for Consumer Advocacy. The national LP-Gas As
sociation, a trade association, has as members, companies engaged in supplying an 
energy source, principally propane, to approximately 13 million installations throughout 
the United States. It represents over 5400 members, including 43 affiliated states. 
Our member companies are predominately small businesses. This comment reflects 
the opinion of our members particularly of these small businesses. 

In submitting this statement we do not intend to imply lack of concern with consumer 
protection. However, our members are now overwhelmed with governmental regulation, 
and the superimposition of another agency adds to an already heavy burden. We 
are now conflOnted with regulatory matters in Departments of Labor, occasionally 
Defense, and with such agencies as FEA, ACPSC, OSHA, DOT, ICC, FRS, and occa
sionally FTC. In addition, Agriculture, Interior and Commerce seek informational re
ports. It is our concept that these Departments or Agencies are dedicated to the 
public interest, which includes the consumer. In some Agencies protection of the 
consumer is their prime purpose. In others, specific offices for consumer representation 
have been created and are functioning. We recognize that· it is propo~ed to transfer 
to ACA consumer activities of other Agencies. We question the feasibility of discarding 
the more specific expertise that these Agencies have in their jurisdictional areas. Ac
cordingly, we consider that the consumer interests are adequately, if not fully 
represented and to superimpose the ACA is both a costly and injudicious duplication 
of bureaucracy. 

ACA represents unnecessary cost to government, and to the regulatecl businessman 
that must ultimately be borne by the consumer. We question that this represents 
consumer protection. The small businessman supplying propane is particularly distressed 
in that he must first contend with the requirements of the Departments and Agencies 
earlier listed in the duplication of governmental activity. 

To briefly point out soe areas of duplication or overlap presented in this legislation, 
Section 5(b) directs that ACA: 

"(2) conduct and support research, studies, and testing to the extent authorized 
in Section 9 of this Act". (Section 9 appears to be simply a repetition of this authority.) 

CPSC and DOT provide these services; and to; 
"(4) obtain information and publiSh and distribute material x x x It in order to 

inform consumers of matters of interest etc.". 
CPSC primarily, and otiler Agf,lncies in varying degrees, so function; and also to; 

"(6) conduct conferences, surveys, and investigations, including economic surveys 
concerning the needs, interests and problems of consumers: x x x. x x that ;( x x 
x are not duplicative in a significant degree etc.". 

While apparently recognizing the duplication that will be created with other agencies, 
it is sought to limit it to that which is of a "significant degree". Here is a ripe 
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opportunity for inte~'agency conflict with the businessman caught in the middle. Section 
8(b) provides:' 

"(b) all Federal Agencies which, in the judgment of the Administrator, possess 
information which would be useful to consumers are authorized and directed to 
cooperate etc. ". 

This is a direct superimposition of ACA over other A~ency functioning. 
In addition to the unnecessary cost that ACA poses m duplication, an· added element 

of cost, and damage to business appears in the delay in handling of regulatory matte.rs 
that is inherent in the superimposition of added agency, beyond those in exi~teni:e, 
to enter into regulatory development or change. We have been fully frustrated by 
the delays encountered in present agency action, without the governmental gift of 
an added layer of bureaucracy. i) 

Section 10 of the bill provides extensive infonnation gathering power. As related 
to infonnation gathering, it should be noted that the Commission on Federal Papenvork 
recently completed its study with strong criticism of the pa~rwork burden. The creation 
of ACA is a reversal of the Commission's recommendation in adding ACA to the 
lengthy list of agency infonnation gatherers. While ACA would be required to obtain 
available infonnation from other agencies, it still has the authority to add to the 
burden. It will be useful for an agency not to do its own thing. 

We realize .that there is an attempt to moderate the burden on small business. 
However, apart from this, other provisions make the exemption somewhat mear,ingless. 
The Administrator can still request "voluntary" production. LP-gas dealers have ex
perienced being harassed with "voluntary" submissions that hav!;) the guise of being 
mandatory. Again, the Administrator has the power "if necessary to prevent imminent 
and substantial danger to the health or safety". 

It is our impression that this is one of the dlltie.s imposed upon, and being carried 
Ollt by, CPSC.,Here is obvious duplication. To further negate the protection for small 
businesii,."tt<ire is no protection from the stimulous to litigation that is inherent in 
the·aill's provisions. While the intent to protect. small business may exist, Section 
10 dQes not provide this protection. 

Continued viability of many small businesses is now threatened by governmental 
overregulation. In the past three years of FEA allocation and price controls we have 
seen LP-gas dealers sell out, or simply close their door&. The Agency for Cons\lmer 
Advocacy will add to this destruction of viability. 

It is our strong recommendation that the burden of bureaucracy be not increased 
through the creation of an Agency for Consumer AdVOcacy. We consider it to be 
unnecessary and costly duplication, and the imposition of another layer of government 
regulation. If additional consumer interest representation is considered in agency func
tioning, we suggest that in the interest of economy and moderation of the regulatory 
burden it be accomplished through the existing facility available in the agencies. 

STATEMENT OF THE UNITED STATES INDUSTRIAL COUNCIL 

During the campaign which led up to his eIec.tion to the nation 'shighest office, 
President Carter repeatedly promised the American people that he would reduce the 
size and scope of the federal bureaucracy. Since taking office, he and his advisors 
have promised businessmen that every effort win be made . to free business of our 
unwarranted federal regulations and red tape that have been strangling our private 
enterprise system. Introduction of Administration-sponsored legislation to create a n~w 
federal bureaucracy, the so-called Agency for Consumer Advo<::acy, flies in the face 
of both these promises. . ,,_ 

In a speech introducing this legislation in the. Senate, one of its sponsors, Senator 
Abraham Ribicoff, stated that the President has i.ndicated he intends to implement 
the legislation to a great extent through reorganization by consolidating and eliminating 
duplicating existing consumer functions in the Federal bureaucracy. Yet the prop<;lsed, 

::;; legislation plainly states that the authority of the ACA to can)' out its purpose "shall 
not be conStrued to s~,persede, supplant, or replace ,the jurisdiction, functions, or poWers 
of any other agency to discharge its own statutory responsibilities according to law." 
This. provision of the bill, seems to make it clear that it can only add. another layer 
.of federal bureaucracy, despite what the President may have indicated. 
, The United States Industrial Council .. , and its 4,000 members employing some 
4,000,000 people wjll yield to no one in cur interest in the welfare of consumers. 
The survival of our member companies depends on their ability to serve the. .needs 
of consumers and provide them with products and services of a quality that meets 
with their approval and at p~~s they are willing to pay. By conferring ot withholding 
their patronage, the consumer determines which business enterprises shall Succeed imd 
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which shall fail. When government tries to think for the consumer and make decisions 
for him or her, we move away from the private enterprise system that has produced 
such a wealth of goods and services at affordable prices, and further along the road 
to a socialist state. 

The fallacy of the ACA bill is in the premise that consumers are a separate and 
distinct class whose interests are distinct and different from those of other citizens. 
Every citiien is a consumer. The decisions and actions of every agency should, there
fore, give the fullest consideration to the best interests of every citizen as a consumer, 
as well as taxpayer, and producer-for each of us plays these multiple roles. 

In its Statement of Findings and Purposes, the bill says: "The Congress finds that 
the interest of consumers are inadequately represented and protected within the federal 
government. ... Each year, as a result of this lack of effective representation before 
federal agencies and .court.s, consumers suffer personal injury, economic harm, and 
other adverse consequences .... " 

If this be true, it is a strong indictment of the Congress and the federal agencies 
it has created. It shows that Congress has failed miserably in meeting its responsibility 
for oversight of the federal agencies. Enactment of legislation creating art Agency 
for Consumer Advocacy to make sure that federal agencies are considering the welfare 
of consumers would be simnply buck-passing. 

Instead of setting up one more agency-another level of bureaucracy--Congress 
should start riding herd on the agencies that it already has created to make sure 
they are doing their job of looking out after the interests of consumers. 

The ACA legislation is nothing more than politics, pure and simple. Every member 
of both the House and Senate wants to be on the side of the consumer-as they 
should be. They shouldn't have to prove it be setting up another federal bureaucracy. 
The people of the United States have begun to recognize they are the victims, not 
the beneficiaries of "big brother" government. They hoped the present Administration 
would get "big brother" off their backs, cut the federal government down to size, 
and lift some of the tax burden caused by having to support more and more federal 
bureaucrats. That hope will be dashed if Congress, with the support of the PresiGent, 
sets up theACA bureaucracy. 

Sponsors of the ACA legislation say it is not a "major" new spending program 
since it would authorize the spending of only $60 million the first three years for 
the new agency. It is a sad commentary on how far we have gone in flinging around 
federal dollars that a federal spending program is not considered "major" unless it 
involves billions, rather than millions, of dollars. Furthermore, if the ACA follows 
the same path as, ot.l-Jer government spending programs, the costs of operating it will 
grow year after Yf;ar. 

Instead of creating the efficiency and good management practices in the federal 
government that are the announced aim of the President, the propos/':d legislation 
would, lead to inefficiency in the functioning of federal agencies by authorizing, the 
ACA to intervene in agency proceedings and administrative hearings virtually at will. 
It would deprive agencies of staff time and facilities needed to perform the functions 
with which they are charged, since the bill provides that each federal agency is "directed 
to make its services, personnel and facilities available to the greatest practicable e){tent 
within its capability to the Agency (ACA) .... " Federal agencies also are directed 
to provide statistics and information when requested by the ACA, which means added 
work 10llds for the agencies. 

In an attempt to silence critics of the independent consumer agency proposal, a 
number of changes intendeq to answer criticisms have been made in the legislation 
since it originally appeared iii' earlier sessions of Congress. For example, special exemp
tions for small business and family farmers have been written into the bill to keep 
down' opposition from those quarters. Some protections against the revelation of trade 
secrets have been included. A whole' new section requiring cost-benefits justification 
for new agency .rules and regulations. has been added. The result, however, is an 
exceedingly long, complex and cumbersome bill. The changes are mainly cosmetic. 
They do not correct the basic fallacy in the bill-that we don't need another federal 
bureaucr-acy to meddle with, and interfere in, the work of other agencies and to 
intervene in, and initiate, litigation in the courts purportedly to help consumers. 

Despite protestations of its sponsors to the contrary, the legislation establishing an 
ACA would lead to harassment of business and could cause irreparable injury to 
business firms. It requires 1=9mpanies to answer written interrogatories from the ACA. 
This authority given to the ACA could easily be abused and lead to "fishing expedi
tions." At the best, it could cause the loss of considerable amounts of time and 
money. and Create .numerous headach~. for companies in trying to provide all the 
information that some ACA bureaucrat decides he needs. 

'I 
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The testing of products by the ACA and dissemination of test results would give 
federal bureaucrats the power to make some companies rich and put others out of 
business. This is too much power to place in federal employees who are subject 
to human error and prejudices. Like other sections of the bill, it would move us 
away from a markeet economy, which has been the source ,of our strength as a 
natiQn, and expand the sCQpe ,of g,overnment controL 

We have faith in the American CQnsumer and in his ability to make his own indepen
dent decisions on what meets his needs and the prices he is willing to pay. As business
men, we are willing to leave our fate in his ,or her hands. 

As far as the effect of federal agency actions antrc:-egulationson the consumer, 
we believe this is best determined at the point where~he actions are taken and 
the regulations determined-rather than in;a new federat age)~~y to selve as a watchdog 
over the other agencies. The role of w~tchdog over the actions of' federal agencies 
properly lies with CQngress, and C,ongvtss should not try tel;., shirk that responsibility 
by setting up one more agency. 1\ 

Setting up an independent consumerilprotection agency would be a fraud upon con
sumers because it would not produco:(' the benefits for them;\ they would be led to 
expect but would just set up another bu\\eaucracy. If Congress vltants to help consumers, 
the best thing it can do IS to stop c1\~ating new agencies, ~educe the bureaucracy, 
cut federal spending, and eliminate a t\ubstantial portion of Ilgovernment regulations 
and red tape. In that way, it will redu2\\ inflation so that th~_ consumer's dollar will 
buy more, and ease the tax burden so 11,e will have more I:dollars to spend. It also 
will enable, the free enterprise system to f~.1t1ction in a y/!-y that will produce more 
goods and services at lower cost. --,-- --/-

The Agency for Consumer Advocacy is an idea whose idea has come and gQne. 
It should now be put away for all time. 

STATIlM~NT BY THIl AMERICAN NATIONAl, CATTLEMEN'S ASSOCIATION 

Dear Mr. Chairman. The American National Cattlemen's Association (ANCA) ,offers 
comment relative to legislation which would establish a Federal agency for consumer 
protection. 

ANCA is t.he national spokesman for the beef cattle industry. The association is 
comprised of individual cattlemen members, plus 52 affiliated state cattle producing 
and feeding organizations and 15 national breed organizations. Combined, the industry 
represents 280,OCD professional cattlemen in all parts of the nation. 

The above figures were presented tQ you as a means of expressing ,our m<;mberships' 
deep concern regarding the necessity for this type of legislation. The reason simply 
being that we as professional cattlemen along with our families are also consumers. 
We feel remiss that such legislation would, by interference, pit consumers against 
cattlemen. 

We as cattlemen and consumers bave recognized the right and entitlement to protec
tion, against misrepresentation, fraud, unfair and deceptive trade practices. These are 
basic rights afforded by our system of government. 

In the event there is a compelling reason to assure consumers a representative 
voice, the,n we suggest that the President, who now has full authority, establish within 
the Executive Branch ,of Government the appropriate vehicle for responding to 
"consumer" needs, demands and rights. 

We further stand opposed to any language in this or similar legislation which provides 
for an agricultural exelIlPtion. Cattlemen, who are engaged in production agriculture, 
have vivid and real m¢inories of similar such exemptions which were levied during 
1973 when wage and price controls were imposed by the President. Although basic 
livestock production was exempt from those cQntrols, the residual impact, as, a result 
of controls at the slaughter and packer levels, dramatically aided ,in forcing live cattle 
price downward. The resultant effects' of this action, taken in 1973 by the Federal 
government, lingers wi,th the industry today. , 

Attached to this statement are relative documents which support cattlemen's concerns 
in opposition to the need for such an agency: the Appendix section deals with; (a) 
the effects of no grain' feeding on total beef supplies and prices; (2) Breakeven Prices 
for Vari,ous Types of Beef; (3) Summary of Report on Feedlot Finishing Versus 
Non-Confinement Feeding; (4) Compllrative Costs of Beef Production; (5) Cost and 
Efficiency of Beef Production and; (6) How Proposed Consumer Protection Legislation 
Affects Cattlemen. 

The information contained in these, documents give you an instant insight as· to 
the complexity of the beef cattle illdustry. Any action, outside of normal market 
supply/demand functions, artificially imposed, automatically wreaks havoc with the 
system. 
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Also apparent within the documentation is visible evidence of Federal agency jurisdic
tion whereby any Iitagatory action triggered could result in lengthy and costly delays 
to producers •.. de\:lYs that compound themselves once a basic production decision 
is made five years previous to marketing of product. 

It is for these reasons that ANCA opposes legislation of this nature to "protect" 
the American consumer. The Committee's consideration of our views in behalf of 
the beef cattle industry is appreciated. 

ApPENDIX 

EFFECTS OF NO GRAIN FEEDING ON TOTAL BEEF SUPPLIES AND PRICES TO CONSUMERS 

In 1976, the cattle slaughter mix was as follows: 

Fed cattle .............................................................................................................. .. 
Nonfed steers and heifers .................................................................................... .. 
Cows ................................................................................... , .................................. . 
Bulls ....................................................................................................................... . 

Total .......................................................................................................... .. 

25,085,000 
5,948,000 

10,617,000 
997,000 

----
42,644,000 

This total slaughter resulted in production of 25.7 billion pounds of beef on a 
carcass weight basis. Of that total beef output, approximately 17 billion pounds came 
from cattle finished on graill-containing rations in feedlots. This estimate is based 
on a 1,092-lb. average live weight, and a 62 percent yield, resulting in a 675-lb. 
carcass. 

If all of the 25 million fed cattle had been slaughtered off grass and hay, at an 
average weight of 750 lbs.; without any feedlot feeding, they would have produced 
only 9.97 billion pounds of beef. (This is based on a carcass yield of 53 percent 
per animal.) 

The result then would have been total 1976 beef supplies of \8.7 billion lbs., or 
only 73 percent of what supplies were with cattle feeding. 

Economists agree that demand for beef is relatively inelastic. That is, a I percent 
change in supply results in more than a 1 percent change in price. However, even 
if the ratio were only 1 to I, the 27 percent supply reduction resulting from elirTlination 
of grain feeding would have raised the retail average price of beef from the actual 
1976 average of $1.39 per pound to $1.90. 

The above figures assume no change In size of basic cow nerd and the marketing 
of all steers and heifers off grass, without feedlot feeding. If steers and heifers were 
kept on pasture and hay until they reached normal slaughter weight, they would be 
at least 2 or 3 years old-at least a year older than if they went into feedlots, where 
they gain weight more rapidly. This procedure could reduce the range and pasture 
capacity available for cows by 30 to 40 percent. The net result would be essentially 
the sltme as outlined above-there would be a sharp drop in total annual beef produc
tion, and resulting higher prices to consumers. 

In a presentation to the National Livestock Feeders Association, M. D. McVay 
of Cargill, Inc.; estimated that, without grain feeding, per capita beef supplies would 
drop to about 80 Ibs. on a carcass weight basis, compared with approximately 120 
lbs, in recent years. 

The reason for reduced beef production when cattle are not grain-fed is that the 
energy content of a strictly grass or roughage ration is much less, and most of the 
feed con~umed by an animal. on pasture goes just to maintain the animal, not to 
help it grow. A steer on grass mllY gain an average of only 1 lb. per day, rather 
than 2.5 or 3 Ibs., as in a feedlot. 

Source: ANCA 

BREAKEVEN PRICES FOR VARIOUS TYPES OF BEEF 

Following is a breakdown on costs of producing different types of beef on a carcass 
weight basis. Note that a major difference between grass-fed and gtain-fed beef is 
a reduced yield (carcass weight as a percent of live weight) of meat in the case 
of animals without grain finishing. 

I. Calf Meat. A 450-lb. calf requires approximately 55 cents per pound, live weight, 
for the producer to break even. This amounts to $247.50 per head. A calf will yield 
about 50 percent in the form of carcass weight. Thus, the' carcass cost would be 
approximately $1.10 per pound. 

.... 
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2. Non-Fed Steers or Heifers. If the calf is put on grass for the summer, after 
being purchased from the cow-calf operator, there will be a cost of $105 to add 
300 Ibs. to the animal. This makes a total liveweight cost per animal of $352.50. 
A 750-lb. yearling animal marketed off grass in the faU would yield approximately 
53 percent, and the carcass cost would be 88.7 cents per pound. 

3. Mature Grass-Fed Animals. If a yearling is kept on grass and hay until it weiJ?hs 
1,050 Ibs., the cost of the additional 300 Ibs. of gain will be about $120-makmg 
a total liveweight cost of $472.50. The carcass yield would be 55 percent, and the 
carcass cost would be at least 82 cents per pound. 

4. If the 750-lb. animal is placed in a feedlot, it will cost approximately $135 
to add 300 Ibs. of gain. A fed steer will yield approximately 61 percent, and the 
carcasS cost will be 76 cents per pound. 

Thus, the comparative costs on a carcass weight basis are: 

Calf Off Grass ...................................................................................................... . 
Yearling Off Grass ................................................................................................ . 
Mature Animal Off Gras5 .................................................................................... . 
Feedlot-Finished Animal ..................................................................................... . 

Per/b. 

$1.10 
.87 
.82 
.76 

The abov,;: costs are calculated simply on the basis of cattle production costs and 
dressing (or yield) percentage for each type of animal. For reasoIls of simplification, 
consideration is not given to variations in hide and offal value, processing costs or 
other factors. With smaller average weights per animal, per unit processing costs will 
be higher-another reason for finishing animals in feedlots. 

Source: ANCA 

S;UMM. 'l-Y OF A REPORT BY THE ECONOMIC RESEARCH SERVICE. USDA. ON FEEDLOT FINISHING 
VERSUS NON.CONFINEMENT FEEDING . 

An ERS study of the comparative economics of confinement versus non-confinement 
feeding arrived at these conclusions: 

I. Confinement feeding requires less total feed consumption than non-confinement 
feeding-about 30 percent less total feed units by time of slaughter. 

2. The feed conversion ratio (feed per pound of gain) is much less forcol1fined 
beef. 

3; Confinement is economically advantageous to both the livestock feeder and the 
consumers. , 

4. Much of the feed consumed, even by confined cattle, is roughage (and by
products) that cannot be consumed by other livestock species or humans. In "fact, 
half (or more) of a steer's $Iaughter weight is achieved prior to confinement and 
before concentrate feeding, and four-fifths of all feed in beef production is pasture 
and harvested forage. (In 1976--77, among cattle on feed, it is estimated that the 
total rations will consist of 56.5 percent feed grain, 6.9 percent by-products and 36.6 
percent harvested forage.) 

5. Confined feeding results in a relatively uniform supply of beef to the consumer. 
6. If a range calf did not go into a feedlot" it would require 30 percent more 

feed and as much as an additional year to reach I ,OOO-Ib. market weight. Without 
confinement, the producer's cash flow is reduced, overhead and labor per unit, are 
increased, and the risk of death loss is greater. \. 

7. A close look at relative feed costs, using season average prices for com and 
hay (with hay serving as a proxy for all roughages), shows that, on the basis of 
nutrient values, com is consistently more economical. 

8. As a result of development of the feeding industry, producers have found Ii 
better and larger market for their calves, and the public has benefited from larger, 
more uniform, more palatable beef supplies, at a lower unit cost. 

Source: ERS, USDA, November, 1976. 

COMPARATIVE COSTS OF BEEF PRODUCTION 

An analysis of costs of beef production was made by Dr. B.P,~\ Cardon of Ari~ona, 
president of the Council for Agricultural Science and Technolqgy. This was based 
on the average price of feedlot rations in the winter of 1975-\116. The data below 
include all feeding costs except interest on the mOllley invested. 

The most economical beef which the industry can produce comes from an rulimal 
that is placed in the feedlot shortly after weaning and is fed a balanced high-energy 
ration until it reaches approximately 1,000 Ibs.This animal would be expected to 
grade low Choice. . 

90-731 0 - 77 -, 15 
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ROUGHAGE BREAK·EVEN COST OF PRODUCTION (GAIN·l POUND PER DAY) 

Weight 

Less than 400 ......................................................................................... . 
400 to 500 ............................................................................................. . 
500 to 600 ............................................................................................. . 
600 to 700 ............................................................................................. . 
700 to 800 ............................................................................................. . 
800 to 900 ............................................................................................. . 
900 to 1.000 .......................................................................................... . 

Cost/gain 

$200.00 
49.80 
57.90 
65.70 
73.00 
80.00 
87.00 

BREAK·EVEN COST OF PRODUCTION (FEEDLOT) 

Weight 

Less than 400 ........................................................................................ .. 
400 to 500 ............................................................................................. . 
500 to 600 ............................................................................................. . 
600 to 700 ............................................................................................ .. 
700 to 800 ............................................................................................ .. 
800 to 900 ............................................................................................ .. 
900 to 1,000 ......................................................................................... .. 
1,000 to 1,100 ...................................................................................... .. 
1,100 to 1,200 ....................................................................................... . 
1,200 to 1,300 ...................................................................................... .. 

Source: Dr. B. P. Cardon, Artzona, 1976. 

Cost/gain 

$200.00 
34.70 
37.70 
41.00 
44.30 
49.00 
55.00 
60.20 
70.00 
85.00 

[)Qllar cost 
per live 

pound 

.500 

.500 
.513 
.533 
.558 
.585 
.613 

[)Qllar cost 
per live 

pound 

.500 

.469 

.454 

.448 
.447 
.452 
.462 
.474 
.493 
.521 

COST AND EFFICIENCY OF BEEF PI<ODUCTION 

Dressing 
(percent) 

50 
50 
50 
51 
52 
53 
54 

Dressing 
(percent) 

50 
50 
51 
53 
55 
58 
61 
62 
6~ 
64 

Break-llven 
cost per 
carcass 

pound 

$1.00 
1.00 
1.02 
l.05 
1.07 
1.10 
1.14 

Break-llven 
CIlst per 
carcass 

pound 

$1.000 
.938 
.890 
.845 
.813 
.779 
.757 
.765 
.788 
.814 

Dr. Danny G. Fox and associates at Michigan State University analyzed the costs 
of beef production under various systems-including all-forage and different proportions 
of grain in the ration after calves arc wcaued from their mothers. 

The following table shows results of different systems per beef cow unit. The calcula
tions are based. on feed for cows and their calves to slaughter weight. 1:he data 
assume operation at 100 percent efficiency in use of forage and grain. The cattl.e 
on all-forage would grade standard, and those getting grain would grade low Choice. 

Ration 1st half of post·weaning gain 

All forage All foraga 
40 percent 

grain 

Ration 2d half of post·weaning gain 

All forage All forage 

Cow units malnt~ined (million head) .............................................................................. 31.8 
Pounds of grain per pound of retail beef .............................................................................................. .. 
Pounds of retail beef per capita per year ........................................................................ 50.7 
Daily consumption of protein per capita (grams) ........................................................... 15.5 

47.6 
2.89 

75.9 
23.2 

72 percent 
grain 

49.4 
4.33 

78.8 
24.1 

The table shows that, with an all-forage system, the nation 'scow herd would be 
sharply "reduced, and amount of edible beef and protein produced per capita wo~ld 
be reduced substantially, as. compared with systems tQ~t involve .grain feeding during 
all or part of the period following weaning. As less grain is fed, less beef is produced 
because more of the forage energy has to be used for growing .and finishing calves 

.\. 
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rather than for mother cows in the basic herd. As a result, consumers' would ,have 
less beef to consume, and the beef would be of lower acceptability because of incre:ased 
age (less tender) at slaughter and less intramuscular fat (marbling)., 

The ultimate determinant of the level of grain feeding is the price of grain. uevels 
and periods of time of grain feeding are affected by grain costs a well as!Y.;~}-~flmarid. 

The following ta!'le shows data on the economics of grain feedj.ng, With sys,tems 
at 100 percent efficIency. . 

Ration 1st half of post·weaning g4in 

Aillorage 1\11 forage 
40 ~lrcent 

'!graln 
--------~--~----,.~ 

Ration 2d half of pOst·weaning gain 
----~~----------~:r__ 

72 ~l\1rcent 
All forage All forage 'I grain 

-------~----------,~-~--_____ ---,I-
Elpected animal performance: 

Daily gain, ppund ................................................................................................... . 
Pound feed per ppund of, gain, dry matter basis ....................................... ""' ...... .. 
Turnover rate in prodUction unit per year ............................................................ .. 

Feed cost for 600 ppunds of gain: 
Com at $1.50 per bushel ...................................................................................... . 
Com at $3.00 per bushel, ..................................................................................... . 

Nonfeed cost for 600 pounds gain ................................... , ............................................ .. 
Feed and nonfeed cost: 

Com al $1.50 ........................... , ......... , ......... , ....................................................... . 
Com al·$3.00 ......................................... ; ............................................................. . 

1.00 
18.91 

.58 

$223.36 
$223.36 

$82.29 

$306.65 
$306.65 

1.96 
11.55 

1.13 

~149.l3 
$204.35 
$76.75 

$225.88 
$i8L10 

'12.16 
117.98 
'I 1.24 

$106.74 
$211.40 
~82.62 

$189.36 
$294.02 

------------------------------------------~------~ 

The beef produced with an all-forage program would grade standard, whil~i the 
two grain systems shown would result in low-Choice beef. The all-forage beef, in 
addition to costing mo're to produce, would result in a carcass with .$37.80 less valu€). 

The above table includes' just part of the data from the Michigan report. Ho~ever, 
it helps show that, when grain is cheap, it pays to feed more of it. When' it is 
higher priced, it pays to feed less. 'Actually, at this time, the grain price is be~ween 
the two values shown in the table. ,'i 

All-forage systems would' not become least-cost uptil com was at least $4.SQI per 
bushel, and even then Choice carcasses might be liigh-enough priced. so that igrain 
would have to go even higher in order to force a change to an all-forage sy~ltem. 
Also, forage would tend to increase in price if grain prices rose. 

Source: Excerpts from "Producing Beef: What It Costs and Opportunities for Im!,rov
ing Efficiency," Michigan State University, January, 1977. 

ApPENDIX II 

HOW PROPOSED CONSUMER PROTECTION LEGISLATION AFFECTS CATILEMEN 

Through litigation, subpoena and paperwork delays, ACA could affect such important 
USDA regulatory functions as: . , 

A. Agricultural Marketing Service (AMS): (1) Marketing agreements and orders; 
(2). BeefJ30ard (if upcoming referendum passes). 

B. Food Quality and Safety Service: (I) Meat inspection; (2) Beef g(ading. , 
pr;g~imal and Plailt Health Inspection Service (APHIS): (1) Veterinary service 

D. Packers and Stockyards Administration (P&S): (1) Posting of public markets; 
(2) Bonding. . . ' .'.: 

E. Agricultural Stabili2ation and. Conservation Service CASCS): (I) Commodity IlPrO
grams (target prices): a. Feedgtain; (2) Production adjustments (acreageallotme~ts): 
a. Feedgrain; (3) Small Watershed ptojeats; (4) Emergency assistance. '. . .:r , 

F. Conservation Research and Education: (1) Agiiculture Research Service (ARS): 
a. Pesticides, disease affecting livestock, marketing research.' . . 

O. Forest Service (FS): 0) Public use of grazing livestock (permits); (2) Research 
for increased forage on public lands. . 

H. Agricultural Economics: (I) Economic Research Service (ERS): a. Economic 
Research. 

" , 



222 

STATEMENT BY THE NATIONAL LUMBER AND BUILDING MATERIAL DEALERS 
ASSOCIATION 

The National Lumber and Building Material Dealers Association consists of 29 
federated state, regional and metropolitan retail lumber and building material dealers 
assochitionswith an aggregate of some 15,000 companies throughout the United States. 
Our members supply building materials for the majority of the housing built in the 
United States, as well as a considerable amount of commercial and industrial construc
tion. We also sell building materials direct to the consumers. The great majority of 
our members would be classified as small businessmen and businesswomen by any 
definition. I 

We appreciate this opportunity to present our views before the distinguished U.S. 
Senate Government Affairs Committee on the proposal, S. 1262, Consumer Protection 
Act of 1977, offered by the distinguished Chairman, Mr. Ribicoff, to establish an 
Agency for Consumer Advocacy (ACA) within the Federal Government. 

The NLBMDA would like to state our position forthrightly, that we are opposed 
to this legislation and to the concept of any type of additional consumer agency 
within the Federal structure. We do support the Office of Consumer Affairs within 
the Executive Branch to coordinate the existing consumer programs. 

It is our feeling that the creation of the proposed Agency for Consumer Advocacy 
will only add to government complexity, delay and red tape, and thus ultimately inflation 
and unemployment at a time when the national economy needs strengthening instead 
of weakening. We strongly feel we do not need another layer of government bureaucra
cy when the existing agencies and programs are adequate to function in the best 
interest of the American consumer. As small business, it has always been and continues 
to be, our experience that less government proves best for business and for the con
sumers. 

It is our understanding that the ACA is to be an independent, non-regulatory agency 
to speak for the interests of the consumer, authorized to advocate the interests of 
consumers before agencies and the courts, and to provide the public with information 
about consumer matters. Such an agency would have an adverse impact. Today, there 
exists bureaucratic over-regulation and further intervention would only add to that 
situation. 

It would seem that the creation of an Agency for Consumer Advocacy is a contradic
tion of the President's and the Congress' efforts to reorganize and reduce both the 
direct and indirect costs of government and to increase its responsiveness to the Amer
ican public. In view of the increasing public demand for reorganization and simplifica
tion, it would be interesting to survey the public as to their true wishes for yet 
another bureaucracy to complicate the existing bureaucracy. 

We, as members of the business community, are concerned about fairness and good 
products and service to our customers and to the general public; however, we continue 
to hold fast to the idea that the house that polices itself, serves and works best. 
We realize that there may be abuses, but feel such abuses to be in the minority 
and certainly do not justify creation of an ACA. 

The NLBMDA has certain reservations about the guidelines that will supposedly 
govern the jurisdiction and administration of the ACA as proposed in the legislation, 
S. 1262. We also wish to express our concern over the potential for expansion of 
an ACA in terms of cost, size and scope. It seems to us that it will be most difficult 
to have the ACA, as outlined in this legislation, to appropriately function as a consumer 
advocate before Federal agencies, to have judicial review, to serve as a clearing house 
for complaints, to serve as an information gathering agency and to obtain information 
from other agencies, and not expand considerably beyond the legislative intent of 
the bill being offered in the United States Senate. 

The National Lumber and Building Material Dealers Association respectfully urges 
the members of this Committee, and the members of the Congress in its entirety, 
to consider the alternatives to S. 1262. We urge your attention to the paperwork 
and regulatory restrictions already placed on business-small business in particular-and, 
subsequently the consumers, in considering whether enactment of S. 1262 and creation 
of, what we feel will be a bureaucratic Agency for Consumer Advocacy, is the best 
solution to assisting consumers at this time. 

Finally; we wish to express to this Committee our reservations abo1.lt an agency 
being created to supposedly '''zero-in'' on problems that will be, in the end, only 
for certain special interests that of which this iss1.le has sprung. 

Your consideration of 01.lr views on S. 1262 and incl1.lsion of our statement in 
the p1.lblic hearing records of the proceedings of the Committee will, be very much 
appreciated. 

'-.\ 
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TRANSPORTATION ASSOCIATION OF AMERICA, 
Washington, D.C., April 8, 1977. 

Chairman, Committee on Governmental Affairs, \~ 
U.S. Senate, Washington, D.C. 

DEAR MR. CHAIRMAN: I understand that your committee will be holding hearings 
on S. 1262, legislation to create a new Federal Agency for Consumer Advocacy, 
on April 19-20. 

On behalf of the Transportation Association of America and its members, I wish 
to express our opposition to this legislation as it pertains to transportation. 

The Transportation Association of America (TAA) is a national non-profit organiza
tion of carners of aU modes of transportation (air, motor, rail, water, pipeline and 
freight forwarders), as well as users of the services of those carriers and investors 
in the transportation industry. TAA is the forum wherein the divergent views of this 
broad membership may be reconciled on issues of importance for the good of the 
transportation community as a whole. Members of the Association include major compa
nies from all sectors of U.S. business; for youI' information, a roster of out Board 
of Directors is enclosed. 

S. 1262 is of particular concern to T AA because it would add yet one more layer 
to the already burdensome structure of regulation that exists in the U.S. transportation 
industry. 

At present, transportation is subject to some degree of regulation by. among others. 
the Interstate Commerce Commission; the Civil Aeronautics Board; the Federal 
Maritime Commission; the U.S. Department of Transportation and numerous sub-units 
of that department such as the Federal Railroad Administration, Federal Highway 
Administration, Federal Aviation Administration, etc.; the Maritime Administration and 
other units of the Department of Commerce; some units of the Department of the 
Interior; the Occupational Safety and Health Administration; th!: Equal Employment 
Opportunity Commission, and others. In addition, some degree of governmental scrutiny 
and control of transportation is maintained lly the Departments of Defense and Justice, 
the General Services Administration and the Federal Energy Administration. 

To this heavy weight of governmental control would be added by this legislation 
yet another agency. Moreover, the goals of the proposed AgencyiQr Consumer Advoca., 
cy would largely duplicate purposes already legislatively endowed on existing Govern
ment agencies. For example, the three independent regulatory agencies listed above 
(ICC, CAB and FMC) are charged with the affirmative responsibility to administer 
their programs in a manner consistent with the public interest-an interest which 
has ,been consistently interpreted to. embrace consumers. Each of these agencies main
tains'separate offices expressly charged with the duty of consumer protection. To 
a greater or lesser degree, the same may be said for the other Government agencies 
with a voice in transport regulation. 

In our view, this approach to consumer representation offers distinct advantages. 
First, it avoids the bureaucratic proliferation-not to mention the $20 million average 
annual added cost-inher"'nt in creation of a separate consumer agency. TAA arid 
its members wish to emphasize that they do not oppose-indeed, they favor-fair 
and equitable representation of consumer interests before Federal agencies; our oPllo,m
tion to this legislation is merely based on our belief that this function may best be 
executed through the medium of existing agencies, without the need to establish a 
redundant and burdensome separate bureaucracy to serve that end. 

Second, reposing consumer protection functions within existing agencies will be, 
in our view, most conducive to effective and efficient implementation of those functionS. 
Under such a system, consumer representatives would be in a position to call ,on 
the expertise already present in each agency with respect to the particular programs 
and activities of that agency. If a separate agency is established. it will be fl\ced 
with the unappetizing choice of developing its own duplicative expertise in those areas 
in which it .seeks to be active,or,,~,entering into cases while lacking the requisite ' 
skill and experience to make a useful contl"ibution. 

Third, we believe retention of consumer' protection functions Within existing agencies \1. 
will be most conducive to orderly and efficient resolution of issues affecting consumers. 
The proposed legislation clearly envisions Iitigatory resolution of at least some questions 
through the court system-a system already badly overburdened by a heavy caseload. 
We consider it inappropriate to obligate courts to mediate internecine disputes within 
the Federal Government where such disputes may, under the present organizational 
structure, be resolved Qn an intra-agency basis without appreciable diminishment of 
the level of protection afforded consumer interestS. " 

--.~..:.--
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If the COD$reSS deems that the pro~rams of the existing agencies are not being 
administered In a manner consistent WIth the public interest and, in particular, the 
interests of consumers, it has all the necessary means-through oversight hearings, 
legislative emendation, etc.-to correct any deficiencies it finds. We do not feel it 
is either necessary or appropriate for the Congress to abciicate its role in favor of 
yet another regulatory agency which, furthermore, would owl:: allegiance to the Execu
tive rather than the Legislative Branch of government. 

For these reasons, we believe this legislation sh(luld not be enacted, and we urge 
that your Committee not report it favorably. 

Thank you very much for your attention and courtesy. We request that this letter 
be made part of the formal hearing record regarding this legislation. 

Sincerely, 
PAUL J. TIERNEY. 

TRANSPORTATION ASSOCIATION OF AMERICA 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Henry A. Correa-Chairman, President, ACF Industries, Incorporated, New York, 
New York. 

Paul J. Tierney-President, Transportation Association of America, Washington, D.C. 
Stephen Ailes, President, Association of American Railroads, Washington, D.C. 
Harold L. Albrecht, Vice President, Reynolds Metals Company, Richmond, Virginia. 
A. G. Anderson, Transportation Association of America, New York, New York. 
Grant Arnold, General Traffic Manager, Ethyl Cotporation. Baton Rouge, Louisiana. 
Dr. George P. Baker, Member, Board of Directors. Temple. Barker & Sloane, Inc., 

Wellesley Hills, Massachusetts. 
Frank E. Barnett, Chairman Board of Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Union 

Pacific Railroad Company, New York, New York. 
W. J. Barta, Chairman, The Valley Line Company, St. Louis, Missouri. 
Henry Bartholomay III, Senior Vice President, Alexander & Alexander, Inc., Chicago. 

Illinois. . 
Theodore W. Brooks, Senior Vice President. The Chase Manhattan Bank, New York, 

New York. 
Curtis D. Buford. President, Trailer Train Company, Chicago, Illinois. 
Vincent C. Burke, Jr., Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer, The 

Riggs National Bank of Washington, D.C., Washington, D.C. . 
William E. Callahan, Executive Vice President, International Harvester Company, 

Chicago, Illinois. 
Walter F. Carey, Chairman of the Board, T.r.M.E.-DC & Janesville Auto Transport 

Company, Bloomfield Hills, Michigan. 
Edward E. CarlsQIl,. Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, UAL, Inc., Chicago, 

Illinois. 
H. T. Chilton, President and Chief Executive Officer, Colonial Pipeline Company, 

Atlanta, Georgia. 
Thomas T. Church, Vice President, Transportation, Bethlehem Steel Corporation, 

Bethlehem, Pennsylvania. 
Lee Cisneros, Director of Physical Distribution, The Firestone Tire & Rubber Com

pany, Akron, Ohio. 
William H. Clausen, President, Acme Fast Freight, Inc., Lake Success, New York. 
Joseph A. Cooper, Senior Vice l>resident-Marketing, Delta Air Lines, Inc., Atlanta, 

Georgia. 
Charles E. Coyl, Vice President, Transportation Division, GATX Corporation, 

Chicago, Illinois. . 
John A. Creedy, President, Water Transport Association, New York, New York. 
Robert H. ~utler, Chairman of the Board, !lIinois-California Express, El Paso, Texas. 
Thomas E. Damton, Vice President-Procurement and Production Control, General 

Motors Corporation, Detroit, Michigan. 
John E. Drick, Chairman of tlie Executive Committee, The First National Bank 

of Chicago, Chicago, Illinois. 
N. C. Dunn, Traffic Manager, Supply Department, EXXon Company. U.S.A., Houston, 

Texas. 
J. Donald purand, General Counsel, Association of Oil Pipe Lines, Washington, 

D.C. 
William M. Fairhurst,' Seni.or Vice president-Administration and Planning, Dana 

Corporation, Toledo, Ohio. 
Peter Fanchi, Jr., President, Federal Barge Lines, Inc., St. Louis, Missouri. 

, 
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John P. Fishwick, President and Chief Executive Officer, Norfolk & Westei'Il Railway 
Company, Roanoke, Virginia. '~' 

Carl J. Fleps, Vice President-Government Relations, 'fl\e Greyhound Corporation, 
Washington, D.C. 

Sam 'N. Flint, Vice President-Corporate Operations, The Quaker Oats Company, 
Chicago, l\Iinois. 

Charles W. L. Foreman, Vice President, United Parcel Service, Greenwich, Connec
ticut. 

Welby M. Frantz, Terry Haute, Indiana. 
Gayton E. Germane, Professor of Logistics, Graduate School of Business, Stanford 

University, Stanford, California. 
David E. Gile, Seniol; Vice President, Marine Midland Bank, New York, New York. 
G. Zan Golden, Senior Vice President, North American Van Lines, Inc., Fort Wayne, 

Indiana. " 
Allan Grant, President, American Farm Bureau Federation, Park Ridge, l\1inois. 
R. C. Grayson, Chairman of the Board and President, St. Louis-San Francisco Railway 

Company, St. Louis, Missouri. 
Donald G. Griffin, Vice President-Traffic and Transportation, PPG Industries, Inc., 

Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania. 
Frank L. Grimm, Chairman of thl~ Board and Chief Executive Officer, O'Boyle 

Tank Lines, Rockville, Maryland. 
Harold F. Hammond, Senior Advisor, Transportation Association of America, 

Washington, D.C. 
E. P. Hardin, President, Mobil Pipe Line Company, Dallas, Texas. 
John E. Harris, Jr., Vice President, Petroleum Supply Division, PhiIIips Petroleum 

Company, Bartlesville, Oklahoma. " 
Richard Haupt, Director, Transportation and Traffic Office, Supply Staff, Ford Motor 

Company, Dearborn, Michigan. _ 
Frank L. Heard, Jr., General Counsel, Exxon Pipelii'ie Company, Houston, Texas. 
Robert M. Hendrick~bn, Executive Vice President and Chief Investment Officer, 

The Equitable Life Assurance Society.pfthe United States, New York, New York. 
J. W. Hershey, Chairman of the Board, American Commercial Lines, Inc., Houston, 

Te.xas. , 
Richard D. HilI, Chairman of the Board, The First National Bank of Boston, Boston, 

Massacllusetts. 
Eugene Holland, Jr., Executive Vice President, Continental minois National Bank 

& Trust Company of Chicago, Chicago, Illinois. 
J. Robert Hoon, General Manager of Transportation, Aluminum Company of Amer

ica, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania. 
Paul R. Ignatius, President, Air Transport Association of America, Washington, D.C. 
George p, Jenkins, Chairman of the Board and Chairman of the Finance Committee, 

Metropolitan Life Insurance Company, New York, New York. 
William B. Johnson, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, IC Industries, Chicago, 

l\1inois.. 
John M. Kinnaird, Vice President-Government Relations, American Trucking As-

sociations, Inc., Washington, D.C. 
A. Carl Kotchian, Los Angeles, California. 
Jack R. Kruizenga, President, Union Tank Car Company, Chicago, minois. 
Richard A. Lempert, Vice President and' General Counsel, American Airlines, Inc., 

New York, New York. 
Edwin A. Locke, Jr., Presidellt,American Paper Institute, New,York, New York. 
Clark MacGregor, Vice President, United Technologies Corporation, Washington, 

D.C. 
James C. Malone, Vice President, Union Carbide Corporation, New York, New 

York. 
Donald L. McMorris, President; Yellow Freight System, Inc., Shawnee Mission; Kan

sas. 
James J. McNulty, Chairman of the Board, Emery Air Freight Corporation, Wiltpn, 

Connecticut. ' " 
F. A. Mechliog, ,President, Union Mechling Corporation, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania. 
Louis W. Menk, Chairman of the Board, Burlington Northern Inc., St. Paul; Min-

nesota. '. ' 
Frank L, Merwin, Vice President, ASARCO Incorporated, New York, New York .. 
Thomas A. Micali, Presiden!, Pullman Trailmobile, Chicago, Illinoi.~;, 
G. Russell Moir, Chairmartvof the Board and President, Transway InternatiIYoai Cor-

poration, New York, New York. ' ' 
Giles Morrow, General Counsel, Freight Forwarders Institute, New '\Cork, New York. 

"1" 
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James F. Morse, Seattle, Washington. 
Edwin F. Mundy, Vice President, Traffic & Headquarters Facilities, Nabisco, Inc., 

East Hanover, New Jersey. 
John A! Murphy, Chief Executive Officer, Gateway Transportation Co., Inc., ,La 

CroSS{l. Wisconsin. 
W. L. Nahrgang, President and Chief Executive Officer, Johnson Motor Lines, Inc., 

Charlotte, North Carolina. 
Frank A. Nemec, President, Lykes Corporation, New Orleans, Louisiana. 
D. H. Overmyer, Chairman of the board, D. H. Overmyer Company, Inc., New 

York, New York. 
Adrian B Palmer, Chairman, Rollins Burdick Hunter Company, Chicago, Illinois. 
Michael Papadopoulos, General Manager, Transportation and Distribution, Shell Oil 

Company, Houston, Texas. 
V. L. Petersen, Vice President, The Goodyear Tire & Rubber Company, Akron, 

Ohio. ' 
John E, Phelan, General Traffic Manager, Anheuser-Busch, Inc., St. Louis, Missouri. 
Robert W. Prescott, President, The Flying Tiger Line, Inc., Los Angeles, California. 
William .1. Quinn, Chairman of the Board, Chicago, Milwaukee, St. Paul & Pacific 

Railroad CDmpany, ChicagO', IIIinDis. 
C. B. Ramsdell, Vice President-Group Executive, TranspDrtation System GrDup. 

Westinghouse Air Brake Company, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania. 
John S. Reed, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, The Atchison, Topeka & 

Santa Fe Railway Company, Chicago, IIIillDis. 
James E. Reinke, Vice President-Government Affairs, Eastern Air Lines, Inc., 

Washington, D.C. 
James J. Reynolds, President, American Institute Df Merchant Shipping, Washington, 

D.C. 
W. Thomas Rice, Chairman Df the Board, Seaboard CQast Line RailrDad Company, 

Jacksonville, Florida. 
Ronald G. Ross, Senior Vice President, Bank Df America, Los Angeles, California. 
Henry E. Seyfarth, Seyfarth, Shaw, Fairweather & Geraldson, Chicago, Illinois. 
W. K. Smith, Vice President, General Mills, Inc., Minneapolis, Minnesota. 
Wilbur S. Smith, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Wilbur Smith and Associates, 

Columbia, South Carolina. 
Lee R.Sollenbarger, Chairman Df the Board, Transcon Lines, Los Angeles, California. 
William L. Spencer, President, Citibank, New YDrk, New YDrk. 
Edwin F. Stadelman, General Traffic Manager, J. C. Penney CDmpany, Inc., New 

York, New York. 
W. Stanhaus, Chainnan and Chief Executive Officer, SpectDr Industries, Inc., Bensen

ville, Illinois. 
Robert L. Stone, Chairman and President, The Hertz Corporation, New York, New 

York. 
Stoney M. Stubbs, Chairman Df the Board, FrDzen Food Express, Inc., Dallas, Texas. 
L. D. Thomas, Vice President-Operations Planning & Transportation, Amoco Oil 

Company, Chicago, Illinois. 
Robert E. ThDmas, Chairman of the Board, MAPCO Inc., Tulsa, Oklahoma. 
George F. Tidmarsh, Vice President, Physical Distribution Department, Sears, 

Roebuck and Company, Chicago, Illinois. 
Stuart G. Tipton, CDnsultant, Pan Amencan WDrld AirwaY$, Inc., Washington, D.C. 
John L. Tormey, Chairman, Roadway Express, Inc., Akron/Ohio. 
Kenneth L. Vore, Vice President-,Traffic and Transportation, United States Steel 

Corporation, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania. 
Charles J. Waidelich, President, Cities Service Company, Tulsa, Oklahoma. 
Michael J. Walsh, Jr., Vice President-Transportation and Distribution, St. Regis 

Paper Company, New York, New York. 
Hays T. Watkins, Chairman of the Board and President, The Chessie System, Cleve

land, Ohio. 
Charles A. Webb, President, National Association Df Motor Bus Owners, Washington, 

D.C. 
William G. White, Chairman of the board, CDnsolidated Freightways, Inc., San Fran

cisco, CalifDrnia. 
Bennett C. Whitlock, Jr., President, American Trucking Associations, Inc"., Washing

ton, D.C. 
George K. Whitney, Consultant, Massachusetts Financial Services, Inc., Boston, Mas

sachusetts. 
William C. Whittemore, SeniDr Vice President and Treasurer, John Hancock Mutual 

Life Insurance Company. Boston, Massachusetts. 
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Frederi'* C. Witsell, Jr., Vice President, MOl'gan G~~ranty T~st Company, New 
York, New York. " 

AMERICAN ThUyKU40'ASSOCIA T1oNs,,.Ii~c.,' 
Wdshington, D.C., Apri! 25, 1977. 

Hon. ABRAHAM A. RIBICOFF, \'''1 
(''hairnum, Committee on Governmental Affairs, ", , '::' 
U.s. Senate, Washington, D,C" ~ 

My DEAR MR. CHAIRMAN: This is to record our opPosition tCi\i$. J2~~, which Vlq~ld 
etablish an Agency for Consumer Advocacy insofar as it )Vould,,,appl}~,',to operatioi'!,~ 
of interstate mot<;,r carriers: ." " "';: ~;,' , 

As representative of an mdustry that IS already thoroughl)l' regulated by the Interstate 
Commerce Commission, the. Department of Transportation, and other feeletill agencies, 
e.g., the Occupational Safety and Health Administration, and the Environmental protec
tion Agency, we believe the trucking industry hilS ~already reached the pojnt\~;qhere 
the cost resulting from overlapping jurisdiction is tio.t jusdfied by' the publicb~~fi,r.ts, 
if any, derivecj thereforIll. Enactment of S. 1262 woulo. just atJd to, the prob1eIJi'm01;1-
tioned, with no real benefit that we can foresee. ' , ',:, 

,~ I".' 

Insofar as motor carriers of property regulated by the ~nterstat~i,:9omltlerCeC6lnrnjs
sion are concerned, we believe there is no justification for the."proposallj:: embodied 
in the bill referred to. The shippers of property transported by in,teTlltttLe nfotqtr carriers 
art; generally organized to protect their interests on a' local, stale; and ll:ati9nal level. 
OUf experience in. contested proceedings before the Interstate CommercE.' Cbl111'i1ft...JJion 
indicates that these shipper organizations do an excellent job of representifi~!ftheir . 
interests, and that the agency is careful to protect them. The major area' cit prtlperty, 
transportation by motor carrier, where the .shippers are not sophisticuted, i.\~'., in .thi.\:' 
movement of used household goods, has received the 4iligimtoatteQtion of'the Commis~ 
sion in the last few years through numerous in-der;lh rulemaking and. enforcement 
proceedings. In addition, the Commission has recenti/fincreased its activity in providing 
assistance and protection to the consuming pUblil.! by strengthening its compliancp 
progr;un and instituting a tariff examination progra~{. , ,_ 

The Committee should also be aware of a rel~vant legislative develOPment in ,the ~. 
past year. The Railroad Revitalization and Regulatory Reform Act of 1976, Pub. L
No. 94-210, created an Office of Rail Public Counsel to provide t'urth~.r consumer 
protection. This Office has authority to undertake a' series q.f indeperidentactions 
to participate in Interstate Commerce Commission proceedings and contest Commis~ion 
actions involving railroads. While the President has not yet appointed It, Rail Plll1l1c. 
Counsel, the Coinmission is performing many of tne functions of that 9ffice. &~~ifot. 
the other modes of transportation, the Commission is supporting legislatitm (S.rt5l].il) .' 
to broadel! the Pu~lic .Counsel's C;:>~ce. t~ i'.1c1ude mot~r. carriers\ freig~t f,<!lrv«,~!!tclts;·, 
water earners and plpeltnes under Its Junsdlctlon. That bill IS presently bemg 1:l00l/)ldet:-nd 
by the Committee on Commerce, Science and TranspOrtation. We' believe a "Public 
Counsel for all mode of transportation-should Congress decide one is neededi"7would 
be able to perform more appropriately and with greater efficiency than vru,'iohS" and 
sundry staff members of an overall Agency for Consumer Advocacy, who would,not 
necessarily possess a knowledge or expertise in transportation matters. "'", 

For the reasons stated, there is no need to create jurisdiction in still anolliet 'federal 
agency, and assign tb it the authority which would be grant¢d'hy S. 1262 tit! intervene 
in the daily affairs and operations of intersta~ motor carriers. Section 16 of S. 1262 
exempts frorq the bill's coverage, among others, "any agency action in' the Federal 
Communications Commission with respect to the renewal of any radio or television 
broadcasting license ... " We submit that, at the very least, a similar exemption,Shotild 
be extended to "any agency action in the Interstate C6mrilerc~ Commission with 'respect 
to the purchase or extension of motor carrier operating authonty'.~' '. , 

We therefore, respectfully request that S. 1262 proVide fo!, ,an exemption for motor 
carriers regulated under Pll;rt II of the Interstate COlnrrJert:e'Act. Finally,pleastl,.make 
this letter a part of the heanng record on S. ! 262. " 

, Sincerely, ' i~ I 
BIlNNEIT C. WHITt.<x;IC, !it ~, '. 

, \l, 
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\7 
Re S. 1262-Agency for Consumer prot~~tion. 
Hon; ABRAHAM A. RIBICOFF, Ii 
Chairman, Committee on Governmental AJfairs, 

Cox, LANGI'ORD & BROWN, 
Washington, D.C., Apri126,1977. 

U.S. Senate, Washington, D.C. 20510 I\, 
DEAR MR. CHAIRMAN: There is an aspect to the above proposal which l am calling 

to your attention because it is unlikely that it will be mentioned in other comments. 
There is already in operation in one agency of the federal government a statutory 

"consumer advocate." This is the "Officer of the Commission" established by the 
Postal Reorganization Act to represent the interests of thCo~ ~:general public" in 
proceedings before the Postal Rate Commission. f{ , . -~, , 

This real-world example of a "consumer advocate 'fIn operation is not~ne to give 
encouragement to supporlers of the idea of an Agency for Consumer prote;'tticin. The 
participation of the ~<:~r of the Commission aI7~ his staff in .proc,eedW\ before 
the Postal Rate CommiSSIOn has. added enormops I to the com pit cations an delays 
of aiscovery, cross-examination, briefil1g, motionsA objections and all the rt)st. The 
first hearing involving postal rates before the Postl''J Rate Commission involved~14,OOO 
pages of transcript and over 1,000 fileddocl!mepts. I would estimate that 20 t:~rcent 
or more of this huge output was caused by the]:P'resence of the Officer of the Co~is-
sion in the case, His- initial brief alone was ovd 300 pageS long. . ',,,, 

.' A major. objection to the Officer of the Commission's performance is that there 
is no effort, formal or informal, made by this "official to determine the actual vieWs 
of members of the public on disputed issues. He sends out no questionnaires, holdS 
no meetings and has no program of any kind for providing himself with guidance 
as tb. where the public thinks i~. interest lies. Instead, he makes his own judgments 
purely on the basis of theory and ivory tower thinking as to what are "the interests 
of th.e general public." On' the basis of these one-man judgments he takes positions 
and puts forward proposals which cause enormouS expense and expenditure of time 
for other participants in the proceedings. 

I respectfully sllggest that a worthwhile contribution to the material on the Agency 
for Consumer Protection proposal could be produced by a study by your staff of 
the functionin'g of the Officer of the Commission at the Postal Rate Commission. . 

I would appreciate it if this leWer could be included in the record of the hearings. 

Hon. ABRAHAM A. RI~ICOFF, 

THE NATIONAL INDUSTRIAL TRAFFIC LEAGUE, 
Stamford, Conn., April 27, 1977. 

CI'wirman, Committee on Governmental Affairs, 
U.S, Senate, Washington, D.C. 

DEAR CHAIRMAN RmICOFF: The Senate Governmental Affairs Committee is presently 
considering hearings on S. 1262 Which propose to create an "Agency for Consl,lmer 
Advocacy." '. 

The National Industrial Traffic League wishes to take this. opportunity to· submit 
comments for the record of heaqngs on S. 1262 as it applies to the tran8porta~On 
reguatory agencies. . . ' 

The League is a voluntary organization :'of 1800 shippers, shippers' associations, 
boards of trade, chambers .pf commerce and other entities concerned with rates, traffic 
and transportation services of all carrier modes. It is the only shipper organization 
which represents all types of shippers nationwide. Its members include large, medium 
and small shippers who use all modes of transportation and who ship all types of 
commodities. The League is not a panel or committee of a trade group, or a spokesman 
for a particular commodity or transportation point (If view, and does not permit carrieI' 
membership. 

The League's primary concern is to provide for the nation and all its shipper!; 
a sound, efficient, wel1~managed transportation system, privately owned and .operated. 

To arrive at positions reflective of the broad 'range of shipper interests within the. 
League, the League membership at its annual and special meetings considers, debatCll 
and votes on actions to be taken. During its st}venty years of existence, the League 
has frequently been the spokesman f.or the nation's shippers before Congress on 
proposed transportation and regulatory reform legislation. 

According to President Carter the "Agency for Consumer Advocacy" has four main 
purposes: 

\ 
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"First, most government consumer functions should be consolidated in the Agency. 
The Office of Management and Budget has begun a comprehensive review to help 
me identify those units that should be transferred to the Agency. This review will 
also determine how remaining functions in the individual agencies can be strengthened. 
Of course, I still expect that all Federal agencies will be responsive to the consumer's 
concerns. 

"Second, the Administrator of the Agency, like the heads of other executive agencies, 
should be appointed by the President and serve at his pleasure. The Agency should 
be subject to the normal executive budget and legislative clearance procedures. Ac
countability within the executive branch is necessary to ensure that the Agency will 
be as vigorous and efti, ective as, the people expect. It will not undermine the indepen
dence of the Agency's,representational role. 

"Third, the Agency shOUld be empowered to intervene or otherwise participate in 
proceedings before federal agencies, when necessary to assure adequate repre$entation 
or consumer interests, and in judicia! proceedings, involving Agency action. The Agency, 
at its discretion. should be represented by i~ own lawyers. I will instruct the Administra. , 
tor to establish responsible priorities for coiisumer adv~y. 

"Foua", the Agency 'shoufd have Its own information~gathering authority,' including, 
under appropriate safeguards, access to information held by other government agencies 
and private concerns. However, small businesses should be exempt frOIn the Agency's 
direct information-gathering authority. AdditiDnai safeguards should be included to as
sure that needless burdens are not imposed 6n businesses or other goVernment agen-
cies." ~.' 

President Cartel' also commented regarding the proposed new agency, "The Agency 
for Consumer Advocacy is mainly designed fot participation in very large administrative 
proceedings; it is only one of a number of steps which will better protect ihe consumer," 

The National Industrial Traffic League bel.ieves the nation's consumers are already 
protected in proceedings before the Interstate Commerce Commission, the Federal 
Maritime Commission and the Civil Aeronautics Board. 

The Railroad Revitalization and Regulatory Refoml Act of 1976 (Section 204) 
established the Office of Rail Public Counsel to protect the public interest in railroad 
proceedings before the ICC. The League supports expanding the ICC's Office of Rail 
Public Counsel to other modes. 

The Federal Maritime Commission has a Bureau of Hearing Counsel charged willi 
representing the public interest. FMC Chairman Bakke' advised Senattl Commerce, 
Science and. Transportation Chairman Magnuson on December, 29, 1976, that he be. 
Iieves that present FMC procedures are adequate in serving the public interest. 

The Civil Aeronautics Board has an "Office of the Consumer Advocate" charged 
with representing the public interest. 

In transportation cases; unlike other agency proceedings, thee is now not onlyintet
vention by Agency Public CotlPsel, but also active intervention by users of transporta
tion, such as tkeNITLeague. 

The subject of a consumei' protection agency was brought before the entire member
ship at the ,1974 Annual., Meeting and the members voted unanill!9usly to continue 
to oppose a federal office 'to represent consumers before Federal t~iJOrtation reg!Jlato
ry agencies as unnecessary and undersirable since the agencies themselves are charged 
with protecting the public interest in transportation matters. . 

One of President Carter's ntajot objective involves speeding up the .:li:!cision process 
of federal administrative agencies. The NIT League and others have long and. often 
voiced their complaints regarding the length of time required in achieving deCision 
by the transpOrtation regulatory agencies. Passage of a bill creating an "Agency for 
Consumer Advocacy" could only further delay the already slow decision-making process 
of transportation regulatory proceedingS. Additionally, the League believes. the nation's 
taxpayers will also be burdened with additional CO.8tS which in many instances will 
not be justified. The National Industrial Traffic League, therefore,'opposes S. 1262 
which would create a separate," Agency for Consumer Adv~y." 

As an alternative, the NIT League supports the broadened authorization of the 
Interstate Commerce Commission's Office of Rail Public Counsel to handle public 
interest in other modes of transportation. Adrliti,onally, similar offices established in 
the Civil Aeronautics Board and tIll;! Federal MaSltime Commission's Bureau of Hearing 
Counsel could be strengthened. ;,"' ,1' 

On behalf of The ~!ltional 'Industri~! T'raffic Le~gue, I respectfully, request that 
you conbider our oppoSItIOn to S. 1262 and the League s suggested alternatives. 

Sincerely, . .' 
], ROBERT MORTON, h 

~I . Presidimt. 



230 

LAW OFFICE OF JOHN B. MINNICK, 
Fairfax, Va., April 27, 1977. 

Re S. 1262 on Establishing an Agency for Consumer Advocacy: Public Hearings. 
Hon. ABRAHAM A. RIBICOFF, 
Chairman, Committee on Governmental Affairs, 
U.S. Senate, Washington, D.C. 

DEAR MR. CHAIRMAN: I favor proper measures to give consumers' a voice in govern
ment, but question the wisdom of trying to cure the symptoms before diagnosing 
the real cause of the problem. . 

Our pressin~ need for consumer advocacy is symptomatic of the breakdown of our 
basic constitutIOnal principles. The real cause of the breakdown, however, is the collapse 
of our constitutional concept of separation of powers under the weight of Acts of 
Congress. The particular Acts in question delegate legislative ,uld judicial powers to 
the e)Cecutive branch (including the so-called "independent" regulatory agencies) as 
well as legislative powers to the judicial branch. Federal regulations which create 
the need for consumer advocacy are based upon congressional delegations of power. 

All of the delegated powers in question have been handed out by Congress without 
giving due consideratio.n to the basic constitutional principles involved. As a direct 
result of Congressional delegations of power to the other two branches, the federal 
bureaucracy has mushroomed into a government of men and not of laws. On the 
other hand, separation of powers is the only true foundation for a government of 
laws and not of men. Moreover, the two systems are incompatible and mutually exclu
sive no matter .how hard we try to make them work together. Sooner or later we 
must face up to the breakdown of separation of powers and the sooner the better. 

In essence, separation of powers means that one branch shall never exercise the 
powers nor perform the functions of the other two branches, or either of them. For 
example, please see Article XXX of the M~achusetts Bill of Rights and the cor,:elative 
provisions of other State Constitutions and Bills of Rights, including Connecticut. 
Moreover, James Madison's understanding of the problem no doubt prompted him 
to declare that the separation. of our legislative, executive, and judicial powers is 
the most sacred principle of our federal constitution. In short, separation of powers 
is the foundation upon. which our constitutional system of government was built. Unfor
tunately, President Madison never told us why; and neither has anybody else for that 
matter. In any event, the reasons once taken for granted have long since been covereci 
up or otherwise forgotten. 

At the outset, ou~, own. unique American principle of the separation of our powers 
of government was first articulated on this continent by George Mason. His public 
work at Williamsburg in the Spring of 1776 laid the foundation for our Declaration 
of Independence, our State and Federal Constitutio\1s, apd our State and Federal Bills 
of Rights. The official public record of it all can be found in the Library of Congress. 
For example, please see the original Virginia Declaration of Rights, Preamble, and 
First Constitution of Virginia, as adopted in June, 1776. These constitutional roots 
of our government have not been studied nor taught as such.in our schools and 
colleges from the beginning. Why? Simply because historians, educators, political 
scientists, and cler!P'ffien missed the point altogether. Judges, lawyers, politicians, and 
newsmen covered it up. Students, voters, taxpayers and consUme.rs never had a chance 
to learn what it is all about. Actually, the whole story did not begin to unfold publicly 
until. the advent of our Americall Constitutional Bicentennial Era (June 12, 
1976-December 15, 1991). . 

One of the unaccountable facts of our history is that millions of Americans never 
heard of George Mason. Moreover, most of those Who did happen to hear about 
him never learned why separation of powers is an indispensible element of a government 
of laws and vice versa. Regrettably, millions of Americans today do not know the 
difference between a government of laws and a government of men. Why? Because 
the difference between separation of powers and delegation of powers has never been 
taught. Why? Simply because there is nothing in our Federal Constitution to prevent 
one branch from using th~ powers of the other two branches. Moreover, the adverse 
effect of the omission has been compounded by the continuous neglect of our education 
along these lines for nearly two hundred years. Under the circumstances the only 
constitutional way to have maintained separation of powers within our federal system 
of checks and balances was not to have given any away. As you know, current thinking 
in and out of the federal triangle freely acknowledges that Congress has given broad 
legislative and judicial powers and functions to the executive branch (inclUding the 
so-called "independent" regulatory agencies). Moreover, state and local jUrisdictions 
have followed suit willy-nilly despite express provisions in most of our State Constitu
tions and Bills of Rights to the contrary. {Except it took a constitutional amendment 

( 
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to do it in Vir~inia, but the voters were never told the whole story.) Besides, Congress 
has given specific legislative powers to the judicial branch, LikeWise, it has acquiesced 
in and encouraged the use of other legislative <\I1d executive functions by the judicial 
branch while trying to control all three powers of government itself. Thus, it actually 
appears upon the face of the official record of the Government of the United StateS 
that Congress has broken down the principle of separation of powers by its own 
Acts. Furthermore, Congress has wiped out our system of checks <\I1d balances and 
has subverted the rule of law in the process.. ' 

One of the principal reasons why Oile branch should not use the powers nor perform 
the functions of the other two branches is because separation of powers means a, 
government of laws, and vice versa. Our State and. Federal Constitutions were written 
and balanced upon these two inseparable corollaries. Like love and marriage, we cannot 
have one without the other no matter what the breakdowners say. \\'hen we lose 
one we lose both, anything in President Ford's inaugural and farewell messagea to 
the contrary, notwithstanding. 

The substantive reason for separation of powers is simply a matter of the rules. 
Tltat is, the rules of one branch do not work in the other two branches. As· between 
tile three branches, the rules are incongruous no matter how hard we try to make 
them fit. For example, the legislative branch operates under the rules of parliamentary 
procedure, including the committee system. The executive branch operates under ad
ministrative rules and regulations, including executive orders and agreements, and the 
commission system. The judicial branch operates under rules of court subject to the 
rules of evidence. Some overlapping is unavoidable, of course, due to the limitations 
of our vocabulary. As a practic1l1 matter, however, the rules. of parliamentary procedure 
do not work in the executive and judicial branches. Administrative rules and regulations 
do not work in the legislative and judicial branches. Rules of court and evidence 
do not work in the legislative and executive branches. If you do not believe mil, 
try to' use the rules indiscriminately in practice sometime. 

Another reason why one branch should not use the powers of the other two branches, 
or either of them, may, be.summarized in terms of our basic functions of government. 
That is, the essential function of the legislative branch is to make the law under 
its rules. The essential function of the executive branch is to carry out and to enforce 
the law as necessary under its rules and regulations. The essential function. of the 
judicial branch is to apply the law undc::r its rules subject to the rules. of evidence. 
Furthermore, each branch has oversight responsibilities and functions with respect to 
each of the other two branches. That is what our constitutional system of checks 
and balances is all about. As it was in the beginning, so it is today: Undue concentration 
of all three functions in anyone branch subverts the rule of law and wipes out 
the equalizing effecLof our system of checks and balances. Thus, instead "of a. govern
ment of laws, all of a sudden we wind up . with a government of men not· of our 
'own creation. , 

Finally, separation of powers should be 'examhled in the light of public policy. It 
is undisputed that the legislative power vested by' ,the people in Congress includes 
the power to make national policy. But when all th(ee branches are busy making, 
enforcing, and applying Gur. policies under the wrong rules, the net result is an expensive 
mal!e of conflicting opinions and trimetrically opposed posltipns. Such legislative, execu
tive and judicial confusion of the rules generates and perpetuates the artificial bu
reaucl'l\tic state imposed upon us by Congress. Moreover, it al~o spawns the. principal 
causes of popular dissatisfaction with the administration of justice ,and prevents effective 
public participation at all level!!. " 

Although the examples of the breakdown are legion, the chief mischief makers 
can be found in the Administrative Procedure!> Act of 1946 and the'<correlative provi
sions of the Judicial Code. Under the APA, the executive branch,,(fncluding the 
so-called "independent',: regulatory agencies) is given the power ,to. 'Iprescribe law 
or policy" .. as well as a broad range of judicial powers <\I1d functions. 'Likewise, an 
obscure {949 amendment to the Judicial Code. gives the judicial branch 's.ubstantive , 
rulemaking powers and functions otherwise reserved to Congress by the people under " 
Article III of our federal Constitution. These particular Acts of Congress in, effect 
were the last str<lWs that finally broke down separation of'powers and wiped out 
our system of checks and balances. II " 

Obviously, there ill a great deal more to all of this than meets the pubA~eye. 
For openers, therefore, please try to put the following question into the contelf.1:, of 
separation of powers~ Why is it OK for Congress to break down our basic cOf)Stit\ltioil~1 
principles. WIth impunity, but wrong for others to. take adv~tage of the situation'f'<, 
An agency for, consumer advocacy may seem to be the nght approach for !K>me ' 
in the beginning, but separation ·of powers will produce the most satisfactory results 
for all in the end. 0 
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Under the circumstances, the most constructive corrective action for the benefit 
of consumers and the relief of taxpayers would be to repeal all unconstitutional delega
tions of power instead of trying to restructure our government on an ad hoc basis. 
This is a prime legislative function of Congress. Furthermore, it will open up the 
greatest possible opportunity for effective public participation without spending a lot 
of money. In time, It may even be come to be known as our American Constitutional 
Bicentennial Project. 

Please include this statement in the public record of the hearings on S. 1262. 
Sincerely yours, 

JOHN B. MINN'CK. 

NATIONAL HOME FURNISHINGS ASSOCIATION, 
Washingtoll, D.C., April 29, 1977. 

Hon. ABRAHAM RIBICOFF, 
Chairmall, Governmental Affairs Committee, 
U.S. Senate, Washingtoll, D.C. 

DEAR SENATOR RIBICOFF: The National Home Furnishings Association, a national 
trade association of nearly 10,000 home furnishings retail stores, is grateful for the 
opportunity to commept on S. 1262, a bill to establish an Agency for Consumer 
Advocacy. 

NHFA has long suppOrted the need for a single department in the federal government 
to coordinate the consumer activities e,f the various governmental agencies. The most 
logical method to satisfy this need. is for Congress to make permanent the White 
House Office of Consumer Affairs (OCA). The Association d.oes not feel that the 
best interests of consumers would be served by the creation of an additional new 
agency ·of the federal government for consumer representation. For this reason NHFA 
opposes the creation of an Agency for Consumer Advocacy. 

At a time when citizens are increasingly concerned about government efficiency 
and growth it makes better sense for Congress to review the experience of existing 
agencies before striking out in new directions. The White House Office of Consumer 
Affairs has established a solid record of accomplishments in raising the level of con
sumer awareness in both industry and government. This Association has enjoyed a 
close working relationship with the OCA in developing mutually advantageous consumer 
programs for home furnishings customers. ,:': 

In many respects the OCA already performs several critical functions contemplated 
in this legislation. The OCA acts as a clearinghouse for consumer complaints and 
serves as a focal point for organizing voluntary business-supported consumer affairs 
programs. Consumer views are also expressed to other federal agencies through the 
OCA. This capability can easily be strengthened through the "reorganization" authority 
which Congress has already granted the President. It is important to note, moreover, 
that OCA carries out all of these functions in a spirit of cooperation . and mutual 
respect. 

The proposed Agency for Consumer Advocacy, in contrast, would have little choice 
but to carry out these functions as an adversary. Given the power to iiltervene in 
the proceedings of other federal agencies and to challenge their actions in court, 
there is little doubt that the new agency would act as an antagonist. The very nature 
of this legislation would likely result in confusion, delay and second-guessing whenever 

,·,a federal agency attempts to issue a rule or regulation affecting the home furnishings 
- industry. 

More importantly, home furnishings retailers are concerned about the authority 
'granted in this legislation which allows the proposed agency to intervene in other 
agency activities involving "adjudication", "sanction", and "relief." This includes in
dividual complaints against businesses issued by agencies such as the Federal Trade 
Commission and the COllsumer Product SBfety Commission. Investigation and prosecu
tion of alleged wrong-doing should be undertaken only by the enforcement agency 
authorized by Congress to perform this task. A consumer agency representative has 
no proper role in these proceedings. The presence of a consumer agency representative 
during a FTC cease-and-desist negotiation, for example, would not only be unwarranted, 
but would also:result in the government "double-teaming" against business. 

Busimlss would have to face two agencies, either concurrently or consecutively, 
on the same issue. 
. In summary, the members of the National Home Furnishings Association support 
statutory autllOrity to make permanent the White. House Office of Consumer Affairs 
and oppose legislation to create a new Agency for Consumer Advocacy because: 
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The White House Office of Consumer Affairs has ~teady proven its ability 
to work in harmony with both government and industry to represent the consumer 
viewpoint, 

The proposed Agency for Consumer Advocacy would wield unwarranted authori
ty to interfere in the rulemaking proceedings of other federal agencies, and 

Business tirm3 would be subjected to governmental "double-teaming" in enforce
ment proceedings as the proposed Agency for Consumer Advocacy would force 
the firm to comply with its own interpretation, of the enforcement agency's rules 
and regulations; 

Your carefui consideration of these views will be appreciated by the nearly 10,000 
stores represented by the National Home Furnishings Association. '" 

Sincerely, 
WILLIAM I. LEVENSON, 

Chairman, Governmental Affairs Committee. 

GROCERY MANUFACTURERS OF AMERICA, INC. 
Washington, D,C., May 3, 1977. 

HON, ABRAHAM A. RIBICOFF, , ' 
Chainnan, Senate Governmental Affairs Committee, 
U.S. SelUite, Washington, D.C. 

DEAR MR. CJiAIRMAN: The Grocery Manufacturers of America is the trade associlj.tion 
of the nation's leading producers of food and related products sold to consumers 
in retail outlets. We are thankful for this opportunity to state Our views' on S. 1262, 
the proposed Consumer Protection Ast of 1977. , ' 

GMA POSITION ON CONSUMER ADVOCACY PROPOSALS 

GMA has fully supported the underlying concept of this sort of legislation since 
it was revived during the 91st Congress. That is, we agree that all identifiable interests, 
including consumer interests, that may be affected substantiaUybe federal agency action 
deserve to be represented within the decisionmaking process that leads to that action. 

AGMA has never objected to the creation, of an independent federal agency to 
implement this concept; nor have we objected to the funding ,of private advocates 
for that purpose; nor have we objected to the housing of consumer advocates in 
the' Federal Trade Commission, in all regulatory agencies, or in the Office of the 
President, to list a few of the consumer advocacy propo&als that have been suggested 
since the 91st Congress. We feel that the structuring of consumer representation func
tions within any new ti~deral plan is best left to the Congress and the Executive 
Branch. 

However, GMA favors the use of additional government funds, services, or procedures 
only, where necessary to assure a balance in the advocacy of interests' and sufficiency 
9f information within federal decisionmaking. S. 1262 goes well beyond the boundaries 
of that principle; therefore QMA strongly opposes the bill, 

MAJOR AREAS OF CONCERN 

The bill contains all of the problem areas that made its predecessors so controvtlrsial 
and unsuccessful. To these old, continuing problem areas, new ones have been added. 
Yet, little is beipg said 'about the major changes that were made in theccinsumer 
agency bill of last Congress, S. 200, before it was reintroduced during this Congress 
as, S. 1262. ' 

For this reason, we attach to this statement an analysis of the major differences 
between the" consumer, . agency bills of the 94th and. 95th Congress. We respectf!JlIy 
ask that it be' con$idered part of, this document and appear in the. hearing r¢:Cord 
immediately following.Jhis' statement. ' " , ' 

There are many areas of GMA concern in S. 1262, too'many to list all of th~m. 
However; the following silj: areas 'should be of major concern to anyone who is, regulated 
by the federal·~overnment:'" ' ' , 

1. Unwarrllnted RegUlatory Investigative Powers 
Section 10 (a) "of the bill allows the consumer agency to issuccourt-enforc~abie 

.orders tobusinessrhen for reports or written answers to questions in the absence 
of any 'ongoing feder~ regulliltory inquiry. Furtbermore, a critical' safeguard provision 
of the predecessor bill, requiring the Comptroller General to review such consumer 
agency infonnation demands to. prevent undue burdens, is no longer in the current 
bill. 
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The potential for abuse contained in the information order provision is great. This 
js re~ulatory power, pure and simple. Yet it is to be used without relevance to any 
ongomg regulatory effort. The prospect of federal harassment is clear, the need for 
such power in an advocacy agency is not/ 
2. bwdequate Trade Secret Protection 

The trade secret provisions of the bill are also disturbing. The consumer agency 
apparently will be assured of access to most tr:lde secrets and other confidential infor
mation in the hands of businessmen under Section 10 (b). The latter provision is 
a sieve with no guarantee that sensitive information divulged' to a regulatory federal 
agency will remain with that agency. 
3. Power to Seek Court Reversal of Regulatory DecisiollS 

Section 6 (c) of the bill grants to the consumer agency, a nonregulatory unit, 
the power to initiate court review uf regulatory action by other federal agencies. 
This provision is objectionable, not only because it pits the government against the 
government, but, more importantly, because it upsets the basic foundations of our 
administrative system. 

Congress delegated to the regulatory agencies the authority to make decisions and 
take actions in certain specialized areas. The courts traditionally have deferred to 
an agency's jUdgment in its area of expertise. The practical effect of this judicial 
review provision is that it unnecessarily upsets the presumption of agency expertise 
and redelegates the final administrative authority to the courts which will find such 
"U.S. v. U.S." suits among the most frustratingly difficult cases they face. 

4. Unfair Dual Prosecutor Power 
Section (N'(a) of the bill would allow an attorney from the consumer agency to 

intervene as a full party in administrative adjudications of alleged violations of law. 
The Administrative Law Judge would have no discretion to prevent such an intervention. 

The consequences of full party interventions in agency prosecutions are immense. 
We safely can assume that the consumer agent will invariably intervene in prosecutions 
against businessmen. To the extent that the consumer agent's prosecution parallels 
that of the regulatory prosecutor, there will be wasteful duplication. To the extent 
that the consumer agent's prosecution varies from that of the regulatory prosecutor, 
there will be inconsistent prosecutions. 

5. UncollSciollable Special Interest ExemptiollS 
Section 16 of the bill would prevent the consumer agency from issuing any statement 

on. or invesigating, any action by the Federal Communications Commission with respect 
to broadcasting license renewals. The section also carries the same prohibition against 
consumer agency attention to matters relating to labor disputes and labor agreements. 

The, exempted matters potentially are of great significance to the interests of con
sumers-an illegal dock strike could adversely affect hundreds of millions of consumerS. 
The special interest exemptions stand as an admission that the powers proposed in 
the bill are too far reaching. Otherwise why would special interests bave to seek 
and gain such political favor? 

6. Potentially Dangerous Bureaucratic Surprise Package 
GMA is apprehensive about the possible consequences of section 22 of the bill 

which directs the President to provide for the transfer of countless ,unnamed (and 
presumably unknown at this time) federal activities to the new consumer agency. 
The Administrator of the consumer agency then would have the authority to reorganize 
the transferred activities to his or her own liking. 

The transfer would be accomplished by use of the new reorganiza~i,;m plan power. 
The President is mandated by this bill to use his reorganization power for the benefit 
of the consumer agency within 120 days of the enactent of S. 1262. This raises 
significant questions with respect to Congress' mandating what the PresidenCs reor
ganization priorities must be and ho..y he should div,est himself of executive powers. 
It also may raise serious threats to the viability of the proposed consumer agency. 

Section 22 of the bill holds the real prospect for doubling, tripling,. or quadrupling 
the size and apprpriations of the consumer agency four months after it is created. 
There is also the prospect of a future drastic change in the new agency's mission, 
iCc the 'wrong type of function is transferred to the consumer. agency on the take
it-or-leave-it basis of ,a reorganization plan. 

UNANSWERED QUESTIONS ABOUT S. 1262 

In addition to the issues discussed. above, there are a number of questions left 
unanswered by the bill .. Some of these questions are: 

( 
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I. Should Congress provide more guidelines with respect to the type of consumer 
activity it deems appropriate for representation? 

For example, Consumers Union has advocated reform of the marijUll11a "laws, 
a subject of most concern to consumers of the drug. ", 

Another related issue is cigarette smoking-the consumers being primarlly the 
smokers-.,.should the consumer agency advocate the consumer's interest in smoking 
or not smoking? Or should the agency avoid controversial issues? - , I! 

2. Why is the proposed consumer agency's role in international relations, especially 
on export-import questions, not clearly defined? ' 

3. Is S. 1262, as presently drafted, a threat to the President's energy program, ';,~ 
or will the President seek to use the proposed consumer agency as a tool to implement 
the program?' 

4. Why is it necessary to grant the consumer agency the right t,~ appeal to the 
courts the final decisions of regulatory agencies? 

Is this done out of a fear that the regulatory agencies would not, pay attention 
to a mere Congressional mandate that requires "them to Iillten to«"the consumer 
agency:? If so, should there ,not bea ,similar fear abQui the copsumer agency 
not paying attention to its own Congressional mandates? 

CONCL.USION 

We thank you for the opportunity to express our views on \:his important piece 
of legislation. Providing adequate representation for the consumer interest in gover:n
ment decisionmaking i~ a concept we support without, hesitation. S. 1262, however; 
distorts and bloats this worthwhile concept beyond recognition. We sincerely believe 
that this bill, if enacted, will prove to be one of the most anti-consumer forces ever 
let loose in the marketplace. Should you have any questions about our position on 
the bill" please do not hesitate to contact us. 

Sincerely, 
GEORGE W. KOCH. 

Enclosures 

DIFFERENCES BETWEEN PROPOSED CONSUMER PROTECTION ACTS OF 1975 AND 1'977 

Bills to create an independent consumer protection agency to advocate the intrerests 
of consumers were again introduced ,during this 95,th Congress. They are S.· 1262 
in the Senate and H.R. 6118 in the House. , ' 'I, 

Similar bills passed the Senate as S. 200 and the' House of Representatives as' H.R. 
7575 during the 94th Congress.* 11lose bills were not brought to a conference commit
tee to resolve differences because proponents felt that a threatened veto _ by then
President Gerald R. Ford likely would have been sustained. 

This analysis identifies the major -differences between the Senate bill of this Congress 
and the Senate bill of the last Congress and the differences between the House bill, 
of this CongresS and its predecessor inth'lt chamber . 

.. , '~,JJ . 
. _, " I. CHANGES, IN-SENATE BIL.L. 

A. Certain Special/merest Exemptions Deleted 
The proposed Consllmer Protection ,~ct of 1977; S. 1262, does not contain the 

following exemptions which were placed in. the 1975 Senate bill ~fore it passed 
that chaplber: "', ~ 

·1. Farmers and: Fishermen-Exempted from the consumer agency's advoCacy 
authority were any federal agency proceeding or activity directly affecting producers 

"" of livestock, poultry, agricultural crops or, raw fish (S. 200, 94th,Cong." Sec. 
16(b»; 

2. Firearms and Ammunition-The consumer agency wasex{I[{lssly prohibited 
from using its advocacy powers to restrict or limit the manufacture, sale, or possel)-
sion of firearms. or ammunition (S. 200. 94th Cong., Sec.' 6~k}); , 

3. Alaska Pipeline-The consumer agency was. expressly prohibited fronfJusing 
- its advocacy powers with respec~ to 'matters' affecting the (outing or ~nstruction 

of oil or natural gas pipeline systems located inAlaSka(S. 200, 94th Cong., 
Sec. 16(c)). -

B. Promotion of Farmer Interest Deleted 
One of the functions of the consumer agency uqder the bill last Congrell!lc was 

to "promote the consumer interests of farmeq> in ol>taining a full supply of goods 

OTechnicaily, H.R~1575 passed the House as a substituted S. 200. 

90-731 0 - 77 --16 
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and services at a fair and equitable price" (S. 200, 94th Ceng., Sec. 5(b) (14); 
14(7». This is net feund in the 1917 versien, altheugh new previsiens en family 
farming interests were added. (See E belew) 

C. Safeguard Against Burdensome Information Demands Deleted 
The. bill last Cengress weuld have required the Cemptreller General to. review all 

censumer agency infermatien requests to. assure that they weuld net impose an undue 
burden upon the person receiving them. (S .. 200, 94th Ceng., Sec. 10(a) (l ).) This 
safeguard dees net appear in the 1977 bill. 

D. Special Recognition of Small Business Administration Advocacy Status Deleted 
The bill last Cengress expressly recegnized that "the Small Business Administratien 

remains the sele executive advocate fer the interests ef small businesscencerns". 
(S. 200, 94th Ceng., Sec. 13(d).) This previsien does net appear in the 1977 bill. 

E. Recognition of Family Farmer Interests Added 
Added to. the 1977 bill are previsiens requiring the censumer agency to. give due 

censideratien to. the unique preblems ef family farming and to. respond expeditieusly 
to. family farmer requests and vieWs. (S. 1262, 95th Ceng., Sec. 18) 

In additien, the U.S. Department ef Agriculture must previde family farmers with 
infermatien abeut precedures and activities arising under the censumer agency act 
which affect such farmers. U.S.D.A. must also. previde Cengress with an annual SU!!1ma
ry ef the actiens taken under the censumer act which particularly have affected family 
farmers. (S. 1262, 95th Ceng., Sec. 18) . 

F. Presidential Reorganization Plan Requirement Atkied; CPICC Transfer Deleted 
The bill last Cengress weuld have transferred to. the censumer agency the persennel 

and functiens ef the Censumer Product Infermatien Ceerdinating Center in the General 
Services Administratien. (S. 200, 94th Ceng., Sec. 22) That· provisien is net in the 
l.977 preposal. .. 

The new bill directs the. President to. submit a reerganizatien plan within 120 days 
ef enactment ef the censumer agency bill. The plan weuld provide fer the transfer 
to. the censumer agency ef existing federal censumer pregrams that ceuld be perfermed 
mere appropriately er efficiently by the new agency. (S. 1262, 95th Ceng., Sec. 22) 

G. Consumer Advocacy Budget Estimates Requirement Deleted 
The bill last' 00ngress weuld have required the Office ef Management and Budget 

and the Congressienal Budget Office to. give Cengress annual estimates ef the ameunt 
ef funds expected to. be .allecated fer consumer representatien by agencies ether than 
the new Agency fer Censumer Advocacy. (S. 200, 94th Ceng., Sec. 25) This provisien 
is net in the 1977 propesal. 

II. CHANGES IN HeUSE BILL 

A. Conflict of Imerest Provision Added . 
Fermer tep efficials ef the censumer agency weuld be prohibited frem representing 

er prefessienally advising a regulated party er assodMien representing a regulated 
party cencerning issues en which the efficials act~<I in a decisio,nmaking capacity 
while they served at the censumer agency. Further, these fermer efficials weuld be 
prehibited, fer a 2-year peried, from representing any such party er assOCiatien ,:=encern
ing any matter in which the censumer agency was invelved at the ceurt er adllJinistrative 
agency level during their empleyment. (H.R. 6118, 95th Ceng., Sec. 3(d» No. similar 
prevision was in the prier Heuse b,ill. . 

B. Authority to Establish Regional Offices Added 
The 1977 bill also. expressly grants the censumer agency autherity to. eS,tablish such 

regienal effices as it deems necessary (H.R. 6118, 95th Ceng.; Sec. 4(b) (10». 

C. Amicus Curiae Court Stlltus Delet;d 
The 1975 bill previded that the censu~er agency, en its ewn metien, ceuld transmit 

to. atterneys representing' the federal gevernment in ceurt infermatien and evidence 
theught relevant; additienally, the bill previded that the ceurts weuld have discretion 
to. recognize the censumer agency ~ an amicus curiae (friend ef the ceurt) to. present 
written or eral argumenl to. them; (H.R. '7575, 94th Ceng., Sec. 6(c» TIle 1977 
bill no. lenger prevides fer these, altheugh the deletien everleeks several references 
to. ceurt proc~edings which new remain as drafting errers. 

( 
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D. Judicial Review Safeguard Diluted 
With respect to the consumer agency's appealing to the courts another agency's 

action, when the consumer agency did not participate in the agency proceeding out 
of which that action arose, the 1975 bill reqUired that the court make a preliminary 
finding that the consumer agencts "institutIOn of the judicial proceeding would be 
necessary to the interest of justice. ' (H.R. 7575, 94th Cong., Sec. 6(d» ,(' 

The 1977 bill. makes the preliminary finding discretionary, rather than mandatory, 
with the court, and shifts the finding criterion from one of necessity to the less rigorous 
question of whether the consumer agency's action' "would impede the interests of 
justice." (H.R. 6118, 95th Cong., Sec. 6(d» 
E. Consumer Agency Subpoena Rights Broadened 

The 1975 bill provided that the consumer agency could take advantage of another 
federal agency's subpoena powers if the consumer agency were a "party" in oce 
of that agency's proceedings. (1I.R.. 7575, 94th Cong., Sec. 6(g» 

The 1977 bill would allow the consumer agency to take adv~tage of suchsubpoena 
powers even if the consumer agency did not have the status 0(30 party in a proceedilJg: 
in fact, the consumer agency could take advantage of such powers as a mere participant 
in a notice and comment rulemaking proceeding where" no other partiCipants had 
such an opportunity. (H.R. 6118, 95th Cong., Sec. 6(g» 

F. State Activity Prohibition Diluted 
The 1975 bill and the 1977 bill both prohibit the consumer agency from intervening 

in proceedings or actions before state or local agencies and' courts. (Sec. 6(h), both 
bills) 

However, the 1975 bill expressly provided that the prohibition should not be con
strued as prohibiting the consumer agency frem "communicating" with state or local 
agencies, while courts were not mentioned. (H.R. 7575, 94th Cong., Sec. 6(i» 

The 1977 bill would allow the consumer agency not only to communicate with 
state and local agencies, bLi~ to provide them with information and analyses under 
their rule (in 'many state and local proceedings, that is all any participant cando); 
it also would allow the consumer agency to do the same with state or local courts. 
(H.R. 6118, 95th Cong., Sec. 6(i» 

G. Product Testing Role Added 
The 1975 bill directed the consumer agenc:;\ to encourage and support others in 

the development 'and application of testing methods for consumer products arei sel:vices. 
(H.R. 7575, 94th Cong., Sec. 9(a) (1» 

The new bill also directs the consUmer agency to encourage and support the develop-
ment and appl\cation of product testing and its resulting information. (H.R. 6118, '.1 
95th COl1g., Sec. 9(a) (I» 
H. Feasibility Report on "Tel-Tag" Deleted 

The 1975 bill directed. the consumeI7 agency to report to Congress on the feasibility 
of establishing Ii National Consumer Information Foundation to administer a voluntary 
information tag system similar to "Tel-Tag" in Great Britain. (H.R. 7575, 94th Cong., 
Sec. 9(a) (3» This provision is not in the 1977 bill. 

T. Use of Product Testing Results Expanded 
The 1975 bill authorized and directed all federal agencies with consumer product 

testing capabilities to perform for the consumer agency such tests as the agency 
requested to assist in its consu.mer advocacy functions. ~~ the consumer agency 
of the results of these tests, however, was Iimited-"such tests ~ay be used or published 
only in proceedings'.' of other agencies in which ACP is pa.1icipating .. (H.R. 7575, 
94th Cong."Sec. 9(b» 

The 1977 bill would allow the consumer agency to use or publish product test 
results .. outside a proCeeding in which it is appearing, so long as this is done "in 
connection with" such a proceeding. (H.R. 6118, 95th Cong., Sec .. 9(b» 

J. Statutory Trade Secret Protection Re(~ed 
1. No Opportunity to S,eek Court Protection.-The 1975 bill allowed the consumer 

agency to request- other 'federal agencies to disclose to it trade secrets and other 
confidential commercial or financial information. However, the \:1m r~q\lired these other 
agencies to" give the person who provided them the sensitive information notice of 
their intent to give the consumer agency ac:cess to it and "a' reasonable opportunity 
to comment or seek injunctive relief." (H.R. 7575, 94th Cong., Sec. IO(b) (6» 

The 1977 bill does not contain the words "or seek injunctive relief," thereby limiting 
the'statutory guaranty to the opportunity to make a mere comment to the agency 
holding the information. 
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2. No Prohibition on Disclosure.-The 1975 bill expressly prohibited the consumer 
agency from revealing to the .public trade secrets or other confidential commercial 
or financial information received from. a person and considered privileged or con
fidential. (H.R. 7575, 94th Cong., Sec. II(a) (1 ». No such prohibition appears in 
the 1977 bill. 

3. No Prohibition on Disclosing Legally Protected Information.-The 1975 bill ex
pressly allowed other federal agencies to withhold from the consumer agency any 
information the disclosure of which is prohibited by law. (H.R. 7575, 94th Cong., 
Sec. 11(b» No such provision appears in the 1977 bilI. 

K. Consumer Agency Reports to Congress Limited 
The 1";75 bilI required the consumer agency to keep the appropriate congressional 

committees currently informed with respect to the nature and status of all interrogatories 
or other mandatory infbrmation demands issued by the agency; also, the consumer 
ag<:ncy waS required to transmit to such committees copies of all communications 
alleging ahuse of that information demand authority or stating reasons for noncom
pliance with it. (H.R. 7575, 94th Cong., Sec. 1O(e» 

The 1977 bilI· would require the consumer agency to report to its congressional 
oversight committees on allegations of abuse of its information demand powers only 
if requested by them to do so, and the bilI would not expressly require the consumer 
agency to keep such committees informed of all its information demand, but just 
such demands generally. (H.R. 6118, 95th Cong., Sec. 10(e» 

L. Information Release Fairness Rules Deleted 
The 1975 bilI required the consumer agency to issue in a public proceeding, and 

be bound by, rules that would assure fairness to all persons affected by the agency's 
use of its infontlation gathering, development and dissemination powers and which 
provided persons with an opportunity to comment on the proposed release of product 
test data containing product names, prior to such release (H.R. 7575, 94th Cong., 
Sec. 12). 

That provision does not appear in the 1977 bill, although the bill does provide 
that the consumer agency promulgate rules to assure fairness to all persons affected 
by its actions (H.R. 6118, 95th Cong., Sec. 4(8) (4). 

M. Presidential Reorganization Plan Requirement Added 
The new bilI directs the President to submit a reorganization plan within 180 days 

of enactment of the consumer agency bill. The plan would provide for the transfer 
to the consumer agency of duplicative federal consumer programs that could be per
formed more appropriately by the new agency (H.R. 6118, 95th Cong., Sec. 14). 

N. Cost-Benefit Statements Deleted 
The 1975 bill would have required federal agencies to issue and consider cost and 

benefit assessment statements with respect to rules which likely would have a substantial 
economic impact (H.R. 7575, 94th Cong., Sec. 22). This provision does not appear 
in the 1977 bill. 

O. Appropriations Increased 
The 1975 bill called for $10 million per year for the consumer agency's first two 

fully operational years. (H.R. 7575, 94th Cong., Sec. 21) The 1977 bill calls for 
$15 million and $17 million for the first two such years. (H.R. 6118, 95th Cong., 
Sec. 20) 

Hon. ABRAHAM A. RIBICOFF, 

ASSOCIATION OF HOME ApPLIANCE MANUFACTURERS, 
Washington, D.C., May 4, 1977. 

Chairman, GoVernmental Affairs Committee, 
U.S. Senate, Washington, D.C. 

DEAR SBNATOR RIBICOFF: On behalf of the members of the Association of Home 
Appliance Manufacturers (AHAM) we respectfully request that the following comment 
be included in the record of the Governmental Affairs Committee hearing on S. 1262, 
"The Consumer Protection Act of 1977." 

AHAM is a national trade association rcpresenting both major and portable appliance 
manufacturers. It membership includes the companies that manufacture the vast majority 
of sueh appliances sold in the United States. A roster of AHAM members is attached 
as Exhibit I to this letter. 

r 
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AHAM's members have demonstrated a unique and far-reaching commitment to 
consumer interests by pioneering such programs as the Major Appliance Consumer 
Action Panel, the first informal complaint resolution program of its kind; the National 
Home Appliance Conference, a 29 year-old education program for consumer commu
nicators; and the Recommended Advertising Practices Guidelines, to establish the 
highest standards for industry advertising to consumers. 

With this history of consumer interest commitment and involvement, AHAM testified 
against legislation to establish a Consumer Protection Agency before the House Govern
ment Operations Committee in the 94th Congress. This testimony is attched as Exhibit 
2 because so much of the industry'S objections to earlier legislation remains pertinent 
to the bill before this Committee. 

AHAM, therefore, wishes to go on record again as opposing S. 1262. 
A new Federal agency is not justified for the purposes set forth in the legislation. 

If the multi-faceted consumer interests are not now adequately considered in Federal 
agency activities, this is a failure best corrected by the Congress dealing with these 
agencies directly through its oversight function rather than delegating its authority 
to an additional agency. 

Respectfully submitted, 
CHARLES R. EVANS, 

Chairman, AHAM Board of Directors. 

(l 
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EXHIBIT 1 
ASSOCIATION OF HOMe APPLIANCE MANUFACTURERS 

MAJOR APPLIANCE MEMBERS 

Absoco1d Hoover 
Addison In-Sink-Erator Division 
Arvin of Emerson Electric 
Blackstone Jenn-Air 
Boston Stove KitchenAid-Hobart 
Broan Litton 
Carrfer Magic Chef 
Design & Manufacturing Gaffers & Sattler 
Ebco May tag 
Fedders McGraw-Edison 

Airtemp Air Comfort 
Norge Modern Maid 
Fedders Refrigeration Speed Queen 

Friedrich , Int1. Metal Products 
General Electric, Major Nat1. Union Electric 

Appliance Business GrOUp Emerson Quiet-Koo1 
General Motors Preway 

Frigidaire Division Revco 
Ger1 ing Moore Rockwell International 
G1 en~lood Range Admi ra 1 
Hardwick Stove Roper 

Aluminum Specialty 
Ameri can E1 ect!'i c 
Arvin 
Capitol Products 
C1airo1 
Conair 
Farberware 
General Electric 
Gillette 
Hoover 
Intermatic 
KitchenAid-Hobart 
Markel Electric 

Tappan 
Anaheim 
O'Keefe & Merritt 

PORTABLE APPLIANCE MEMBERS 

t1cGraw-Edi son 
Port. App1. & Tool 
Time Products 

'Metal Ware 
Mirro Aluminum 
National Presto 
Regal Ware 
Richmond Cedar 
Rival 

Titan 
Salton 
SCM Corporation 

Proctor-Sil ex 

Vern co 
West Bend 
Whirlpool 
White Consolidated Industries 

Athens Stove Works 
Frankl i n-Fr'eezer Divi si on 
Franklin-Laundry Division 
Gibson Products 

Belding 
Gibson App1ianc~ 
Greenville Products 

Ke1vinator 
GR Manufacturing 
Ke1vinator App1iance 
Ke1vinator Int1. 
Kelvinator Comm. Prods. 

I~hite-Westi nghouse 
~Ihite-Westinghouse App1. 
Columbus Products 
Mansfield Major Appliance 
Edison Products 

Scovill 
Dominion 
Hamil ton Beach 

Son-Chief 
Black Angus 

Sperry Remi ngton 
Sunbeam 

Oster 
Supe~ior Electric 
Vita Mix 
Waring 
Wear-Ever 
West Bend 

f 
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ASSOCIATION OF HOM! APPLIANCE MANUFACTURERS 

AMP. Inc. 
Armco Steel 
Bethlehem Steel 
Calgon 
Clorox 
Colgate-Palmolive 
Copeland 
Corning Glass Works 
Davis Walker 
Drackett 
Eagle-Picher, Inc. 

Chi-Vit Corp. 
Eaton Corp. 

Auto. & Appliance 
Control Operations 

Economics Lab. 
Electro-Therm 
Emerson E1 ectri c 

Browning Mfg. 
Chroma1ox 
Emerson Motor 
Fusite DiVision 

ASSOCIATE MEMBERS 

Emerson Electric (Cont.) 
Therm-O-Disc 
Tutt1 e E1 ectri c 
U. S. Elec. Motors 
White-Rodgers 
E. L.Wiegand 

Ferro Corporation 
General Electric 
Gould, Inc. 
Hooker Chemi ca 1 s 
Inland Steel 
International Nickel 
Lever Brothers 
litton (Electron Tube) 
Mal10ry Timers 
Monsanto 
MSP Industries 

Easy Heat-Wirekraft 
Owens/Corning 

Procter & Gamble 
Ranco 
Raytheon 
Robertshaw 
Scott & FHzer 

Kin9pton Division 
Kirby Campa nj' 

Scott P<lper 
Fo.m Dlvision 

Singer . 
Control Divisiqn 

A. O. Smith ' 
Tecumseh 
Teledyne 
Texas Ins truments ,. 
TRW Incorporated 

\, .. 

United.Carr Division _ 
Union Steel '(I 

U. S. Steel 
Westinghouse Electric 
~hite Consolidated Industries 

Americold COlOpressor 

\~. 
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EXHIBIT 2 

STATIlMENT OF THE ASSOCIATION OF HOME ApPLIANCE MANUFACTURERS 

This statement is presented on behalf of the members of the Association of Home 
Appliance Manufacturers (AHAM). AHAM's members manufacture such major ap
plIances as refrigerators, home laundry equipment, room air conditioners, electric 
ranges, humidifiers, and dehumidifiers; and such portable appliances as coffee makers. 
electric knives, blenders, electric fry pans, and so on. A list of these members is 

':attached to this statement, which is ma.de with their strong support. . 
AHAM's members are opposed to the establishment of an independent Agency for 

Consumer Protection. The basic fallacy in the concept of a single agency to represent 
consumers in proceedings or activities of other federal agencies is that there is one 
overridil"!g consumer interest. There are many conflicting consumer interests. In the 
market place one group of consumers prefers a less durable product at a lower price, 
while others want a more durable product and are willing to pay more for it. One 
group emphasizes appearance over serviceability. This diversity and industIy's ability 
to provide goods and services to satisfy the conflicting preferences has made the 
American market place the envy of many nations. 

The conflict between "consumer interests" in governmental activity is recorded daily 
in the media, as those interested in low cost fuel argue with those who would sacrifice 
immediate cost for purposes of conservation, as ecologists argue with those who support 
the construction of power plants. ' 

The choice of one interest to be represented, no matter how conscientiously made 
or how well documented, will deny representation by a federal agency of m~y other 
interests in a given proceeding. The argument that no consumer interest is now 
represented in federal agency proceedings, whereas business interests are alleged to 
be more than adequately represented, does not justify the creation of an independent 
agency to advocate one interest over all others and oversee the work of all other 
federal agencies. 

This is not the time to create any new federal agency. A study of the regulatory 
agenc!es may be undertaken by a Commission on Regulatory Reform or by a Congres
sional committee. The purpose of the study would be to examine the regulatory agencies 
and to determine those thay may have outlived their usefulness, the extent to which 
their functions overlap, the economic costs and benefits of regulation, and how the 
regulatory process can be made more effective, efficient and responsive to the public 
need. Such a study, currently languishing, could benefit the public, both as consumers 
and as taxpayers, to a far greater extent than an Agency for Consumer Protection. 

In addition, the concern of the President, the Congress, and the taxpayers over 
inflation and the ever increasing federal expenditures stresses the need for caution 
in creating an agency whose cost to the economy is not known. Appropriations for 
the agency itself would be but a small part of the total cost to the economy. Costs 
would be incurred by other agencies and by industry as a result of other federal 
agencies. A serious effort must be made to ascertain these over-all costs before the 
public is asked to assume them, through taxes and increased prices. 

Consumers Not Neglected by Congress 
Actually, the consumer has not been neglected by the Congress. A study by the 

Library of Congress, made at the request of Senator Taft (R-Ohio), reported that 
"almost every activity of the Federal Government touches upon the American con
sumer." Some 75 agencies, with hundreds of functions, were said to affect consumer 
affairs directly, with a current cost of many billions of dollars. (Congressional Record, 
May 15, 1975, P. S 8383) 

Statutes enacted by recent Congresses to promote consumer interests include the 
Consumer Product Safety Act, the Flammable Fabrics Act, the Hazardous Substances 
Act, the Wholesome Poultry Act, the Radiation Control for Health and Safety Act, 
the National Traffic and Motor Vehicle Safety Act, the Fair Packaging and Labeling 
Act, the Fair Credit Reporting Act, and the Magnuson-Moss Warranty-Federal Trade 
Commission Im.provement Act. Now, in considering the creation of an Agency for 
Consumer Protection, the Congress is saying that these and numerous other statutes 
ti)~t promote CO)1sumer interests have gone for naught, that a consumer czar is needed 
to' stimulate the agencies charged with administering these statutes. 

lf the federal agencies are not doing their jobs effectively in the public interest, 
the remedy lies with Congress. Congress itself should analyze the agencies' deficiencies, 
ane:! correct those that are found. To place this responsibility in as permanently 
established agency, responsible neither to the Chief Executive, the Congress nor the 
electorate, is an abdication of power. 

t 
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Support for Agency Rests on Narrow Base-Opposition Strong 
Support for legislation to establish an Agency for Consumer Protection or an Agency 

for Consumer Advocacy, rests on a very narrow base, the professional consumer or-
ganizations. ' 

Business is strongly opposed to the legislation, as is shown by repeated testimony 
before Congressional ;<;iommittees by the United States Chamber of Commerce and 
the National Association of Manufacturers. Small business' opposition to the legislation 
is forcefully demonstrated by a survey of 412,000 small businessmen made late in 
1974 by thee National Federation of Independent Business. According to the survey, 
84% of the firms opposed the creation of an agency to represent consumers, 12% 
supported such an agency, and 4% expressed no opinion. Only 14 or 15 major busi
nesses werer,lte~tione!i.j:Q the Senate debate, on S. ;200 'as supporting the legislation. 

~,. ((3m:gi'i!ssiofuil Record, May-n, 1975, pp. S 7910 and S791 1) 
Consumers themselves, apart from the professional consumer organizations, are op

posed to the legislation. (Poll entitled "Government and the. Consumer," by Opinion 
Research Corp., made public in March 1975) , . 

The Administration is opposed to the legisla/ion. (Letter of April 17, 1975 from 
President Ford to Congressman Jack Brooks, Chabn .. n, House Government Operations 
Committee: Congressman Harley O. Staggers, Chait~an, House fnterstate and Foreign 
Commerce Committee; and Senator Abraham A. Ribicoff, Chairman, Senate Govern
ment Operations Committee) 

Organized labor is opposed to the legislation, unless it is exempt. «(.ongressional 
Record, May 12, 1975, p. S 7908) 

Agricultural and fishing interests are opposed, unless exempt. (Congressiorzai Record, 
May 15, 1975, pp. S 8393 and S8411) 

A bill that elicits support for important segments of the economy if they themselves 
are exempt cannot be sound I.egislation for segments not exempt. 

Effect on Government Processes .. 
Only confusion and delay in government can result from the creation of an agency 

with unlimited authority to intervene or to participate in activities of other federal 
agencies. No agency, except those expressly exempt by the legislation, could proc!!,ed 
with its work free from apprehension that, at some point, the consumer agency might_ 
come in to be _ heard, to request information, or to take other act,jon. No agency 
decision could become final until the statutory time for the" oonsuniefCagency 'to SeeK'-\-" 
judicial review of a decision had passed, or for - the "consumer agency to seek a 
"rehearing," if it had not participated in the proceeding leading to the decision. 

This uncertainty as well. as the main thrust of the consumer agency legislation, 
which is to make every federal agency, except those expresSly exempt. accountable 

_ . ,\0 a single agency is simply bad government. It would turn the democratic proCess 
\~,Jf government completely around. Government of the "people, by the people, for 

t/:l.e people" would ,become government by one entity. The. consumer interest to Q,e 
represented in government, how and where it would be' represented would be deter
mined by one individual and his staff, rather thlln by the people speaking through 
duly elected legislators, or by the consumers making choices in the free market place 
of ideas, services and goods. 

Provisions ofH.R 7575 
Specific provisions of H.R. 7575 to which AHAM~s members are. opposed could 

be mention~d; but they are secondary to our opposition to the concept of the legislation. 
The unlimited al!thority with respect to the testing of consl,lmer products a.nd service.'1, 
Sec. 9(a)0) and (2), could make the agency the determining factor in directing 
governmental research in fields even remotely related to consumer interests. The infor
mation gathering authority of Sec. 10, limited only by~' concern for the "health or 
safety of consumers" or by "consumer fraud or substantial economic injury to con-, 
sumers," goes, we believe, far beyond the information gathe'ring authority of any existing 
governmental agency, -

Areas of Legitimate Consumer Concern 
There are four areas of legitimate consumer concern that perhaps are not being 

met adequately under current federal or state law. One. is the need for a. judicial 
forum, with minimum procedural requirements, in which redress may be obtained 
quic~'y for valid complaints about goods or services. This need. is addressed by H.R. 
1952, entitled the "Consumer Controversies Resolution Act. ,,' 

A second is the need for a thorough stUdy of federal regulatory programs So that 
they may be made to promote consumer interests effectively, at reasonable cost, or 
be eliminated. This problem is addressed by f{,R. 1956. " 

,I 

{1 , ' 

-~-'''"- ,-~-.~ 



i) 

( 
'\ 

. 244 \ 

A third is the need for information on the cost to the government an~\ to industry 
of proposed leg,islation as well as proposed programs to be establiShed, ui,~1d er ,exi.sting 
laws, a need now recognized only in part by a House rule. 

Fourth, is the possible need for in-house representation .of consumers ~or selected 
agencies whose activities impinge directly upon consumers, another need not addressed 
by proposed legislation. 

Consumer interests will be better served by addressing each of these needs than 
by creating an unstructured agency with unlimited power to call other federal agencies 
to account in the name of a .monolithic, and nonexistent, consumer interest. ' 

Concll4Sion 
As. developers and manufacturers of products that have lightened the burden of 

housekeeping immeasurably and have made the home a more healthful and enjoyable 
place to live, AHAM's members have long worked to promote consumer interests. 
They are convinced th~t the creation of an Agency for Consumer Protection, to roam 
at will through Jhe federal government and to make virtually unbridled demands' on 
industry without adequate Congre~sional guidance, will be detrimental rather than 
beneficial to consumers. They urge that H,R, 7575 not be enacted. 

Respectfully submitted, 

'" Hon. LE'iNvfETCALF, 
U.S. Senate'" 

GEORGE P. LAMB, 
General Counsel, 

Association of Home Appliance Manufacturers. 

U.S. SMALL BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION, 
Washington, D.C., June 9, 1977 

Washington, D,C. 
DEARSENATO;r"METGALF: Since Congress will soon consider S. 1262 and H.R. 6805, 

legislation to cre!it~'\Jl Agency for Consumer Protection, I want to take this opportunity 
to call to your.~itentioQ the Small Business Administration's support for this important 
consumer measure. '" 

When.,the concept of an'!idvocacy agency was first propOsed eight years ago, there 
was ,I;oncem that the· agency.~~ information-gathering powers could impose an undue 
b~rden on the resources of small, businesses. However., in recent· years the bills have 
been altered in both the House 1ll1d Senate to accommodate this concern. Small busi
nes!lllS are now .exempt from the it,terrogatory authority of the consumer agency in 
bO.th the House and Senate bills. . 

. In addition, section. 17 of S. 1262,as reported, directs SBA to provide small business 
with information cOllcerni.ng ACP procedures and activities of other agencies related 
tc;> ACP. It futher providel/i that ACP is to seek the news of sm!illbusiness in establishing 
its priorities !ind. t,o giv:!due consideration to the unique problems of small.businesses 
SO as not ·to discriminat~ ,or cause unnecessary hard~hip. Under an amendment recently 
adopted by the Senau.! Governmental Affairs Committee, this section also provides 
that ACP's Administr~ior must notify SBA prior to intervening in a, proce.eding which 
is likely to have a subl!~ntial impact on small business.. . 

These provisions, added to the bills over the long course of legislative consideration, 
reflect the sensitivity to small business which SBA considers essential. With the provi
sions discussed above, SBA supports enactment of S. 1262 and H.R. 6805, consistent 
with the President's position on this matter. 

~,incerely, 
A. VERNON WEAVER, Admillistrator. 

o 
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